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Operational team at Alto da Croa Wind Farm (7.8'MW)
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ABOUT THIS
REPORT

Curtis Biomass Plant - Teixeiro (50 MW)

Greenalia presents this Annual Report with the aim of
communicating to its stakeholders relevant information
on the value generated during the 2023 financial year,
thus reaffirming its commitment to the annual reporting
of relevant and accurate information on sustainability.
Following the trend of previous years, Greenalia’s Annual
Report is published as an integrated digital report (PDF)
with an interactive version available on the corporate
website www.greenalia.es.

As a new feature of the 2023 financial year, it should
be noted that the sustainability information reported
is arranged on the basis of 4 strategic pillars, under
the values of PLANET, PEOPLE, GOVERNANCE AND
PROSPERITY. The inclusion of this fourth dimension of
prosperity recognizes and evidences the value of the
positive impact that Greenalia has on the territory where
it carries out its renewable activity. Likewise, these four
concepts will shape the sustainability strategy for the
next 5 years (Sustainability Plan 2024-2028).

The information contained in this Report has been
prepared with reference to the Sustainability Reporting
Standards of the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI
Standards), the international reporting framework,
as detailed in GRI 1: Fundamentals 2021, included
in the “GRI Content Index”. The information for the
2023 financial year included in this index has been
independently verified by KPMG Asesores, S.L. Its scope
and results are described in the report attached in the

appendix. In addition, the requirements of Law 11/2018
on non-financial information and diversity have been
taken into account voluntarily for the preparation of this
Report, which have not been subject to verification.

The scope of the information included in this Report
refers to that considered in the Consolidated Annual
Accounts of Greenalia S.A. and subsidiaries for the
financial year 2023. Unlike last year, this report does
not include the information related to Greenalia Forest
S.L. and Greenalia Logistics, S.L.U., as these companies
left the perimeter of Greenalia S.A. on 2 January 2023,
following their sale. In order to present comparable data
on the evolution of the company’s renewable energy
business, all values relating to previous years have
been recalculated, excluding the data referring to these
two companies, which is why the data is not consistent
with those reported in the 2022 Annual Report. For
information on the operations of these entities, please
refer to the report of the parent company Smarttia SL,
available on the group’s website.

For any queries regarding the contents of this report,
please contact: sostenibilidad@greenalia.es.



Surroundings of Monte Tourade Wind Farm

Closing 2023 with the warmest year on record is
a major indicator of the way we must go. We need
to step on the accelerator to achieve a paradigm
shift in our relationship with the planet. Global
warming is an increasingly tangible reality, as are
its consequences. Increased natural disasters,
water stress, rising sea levels... are just some of the
growing and more frequent effects of the Earth's
delicate health. Consequences that are particularly
affecting the most vulnerable collectives and
developing countries, which evidences the need
to accelerate the implementation of new business
models that allow these

phenomena to be reversed.

increasingly intense
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The gradual phasing out of fossil fuels and their
replacement by renewable raw materials is essential
to protect ecosystems and to be able to provide a
better future for generations to come. Failure to do
so would be extremely irresponsible. Addressing
this in an agile, inclusive and fair manner is a major
challenge, ambitious but achievable.

Therefore, in line with what was agreed at COP-
28 and as members of the UN Global Compact,
at Greenalia we continue with our commitment
as relevant actors of change. We are aware of the
importance of doing our bit to achieve the global
target of tripling renewable energy by 2030, but also
of making progress in people’'s wellbeing.

We believe that this is the way forward, as one of the
greatest enemies of the climate is CO2 emissions. The
promotion of renewable energies, from its different
technologies, is an essential pillar to achieve this. We
also do this by introducing new procedures, backed by
technology and science, which allow us to reduce our
CO2 emissions as much as possible.

Doing so in harmony with nature, in dialogue with local
environments and with maximum consensus is key
for the Greenalia team, which has sustainability and its
principles as the cornerstones of all its activities.

greenalia

The Green Company

José Maria Castellano Rios
PRESIDENT OF GREENALIA
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surroundings of Monte Tourado Wind Farm.

Since our foundation, at Greenalia we have positio-
ned ourselves in the search for innovative solutions
to generate energy in an environmentally friendly
way and to take an active part in the fight against
climate change. This has led us to diversify our bu-
siness portfolio, developing renewable technology
projects, which are now mature: onshore wind, solar
photovoltaic and biomass, but we are also commi-
tted to innovation, developing initiatives in offshore
wind, storage and hydrogen.

In line with our non-conformism, we have not only
expanded our pipeline in a market as important as
the American one, but we continue to make pro-
gress in pioneering initiatives such as the capture
of biogenic CO2 and its use as a raw material for
new uses, in a clear commitment to the circular
economy. We are also doing so with the vocation to
generate a positive impact on industry. For this rea-
son, we consolidate our projects with the signing of
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PPAs, through which we offer solutions to industry
to make it more competitive, efficient and environ-
mentally friendly.

A growth that runs parallel to the daily management
of our assets in operation, which in 2023 exported a
total of 558,836 MWh to the grid, 11% more energy
than the previous year. This has led to saving more
than 237,300 tonnes of CO- avoided in the atmos-
phere, with the consequent benefit for the Planet.

In a highly competitive and uncertain global envi-
ronment, at Greenalia we continue to take steps to
implement new renewable energy developments. It
is a highly complex path, with obstacles to overco-
me, which we must travel together with society, in
an open dialogue. We do so in the certainty that this
is the path towards a healthier and better planet for
all the living beings that inhabit it.

This is how we understand it at Greenalia, where our
commitment to the protection of the planet and the
people, the use of the best standards of governance
and the impact on the prosperous development of
society is indisputable.

The introduction of higher reporting and compliance
standards places us at a high level of self-demand
in the areas of Governance, Environment and Social,
and with a corporate culture at the level of the lar-
gest multinational companies. This is demonstra-
ted by our independent ratings, which highlight our
strong sustainability management.

A commitment we are very proud of, as we are also
proud of our dialogue with all the local communities
where we operate and with whom we have a cordial
neighbourly relationship.

We will continue to work to develop the best pro-
jects, competitively and efficiently, but, above all,

greenalia | ryz
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with the focus on all of them having a positive im-
pact on the Planet and society.

Manuel Garcia Pardo
CEO OF GREENALIA

ANNUAL REPORT



243 Biomass Plant - Teixeiro (50 MW)
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Operational team in the surroundings of Greenalia Wind Farm

Ourol Wind Farm

558,836 MWh
EXPORTED TO THE GRID
+11% VS 2022

100% SALES
BY RENEWABLE ENERGY
PRODUCTION

ONE & ONLY
MULTITECHNOLOGY COMPANY
ONSHORE WIND, OFFSHORE
WIND, SOLAR, BESS, BIOMASS,
HYDROGEN, E-FUELS

MORE THAN 3GW IN SPAIN AND
THE US IN CONSTRUCTION AND
ADVANCED DEVELOPMENT IN
DIFFERENT WIND, SOLAR, BESS
TECHNOLOGIES.

CONSTRUCTION BEGINS ON
415 MW OF WIND AND SOLAR
IN SPAIN AND 1 GW OF SOLAR,
WIND AND BESS IN THE US

600,000 t BIOGENIC CO:
AVAILABLE TO PRODUCE
SYNTHETIC FUELS

Curtis - Teixeiro Biomass

LOW RISK ESG
RATING
SUSTAINALYTICS

ELABORATION
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN
2024 -2028

JOINING THE
SPANISH BUSINESS AND
BIODIVERSITY INITIATIVE
(IEEB)



237,300

TONS
OF CO2 AVOIDED
+10% VS 2022

O,
36%
REDUCTION OF
WATER CONSUMPTION

PER MWh PRODUCED
VS 2022

o
-25%
REDUCTION OF
DIRECT EMISSIONS

IN tCO2-eq/MWh
GENERATED VS 2022

100%

OF EMPLOYEES
SUBMITTED A
PERFORMANCE
APPRAISAL

+19%

HOURS OF
TRAINING PER
EMPLOYEE

o)
75%
OF THE
OBJECTIVES OF

THE EQUALITY PLAN

ACHIEVED

95.9 M€

TURNOVER

67.7 M€

EBITDA

4

STRATEGIC
ALLIANCES IN
SUSTAINABILITY

+24 M€

INVESTED IN
LOCAL
ENVIRONMENTS

+150

LOCAL
EMPLOYMENTS

9

SOCIAL
PROJECTS




GREENALIA
THE GREEN
COMPANY

ONSHORE WIND

Monte Tourado Wind Farm (10.4 MW)

We are an independent producer of energy exclus
ble sources. We use wind, sun and forest bio Jo\ OFFSHORE WIND
plantation residues to generate and store elect
nature, providing employment and innovation in the are
operate.

With headquarters in A Corufia (Spain) and operations in Europe
and the United States, we are present in seven technologies: onsho- /
re wind, offshore wind, solar photovoltaic, storage, green-hydrogen,

E-Fuels and biomass. — . . BIOMASS
Our assets are characterized by the production of electricity from
renewable and locally sourced sources, redueing emissions from
electricity generation and reducing imports and energy dependence

on third parties. STORAGE

The income from the facilities is long-term, thus allowing the struc-
turing of non-recourse financing (Project Finance) and the earning

of constant dividends. : @ HYDROGEN

E-FUELS



%

DEVELOP & OWN
BUSINESS

MODEL
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eam at Curtis Biomass Plant — Al | ¥
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Our business model is based on sustainability, addressing the At Greenalia, as an Promotlonand Development ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, Energy Serv1ces ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
challenge of climate change mitigation through renewable energy independent energy
production. We work towards the same goal, to achieve an energy producer, we are active in the
model based exclusively on clean energy and with a commitment to FOLLOWING STAGES
environmental and social awareness in all our projects. OF THE PROCESS:
This Develop&0Own model has the largest forestry biomass waste-  "mmimmimememmmee s T e VoTTTTrTrr o e T
to-energy plant in southern Europe and five wind farms in operation. ! !
USSP Tz IS IS S i e Eee] Search for viable projects Sa"\i %fse‘glejrgy O&M supervision services
integration strategy. We also rotate less strategic assets to obtain modality
resources to drive new projects. ! through:

Achievement of all milestones up
to Ready to build 3 Asset management

. activities

Sale to the market
Green, efficient, and non-recourse
financing structuring '
' Participation in

' renewable energy

Supervision services during the auctions

construction of projects !

Signing of PPA
(Power Purchase
Agreement) 10



PROJEGE
POR HEOLIO

2023

147 GW in 5 technalogies®

Alto da Croa Wind Farm (7.3 MW)

Our ambition is to fully integrate our operations through the organic
growth of our project portfolio, based on the development of various

renewable technologies.

BIOMASS §f 50 MW

z3
om

OFFSH
o 50 MW

STORAGE | 257 MW (514 MWh)

ONSHORE |
WIND |

SOLAR

*The pipeline presented in this report reflects
the information as of the date of publication

14.7GW

IN 5 TECHNOLOGIES

6,551 MW

7,721 MW

Production

Projects in operation

125 MW

75 MW
5 projects -
onshore wind Q)

50 MW
1 project

DIon

Under
Construction

Projects with NTP (Notice to
Proceed) or LNTP (Limited Notice
to Proceed) issued.

1,268 MW

695 MW
2 projects
Shotovoltaic &

bhotovoltaic

160 MW (320 MWh)
1 project

storage &

310 MW
7 projects
photovoltaic

-
-

102.9 MW
2 projects
onshore wind @

Advanced
Development

Projects with land, access and
grid connection and permits in
advanced process

2014 MW 717 MW

772.8 MW
20 projects
onshore wind &

102.85 MW
3 projects

photovoltaic =

50 MW
%1 project
offshore wind

1,218.7 MW
8 projects
photovoltaic &

)

271.4 MW
1 project
onshore wind

i

98 MW (196 MWh)
1 project
storage £

Early Stage

Projects with the potential
to reach agreement on
land and connection

211.6 MW
3 projects

onshore wind &

169.6 MW
2 projects
phot aic

335.4 MW
3 projects

Identified
Opportunities

Potential projects that have star-
ted negotiations with landowners
and have verified technical feasibi
lity and interconnection

10,095 MW

4,780 MW
15 projects
onshore wind

L)

5,315 MW

10 projects
ohotovoltaic &

11



Blue Hills Wind Farm Project - Texas (USA)

The ways of expanding our pipeline are the
development of projects and the acquisition
of other existing projects in intermediate sta-
ges of development, where value creation is
concentrated.

We therefore have a portfolio of high-resour-
ce projects, diversifying into five technologies
and at different stages of maturity, allowing
for progressive implementation and invest-

ment
in advanced
development,
construction and
operation

Our pipeline is committed to inno- Projects in 5 technologies located
vation and diversification in new in the main resource areas, in Spain
technologies and presence in new and the United States.
markets.

.50 Mw

BIOMASS

1,162 Mw
[ } 398 MW ONSHORE WIND

SOLAR

5,387 MW

ONSHORE WIND

257 MWeamwn | 2
STORAGE &’ QQHM\V{I}&D 4]_3 MW

SOLAR

Pioneer in the processing of floating Access our interactive map

offshore wind projects in Spain. TheGreenMap to follow the
evolution of our pipeline in the
following QR

12


https://greenmap.greenalia.es/en/assets

GREENALIA AND
TECHNOLOGICAL

ININIGAVZZNRIGIN

At Greenalia we continue to be committed to innovation and

diversification in new technologies. During 2023, we conti-

nued with the development of a sixth technology, hydrogen,

and we began the development of a project to capture bioge-

nic CO2 from our biomass plant, which can later be used for
. the production of synthetic fuels.

GREEN HYDROGEN

Green hydrogen is produced through a
chemical process known as electrolysis.
This process involves the separation of
hydrogen and oxygen molecules from
water, resulting in isolated hydrogen

CO2 CAPTURE AND PRODUCTION OF E-FUELS

CO:2 capture has been established as one of
the main measures needed to mitigate climate
change. At Greenalia, we are working on the
development of an innovative project to cap-
ture biogenic emissions derived from our bio-
mass, and we currently have around 600,000
tonnes per year available for this purpose.

@ f

1 CO2 CAPTURE 2 COOLING

The gas emitted
of biogenic CO2 at by the chimney is
the Curtis-Teixeiro cooled to room
biomass plant. temperature.

High availability

S Decarbonization =
uﬁm of the energy 9
[030) system

molecules for further processing and use.

During electrolysis, the use of electricity
is necessary. When this electricity is of
renewable origin, the hydrogen is labelled
as green hydrogen, producing a source

These emissions will subsequently be puri-
fled to obtain pure CO2 and can be used, to-
gether with green hydrogen, to produce sus-
tainable fuels.

This project is not only an improvement in
our biomass plant, but also represents a clear
example of innovation in circular economy,

T =20
e )
3 SOLVENT 4 HEATING

The absorption tower,
filled with solvent,
ensures that the CO2
particles adhere to it,
separating it from the
rest of the gases.

The CO:2 is separated from
the solvent through heat,
provided by a stream of water is purified to eliminate any
vapor at high temperatures
The solvent is recirculated present.
back to the absorption tower.

of energy storage free of greenhouse gas
emissions.

taking advantage of available resources and
mitigating the negative effects of greenhouse
gases on climate change.

7y
g
5 PURIFICATION

The CO, already isolated
from the rest of the gases,

type of residue that it may

Sustainable European Synergies
Mobility mandate for the with operating
decarbonisation of assets

the aviation sector

13



OUR ASSE TS

BIOMASS PLANT

Curtis Biomass Plant - Teixeiro (50 MW)

Our electricity generation plant located in Curtis-Teixeiro
produces renewable energy from the use of waste obtai-
ned from forest clearing and cutting. This raw material
has great potential for energy production due to its high
calorific value and is a clear example of circular economy,
taking advantage of waste to produce electricity.

Our vertically integrated business model allows us to be
present at all stages of the process, from the collection of
the raw material to its treatment and energy recovery.The
biomass used has SURE certification, a voluntary system
re- known by the EU to guarantee compliance with the
Red Il Directive, which ensures the sustainability of the en-
tire biomass management process up to the generation
of energy.

Biomass PLANT

CURTIS TEIXEIRO
Location 2%%TF§LSJ_I%—E|XEIRO
Date 2019
Power 50 MW
Investment 135M €
Production 2023 358,036 MWh

1,500M €
POTENTIAL
INVESTMENT
IN E-FUELS
PRODUCTION

600K T
O2

BIOGENIC

FOREST CLEANING
AND CARE

REDUCTION OF
FIRE RISK

USE OF WASTE

SUBSTITUTION OF
FOSSIL FUELS

REDUCTION OF GHG
EMISSIONS

EUSTAINABLE RESOURCES

14
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ONSHORE WIND ENERGY

Onshore wind energy is obtained from the wind, through the use of wind turbines located on land
that allow this energy source to be transformed into electricity. It is a renewable, emission-free
source that allows us to reduce the use of fossil fuels.

Surroundings;Alto da Croa Wind Farm

T

Wind farm Wind farm Wind farm Wind farm Wind farm

MINON OUROL MONTE TOURADO ALTO DA CROA | ALTO DA CROA I
Location X‘E\:A(‘)/ETJZN% Location Ebjgg - Location X'gﬂéﬁﬁ%& Location X‘gﬂo‘%ﬁﬁa Location étzﬂhé%%iz@i/
Date 2019 Date 2021 Date 2021 Date 2021 Date 2021
Power 24 MW Power 22.5 MW Power 10.4 MW Power 7.3 MW Power 10.4 MW
Investment 28M € Investment 26M € Investment 8M € Investment 5.5M € Investment 8M €

Production 2023

52,877.68 MWh

Production 2023

54,621.07 MWh

Production 2023

32,332.50 MWh

Production 2023

22,230.96 MWh

Production 2023

38,738.07 MWh
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https://greenmap.greenalia.es/activos/resource/parque-eolico-onshore-minon
https://greenmap.greenalia.es/activos/resource/parque-eolico-onshore-ourol
https://greenmap.greenalia.es/activos/resource/parque-eolico-onshore-alto-da-croa-II
https://greenmap.greenalia.es/activos/resource/parque-eolico-onshore-alto-da-croa
https://greenmap.greenalia.es/activos/resource/parque-eolico-onshore-monte-tourado

DIGI TALIZATION:
Al GREENALIA

r

. Operational team i

scaoa SCADA ACCESS CONTROL - BOARDING PASS
Our inseparable commitment to sustainability All our operating assets are equipped with a SCADA (Super- In 2023, the process of installing an access control system at the plant began. In this, the user who wishes to enter, and
and digitalization has been with us since day visory Control and Data Acquisition) real-time data measu- depending on their type (supplier, visitor, subcontractor...) must provide certain information and, when this is validated,
one, itis part of our DNA. We are on a continuous rement and a visualization system. This monitors all the in- they are provided with an access QR code with which they can open the door and enter the facilities. This will improve
dustrial components of the plant and wind farms to detect control and security in the facilities.

journey of improvement, digital transformation
and optimization. We are a company in cons-
tant transition to paper-free digital systems

and processes. Our Digitalization/Sustainability SAP W
by Design strategy contributes to continuous
optimization processes, cloud environments

anomalies and prevent possible system failures.

THERMAL CAMERAS SECURITY CAMERAS AND INDIRECT ACCESS TO

We have migrated our SAP ERP to its latest version, SAP SUBSTATIONS

HANA, optimising and streamlining processes, automating Thermal cameras have been installed in the biomass
and digital ecosystems. Some of the digtaliza- many of them. It has allowed us to eliminate redundancies storage area of the plant to detect fires or fire sources e iave corstant access and control over ot
tion measures we have in place are: ; y. i ) ; ) - _ .g P , _ :  substations through a system of security cameras.
simplify workflows and improve operational efficiency in This improves the plant’s safety in the event of this type

general. of risk.
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The application of good financial practices is an extension of our commitment to
sustainability. In this way, strict compliance with fiscal responsibilities is one of our
fundamental principles, it is consubstantial with our values and our philosophy of
creating value and being an actor of positive social transformation in the areas where
we have a presence.

95.1 M€ 95.9 M€

TURNOVER

euros euros euros

2022 2023 2022 2023

2022

" -

RECURRING, PREDICTABLE
AND STABLE REVENUE
OVER THE LONG TERM.

euros

2023

—INANCIAL
(PAOEEL (@S

EFFICIENT FINANCIAL
STRUCTURES,
RESOURCE-FREE.

Total Income (M€)

EBITDA (M€)
2023

HIGH RETURNS, FOCUSED

ON THE GENERATION

OF EBITDA.

2022 2023 VAR
951 95.9 +0.9%

64.9 67.9 +4.3%



Greenalia's Headquarters

2022 2023

The application of good financial practices is an extension
of our commitment to sustainability. In this way, strict com-
pliance with fiscal responsibilities is one of our fundamental
principles, it is substantial to our values and our philosophy
of creating value and being an actor of positive social trans-
formation in the areas where we are present.

Our economic growth has a direct impact on climate chan-
ge mitigation. Proof of this is the inclusion of our activities
in the EU's taxonomy of sustainable economic activities.
Throughout 2023 we have worked on calculating Greenalia’s
degree of eligibility and alignment with this standard, a pro-
ject that will continue in 2024, defining the steps to be taken
to ensure our alignment with the criteria defined by this taxo-
nomic framework.

GREEN FINANCING

During this year, we continued our relationship with Morningstar
Sustainalytics, a globally recognized provider of ESG research and
ratings, to evaluate our Funding framework, ensuring an external opi-
nion on the strength and credibility of this framework. This external
validation certifies:

+ The alignment of the Framework with the Green Bond Principles
2021, administered by ICMA, and the Green Loan Principles 2023,
administered by LMA, APLMA and LSTA;

- Credibility and expected positive impacts of the use of revenues

+ The alignment of the sustainability strategy and our performance
and sustainability risk management in relation to the use of reve-
nues.

ECONOMIC VALUE GENERATED

Income 95,072,076€ 95,898,541 €
Other income 1,832,396€ 2,079,482 €
ECONOMIC VALUE GENERATED 96,904,472€ 97,978,023 €
Economic Value Generated 96,904,472€ 97,978,023 €
Operating Costs -28,200,536€  -25,499,386 €
ADDED VALUE 68,703,936€ 72,478,637 €
Amortization and depreciation -31,146,476€  -14,797,244 €
ECONOMIC VALUE DISTRIBUTED 37,557,460€ 58,734,931 €
Economic value distributed in: 37,557,460€ 57,681,392 €
Personel -4,211,110€ -4,732,416 €
Shareholders -16,424,925€ 37,356,914 €
Capital Providers -16,482,385€  -14,538,524 €
Central public administration -98,333€ -536,889 €
Local public administration -340,707€ -516,649 €

In 2023, we registered, for the third consecutive year, a green no-
tes programme in the Spanish fixed income market (MARF) in the
amount of EUR 100 million, with a term of one year from the date of
publication of the programme.

With this action, we are moving forward on the path of green financing,
consolidating our position as a pioneering SME in this type of green
issuance, a framework in which we have already issued 4 bonds worth
55 million, and also rated with the highest sustainability score by the
Standard & Poor's rating agency.

MAORNINGSTAR ‘ SUSTAINALYTICS

18


https://www.sustainalytics.com/legal-disclaimers

Operational team in the surroundings of Greenalia Wind Farm

RATINGS ESG

We consolidate our management of material sustainability
issues through independent assessments that measure
our performance in governance, environmental and social
management.

At Greenalia, we measure ourselves against the ESG rating of
Morningstar Sustainalytics, an independent rating agency with
extensive international recognition and extensive presence
in our industry. This comprehensive independent rating is

MORNESH | SUSTAINALY TICS

vaemen 68.1

ESG RISK
MANAGEMENT

STRONG AVERAGE WEAK

100-50 50-25 250

Positioning Greenalia above the average management of the sub-industry

presented as a guarantee of good practice for investors in risk
management.

In 2023, Greenalia obtained a low-risk rating based on this
rating, which endorses our solid management.Ranked among
the top 10 companies in our sector (IPP and Traders), we are
positioned as a relevant player in the management of material
ESG risks, above average companies in our sub-industry.

ESG RISK

RATING ]
NEGL LOW MED HIGH

0-10 10-20 20-30 30-40 40+

Ranked Top 10 in our Industry (IPP & Traders)

this respect. Use of such data is subject to conditions available at
https//www.sustainalytics.com/legal-disclaimer:

8.6

SEVERE

lity whatsoever for the actions of third parties in

19


https://www.sustainalytics.com/legal-disclaimers.
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DOUBLE MATERIALITY
ANALYSIS

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN

Greenalia's operational team in galgln forest



OUR SUSTAINABILITY
MODEL

Sustainability is understood as the generation
of services or products without compromising
the resources of the future. It is necessary to
guarantee production and consumption that
do not exceed the limits of the planet and that
guarantee the regeneration of those impacts
derived from unsustainable practices of pre-
ViOUs years.

At Greenalia, we are committed to generating a

prosperous environment and society, in which

the protection of people and the environment
< form the basis of our action model. For this
reason, our sustainability model is centered on
four fundamental pillars for sustainable deve-
lopment: the planet, people, governance and
prosperity.

Our sustainability model is part of Greenalia's
DNA. Management is directly involved in deci-
sion-making in this area, ensuring that business
development is on the right track. Our model is
based on best management practices and cu-
rrent industry needs. We have two fundamental
principles: listening to all our stakeholders and
developing concrete plans and targets that
allow us to measure our impact and progress.

SDG 15 SDG 17

LAY ILAND _ - - PARTNERSHIPS FOR THE GOALS

We are gwded{ by the precagthnary prlnC|pI§, a}’o'd'ﬂg We collaborate and maintain strategic alliances with
asfaras pOSS'b!e Cll potentla! impacts on biodiversity communities, the administration, social organisations
and compensating for those impacts that cannot be and relevant international organisations such as the
mitigated.In addition, we ensure that the biofuel we use United Nations Global Compact, to advance towards

is sustainable through FSC certification, and we encou- sustainable development and work together to promote
rage all our suppliers to obtain FSC certification. a sustainable energy system.

17 PARTNERSHIPS
FORTHE GOALS

&
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16 Lo
INSTITUTIONS

GOOD HEALTH
AND WELL-BEING

QUALITY
EDUCATION

SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

~3 Surroundings of Monte Tourado Wind Farm,
- | - | )|

G~ALS

CLEAN WATER
AND SANITATION

SDG 13 19 mrousu

CLIMATE ACTION

We contribute directly to
imate change mitigation

SDG 07
vecomvoRcan | N AFFORDABLE AND

ECONOMIC GROWTH CLEAN ENERGY
i

O siness model, we



DOUBLE MATERIALITY

ANALY SIS

Materiality analysis is one of our most important and va-
lue-adding tools. It allows us to identify the most relevant
issues for our stakeholders and thus advance in the creation
of value, to ensure that current and future needs are met.

This year we have continued with the methodological
approach defined by using the methodology defined by
GRI 3: Material Topics of 2021, which focuses on the iden-
tification and evaluation of the impacts that organisations
generate in their environment.

In addition, once Greenalia's material issues have been
identified in accordance with the GRI impact materiality,
the dual materiality approach proposed by the ESRS (EU
Sustainability Reporting Standards) developed by EFRAG
has also been followed, to consider, the financial impact
that sustainability issues have on the company.

Curtis Biomass Plant - Teixeiro (50 MW)

IDENTIFICATION EVALUATION

Context of the organization +120 stakeholder
Industry Standards responses to our

Ratings Evaluations materiality surveys

Due Diligence Requests

Impact Materiality

EXTERNAL STAKEHOLDER SURVEYS
Assessment of scale, scope and irremediability

INTERNAL STAKEHOLDER SURVEYS
Assessment of scale, scope, irremediability
and likelihood

Financial Materiality

SURVEYS TO DIRECTORS
Financial impact assessment considering
the risks and opportunities linked to them.



Alto da Croa Wind Farm (7.3 MW)

DOUBLE
MATERIALITY
MATRIX

Impact Materiality

3,00

dou b|e Considering the perspective of our stake-  The main material issues of the organi-

holders helps to identify and prioritizes the  zation have been arranged according to 4

materl d | |ty reporting of the most relevant material is-  common working axes of the new Sustai-
ana |yS|S sues, as well as to define Greenalia's own  nability Plan 2024-2028; these are shown

sustainability strategy and objectives. below.

o
3l

PLANET

1 Environmental
management

2 Biodiversity

3 Circular economy

4 Climate change

Financial Materiality

PEOPLE GOVERNANCE PROSPERITY

5 Equality, diversity & inclusion 9 Sustainable supplier management 13 Local impact

6 Health & safety 10 Sustainable management of local communities 14 Sustainable development and investment
7 Quality of employment 11 Business ethics & compliance 15 Promoting the energy transition

8 Human rights 12 Transparency and risk management 16 Cybersecurity and digitalization
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SUSTATRABILITY
SUAN

The significance of setting objectives, targets and indicators that allow us to
move forward is the basis for measuring our performance and developing ac-
tions and measures aligned with the highest standards and the organization's
strategy.

In 2023, the previous sustainability plan, the first of the company, came to an
end. A roadmap that allowed us to meve forward in alignment with the SDGs.
After the end of this period, a diagnosis and prioritization was carried out, which
has allowed us to establish clear objectives and goals for the coming years, de-
veloping our Sustainability Plan 2024 - 2028.

Alto da Croa Wind Farm (7.3 MW)




Greenalia's wind farm surroundings

SDG

M
POVERTY

Tl

OBJECTIVE

Corporate Volunteering

1 ANALYSIS OF THE 2019-2023
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN

We analysed the results obtained from the previous
Sustainability Plan, the compliance with them and
the actions carried out considering Greenalia's
growth and impact.

ACTIONS

Corporate volunteering activities were developed based on
collaborations with third parties for donation and participation in
activities with environmental impact

GO0D HEALTH
AND WELL-BENG

v

Zero accidents

Health and safety resources were increased with the aim of reducing
accidents

QuATy
EDUCATION

gl

Promoting technology education

Continuous improvement of training
opportunities

Guaranteed and increased training hours per employee

SDG

12 torosa
CONSUNPTION
AND PRODUCTION

OBJECTIVE

Biomass 100% from local forest waste

Zero single-use plastic materials

ACTIONS

Health and safety resources were increased with the aim of reducing

GENDER
EQUALTY

¢

Zero inequality

An Equality Plan was developed with 75% of the objectives being met

AFFORDABLE
CLEAN ENERGY

A/

20

1,000 MW of installed capacity with an
investment of €1 billion in energy transition
by 2022

Progressive reduction of our carbon
footprint

Continued investment in new technologies and reduced carbon
footprint per MWh produced.

DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH,

o

Promote job creation and impact
on the local economy

We increased our workforce and continued to hire staff wherever we
operate

10 Naine

-~
=
v

Collaborative projects with
local social organizations.

Execution of different collaboration projects with sports entities to
improve the inclusion of disadvantaged sectors.

17 ssmavaomes
WD COMMUNTIES

Al

Protection and enhancement of
archaeological elements

Progressive reduction of our carbon footprint

CX) accidents °
Office Recycling and Responsible Use of
Paper
13 In recent years, due to the instability of the voluntary carbon market, we
oo have decided to postpone this target and ensure that
Carbon-neutral company . . g [ ]
@ compliance when European and national standards in this area are
completed.
100% FSC/ PEFC certified wood in 2022
15 oo ) ) .
-~ The wood was certified when it was sold as part of Greenalia S.A. and °
8- biodiversity protection programs were developed
= Maximum attention to the protection of
biodiversity
Communication of results in webcasts
16 Aosimc - . )
SRS . Earnings were reported and published, and our management was
External evaluations E . : (]
evaluated based on Morningstar Sustainalytics
Quarterly publication of sustainability articles
SG
17 meaans
@ Madera Justa Certification The certification was obtained ]
® Completed @ Inprogress ® Not Completed 25



Alto da Croa Wind Farm (7.3 MW)

AGNOSIS

We review best practices and major

challenges in the sector in line with the
current business environment. We set po-

tential targets, actions and indicators to
respond to these challenges and present
a sustainability model to ensure that we
are at the forefront of our actions.

We prioritize objectives and actions that
are aligned with our business model and
our future growth prospects. We listen to
all our stakeholders to ensure that prio-
rities are aligned with market e_xpei:ta,—
tions and concerns. oy : :




4 ELABORATION

We set more than 20 new objectives divided into 12 axes and 4
pillars. This new Plan presents a continuous implementation and
evaluation system in which actions and responsibilities are deve-
loped to achieve the established objectives.

Mifion Wind Farm (24 MW)

SUSTAINABILITY
PLAN
2024-20286

A STRATEGY BASED ON Clmate change
FOUR PILLARS Biodiversity

Circular economy
and resource
management

GOVERNANCE

20+ OBJECTIVES
+30 KPIs

+60 ACTIONS IDENTIFIED

PROSPERITY

Safety & Health
Employment Excellence
Diversity, Equality

& Inclusion
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CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

TRANSPARENCY

BUSINESS ETHICS AND
INTEGRITY

OUR STAKEHOLDERS

RISK MANAGEMENT

el = - | i J “The introduction of higher reporting

- ' - - ~ and compliance standards places us

e T E::: (e SRSt L — at a high level of self-demand in the
:_,,'-'!g - . ; areas of Governance, Environment and

Social, and with a corporate culture at

the level of the largest multinational

companies.”

— . e Letter from the CEO - Page 5

Alto da Croa Wind Farmi(7.3MW)


https://www.sustainalytics.com/legal-disclaimers

“= Surroundings Alte-dasGroaWind Farm
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Corporate governance corresponds to all the internal mechanisms and policies
established that are needed to achieve our business goals and objectives throu-
ghout proper management and business ethics. Our policy book, the Green Book,
introduces the governance policies that determine how we should act.

In addition, we have specific responsibilities and processes that allow us to carry
out sustainable corporate management based on ethical principles and that gua-
rantee the correct management of risk and stakeholders.

GOVERNANCE POLICIES

RISK MANAGEMENT ANTICORRUPTION
POLICY POLICY

'I PARTNERSHIPS
FOR THE GOALS



https://greenalia.es/download/green-book-corporate-policies/
https://greenalia.es/download/green-book-corporate-policies/
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S'Headquarters

AT
n, ASALL AL AAPNK
' i |

GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Company Capital Structure

Alazady Espaiia SL 6%

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A
José Maria Manuel Pablo
Castellano Garcia Castellano
In the financial year 2023, 5 meetings o
AUDIT ne financial f
the Audit Committee were held
COMMITTEE

José Maria
Castellano

Norcorporate, S.L.

!

Antonio Antonio Beatriz Laura
Couceiro Fernandez- Mato Luaces
Montells

In the financial year 2023, 2 meetings

REMUNERATION e oo e
& APPOINTMENTS (éotmiqit(:;neuneratlon and Appointments
COMMITTEE

José Maria Norcorporate, S.L.
Castellano
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STEERING
COMMITTEE

Antonio Fernandez-Montells
CFO

Appointment:

09.26.16

Our Steering Committee has the power to make investment, project
and business development decisions, reporting to the Board of
Directors, with the aim of ensuring the proper implementation and
execution of the Strategic Plan and budget, as well as its periodic
review and monitoring.

In addition, in order to ensure that the strategic management
supports sustainability policies and actively monitors the company’s

contribution to the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals,
the company’s Sustainability Officer (CSO) is a member of the
Board of Directors.

Sustainability is a constant factor in our decision-making processes and
in our business model, for which we have the Sustainability Committee
and the Equality Committee, advisory bodies, responsible for advising
the Steering Committee on matters within their competences. Our

Manuel Garcia Pardo
CEO

Appointment:

12.13.13

€ A & &

Alberto Expdsito Maria Moreno
CEO Greenalia Power US
Appointment:

04.05.21

Appointment:
03.01.16

Alberto Ares

Head of Construction Wind
Appointment:

08.25.21

Nelson Zuleta

COO Greenalia Power US
Appointment:

09.01.21

CEO Greenalia Power Spain CHRO

control framework is comprised of governance elements, policies,
procedures, operational controls and Executive Committees that
support the Board of Directors in the exercise of its responsibilities.
The composition of each of these Committees varies depending
on the position or rank of Greenalia employees and the meetings
frequency can be weekly, biweekly or monthly.

Laura Luaces David Seoane
cLo CDO
Appointment: Appointment:
09.24.16 06.11.20

Gonzalo M? Castarieira Beatriz Mato Mauro Coucheiro
CSO COO Biomass
Appointment: Appointment: Appointment:
12.09.19 02.10.20 06.11.13
Pablo Cardesin Victor Gonzalez Gonzalo Lépez
Head of Construction Solar Head of 0&M COO Biomass Supply
Appointment: Appointment: Appointment:
04.17.23 10.27.22 01.16.23
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At Greenalia, we join diﬁ‘erent entities
|and initiatives throdgh which we, }
| | materialize our cammjtments.

{Operational team in the surroundings of Greenalia WindFarm

THE UNIVERSAL
DECLARATION OF
HUMAN RIGHTS

THE ILO DECLARATION ON FUNDAMENTAL
PRINCIPLES AND RIGHTS AT WORK

UNITED NATIONS
GLOBAL COMPACT

In 2019, at Greenalia we formalized
our adherence to the world's largest
sustainable development initiative,
the United Nations Global Compact.
With this decision, we have made
a commitment to support the Ten
Universal Principles promoted by the
Pact and derived from United Nations
declarations and to incorporate these
into the strategy, culture and daily
actions of our company.

THE CLIMATE
PLEDGE

At Greenalia we have increased our ambition and
accelerated our commitments, bringing forward the
goal of reaching net zero emissions by 2040, ten
years ahead of the global commitment. This com-
mitment has been endorsed through our continued
support of The Climate Pledge initiative since 2022.

PRINCIPLE 3 PRINCIPLE 5

Support the principles
of freedom of
association

and the right to
collective bargaining

child labor

PRINCIPLE 6

Eliminate
discrimination in
employment and
occupation

PRINCIPLE 4

Eliminate forced and
compulsory labor

SCIENCE - BASED
TARGETS INITIATIVE

In line with the challenges posed by the fight
against climate change, at Greenalia we have set
ambitious targets to reduce emissions per MWh
produced, guaranteeing the decarbonization of the
electricity system. These objectives can be seen in
our 2024-2028 Sustainability Plan. In addition, we
are members of the Science-Based Targets initia-
tive by which we commit to reducing our scope 1
and 2 emissions by 25% in the period 2020-2030, as
well as measuring scope 3 emissions based on the
limits validated by the scientific community.

Abolish all forms of

THE RIO DECLARATION
ON ENVIRONMENT AND
DEVELOPMENT

THE UNITED NATIONS
CONVENTION AGAINST
CORRUPTION

SPANISH BUSINESS AND
BIODIVERSITY INITIATIVE

Our commitment to measuring our impacts on bio-
diversity and reporting on the progress implemented
to advance in its reduction, has been endorsed after
Greenalia joined the Spanish Business and Biodiversity
Initiative by signing the Pact for Biodiversity and Natu-
ral Capital in 2023. With the signing of this Pact for Bio-
diversity and Natural Capital, Greenalia recognizes and
supports the 2050 vision of the Kun-Ming-Montreal
Global Biodiversity Framework to “live in harmony with
nature” and the 2030 mission to “take urgent action to
halt and reverse biodiversity loss”.



BUSINESS
- THICS &
INTEGRITY

gt

Operational_teamét-AIt6 da Croa Wind Farm (Z.3MW)

Greenalia was born as a self-demanding organization with its
work and governance standards. This natural inclination to be a
company committed to best practices, and in constant search
of exceeding the strictest international standards in corporate
governance, leads the organization to a process of acceleration
and scaling in the implementation of these principles, systems and
processes.

The centerpiece is our Regulatory Compliance Program consisting

SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBLE
BODY CHANNEL

In line with our commitment to ensure that all our employees are
aware of the different compliance standards and communication
channels, upon incorporation into Greenalia's team, the main
standards such as the Code of Conduct are signed. In addition,
and as it has been done at least annually since the approval of
Greenalia's Anti-Corruption Standard, in 2023 the declaration of
conflicts of interest for all affected employees has been reviewed
and updated and a training on regulatory compliance has been
carried out with the participation of 35 attendees.




s Biomass Plant - Teixeiro (50,

E] NORMS

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Code of Conduct and Best Corpora-
te Practices is the basis of our Regulatory
Compliance Programme, which sets out our
ethical principles and guidelines for action
in line with the principles of the United Na-
tions Global Compact.lt is accepted by each
person who joins the organisation, and thus
constitutes a common framework of integri-
ty for all of them in the development of their
professional activities and in their relations
with stakeholders.

Principles of the CODE OF CONDUCT:

ANTI-CORRUPTION NORM

This is the result of our zero-
tolerance policy against all corrupt
acts and our commitment to integrity
and best ethical and governance
practices.

HARASSMENT PREVENTION
PROTOCOL

The objective is to prevent and
eradicate any possible conduct that
could be contrary to sexual freedom
and moral integrity, especially in
cases of sexual harassment and/or
harassment based on sex.

..

NORM ON THE COLLECTION,
PROCESSING AND PROTECTION
OF PERSONAL DATA

Promote knowledge of the guidelines
regarding the processing and
protection of personal data that we
handle.

CRISIS COMMUNICATION
HANDBOOK

[tincludes strategic lines that allow an
adequate response to be given in the
company’s communication at the time
of a crisis.

TAX RULE

Framework of control and tax
behavior expected of taxable persons
due to its content.

SOCIAL MEDIA USAGE POLICY

A series of good practices and

obligations for the use of social media.
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@ SUPERVISORY
I~ BODY

Since September 2021, we have had a RE-
GULATORY COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE, in
charge of preventing, detecting, mitigating
and correcting business behaviors that
could deviate from ethics and legality. This
body is responsible for ensuring the appli-
cation and compliance with our Regulatory
Compliance Program and resolving queries
raised through the whistleblowing channel,
as well as ensuring access and training for
our team on the compliance program.

Regulatory
Compliance
Committee

Gonzalo Maria
Castaneira Sobrino
People, Brand &
People, Brand & Vocal

The functions of the Committee are:
Implement the Programme.

Investigate acts that may be contrary to
the law or domestic regulations.

Submit to the Greenalia Audit Commit-
tee all documentation for the develop-
ment of the Program.

Plan training on regulatory compliance
programs, determining its content.

CSO Chief

Communications Director

President /
Chief Compliance Officer

Beatriz Mato Otero

Respond to any questions that our staff
may have about the application of the
Program.

To prepare reports on the effectiveness
of the measures taken and, on the ac-

tivity, carried out, as well as to suggest

improvements.

Mauro Coucheiro Rodal
CCO Negocio Tradicional

Sustainability Officer Vocal

The secretarial function of the Committee is assumed by a speciali-
zed external company, which has the right to speak but not to vote.

=) RESPONSIBLE
%> CHANNEL

In order to ensure full compliance with the Code
of Conduct, the Responsible Channel is made
available to any person who, in their relationship
with Greenalia, is aware of any contravention
of our regulations on regulatory compliance.
[t can be used to file complaints, grievances,
questions about the Compliance Program, and
suggestions. The channel is managed by an
independent external company, guaranteeing
the confidentiality of communications. The
platform is enabled to make complaints anon-
ymously and access is made through our cor-
porate website.

In 2023, no human rights complaints have been
received. Nor has any legal action been taken

against Greenalia for anti-competitive, unfair or
corrupt practices.

We have not had to face significant fines or pe-
nalties for non-compliance in the social or eco-
nomic spheres.


https://canalresponsable.marcafranca.com/canaletico/presentacion_cliente/5278020518543360

O U R Our value chain is comprised by all the agents invol- OUR STAKEHOLDERS

ved in our business, who make up our stakeholders’

group. At Greenalia, we believe in the commitment

ST \\ K E H O L D E R S to communicate and correctly manage our relations- THE GREEN TEAM
hips with all our stakeholders, identifying the different

needs and collaborating with them to develop a mo- Phone, email, Green Portal, Feedback Sessions, Climate As an organization, we are committed to our
del for generating shared value. For this reason, our Survey, Committees, Responsible Channel, Employment act in a transparent, reliable and responsible
main objective is to foster relationships based on the Portal + Onboarding Portal, corporate WhatsApp, Teams, manner with all our stakeholders. For this
values of transparency, environmental protection, an- Cloud Collaboration. reason, Greenalia’'s Green Book has a Policy of
ti-corruption and respect for human rights. We have Transparency and Contact with Stakeholders
different channels and modes ofcommunication COMMUNITIES & SOCIETY in which we are committed to:

that guarantee this correct management of our

stakeholders. Phone, email, corporate website, meetings,

visits, social networks, local media.
Transparent, truthful and
immediate action

SUPPLIERS o
Regular identification of

Phone, email, corporate website, meetings, stakeholders and available

responsible channel, ethics cart, social networks. communication channels.

Regular alignment with

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS stakeholders

Phone, email, corporate website, meetings,

: Communication and
results presentat\ons, events.

consultation with stakeholders

Issuance of results, newsletters,

ADMINISTRATION satisfaction and materiality

Phone, email, letters, corporate website, meetings, Surveys

conferences, debates, videoconferences, consulta-

tions, procedures, surveys. Processing of ll
communications in accordance
with Greenalia's Data Privac

MEDIA Bl y

Phone, email, corporate website, meetings, video-confe-
rences, press releases, events, social networks.

Surroundings of Monte Tourado Wind Farm




INTERNAL
COMMUNICATION

At Greenalia we consider internal communication to be
key to generating and maintaining the commitment of
our company to the people, as well as a powerful lever
for change management. This internal communication is
two-way, open and transparent. In line with our Equality
Plan, we inherently integrate inclusive communication;
Not only in the language used, but also in the photographs
and videos that represent the diversity of our team. When
making important decisions, it is a common practice of the
organization to consider the opinion of our people through
direct consultations or through the usual channels of
communication and negotiation available.

We have different communication channels, aimed at
ensuring not only compliance with the Law, but also the
application of best practices.

CORPORATE WEBSITE
& BRAND IMAGE

GREEN CAFE

RESPONSIBLE
CHANNEL

@ SUCESS FACTOR

JOB PORTAL
NEWSLETTER
Lt
@ MAILING
@ FEEDBACK
SURVEYS

GREEN PORTAL

Curtis Biomass Plant - Teixeiro (50 MW)

S, pepp— | o

Main internal and external communication channel, with news,
reports, and strategies.

Regular meetings with the entire workforce in which news
in terms of sustainability, people or project development are
communicated.

Tool available for reporting non-compliance with codes or
standards and for receiving any suggestions to improve.

Information related to each employee’s job and its
characteristics.

Current business development and presentation of results.

Continuous communication between teams, business
management and people management.

Periodic surveys to obtain feedback from people management.

Main internal channel in which policies, employee training and
benefits, are located.




SUPPEVCGHAIN

At Greenalia we want to create'a framework'of

trust and collaborationawith the companies with
which we collaborate, with*the.aim of Seeuring
and establishing new"eentracts with suppliéss
whose activity is aligned with oUFprinciples and
values.

Greenalia's Headquarters

HOMOLOGATION

Throughout 2023 we developed a new purchasing system that determines the
homologation process that will be carried out in the coming years. This process is
be based on the following criteria:

TECHNICAL SIGNING OF THE PURCHASE
SPECIFICATIONS GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS.
APPROVAL BY BUSINESS SIGNING OF THE ETHICAL CHARTER
MANAGEMENT FOR SUPPLIERS.

Our suppliers will be re-evaluated at least once per year. In addition, and with the
aim of presenting a management system that guarantees the use of the best
sustainability standards throughout the supply chain, a program of evaluation,
collaboration and management of sustainability issues will be developed in 2024,
with a special focus on the environment and compliance with human rights.

COMMITMENT

The signing of the Ethical Supplier Charter is the first step
in our sustainable management of the entire supply chain.
It is based on the Code of Conduct and is aligned with the
principles of the United Nations Global Compact. This
process has been developed throughout 2022 and 2023,
with the aim of making them aware of the behavioral
guidelines that should govern their relations with Greenalia.

LEGALITY QUALITY HEALTH & SAFETY

ENVIRONMENT INTEGRITY FAIR COMPETITION

70 SUPPLIERS

signed the Ethics Charter in 2023

Throughout 2024, we will continue to strengthen our values starting from
of our suppliers’ sustainability assessment.

DATA GATHERING

We request information from our suppliers on governance, commitments
and respect for human rights and the environment.

EVALUATION

We compare the values obtained with our commitments, objectives
and KPIs and with the sectoral standards to define a sustainability
assessment result for the different suppliers.

MANAGEMENT

Based on the results obtained, we will develop collaboration, management
or action plans with our suppliers to guarantee collaboration and joint
compliance with the best standards in terms of sustainability.
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LOCAL
COMMUNITIES

At Greenalia we are directly involved with the lo-
cal communities of those territories in which we
operate. We maintain a business strategy based
on value creation and we work with the aim of
generating a positive impact on the local eco-
nomy. Our philosophy is based on building re-
lationships with local communities throughout
the entire life cycle of our projects, from the de-
velopment phase to their dismantling.

Our local communities’ management is based
on continuous, direct and accurate commu-
nication. Part of our team is specialized and
oriented to the communication of both the
owners of the land as with the municipalities
in which we have a presence. In addition, we
have monitoring committees focused on this

CONTACT
MAILBOX

matter and in which the management team is
directly involved.

We work every day to improve our relations-
hips and our collaboration in those locations
where we are present. Communities and town
councils can contact us with any questions or
suggestions that they might have.

RESPONSIBLE
CHANNEL

41


https://greenalia.es/en/contact/
https://canalresponsable.marcafranca.com/canaletico/presentacion_cliente/5278020518543360

RISK
MANAGEMENT

Curtis Biomass Plant-- Teixeiro (50 MW)

Considering the complex international context, the volatility of the markets and
the challenging sector in which we operate, it is essential for our organization to
ensure the adequate management of potential risks.

For this reason, we have a RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
[ts main defining axes are:

COMPLY WITH APPLICABLE LAWS, REGULA-

TIONS, NORMS (INTERNAL OR EXTERNAL) ACHIEVE THE COMPANTS

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

AND CONTRACTS

) DEFEND THE INTERESTS OF
ﬁ\lET'FIEEF,Q\‘E[)S'(I?SRiiI\IIDALlAS INDIVIDUALS, SHAREHOLDERS
REPUTATION AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

Our Risk Management System (RMS) has a specific Policy and Manual that
describe the basis of our system and the protocol to be followed to ensure proper
risk management.

Greenalia's RMS establishes the company's risk management and control
framework, and it is aligned with international standards and best practices in
Comprehensive Risk Management (ISO 31000, COSO, Global Risk Report, etc.).

The purpose of the Policy is to provide reasonable assurance in the achievement
of the objectives established by the company in response to the different
challenges it faces, providing all stakeholders with an adequate level of guarantee
that ensures the protection of the value generated. The manual describes the
process carried out and the responsibilities of the different actors involved.
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Greenalia's Headquarters

Annual review and

RISK RESPONSABILITY update of the risk
map

® BOARD OF DIRECTORS = RISK MANAGEMENT COORDINATION

| | Signing of the risk management policy I@I Responsible for the process and preparation of
and manual. 0 reports to the Risk Committee. .

Updating of )
monitoring Information,

AUDIT AND CONTROL COMMITTEE ) RISK MANAGERS systems Communication

I\\g[‘ Responsibility for supervising l% Identified responsible parties responsible for according to the and review of
the operation of the | coordinating and evaluating the impact of risks results of the risk Conérpl(?ysgems
Risk Management System. and the effectiveness of controls. map RMS andindicators

[e) MANAGEMENT COMMITTE o :Zl RISK MANAGEMENT SPECIALIST PROCESS
| Risk Management System Implementation, ll | Anyone with knowledge of a risk identified and
establishing culture, human resources and that is designated as such. Responsibility for
processes. identifying and executing controls related to its
objectives. :
Execution and
000 X
A RISK COMMITTEE e Regular

Continuous review of indicators and status of the controls and monitoring of
risk management system and decision-making indicators risk indicators
for communication to management, audit associated

committee or Board of Directors. to the risks
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CORPORATE RISKS 2023

Greenalia's wind farm surroundings

Throughout 2023, risks similar to those presented in 2022 were identified, including the newly risk of supply chain disruption. This process of continuous risk management will be one of Greenalia's priorities for the coming years,
Each of these is properly managed according to the process identified in the Risk Management System Manual. strengthening its foundations and seeking the best tools and practices available.
Risk Code Controls
Project Delay R-37 Committees, monitoring systems, deadline management, and review protocols.
6 R-59

Opeetivem e s (9e] R-21 Committee of town councils, visits, communication channels
g community ] )
=2 8
T R-21 R-37
a Committees, separation of IOT and OT systems, SOC with security provider, warning of
< anomalous flows, campaigns and systems continuity plans, trainings, 0 trust policy, MFA
| 4 Suele o ejisitse R-59 multi-factor authentication, VPN with FortiNet hardware and adoption of Al in our systems

to secure email.
R-32 R-66
3 Political/Regulatory Risk R-66 Committees, monitoring systems and regulatory analysis.
R-11 ;nnagreg(giiitg?g;g& REERIEAET: 32 Committees, diversification of hiring sources, exit interviews, market, onboarding and
R- training programs.
3 4 8
IMPACT
Committees, approval and evaluation systems, purchase protocols and clauses, market
Supply Chain Disruption R-11 monitoring.
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Greenalia's Headquarters

In addition and continuing with our ambition to
improve risk management within our organization,
throughout 2023 specific projects were developed
for corporate risk analysis.

CRIMINAL RISKS

In Greenalia, as part of our Regulatory Compliance
Programme, we have controls and procedures in
place to ensure that criminal offences are not com-
mitted within our organisation. In order to ensure
the effectiveness of these controls to minimise

These include the update of the Criminal Risk Matrix,
as part of our Regulatory Compliance Program, and
the development of the Climate Risk Analysis pro-
ject, in line with the Task Force on Climate-Regulated
Financial Disclosures (TCFD) standards.

risk, an update of Greenalia's Criminal Risk Matrix
has been developed. This has concluded with all
the offences included in the Criminal Code with a
low residual risk for our organisation.

Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3 Phase 4 Phase 5

RISK INHERENTRISK  CLASSIFICATION RESIDUALRISK 10| ERABLE RISK

IDENTIFICATION ~ CALCULATION  OF EXISTING CALCULATION  CALCULATION

List of potential risk Determining CONTROLS Determination of  petermination of

scenarios the risk of each Analysis of the scenarios risk  the risk that can

scenario the measures considering the be assumed by the

implemented to existing controls organization and
control these risks proposal of new

CLIMATE RISKS

controls

In 2023, a detailed study of the effects that climate change may have on Greenalia has been carried
out. It has been done in accordance with the TCFD standard. In this study, both physical and transition

risks have been analyzed.

PHYSICAL RISKS TRANSITION RISKS EXISTING MONITORING
Availability of water Increase in material’s price Water reclamation projects
Wildfires Carbon Pricing Changes Reserve stock and alarm systems

Temperature variation

Ventilation and cooling systems
Periodic supply chain risk control



Monte Tourado Wind Farm (10.4 MW)

PLAN

ENVIRONMENTAL
MANAGEMENT

BIODIVERSITY

CIRCULAR
ECONOMY

CLIMATE
CHANGE

The gradual phasing

out of fossil fuels and their
replacement by renewable raw
materials is essential to protect
ecosystems and to be able to
provide a better future

for generations to come”.

Letter from the President Page. 4




Environmental preservation corresponds to one of Greenalia’s main aims. From
the direct impact on climate change mitigation and the respectful use of natural
resources and waste that our own business model presents, we promote the
protection of the planet throughout all our activities and business lines.

Our environmental management is based on the Green Book. Within it, specific
policies can be found on climate change and energy, biodiversity, circular
bioeconomy and water use.

PLANET POLICIES

CLIMATE WATER
ACTION POLICY
POLICY

AFFORDABLE AND 1 RESPONSIBLE ‘I CLIMATE 15 LIFE
CLEAN ENERGY CONSUMPTION ACTION ONLAND
AND PRODUCTION

308 O &

Ourol Wind Farm (22.5 MW),



https://greenalia.es/download/green-book-corporate-policies/

ENVIRONMENTAL
MANAGEMEN T

Greenalia's wind farm surroundings

Taking care of the planet starts with the management of our
facilities.

Our environmental management policy is set out in the Green
Book and establishes the principles of action in environmental
matters for all Greenalia's business areas:

@ SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
é PRECAUTIONARY PRINCIPLE

‘ﬁﬁﬁ‘ RESPECT FOR HERITAGE

@ INNOVATION, COLLABORATION
- & RESEARCH

&z TRANSPARENCY
& CONSULTATION

In addition, we have commitments, collaborations and certi-
fications that support our performance in terms of environ-
mental management.




Greenalia's'wind'fanmn surroundings. «

BIOMASS AND FOREST MANAGEMENT

At Greenalia, we believe in the importance of using environmental certifications not
only in energy production, but also in our supply chain. Due to the importance of
biomass for the conservation and preservation of ecosystems, our biomass plant in
Curtis Teixeiro, uses biomass from 100% forest residues, guaranteeing the principle
of circular economy, and going one step further we ensure that all the biomass used
comes from certified sources through SURE certification.

SURE is a voluntary biomass sustainability certification system developed by REDcert
(@ German company with expertise in sustainability certification of biofuels) and
Bioenergy Europe (the European bioenergy association, with extensive knowledge in
the biomass market and in managing certifications). SURE offers a practical solution
to all actors operating within the bioenergy sector who need to comply with the
requirements of the new European Renewable Energy Directive (EU 2018/2001 REDII).

This accreditation guarantees the sustainability of the biomass used in the
electricity production process in our plant and the compliance with the sustainability
requirements set by the Renewable Energy Directive (EU) 2018/2001 (REDII).

SREY

BIOMASS PLANT

Due to the characteristics of this asset, our plant is one of our main focuses of ac-
tion. Therefore, in order to guarantee its correct operation, we implement specific
management and optimisation systems such as the use of the Best Available
Techniques for large combustion installations and the ISO 14001 Environmental
Management standard.

The introduction of these techniques ensures that the environmental impact of
Greenalia's biomass plant is the lowest possible at the time. In its compliance,
Greenalia guarantees the optimisation of combustion, atmospheric emissions,
energy efficiency, water consumption, waste management and noise emissions.

The ISO 140071 standard that we have in our biomass plant provides standards
and tools for the continuous improvement of environmental care and the deterren-
ce of possible environmental impacts. Obtaining this certification, it guarantees
compliance with the environmental parameters set out therein. For this reason, we
have implemented the Environmental Management System (EMS) based on this
standard, evaluated our internal processes and implemented improvements to be
environmentally friendly in those services associated with our activity.

AENOR

WIND FARMS

During 2023, the environmental monitoring activities
of the operation of our wind farms and evacuation
lines has been translated into 1,112 hours (976 hours
in 2022) of work, in which each environmental aspect
has been monitored with the frequencies established
in the PVAs and DIAs, ensuring compliance by the
construction company with the protective measures
established by Greenalia and the environmental
regulations in force.

49



BIODIVERSITY

L

Greenalia's operational team replanting in Croas Wind Farm

Through our Environmental Policy, Greenalia is committed
to promoting biodiversity and the conservation of the natu-
ral environment where our projects operate. We are therefore
committed to assessing, minimizing and compensating the

environmental impact and risk of our activities at all stages
of the business cycle, in accordance with the precautionary

principle or preventive approach.

As part of our new Sustainability Plan, Greenalia is committed
to improving our methods of measuring our dependencies
and impacts on biodiversity, and we are committed to moving
towards a model that has a net positive impact on biodiversity.

We have formalized this commitment by joining the Spanish Business and Biodiversity Initiative, a

step with which we commit to:

To preserve and restore biodiversity
and natural capital, making it a pillar
of our business.

Seek the net positive impact
of our business.

Honest and verified communication
of objectives and steps.

Identify, measure, assess

and disseminate the impacts,
dependencies, risks and opportunities,
firstly of our direct activity and

then of our entire value chain.

Define targets and make business
decisions based on valuation, indicators and
mitigation hierarchy, recognized in

the field of biodiversity and natural capital.

Accompanying our value chain so
that it acquires a global commitment
to biodiversity and natural capital.

Focus on nature-based processes
and solutions that contribute
to the ecological transition.

Communicate internally and
externally our achievements in
the conservation and regeneration
of biodiversity and natural capital.

Commit to dialogue with all
stakeholders and, in particular, with
public administrations, promoting
alliances, open innovation and research
into biodiversity and natural capital.

Define the codes of conduct and
structures required to manage business
objectives coherently with the
conservation of biodiversity and

natural capital, making available

the necessary tools and human

and financial resources.

50



IDENTIFYING IMPACTS
AND DEPENDENCIES

IMPACTS

The first step for Greenalia is to identify not only the potential
impacts, but also the dependencies that our operations may
have on biodiversity.

Our business model has numerous positive impacts on biodi-
versity. The correct management of forest waste, which acts
as protection against fires, is an example of this. Furthermore,
thanks to our management systems, we guarantee the con-
servation of ecosystems in the areas in which we operate. Our
renewable electricity production allows us to replace the u'se'\ . .
of fossil fuels, avoiding the negative effects on the climate ah@i _—

biodiversity associated with their extraction aqwr =
i
On the other hand, in relation to the potential negative impa

of our business, we would highligh of resources a
and flora. F

techniques, work to optimise ablish : =
reduce and compensate for ti | - ;

i ™ ¢

Surroundings of Monte Tourado Wind Farm
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Our current direct impacts on biodiversity derive directly from  Specific measures have been implemented there since its start-
resource use, impacts on birdlife and land use change. Natural  up to ensure the least impact on biodiversity. Mechanisms for the
resources and potential pollution are mainly present at our optimization and treatment of water, or filters in the exhaust stack
biomass plant. are some of them.

Critically Endangered Vulnerable Near Least Vulnerable Endangered Listed in
Endangered Threatened Concern the national
e ) catalogue
Greenalia’s wind farm surroundings

IUCN RED LIST NATIONAL CATALOGUE

Inrelation to the impact on fauna, the list of protected species accor- ~ The list includes species of birds and bats, amphibians, reptiles,  Once the construction of the parks was completed, the land affected
ding to the IUCN Red List and the national and regional catalogues  terrestrial mammals and flora. None of the infrastructures have by this construction process was restored, and more than 80% of
of protected species shows that, in the area of our projects, Alto da  reached the alert threshold established in the environmental mo-  restoration has now been achieved.

Croa Wind Farm, Alto da Croa I, Monte Tourado, Ourol and Mifion  nitoring plans that would have made it necessary to establish ad-

and their evacuation infrastructures, in the testing and operation  ditional correct or preventive measures.

phase during the year 2023, there is no presence of critically endan-

gered or endangered species.



Protecting the Macaronesian fern
Dryopteris guanchica at the Mifidon
and Alto da Croa Il Wind Farm

The species Dryopteris Guanchica, listed in the
Galician Catalogue of Threatened Species as
Vulnerable and in the IUCN as Least Concern, is
a singular species of Macaronesian fern, identi-
fled in the surroundings of our Mifion wind farm.
With the aim of protecting this species, we be-
gan a protection and recovery programme in
2019, in collaboration with the USC through the
Environmental Technology Laboratory and the
Guisamo Agroforestry Training and Experimen-
tation Centre.

This protection and recovery programme consis-
ted of different steps. The first consisted of loca-
ting and identifying the specimens of the species,
in order to move them to a nearby location that
was optimal for their development. From this,
the necessary actions for its conservation have
continued and an additional population of this
species has been established in the area of the

Mifion wind farm substation, using spores from
the existing specimens themselves, dedicating a
shady area to its reproduction.

In 2023, the same species, the Dryopteris aemula
fern, was monitored twice:

In the PE Mifion, the state of conservation of the
specimens of this species transplanted before
the start of the work is monitored to avoid affec-
ting them, and the specimens were found to be
in good condition. Linked to this transplanting,
new plants are being generated in vitro, which
will be planted on the northern slope of the subs-
tation to increase the population of this species
in the area, improving its conservation.

In Alto da Croa ll, a tree plantation was carried
out with native hardwood species to improve the
habitat of several specimens of this species lo-
cated on rocky outcrops, which are periodically
monitored both in terms of the fern specimens
and the plantation carried out.

Plan and program for population reinforcement
of the species Centaurea ultreiae

In 2020 we signed the Plan and programme for popu-
lation reinforcement of the species Centaurea Ultreiae
Silva-Pando in the Monte Castelo area, with the aim of
having a better knowledge of the species and the conser-
vation of this protected species.

For the elaboration and development of this programme,
Greenalia has earmarked 200,000 euros, channeled through
a collaboration agreement with the Galician Food Quality
Agency (AGACAL), which depends on the Regional Ministry
of Rural Affairs, and in which technicians from the Forestry
Research Centre of Lourizan participate.

Under this agreement, which runs until 2024, the work team
has carried out a third phase during 2023 focused on ob-
taining rooted and acclimatized plants from the samples
taken in the field and their maintenance in greenhouses, ca-
rrying out new treatment tests on the seeds to improve their
germination capacity and on the in vitro clones to increase
the number of shoots obtained. The results of the genetic
study carried out on the species were also obtained, and it
was considered that there is a single population for genetic
PUrpoSES.

Bryophytes

Among our lines of environmental study
associated with our activity, we have in-
cluded an assessment of the presence
of Sphagnum pylaesii Brid moss in the
area of implementation of one of our
planned parks in the municipalities of the
provinces of A Corufia and Lugo, as itis a
protected species recognized as Vulnera-
ble in the Catalogue of Threatened Spe-
cies (CGEA). During 2023, the field work
carried out throughout 2022 continued,
locating new areas with the presence of
this protected species.

v
-

L 3 Lreenaia's wind farm surroundings
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Greenalia's wind farm surroundings

Amphibians and reptiles

Regarding amphibians and reptiles, studies were carried out
in 2023 as part of the ElAs for the Friol, Monte do Cordal and
Carballal wind farms and their evacuation infrastructures.

In this research, the river courses, wetlands and rocky areas
closest to the land on which some of the wind farms infras-
tructures are planned were surveyed to identify the presence
of areas of special interest for these communities, in which the
search for specimens was carried out by turning over stones
and trunks or using sampling and release nets, This made it
possible to characterize the existing species and, if necessary,
to establish modifications in the design of the projects to avoid
their possible impact or to propose the preventive, corrective
and compensatory measures necessary to guarantee their
conservation.

Wolf

Although wolf populations are not clearly threatened at present,
we consider it of vital importance to know the potential effects
that wind farms may have on the hegemony of this species in or-
der to avoid future conservation problems.

To this end, a series of sampling methods, a probabilistic estimate
of reproduction based on sign concentrations and an analysis of
how! chorus recordings were carried out.

In 2023, the study carried out in 20271 and 2022 in the area where
the O Cerqueiral, Campelo, Bustelo and Monte Toural wind farms
are located and in 2022 in the Carballal wind farm was concluded.
A new study was also carried out this year on its presence in the
area where the Friol and Monte do Cordal wind farms are located.

Chiroptera

Bats are a species-rich group of mammals and are essential
for pest control. Due largely to their nocturnal habits, which
make them difficult to observe, bats have traditionally been little
known and studied species.

Throughout the years 2022 and 2023, in order to continue
increasing our knowledge of the chiropteran community in
the areas where our projects are being implemented, we have
carried out characterization studies of bats using automatic
ultrasound recorders installed at a height of more than 40
meters, taking advantage of the presence of our wind mea-
surement towers, which has allowed us to know in greater
detail the phenology and species present in the area at risk
of collision and to be able to propose bat-friendly stops in the
development of our parks during their periods of greatest ac-
tivity to minimize their possible impact.




1

It contributes to the cleaning of
forests, the prevention of fires and
the minimization of pests, since it is
mainly obtained from the remains

of the recurrent forest clearing

carried out in the
Galician mountains.

The method of collecting
the remains of the felling
ensures the incorporation
of the fine fraction into the
soil and its protection.

Greenalia
keys for
electric
bioMmass

’t helps socio-labour development
e to the creation of companies
d employment linked to the rural
i ant, as well as contributing

ion of CO2 by favoring

il | I able growth and natural

..,,.17 |‘ |

6

It is collected and treated in
strict compliance with the law
and human rights.

5

It minimizes emissions,
maximizes water savings
and reduces the impact on
the environment thanks to the
best available technologies
(BAT) implemented on the
production plant.

p

It promotes the circular economy,
since the material used is not
usable for other sectors and
generates value to a product
that is normally discarded.

3

It comes mainly from forests
or plantations certified by national
and international standards, which
we manage through our group
entity, thus allowing access to
smaller entities.

4

Itis fully utilized thanks
to Best Available Technologies
(BAT) that maximize electrical
performance in the
Biomass Plant.



RAW MATERIALS
AND SUPPLIES BIOMASS BIOMASS WIND

SUPPLY (ton) PLANT (ton) FARMS (ton)
The main raw material used for energy
production in Greenalia is biomass from 30.21 117 0.20 Lubricating ol
forestry waste. This is consumed in our
combustion plant in Curtis - Teixeiro. In - 29.56 . 0.70 0.04 I Hydraulic Ol
2023, 528,871 tones of biomass were
consumed (1.5 tones per MWh genera- 2.92 0.38 0.27 Grease
ted). This biomass has a range of origin of 7455 i i AdBlue
74.3 km, which allows us to optimize the
collection and transport routes. - 1340.88 . Sand
On the other hand, there are other materials B 1386.69 _ Chemicals

that are consumed throughout the energy
production processes. The main focus is on
those used for the maintenance of our balers
and for the correct functioning of our boiler

The reduction of the consumption of resources and  a lubricating oil recycling system has been launched,
raw materials, as a principle of the circular economy,  which is expected to optimize consumption by 50%.
is continuously applied in Greenalia, which constantly ~ Secondly, efficient separation technologies were
promotes innovative technologies to improve these  analyzed to optimize separation in the pre-treatment
indicators. In this sense, and in 2023, the company has  stage, where raw materials unsuitable for feed and
studied two new systems aimed at making the best  combustion in the boiler are discarded. Both systems
use of resources. On the one hand, the installation of  are expected to be installed by 2024.

"
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DATA Stones Other Stones Other Stones Other
The correc 1.14% 0.94% 2.35% 0.40% 1.64% 1.15%
task, as this al 242,641 19889t 766.58 1 131.81t 552.32t 387.62t
boosting circulatio
recycling practices, avoic
use of paper. Slags Slags Slags
24.86% 20.27% 23.35%
528320t 6612471 7847201
Ashes Ashes Ashes
73.07% 76.97% 73.85%
15530.16t 25104.88t 24813541
VALORIZATION ELIMINATION
NHW  Other Valorization Options 32,807.411 NHW  Transfer to landfill 22331t
NHW  Recycling 734.40 HW Transfer to landfill 1.92t
HW Other Valorization Options 8.10t
HW Recycled 26.531

98% VALORISATION

of waste maintained

REDUCTION OF 9%

in total waste produced per MWh
generated vs 2022.

In addition, and in order to guarantee the reuse of the products, part of the screened biomass is sold as a by-product
to a third party. In 2023, 163 tones of this by-product were sold, guaranteeing 100% reuse.

Initiatives have also been implemented to reduce waste production. These include the study of the installation of equip-
ment to improve the screening of biomass, separating only the inorganic material (mainly stones) and guaranteeing the
entry of pinecones and wood waste with a high calorific value into our combustion boiler.

Greenalia’s operational team replanting in.Croas Wind Farm



I 2021 I 2022 I 2023 The variation in water use, consumption and discharge in 2023 with res-
VALUES . : o . .

pect to the previous year is due to the optimization and improvement in

the boiler operation after detecting specific failures in the system throu-

ghout 2022. Therefore, these values have been similar to those of 2021,

where a lower electricity production, derived from a production shutdown,
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Surroundings of Monte Tourado Wind Farm




“NERGY
CONSUMP TION

Greenalia's energy consumption is mostly found in the fuel that is
needed for the operation of our machines and for the running of
the biomass plant. In addition, Greenalia has an indirect/external
energy consumption derived from the consumption necessary for
the processes of transporting the biomass to the plant.

The optimization of this direct and indirect consumption is es-
sential for our company. That is why we have specialized lo-
gistics teams that optimize collection and transport routes and
guarantee the lowest possible energy consumption. This has
led us to reduce energy consumption per MWh generated by
13% compared to 2022.

Qperationakteam in the'surfoundingsofiGreenalia Wind Farm

DIRECT ENERGY
CONSUMPTION MWh

36,595.7

26,062.1
21,833.5

I W 20,790.1

I W, 241522
227.3
1,099.2

B 2793

120.9
2,459.2
BAY 1.039.1
I W 32976.5
166.9
1,735.5

176

2021 2022 2023
Petrol Electricity @ Gas @ Diesel Total

ENERGY CONSUMPTION
OF THIRD PARTIES MWh

Greenalia's indirect energy consumption is mainly related to forestry work
and the transport of biomass, which is carried out by an external company.

FORESTRY BIOMASS
WORK ' diesel consumed TRANSPORT | diesel consumed

In addition, in 2023, we collaborated with 14 external biomass transport
companies to include 17 approved biomass platforms that allow, among
other features, the use of space for optimizing logistics and improving the
safety of the goods transported.

TOTAL ENERGY
CONSUMPTION
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OTH ER ATMOSFERIC EMISSIONS
Greenalia’s atmospheric emissions are mainly from the biomass plant.
| N D | CATO R S In the year 2023 emissions have been:

Particulate mgtter and ozor.1e depleting .substances Total 2023 Specific
are only marginally present in our operations. These (Tons) (kg/KWh)
are mainly found in fire extinguishing equipment and
..5' F in some refrigeration systems. Therefore, for Greenalia,
a8 ! the maintenance and control of this equipment is of pa- 39.44 0.110
ramount importance. There were no fugitive emissions

of refrigerant gases or ozone depleting agents during

2023. In addition, we carry out periodic checks to ensu-

e compliance with the emission parameters.
bl 5.1 0.014

5.84 0.016

0.505

S02 0.054

Particulas 5 0.015

% NOISE MEASUREMENTS LTAT
. ik

o " e b : i b +.-Noise measurements-eerresponding to the Environmental Monitoring
; : - Plans were carried out throughout 2023 This corresponds to 18 noise ! f :
measurements made at our wind farms. i

. o1 T e
%
5

.

s R i e

Monte Tourado Wind Farm (10:4 MW)




CLIMATE CHANGE

Climate change is one of today’s major challenges. Throughout 2023, record temperatures were
reached in most land areas, and similar behavior has occurred in the marine environment. The ad-
verse effects of this situation have been reflected in prolonged droughts, fires and storms, among
other effects.

At Greenalia we have a business model that is 100% oriented towards mitigating and combating
climate change. Considering that most GHG emissions come from energy consumption, it is es-
sential to guarantee the availability of clean energy. Therefore, our business strategy is twofold:
on the one hand, we are committed to reducing our impact and to offsetting those emissions that
have not been reduced. On the other hand, we are committed to increasing not only the amount
of clean energy produced, but also the number of technologies in which we are present, thereby
increasing the stability of energy production.

Finally, despite the efforts that must be made to avoid rising temperatures, at Greenalia we
consider the risk of the impacts of climate change in our risk management system, and we
believe it is necessary to adapt to them and to the effect they may have on our assets and
our business.




GREENALIA'S CARBON
FOOTPRINT

We quantify our carbon footprint following
the GHG Protocol standard following the
principle of operational control.

Monte Tourado Wind Farm (10.4 MW)

scopE1 9,071 tCOzeq

Area Activity
Vehicle Fleet
Corporate
Ofices
) Vehicle Fleet
Biomass
supply Balers
Electricity Fuel
production

biomass plant Fugitive Emissions

Electricity Fuel
production
wind farms Vehicle Fleet

Emissions

45.18

1.35

505.34

3054.46

1446.28

0.00

0.45

17.56

SCOPE1

Direct emissions associated with sources that
are under our direct control.

Our main impact derives from the fuels nee-
ded for the collection of biomass waste and
for energy production in the plant.

SCOPE 2

Emissions associated with the generation of
electricity purchased from third parties.

Our assets rely on electricity that comes mostly
from renewable sources, guaranteeing a reduc-
tion in emissions associated with our electricity

SCOPE 3

Indlirect emissions associated with our entire value
chain, both upstream and downstream of the com-
pany.

At Greenalia, we continue to improve measu-
rement methods and collaborations with third

consumption.

5,976
5,022 5,071
<
S =
° 3 g
=
___. MWh produced ©
2021 2022 2023

Due to the improvement in the management of the biomass plant
and the optimisation of energy consumption, the direct emissions
derived from our activity have been reduced by 15% compared
to the previous year. This, together with our commitment to
increasing the generation of clean energy, has led to a 25%
reduction in Greenalia's emissions per unit of energy generated,
with an emissions intensity of 0.009 kgCO2-eq/kWh. This
emissions intensity is a clear example of Greenalia's contribution
to the decarbonisation of the electricity sector, in line with the
1.5°C path defined by the International Energy Agency.

parties to ensure that we achieve full visibility
into our carbon footprint.

SCOPE2  91C0-eq

In 2023, almost all the electricity consumed (+97%)
came from renewable sources, resulting in the
generation of only 9 tones of CO2 associated with
the company’s scope 2.

scorE3 47,261 tCO-eq

Upstream EMISSIONS........cooovvoriorirn 37,249 tCO2¢q
Downstream EMISSIONS.........ccocovvvrvirrininne 10,012 tCO2eq
MORE DETAILS
ON NEXT PAGE
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Greenalia's wind farm surroundings

SCOPE 3

47,261 tCOreq*

UPSTREAM EMISSIONS

Name

Scope
Greenalia

Emissions
(tCO2eq)

Category 1

Goods and Services
Purchased

Emissions related to the
production of our reported
raw materials. Emissions
associated with biomass
packaging are excluded as
this corresponds to scope
1. Emissions associated
with forestry work done
by external parties are
included

877

Category 3

Fuel and energy activities
(notin scope 1and 2).

Emissions associated with
the production of fuels
and the transport of the
electricity used

1,168

Category 4

Associated transport and
upstream distribution

Emissions associated with
transporting the biomass to
the biomass plant.

2,014

Compared to the previous year, and in line with our objective to impro-
ve the measurement of Greenalia's Scope 3 emissions, new categories
have been accounted for, such as category 3 and category 9 as defined
by the GHG protocol. All emission factors used have been obtained from
literature/third party sources.

As can be seen, the main focus of Scope 3 emissions is on the treat-
ment of the waste generated. Additionally, GHG Protocol categories
10,12, 13, 14 and 15 have not been included as Greenalia's products,
operations and services are not associated with any of them and have
therefore been considered as 0 tCO2eq.

DOWNSTREAM EMISSIONS

Category 5

Waste generated in
operations

Emissions related to the
treatment of all waste

Category 6

Business Travel

Emissions associated
with the transport and
accommodation of

Category 7

Employee commuting
to work.

Emissions associated
with the transport of

Category 9

Greenalia employees to the
workplace. This transport is
not counted if the employee
travels by company car,

as this is accounted for in
Scope 1 emissions.

generated by Greenalia
Greenalia employees on
business trips.

33,087 77.0 26

Name Downstream transportation
and distribution

Scope Emissions associated with

Greenalia the transport of electricity.

Emissions 10,012

(tCO2¢q)

*This total represents the emissions from our value chain that have been quantified
in this 2023.As Scope 3 is not fully measured, it cannot be considered as Greenalia's
total Scope 3. In addition, this value is not comparable to past and future years due to
improvements in measurement methods, the inclusion of new concepts and catego-
ries and improved accuracy of emission factors.
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The production of renewable-energy-enables progress to be made in the decarbonization process
and, therefore, in the substitution of fossil-fuels. This has different impacts on the energy security of

the territory and-on the environme_n__t’;With régardto the environment, avoiding the use of fossil fuels
results inless pollution of the energy system and reduces greenhouse gas-emissions.

|
A > - : : ; 17
-;;{9 Greenalia produced more than 558 GWh of renewable energy in 2023. This production managed to —ls
¥ avoid the generation of electricity from fossil fuels, avoiding the emission of more than 237,000 tones
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ADAPTATION
TO CLIMATE
CHANGE

Surroundings of Monte Tourado Wind Farm

Climate changéland its effects on the planet
have become a reality in recent years. This
is currently one of the main risks that both
companies and governments must analyze
and manage correctly, to ensure that they
adapt to the potential impacts that climate
change may cause.

EVALUATION MODEL

EXPOSITION

Likelikood of risk occurrence,
based on projections of the

different risk factors.

At Greenalia we assess climate risks and
opportunities, both physical and transitory,
in relation to our assets and-our business
model, following the methodology defined
by the Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures (TCFD).

VULNERABILITY

Assessment of the impact that,
if this risk materializes, it could

generate in the company.

This aflalysis has been carried out
considefing three scenarios defined by the
IPPC: REP 2.6, temperature rise <2°C, RCP
4.5, temperature rise between 2 and 3°C
and RCP|8.5, considering a rise of +4.3°C,
and the effects have been analyzed for two-
time horizons: 2030 and 2050.

ADAPTATION

Correction factor based on
the company’s perception of
residual risk assessment and

adaptation measures.

RESIDUAL RISK

Operational risks that have
a financial impact on the

company.
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@ WATER AVAILABILITY RAINFALL INTENSITY - TEMPERATURE
(,/ - Average annual river Flow C;// - Annual rainfall accumulation @ = - Annual maximum daily maximum temperature
o

PHYSICAL RISKS - Extreme Hydrologic Drought (SPI-12) - Heavy rainfall (>50 or >20 mm) - Wet bulb temperature (high threshold)
The impact of identified potential physical - Highest Drought - Highest precipitation accumulated in 1 day - Wet bulb temperature (very high threshold)
hazards that could lead to potential disruptions - Surface air temperature
in energy production or deterioration of assets FIRES A . SNOWFALL
and increased need for asset maintenance ({5) - Wildfire Danger Index (FFDI) é\éé - Highest 1-day cumulative snowfall [& SOIL EROSION
< has been identified and quantified. - Annual FFDI Maximum - Annual minimum daily temperature - Average annual soil erosion >
There are different adaptation measures in place to REMOTE MONITORING FIRE PROTECTION CONSIDERATION OF
ensure the management of potential climate impacts. OPTIMISATION OF WATER MEASURES SHIFT REORGANISATION
These measures have made it possible to reduce the risk RESOURCES USE ALARM SYSTEMS VENTILATION AND
in the assets analysed. BUFFER STOCK FULL INSURANCE COOLING
COVERAGE

Monte Tourado Wind Farm (10.4 MW)

A The risks and opportunities arising from the energy RISKS OPPORTUNITIES
transition have been analyzed considering both the US - Changes in carbon pricing. - Change in demand and type of energy used.

and European markets. In addition, the risk manage- ) ) : ;
P g - Increase in the price of raw materials - Government requirements on storage.

ment systems already available in Greenalia have been - o . .
taken into account for the analysis of residual risk. * Uncertainty in commodity prices. * Decreasing cost of capital.

TRANSITION

RISKS AND
OPPORTUNITIES - Decreasing costs of renewable energies.
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OUR TEAM:
THE GREEN TEAM

TALENT MANAGEMENT

WELL-BEING, HEALTH AND
SAFETY OF OUR TEAM

HEALTH & SAFETY

“We will continue to work to develop
the best projects, competitively and
efficiently, but, above all, with the focus
on all of them having a positive impact
on the Planet and society”.

Letter from the CEO- Page 5
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@perational team indhe sUHOUNAINGSIONGIEENal= \Wind Farm

At Greenalia, we are committed not only to business progress, but also to leadership in job
creation for the professional development and well-being of our teams, always taking into
account the latest developments and trends in talent management.

Our commitment is reflected in the development and review of our internal policies and
the monitoring of social indicators, fostering diverse, motivated and socially conscious
team environments.

These policies govern the values and behaviors that govern our working environments, as
well as in building relationships with our stakeholders. Supported by senior management
and dedicated sustainability and equality committees, they are subject to a rigorous pro-
cess of regular monitoring and oversight to ensure consistent and ethical development
throughout our operations.

— PEOPLE POLICIES -

TALENT RESPECT FOR PROMOTION OF OCCUPATIONAL
MANAGEMENT HUMAN RIGHTS EQUALITY, DIVERSITY HEALTH AND SAFETY
POLICY POLICY AND INCLUSION GUARANTEE

POLICY POLICY

DECENT WORK AND 1 PARTNERSHIPS
ECONOMIC GROWTH FOR THE GOALS

o &



https://greenalia.es/download/green-book-corporate-policies/

d teams are the driving force behind our business success.
experience in various sectors, committed to a project
gin and international projection.

Green Team is increasing its offer of profiles
demands. Proof of this has been the creation
the following business areas

SITIONS SPAIN
[ec al Director \
- Electrical and Instrumentation Manager at Biomass Plant
- HSEQ Specialist

As for our workforce figures, at the end of 2023 we had 111 people, with
an average age of 36 years and distributed between 18% women and
82% men*. Most of the positions are located in different places throu-
ghout Galicia. It should be noted that, although all our employees work
in Spain, certain positions in our team collaborate in business develop-
ment at an international level, specifically in the United States. For this
reason, at Greenalia we find a diverse and inclusive job offer located in
two different work environments; profiles located in offices and profiles
that perform functions in field environments. These are described in de-
tail below:

*The employee data is hot consistent with the AnnualFinantial Statements becau-

se different calculation methods have been used. This report includes those with
employment contracts at the end of the year.




RENEWABLE ENERGY
GENERATION BUSINESS

Our Renewable Business personnel is characterized by the development

of duties focused on the management of our assets, the processing of TOTAL NO DISTRIBUTION OF THE WORKEORCE DISTRIBUTION
new onshore wind, offshore wind, solar and other innovative technologies OF PEOPLE WORKFORCE BY GENDER BY POSITION

projects, as well as the financing of projects and corporate management. 2023

Within our direct renewable business personnel, it is worth noting that in

2023, 2 of them remained intermittently between the US and Spain for

project development, beinginboth New York and Texas. In addition, throu-

ghout 2023 there was 1 indirect employee with constant permanence in .
the US focused on the development of projects in this territory.

DISTRIBUTION OF
THE WORKFORCE
BY LOCATION

DISTRIBUTION OF

THE WORKFORCE
BY AGE
Location
Seaingif el DISTRIBUTION OF
us | 2 THE WORKFORCE
BY EMPLOYMENT
] tacttmt‘Spain with CONTRACT
inte ent stay between
Spain and US
|
DISTRIBUTION
OF WORKFORCE
BY TYPE OF
WORKING DAY

Greenalia offices New York




BIOMASS PLANT SUPPLY

The Biomass Plant Supply workforce operates directly in the business of
electricity production from PEFC/ FSC® certified forest residues. This staff
is mainly responsible for the collection, packaging and logistics of biomass
residues, the control of this biomass within our plant and the management
of its personnel.

DISTRIBUTION OF
THE WORKFORCE
BY LOCATION

Location

Spain 80

TOTAL NO. DISTRIBUTION OF THE
OF PEOPLE WORKFORCE BY GENDER

DISTRIBUTION OF
THE WORKFORCE
BY AGE

DISTRIBUTION OF
THE WORKFORCE
BY EMPLOYMENT
CONTRACT

WORKFORCE DISTRIBUTION
BY POSITION
2023

DISTRIBUTION
OF WORKFORCE
BY TYPE OF
WORKING DAY




Operational team in the su

REMUNERATION DATA

The remuneration policy applied is established in an ob-
jective manner, primarily reflecting the professional's ex-
perience and responsibility within the company. Meeting
our teams and guaranteeing salary reviews associated
with the performance of new competencies and respon-
sibilities is key to maintaining a climate of motivation and
thus the success of our business.

PROFESSIONAL remincati  femuneat
Director 77738 € 81,000 €
Responsible 61,250 € 60,694 €
Specialist 31,573 € 51,375€
M'adnééveen'q - 35857 € 40200 €
Technician 29,538 € 34,889 €
Technician Il 22,862 € 23,496 €
Operator 17,900 € 18,705 €
Operator Il 16,807 € 17,710 €
Intern 12,353 € 12,369 €

*A specific note with information on the remuneration of senior management and the
board of directors is included in the notes to the annual accounts

**Remuneration figures correspond to the average salaries of all Greenalia employees
throughout 2023

In line with previous years, our wage policy for entry-level
positions is above the minimum wage and the minimum
wage, with no differences based on gender.

2023 Women Men
Remuneration in the initial

categories 17,241 € 17,241 €
Minimum Remuneration

Spain 15120 € 15120 €
Relationship between initial

and minimum remuneration 1.14 1.14
Spain

In a clear commitment to keep the company’s team
motivation, we have different benefit initiatives, such
as: stock options plan - a long-term incentive pro-
gramme for the company’s key personnel that inclu-
des sustainability compliance targets; staff benefits
portal - an internal platform with access to discounts
on a variety of products; corporate travel portal; flexi-
bility options tailored to individual situations and paid
leave, among others.

In 2023, there is a salary adjustment in
certain categories, motivated mainly by
the continued work on our salary policy,
seeking internal equity and external com-
petitiveness. Factors that have also in-
fluenced this decision making have been
the culmination of our Corporate Equality
Plan, the development/reinforcement of
several strategic areas and the perfor-
mance of certain strategic profiles. On
the other hand, Greenalia is in a phase of
organizational development that requires
agility and flexibility when structuring
teams and positions. Therefore, in the ca-
tegories of Specialist and Manager, there
have been certain variations in the annual
comparative. When new needs arise or
new areas are led by people in Specialist
positions, sometimes there is a rapid es-
calation from the area to a team which
leads to a movement towards the cate-
gory of Responsible having a team in
charge.

This year we also made progress in the development of a total compensation model, governed by a Compensation Policy
adapted to the needs of the business, which allows us to attract the best talent and align people with our corporate culture.

L;J

Position Map

Diagnosis of the Current Design and Development
Remuneration System of a Strategic Model of
Total Compensation



At Greenalia, we are passionate about cultivatingan ~ We understand the Talent Cycle from a
environment where talent flourishes. From attraction ~ comprehensive  perspective, maximizing the

1 to career growth, our approach to the talent cycle  potential of our people and understanding their
M A N AG E l\/| E N encompasses all stages of our team development.  contribution as something unique. During this year

We value proactive and committed people, as we 2023, we focused on the following areas of the cycle:
believe they are the key to driving the sustainability
of our organization.

Greenalia's wind farm surroundings

ATTRACTING AND PROMOTING TALENT TRAINING & DEVELOPMENT

We maintain a strategic focus on attracting and engaging We offer professional growth opportunities for our
talent as an integral part of our vision for sustainable grow- teams through continuous training and skills develo-
th. We developed and implemented innovative initiatives to pment that respond to current and future demands.

attract highly qualified professionals, fostering an inclusive
and collaborative work environment that promotes perso-

nal development and fulfilment. Greenalia has continued to FEEDBACK

invest in training and development programs, as well as in

creating career opportunities that enable our team to reach We implement internal evaluation processes in order
their full potential, consolidating our position as an employer to provide feedback on our team management, throu-
of choice in the renewable energy sector. gh active listening and continuous improvement of our

work environments and methods, company culture
and corporate values.

Nl :



Greenalia's wind farm surroundings



Due to the nature of the business, the data on
organizational changes are represented divided
into the two categories defined in the workfor-
ce section. The total turnover of the company

RENEWABLE ENERGY
GENERATION BUSINESS

Quantitative data regarding our organisational changes for the renewable energy
generation workforce are shown below.

Greenalia's operational team replanting in Croas Wind Farm

was 38.8% in 2023, being 15.8% in the case of
women and 44.1% in the case of men. This is
mainly materialized in the biomass supply bu-

NEW
siness, due to its characteristics, maintaining 3 RECRUITMENTS BY PROF&&%%B‘Q#
values of less than 10% in the rest of the areas. IN 2023 20z
. . . . 10 IN 2022 Director 0%
During this financial year, we consolidated our
workforce in key business positions such as BY GENDER Repene o o
Biomass Operations, and we also managed to Sppealells &
reduce our turnover by 17% compared to 2022. O a 0%
Techinician 33%
BY AGE Technician Il 0%
AVERAGE 2 Operator 0%
SENIORITY YEARS E—" 0%
Intern 0%
TURNOVER 2 LEAVES IN 2023 BY PROFESSIONAL
EVOLUTION 4N 2022 CATEGORY 2023
Director 0%
s BY GENDER Responsible 0%
§ e 52,4% Specialist 0%
o
2 | ViSSR0
=) 48%
= . Techinician 50%
o BY AGE Technician Il 0%
14,8% Operator 0%
\6% Operator I 0%
2022 2023 Intern 0%

@ Renewable Energies
Biomass Supply
Total Greenalia




Monte Tourado Wind Farm (10.4 MW)

BIOMASS PLANT SUPPLY

Below is the quantitative data regarding our organizational changes for the supply,
transport, O&M and changes for the staff dedicated to the supply, transport, O&M
of the biomass plant. biomass plant. 100% of this turnover has been found in the
Greenalia business Biomass Supply, where the turnover was reduced by 19% com-
pared to the previous year. compared to the previous year.

52

3

NEW
RECRUITMENTS
IN 2023

37 IN 2022

BY GENDER

6% () 949
BY AGE

38% 58% 4%

LEAVES IN 2023
50 IN 2022

BY GENDER

3% (19/%
BY AGE

34% 58% 8%

trnover O2.4%

BY PROFESSIONAL
CATEGORY‘ 2023 \

Director

Responsible

Operator |l

Intern -

BY PROFESSIONAL
CATEGORY‘ 2023 \

Director 0%
Responsible 0%
Specialist 0%
v | 08
Techinician 0%

Operator
Operator Il

Intern ,63%




TRAINNING &
DEVELOPMENT

The growth and progress of our organization goes
hand in hand with the progress of our people. At
Greenalia, we recognize the crucial role that training
plays in the development of our talent, which is why
we facilitate continuous access to training in the
workplace, promoting the development of skills and
specialization in the business areas through dynamic
and enriching learning environments.

Through internal training programs specifically tailo-
red to the needs of each area and position, we pro-
vide our teams with the tools and knowledge they
need to excel in their roles and contribute to the suc-
cess that characterizes our organization.

This investment in professional development not
only strengthens our identity as a group, but also fos-
ters essential values such as the ability to excel, inno-
vation and a sense of belonging to the organization,
resulting in highly qualified work teams committed
to our mission, capable of achieving the macro-ob-
jectives of our organization with diligence and deter-
mination.

NUMBER OF PERCENTAGE OF DISTRIBUTION OF TRAINING
NUMBER OF TRAINNING FACE —TO-FACE RECEIVED BY EACH
TRAINNINGS HOURS TRAINNING PROFESSIONAL CATEGORY
53 4118  56%
81% 78%

48 3,368
o1 2,325

40%
4%

HOURS OF TRAINING BY ATTENDANTS BY

SUBJECT AND GENDER SUBJECT AND GENDER
2023 Men Women Jgﬁarls 2023 Men Women Attendees
BIOMASS 453 18 471 BIOMASS 28 6 34
DIGITALIZATION 70 218 288 DIGITALIZATION 5 9 14
WIND POWER 123 134 257 WIND POWER 6 5 11
LANGUAGES 1029 450 1479 LANGUAGES 15 12 27
EQUALITY 0 29 29 EQUALITY 0 17 17
LOGISTICS 80 80 160 LOGISTICS 1 1 2
GDPR 4 3 7 GDPR 4 3 7
RISK PREVENTION 76 50 126 RISK PREVENTION 6 1 7
HR 81 153 234 HR 19 16 35
SUSTAINABILITY 406 433 838 SUSTAINABILITY 17 14 31
Total 2,322 1,797 4,118

In 2023, we increased the offer and number of
training hours of the group, reaching a figure of
investment in training of more than 700 euros per
employee. Among our training courses, we highlight
those related to languages, biomass, sustainability
and corporate development. Through the promotion
of internal training we promote the excellence

of Greenalia’s technical team, we acquire more
complete professional profiles and we increase
people's motivation. Over the course of this financial
year, we have achieved an average of 37 hours of
training per person, with an average of 26 hours of
training per man and 90 hours per woman.

. B o

2023

77



Greenalia's Headquarters

Within the framework of our people development, we
have a series of initiatives focused on aligning new re-
cruits with our corporate philosophy. To achieve this,
we have internal protocols that allow teams to familia-
rize themselves with the diversity of processes and en-
vironments of our operations. In addition, we highlight
the multiple training and development opportunities we
offer, promoting a thorough understanding of the wor-
king methods and sustainable values that characterize
Greenalia.

ASSETS VISITS

Programme of visits to give our personnel first-hand knowledge of the processes
involved in Greenalia’ s value chain, favoring the creation of connections between
departments and facilities

PREVENTION OF OCCUPATIONAL RISKS

Training actions aimed at making the teams aware of the potential risks derived
from the different work environments and activities, with the aim of promoting a
preventive culture and reducing accidents in our offices and facilities.

TRAINING IN COMPETENCIES OR SOFT SKILLS

Training program designed for managers or managers of intermediate levels who
lead teams, with the purpose of cultivating cohesive and efficient teams, in the
management of strengths and emotional skills.

TECHNICAL AND/OR SPECIFIC POSITION SKILLS

Program focused on the development of essential professional skills and gene-
ral competencies, such as administrative skills and mastery of specific software
according to the needs of each area covered in collaboration with specialized
partners

ENGLISH CLUB

As a result of the recent expansion of our activity in the international context,
positions are increasingly demanding language skills. During the last years, this
training has been focused on a technical content, which has been widely received

GREEN BUDDIES

This program is based on the assignment of a colleague or buddy to new recruits
with the aim of accompanying them during their entry process, facilitating incor-
poration into the organization and its corporate culture.



FEEDBACK

In our quest for high-performance team mana-
gement, itis crucial to highlight the fundamental
value of continuous assessment of our internal
processes. This practice ensures transparent,
healthy and cohesive working environments
around our value proposition. Obtaining feed-
back not only allows us to identify competency
gaps between departments, but also to identify
early on potential conflicts and areas for impro-
vement. A culture of self-assessment enables
us to continuously improve our working me-
thods and strengthen our corporate culture.

Proof of our commitment to the growth and development of our team is reflected in our professional development program, which is structured in the following steps:

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM EVALUATION OF THE WORK ENVIRONMENT

We have a series of processes focused on obtaining the opinions of the different people involved in the | An additional tool we use to ensure alignment between the needs of our people and

professional development of each of our team members. the direction of our corporate culture is through the Work Climate and Equality As-
sessment.

Continuing the trajectory of previous years, we have launched our Work Climate As-
sessment for the 5th consecutive year. This process allows us to know the satisfac-
tion indexes of our people and their perception on issues relevant to the organization,
such as internal communication processes, business strategy, compensation and
benefits issues, and equality issues in the work environment.

PURPOSE ENVIRONMENT SAFETY AND
AT WORK - FAIR . ETHICAL
OPPORTUNITIES RESPECT

| P



Monte Tourado Wind Farm (10.4 MW)

EQUALITY, DIVERSITY &
INCLUSION

Diversity, Equality and Inclusion are part of the way we do
things. We firmly believe they are key elements of sustai-
nable, high-performing teams. We want to continue to de-
velop our organization in harmony with business growth,
creating a community where talent can advance, drive and
transform.

In 2023, continued to develop actions in line with our Tst
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Plan (2020-2023).

With the closure of this plan at the end of 2023, an analy-
sis has been made of the fulfilment of objectives and ac-
tions carried out, which has allowed us to define clear re-
sults. This Plan is managed and supervised by an Equality
Committee, which oversees its compliance, promotes its
dissemination and ensures its implementation, for which
it meets annually. In this line, we have also approved the
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Policy. We have an Equality
Committee, and we have a complaints channel and a Proto-
col for the prevention and treatment of cases of sexual ha-
rassment, reflecting the company’s strong commitment to
the fight against situations of harassment in the workplace
and sexual harassment. In this financial year, as in previous
years, no cases of discrimination have been detected.

EQUALITY PLAN
2020-2023

O/ OF THE OBJECTIVES
75 /O ACHIEVED

Commitment to equality:
Equality policies are established and included in the Emplo-
yee Welcome Plan.

Recruitment, Recruitment and Under-Representation:
Specific equality training is carried out for the person in
charge of selection and the application of equality princi-
ples in the recruitment process is ensured.

Promotion:

Continuous assessment is guaranteed, ensuring equal
opportunities and we have been developing a Promotion
Policy.

Remuneration policy:

Job analysis and descriptions have been carried out and
a remuneration register by gender and category has been
set up. In addition, the project to develop a Remuneration
Policy has begun.

Conciliation:
Employees’ conciliation permits are communicated and
guaranteed.

Sex-based harassment:

A code of conduct and a harassment protocol is developed
and communicated, ensuring that incidents can be repor-
ted if they occur.

Company culture, communication and awareness:
The use of non-sexist language is guaranteed and equality
activities are carried out for Greenalia's staff.

EQUALITY
COMMITTEE

Beatriz Mato
Director of Sustainability
and Corporate Development

Laura Luaces
Legal Director

Gonzalo Castafieira
Director of People,
Brand & Communication

Mauro Coucheiro
Chief Operating Officer
(C00)
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Operational team in the surg@UAAINGS of Greenalia Wind Farm

QUANTIATIVE DATA

GENDER o
DISTRIBUTIONOF 2023 40%

60%

THE WORKFORCE*

cate

% %
DIVERSITY OF 2028 21% 79%
GOVERNING BODIES

89%
DISTRIBUTION OF )
MEMBERS OF THE 11%
GOVERNING BODY
BY AGE -

30-50 >50

DISTRIBUTION DISTRIBUTION REMUNERATION OF THE
OF THE WORKFORCE OF THE WORKFORCE WORKFORCE BY PROFESSIONAL
BY GENDER BY AGE CATEGORY AND GENDER
2023
; Average
2023 MEN WOMEN 2023 <30 30-50 >50 Categoria Men Women Remuneration | GAP (%)
Director 62% 38% Director 0% 88% 13% Director 77,250 € 86,000 € 81,000 € -11.33%
Responsible 100% 0% Responsible 0% 100% 0% Responsible 60,694 € = 60,694 € N/A
Specialist 100% 0% Specialist 50% 50% 0% Specialist 51,375 € = 51,375 € N/A
M vl 40% 60% I vl 0% 80% 20% Mg/'r{g’gLeerVnee'm 37250€ | 42167€ 40200€ | -1320%
Operator 100% 0% Operator 17% 69% 14% Technician 34,889 € -7.68%
Operator Il 100% 0% Operator Il 44% 53% 3% Technician Il 22,882 € 24,877 € 23,496 € -8.72%
Technician 20% 80% Technician 30% 70% 0% Operator 18,705 € = 18,705 € N/A
Technician Il 57% 43% Technician Il 29% 64% 7% Operator Il 17,710 € = 17,710 € N/A
Total 82% 18% Total 25% 68% 7%
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HCALTH &
SAFETY

At Greenalia, the safety of our teams is more than a priority, it is engraved within
our core values. Thus, the prevention of accidents in our work environments and the
safeguarding of our people is a key factor for the safe development of our business
activity.

We pay special attention to the implementation and monitoring of safety measures
in all our facilities, especially those with the greatest potential for danger due to the
activities they host (packaging operations, operations in industrial environments,
etc.). We also strive to make progress by scheduling safety visits and reviewing
action protocols to take preventive measures that contribute to minimizing risks and
consolidating a culture of safety at the group level.

100% of our staff is protected by a Health and Safety Service (HSE) external to
Greenalia, from which they provide assistance to our HSEQ department by carrying
out assessments of working environments. In our field operations we spare no
effort when it comes to the health and safety of our team, which is why we work
on the design and implementation of continuous improvements in this area. Thus,
each Greenalia project and operation receives a detailed safety plan, meticulously
drawn up by our staff specialized in occupational hazards in collaboration with the
external prevention service (SPA).Even in those activities where we collaborate with
business partners, we are also actively involved in order to ensure that the most
comprehensive safety standards are met.

Greenalid8 o ahonaltealmlﬂgal .

¥ e



Greenalia's operational team in galician forest

HEALTH & SAFETY DATA
GREENALIA

2022 2023
Frecuency rate* 462 9.04
Severity index 035 151
Incidence rate 33.61 79.21
Mortal accidents 0 0
Incidents with downtime 4 8
No downtime incidents 5 2
Absenteeism (days) 61 267
Total hours worked 173,250 176,952

Thanks to safety awareness, during 2023, our workforce had no
occupational ilinesses or fatal accidents. Only a number of minor
accidents have been recorded, and we are committed to continue
improving to remain below industry accident levels.

To ensure safety in our environments, we incorporate health and sa-
fety skills training sessions.

BUSINESS PARTNERS

BIOMASS PROJECTS BIOMASS CLEARING WIND PROJECTS
2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 Business partners are all third parties
involved in the operation and maintenance
26.09 2471 0 0 0 0 of our assets.
2.37 0.48 0 0 0 0
4 392 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
*As this is a company with a small number
2 2 0 0 0 0 of workers, according to GRI 403-9 it is
1 4 0 0 0 0 more appropriate to calculate the frequency
rate by multiplying by 200,000, thus repor-
182 39 0 0 0 0 ting the number of work-related fatalities
per 100 full-time workers in a year.
76,629 80,939 41,724 44,192 8,404 10,897
OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND FIRST AID PRL BIOMASS
SAFETY TRAINING PLANT
Para todas aquellas personas Provide theoretical and practical Job-specific training
incorporadas antes del 2020. knowledge on the main first aid - Theoretical-Practical Course for
techniques. Working at Heights

- Theoretical-Practical Course in

Confined Spaces
85
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Alto da Croa Wind Farm (7.3 MW)

PROSP

—RITY

SOCIO-ECONOMIC
IMPACT

SECTORAL ALLIANCES

CONTRIBUTION
TO THE COMMUNITY

To do it in harmony with nature,

in dialogue with local
Environments and with the
maximum consensus is key for the
Greenalia team,

that has sustainability and its

pillars as axes of all its activity”.

Letter from the President — Page 4
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Alto da Croa Wind Farm (%8 ’IrW)

PROSPERITY

Following the approval of our 2nd Sustainability Plan 2024-2028, in this report we have
added an additional dimension to the sustainability pillars: environmental, social and go-
vernance (ESG). Thus, we include a “Prosperity” perspective in order to highlight the posi-
tive impact associated with Greenalia’ s operations in the local territory, either directly or
indirectly.

Around this fourth dimension, we work towards a series of objectives and actions to
support society under the perspective of creating shared value (CSV), a framework for
creating economic positive impact with which we address social challenges. Among the
main objectives related to prosperity, we focus on the generation of positive socio-econo-
mic impact, the dissemination of the energy transition and the sustainable growth of our
organization.

PROSPERITY POLICY

DECENT WORK AND RESPONSIBLE CLIMATE PARTNERSHIPS
) 1 1 17

CONSUMPTION
AND PRODUCTION

O @ &

ECONOMIC GROWT! ACTION FOR THE GOALS
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SOCIO-ECONOMIC
IMPACT

Operational team at Alto da.Croa Il Wind Farm (10.4 MW)

Our main objective is to maximize the value generated by our
projects for the benefit of all stakeholders, demonstrating our
strong commitment to creating positive impact and sustainable
employment. Local collaboration and business excellence in
a business model such as Greenalia’ s can not only coexist, but
are closely related, as it is a model focused on protecting the
environment, ecosystems and improving people's quality of living.

The development of our business has a large direct economic
impact on the economies in the vicinity of our renewable assets.

This impact takes place through revenues from the payment of
municipal taxes and fees, rents to landowners for rental income,
as well as the purchase of goods and services from suppliers.

Our supply chain includes an extensive network of more than 1,200
companies that provide coverage for the renewable projects that
make up our asset portfolio. Among the most frequent supplier
profiles with which we work in the planning and development of
our plans are contractors, distributors, consultants, intermediaries,
manufacturers and primary producers.




DENMARK

VALUE DISTRIBUTED 54,282 € FINLAND
315,033 €
BY OUR PROJECTS NORWAY
38,308 €
UNITED KINGDOM
Around the World 56,149 €
' USA IRELAND
125M € 8178761 € 84,282 €
FRANCE LITHUANIA
11,999 €
In this financial year, the total amount of payments 56,958 €
to suppliers exceeded 125 million euros, which were PORTUGAL ?9Z8E765|; EEPUBUC
mainly distributed throughout the local territories 06,239 € '
where our assets and projects under development
are located, being the Iberian Peninsula and the
United States, in addition to the countries illustrated
in the following map: 60 OSE?ESA&!,E
INDIA
56,310,231 €
ITALY
219,315 €

CYPRUS
60,000 €

Greenalia offices New York




BASQUE COUNTRY

VALUE DISTRIBUTED BY ASTURIAS 4920374 €

686,369 €

OUR PROJECTS IN 2023 CANTABRIA

803,121 €

ARAGON

GALICIA 1,369,359 €
Spain (6OM €) 23,130,624 €

€ 24M of direct local

economic impact Galicia (ES)

and Texas (US) , CATALONIA
_ CASTILE AND LEON

It is worth highlighting Greenalia's commitment to 376,598 €
Galician companies with high energy requirements,
through the consolidation of power purchase
agreements (PPAs). These strategic alliances MADRID
strengthen the competitiveness of electro-intensive 21,264,334 €
industries such as Alcoa and Resonac, which require
a guarantee of greater stability in their energy costs in COMUNIDAD
the medium and long term in order to strengthen their  VALENCIANA
" : : EXTREMADURA 732139 €
competitiveness by moving towards more sustainable 1015807 € ) BALEARIC
business models. In this sense, we are proud to o ISLANDS
support and supply green energy to the industries of 35655 €
the Galician economic fabric.

- 4,520,358 €

ANDALUSIA
CANARY ISLANDS 685143 €
509,488 €
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Monte Tourado Wind Farm (10.4 MW)



PROMOTION OF LOCAL
EMPLOYMENT

Together with the economic impact of Greenalia's renewable
projects, we reinforce our business strategy based on the
creation of value through the creation of employment, by
means of the demand for goods and the contracting o
services from local companies close to our pipeline.

During 2023, Greenalia has earmarked an investment of 24 @ DIRECT
million euros in an extensive portfolio of more than 800 local —|— /I 2 O EMPLOYMENT
companies, distributed between Galicia and Texas. Most ﬁ“:"n 0&M

of these companie e bas @

B D 5 2 (8 R ke e 12
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Operational team in the surroundings of Greenalia Wind Farm




SECTORRL
ALLIANCES

At Greenalia, we are committe
and sectoral clusters in order t
of the renewable energy sector.
an active role, forming part of
of various associations such
Renewable Energy Companies (A
of  Metallurgical  Industrialists

the main associations
pport the development
this reason, we play
Boards of Directors
the Association of
and the Association
Galicia  (ASIME).

Monte Tourado Wind Farm (10.4 MW) ),

We also maintain strong relationships with the industries in which
we are present through membership in associations such as the
Asociacion Empresarial Edlica (AEE), the Asociacion Edlica de Galicia
(EGA), Asociacion para el progreso de la Direccion (APD), Nordés
Club Empresarial, the Asociacion Espafiola de Mujeres de la Energia
(AEMENER), the Unién Espafiola Fotovoltaica (UNEF), Asociacion
Gallega del Hidrégeno (AGH2), Clister Maritimo Canarias (CMC),
and the Plataforma tecnoldgica espafiola de biomasa (BIOPLAT).
In addition to our affiliation with these associations, we also actively

\ P i ST
N AT
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grecnalia

participate in international forums, debates and fairs. This allows us
to keep up with the latest technological developments and emerging
regulations .In the US market, we are members of prestigious
associations such as the American Clean Power Association (ACP),
the American Council on Renewable Energy (ACORE), the Solar Energy
Industries Association (SEIA), the Smart Electric Power Alliance (SEPA)
and the American Sustainable Business Network (ASBN), with whom
we work to drive the development of our renewable energy sector in
the US.

Smart Electric
= Powver Alliance
MEMBER

The Green Company

| AMERICAN




GREENALIA
FOUNDATION &

HERITAGE DISSEMINATING THE

CORPORATE
VOLUNTEERING

ENERGY TRANSITION

PRESERVATION

In addition to our work in green energy production, we work to establish
close relationships based on trust with all our stakeholders, going beyond
conventional boundaries to deepen our collaboration and value proposition.

In particular, we pay special attention to establishing transparent channels
with the local communities that host our renewable generation projects,
with the aim of effectively communicating our commitment to job creation
and socio-economic development.

We reinforce our commitment in the areas where we are present,
collaborating  with administrations, institutions and civil society
organizations in the development of local initiatives. We also participate in
the sponsorship and patronage actions through our Greenalia Foundation,
by which we promote values related to energy transition, sports and social
inclusion, among others.
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Monte Tourado Wind Farm (10.4 MW)

GREENALIA FOUNDATION

The Greenalia Foundation for Energy Transition is Greenalia's
key element when it comes to articulating initiatives with a high
social component, through which we also align our values with
our actions. Its main axes are to support projects that contribute
to the energy transition, the socio-economic development of local
communities and social inclusion, values to which the company
is strongly committed.

Along these lines, as our projects progress, the number of
collaborations that priorities the municipalities in which the assets
in our pipeline are located is also increasing. During the course of
the 2023 financial year, the Greenalia Foundation has collaborated
with the following social initiatives:

+ 3/KE

ALLOCATED
T0 SOCIAL
INVESTMENT

Sponsorship “17 games,

17 causes” - Club Basquet
Coruiia S.A.D

Collaboration in the solidarity initiative
17 matches, 17 causes’, which aims to

make visible the work of 17 organisations

that develop their projects in the area of
A Corufa.

Greenalia Chair for Energy
Transition - (UDC)

Continuity of the Chair for Energy
Transition to promote synergies for the
development of research spaces, think
tanks and dissemination of information on
key issues such as energy transition and
the relevance of our sector to curb global
warming

Sponsorship Club Basquet
Coruiia S.A.D

We reissue our commitment to the
solidarity scholarships for minors of
Basquet Corufia for inclusion through the
practice of sports.

Sponsorship Lucas Pérez
RC Deportivo

Support for the return of the player from
A Corufia, Lucas Pérez, to RC Deportivo
de A Corufia for the second half of

the 2023 season, thus showing our
commitment to Galicia, to the region and
to our athletes.

Suma Project- CB Gran Canaria

We contribute to the social inclusion of
children with disabilities by promoting
sports. We have joined the Suma Project,
which facilitates the practice of sport
through training scholarships that serve
to cover all the expenses derived from
the practice of this sport for children with
some type of disability.

Escolas de Veran Xiria -
Summer Schools

Promotion of activities aimed at
protecting the environment,

nature and healthy lifestyle habits
through collaboration with urban camps
in summer periods, thus also helping to
reconcile family life.

Sponsorship of the Walk
against cancer Carballo - AECC
We collaborated by sponsoring the
charity walk organised by the Spanish
Cancer Association in the town of
Carballo.

Sponsorship Club Deportivo
Burela FS - Futsal

We promote equality in sports by
renewing our partnership with a club
recognized for its success on the
field and its contribution to improving
conditions for professional female
players.

Trezeluzes Solidarity Event -
Menifos Foundation

Participation in the solidarity event
organized by the Menifios Foundation,
in which 100% of the money raised
during the event has been allocated

to the foundation’s projects in favor of
children.
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Camp Xiria Collaboration

Surroundings of Monte Tourado Wind Farm
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HERITAGE
PRESERVATION

Greenalia counts with archeology specialists who ensure
that any impact associated with our activity on possible
archaeological and cultural heritage elements present in the
areas close to a potential project is avoided.

The main measure to protect and reduce possible impacts
on heritage is developed in the selection of the location of
our facilities and their respective components, carrying out
a thorough preliminary study in order to identify possible
cultural heritage assets present in the area.

IID ||
On-site review On-site review
and evaluation of and evaluation of

Since cultural and archaeological heritage elements are taken
into account during the conception, design and construction
of the assets, all possible effects are minimized beforehand.

At the same time, archaeological monitoring actions are
implemented during the entire period of execution of the
works on the assets and power lines, to ensure that they do
not affect archaeological elements in any way, as established
by law.

As a result of this archaeological monitoring work, in 2023
the following archaeological assets were documented and
included in the official Xunta de Galicia Catalogue:

GYO)

| e |

On-site review
and evaluation of

35 ARCHEOLOGICAL 6 ETHNOGRAPHIC 3 ARCHITECTURAL

ITEMS HERITAGE

(including sites, toponyms, references
and finds).

PROPERTIES

HERITAGE SITES

The hours of archaeological monitoring carried out by teams of archaeology experts at our wind farms, solar plants
and evacuation lines in 2023 are estimated at more than 700 hours (540 hours in 2022).

96



D I SS E M | N AT' N G TH E E N E R GY Act'ivitie's developed~ within the framework of collaboration with the
TRAN S | Tl O N University of A Coruiia - UDC:

S
- ‘a»
= Research project on best practices for landscape integration of
] | ) - ‘?—‘,: " CEO at the VIl Energy Forum
Informing our community of the main challenges and opportunities E= energy operations of [E Eeamarisia
of the decarbonization of the energy sector is a key element for the
sustainable development of our society.
Heref ) ‘ N £ i =7 Forum “Renewable Galicia: Professional energy profiles,
Therefore, our group is commltt.ed to ralsmg avlvgren'ess‘o 1 ? 290 present and future”
benefits of renewable technologies, actively participating in their
dissemination and promotion. We channel this commitment
through a series of collaborations Whereby we promote research, ];@[ TFG and TFM "Galicia Renovable” awards giving event
awareness and knowledge transfer on the impact of climate change
and energy transition, with a special focus on the development of CSO0 intervention at APPA Renovables
i i ici Congress 2023
OUFISeel e e Tt e e [—o[zll Hydrogen Webinar. “The future of green hydrogen from the J >
™M

In our commitment to green employment and the promotion of
new talent in these specialized areas, we have continued for the
second consecutive year with our project to finance activities within
the framework of the Greenalia Chair for Energy Transition. This
collaboration agreement with the University of A Corufia (UDC),
which has a duration of 4 years (2022-2025), arises to actively
promote a series of research, training and dissemination activities
on relevant topics for the present and future energy sector.

Galician perspective: challenges and opportunities”

On the other hand, to highlight the collaboration of our teams as key agents
for the advancement of the renewable sector by regularly participating in
forums, events and roundtables relevant to our industry. Their involvement
not only reflects our commitment, but also has a tangible impact by
sharing experiences, identifying regulatory challenges and proposing
innovative solutions. We therefore reaffirm Greenalia’s contribution as a
key player in the momentum, progress and evolution of our sector towards
a sustainable horizon.

CEO Greenalia Power Spain at

the Equality Forum organized

by the Confederation of Employers
of La Corufa

Intervention by the Director of Offshore
_W Wind Energy at the Offshore Wind Energy

Congress, organised by the Spanish Wind
Energy Association (AEE).

o 1t | - 2 = [
Curtis Biomass Plant —Ieixeiro (50 MW) ‘ | i | ———=m— i’ i b . | T
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In the vibrant symphony of life, one melody resonates with strength and
purpose: “Change the World”. This song more than a mere set of notes and
lyrics is a call to action, an invitation to transform our destiny and embrace
a sustainable future.

We are at a critical moment in history, where climate change threatens
to irreversibly alter the balance of our planet. The signs are clear, and the
urgency is undeniable: we must act with determination and courage to
preserve our common home. P~

“Change the World” inspires us to look beyond the shadows of conformity
and inertia, to rise up and lead with.courage. In every chord, in every verse,
we find the strength to face the challenges that lie ahead.

In this context, renewable energies stand as beacons of hope on a horizon
darkened by the climate crisis. Solar, wind, hydrogen and other forms of
clean energy not only offer a viable alternative to fossil fuels but represent
a commitment to a brighter and more sustainable future for generations
to come.

Greenalia once again proclaims our commitment to transform the melody
of despair into the anthem of hope. It is time to leave the old paradigms
behind and embrace a bold and progressive vision for tomorrow.

Ourol Wind Farm (22.5 MW)

We declare our commitment to: d

Promote the adoption of renewable energies: We advocate policies
that encourage the transition 1o an eneérgy system based on clean and
renewable sources. -Research and innovate: We support research
and development of new technologies that boost the efficiency and
accessibility of renewable energies.

Education and awareness: We are committed to educate and raise
awareness of the importance of renewable energies in the fight against
climate change.

Collective action: We unite in solidarity to address climate challenges,
recognizing that together we are stronger and capable of achieving

significant change. - 4
: 5 3

By joining our voices to the powerful n_%elody of “Change the World," we
commit to being agents of change in the fight for a sustainable and
prosperous future for all. It is time to wg&%new chapter in human‘history,
one in which the power of music merdes with the strength of renewable
energy to change the course of the world.

MANIFESTO GENERATED
WITH CHATGPT'S
ARTIFICIAL INTELLIGENCE
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ANNEX 1
GRI
CONTENT
INDEX

GRI Standard

GENERAL DISCLOSURES

Statement of use Greenalia S.A has reported the information with reference to the GRI Standards for the period January,

Applied GRI | tandards NA

GRI Disclosure

GRI 2: GENERAL DISCLOSURES 2021

2-1

2-2

2-4

2-5

2-6

2-7

2-1 Organizational Details

2-2 Entities included in the organization's sustainability reporting

2-3 Reporting period, frequency and contact point

2-4 Restatements of information

2-5 External assurance

2-6 Activities, value chain and other business relationships

2-7 Employees

1st 2023 to December 31st, 2023

Location (Page, Url and/or comments)

Greenalia S.A. Greenalia is headquartered in A Corufia (Spain) and operates in
Europe (Iberian Peninsula and Canary Islands) and the United States. Greenalia,
S.A., is a commercial company with the legal form of a public limited company

2023 Consolidated Financial Statements

The Annual Sustainability Report reflects Greenalia's environmental, social, gover-
nance and financial performance in fiscal year 2023, which runs from January 1,
2023 to December 31, 2023. This Report is published annually and, specifically in
relation to the Report reflected herein, it was published in May 2024. If you have
any questions about the report or its contents, please contact the email address
sostenibilidad@greenalia.es

The scope of the information included in this report on environmental and social im-
pacts refers to the scope considered in the Consolidated Annual Accounts of Greenalia
S.A., 2023. The values referring to previous years have been modified, eliminating the
companies Greenalia Forest S.L. and Greenalia Logistics S.L. from the scope. This has
been done to ensure that the comparisons are fair in accordance with the current 100%
renewable business model.

Approval of the Integrated Report by the Board of Directors.

As regards the reporting standard used, the information contained in this Report
has been prepared with reference to the Sustainability Reporting Standards of the
Global Reporting Initiative (GRI Standards), an international reporting framework,
as detailed in GRI 1: Fundamentals 2021, included in the "GRI Content Index™.
The information contained in this index has been independently verified by KPMG
Asesores, S.L.. Likewise, the preparation of this Report has voluntarily taken into
account the requirements of Law 11/2018 on non-financial information and diver-
sity, which have not been subject to verification.

Pag.9-15; Pag. 38-41;
Markets served: Energy sales are made to the system (OMIEE through a market
representative).

Pag. 70-71
We do not have non-guaranteed hourly staff, i.e. staff working for the organisation
without a fixed minimum number of guaranteed working hours.

Omission

Principles of World Compact

Principle 6

100



GRI Standard

2-8

2-9

2-10

2-1

2-12

2-13

2-14

2-15

2-16

2-17

2-18

2-19

2-20

GRI Disclosure

2-8 Workers who are not employees

2-9 Governance structure and composition
2-10 Nomination and selection of the highest governance body
2-11 Chair of the highest governance body

2-12 Role of the highest governance body in overseeing the management
of impacts

2-13 Delegation of responsibility for managing impacts
2-14 Role of the highest governance body in sustainability reporting

2-15 Conflicts of interest

2-16 Communication of critical concerns

2-17 Collective knowledge of the highest governance body

2-18 Evaluation of the performance of the highest governance body

2-19 Remuneration policies

2-20 Process to determine remuneration

Location (Page, Url and/or comments)

Pag. 92
We do not have non-guaranteed hourly staff, i.e. staff working for the organisation
without a fixed minimum number of guaranteed working hours.

Pag. 30-31; Pag. 35-37
Pag. 30-31; Pag. 35-37
Pag. 31

Pag. 22-23; Pag. 30-31

Pag. 30-31

Pag. 30-31
The Board of Directors is responsible for approving the Sustainability Report.

Pag. 35-37
Pag. 33; Pag. 37-39

Our Sustainability Committee meets at least once a month and involves the CEO
and CFO. This committee discusses sustainability-related content in terms of
regulations, collaborations, adhesions and new projects. In addition, during 2023,
we have focused on the area of sustainable development, allocating more than
800 hours of training in this area with the team that makes up our Governing
Body.

Pag. 77-79
Pag. 72

The Appointments and Remuneration Committee is the highest body within the
Board of Directors in charge of supervising and reporting on the organisation's
remuneration policy. The interests of shareholders and other stakeholders

are considered in the process of developing remuneration policies within the
organisational flows (HR Committees, Management Committee, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, Board of Directors, Shareholders' Meeting).

Greenalia's internal remuneration guidelines and procedures were established
on the basis of a project led by a Tier-1 consultancy firm and are monitored
annually on the basis of this study within the organisation's workflows. The HR
area in its Compensation and Benefits practice is responsible for the implemen-
tation and execution of salary policies and improvements to the compensation
and development system. The framework policy is the People Management
Policy and within it the sub-policies established by groups, operational units
(where applicable) and others.

Omission

Principles of World Compact

Principle 6
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GRI Standard GRI Disclosure Location (Page, Url and/or comments) Omission Principles of World Compact

The annual total compensation ratio is 5.64.This has been calculated as the
considering gross salary. The trainee category has not been taken into account.

2-22 2-22 Statement on sustainable development strategy Pag. 4-5;

2-23 2-23 Policy commitments E:g i; E:g gg E:g 22_37; Principles 7 and 10

2-24 2-24 Embedding policy commitments Pag. 33; Pag. 35

2-25 2-25 Processes to remediate negative impacts Pag. 22-23; Pag. 45; Pag. 53-54

2-26 2-26 Mechanisms for seeking advice and raising concerns Pag. 33; Pag. 35; Pag. 37; Pag. 39; Pag. 41 Principle 10

2-27 2-27 Compliance with laws and regulations Pag. 33; Pag. 35

2-28 2-28 Membership associations Pag. 92

2-29 2-29 Approach to stakeholder engagement Pag. 22-23; Pag. 38-41

2-30 2-30 Collective bargaining agreements All of our staff are covered by two collective bargaining agreements. Principle 3

MATERIAL TOPICS

3-1 Process to determine material topics

Pag. 22-23

3-2 List of material topics

Pag. 23

Pag. 93-94; Pag. 97

3-3 Management of material topics

Pag. 41

. e . AecrA Pag. 16-17;
201-1 201-1 Direct economic value generated and distributed Consolidated Annual Accounts Pages 121-207
201-2 201-2 Financial implications and other risks and opportunities due to Pag. 66 Plinciple

climate change

102



GRI Standard GRI Disclosure Location (Page, Url and/or comments) Omission Principles of World Compact

201-3 201-3 Defined benefit plan obligations and other retirement plans Pag. 72

Information on subsidies can be found in the Consolidated Financial Statements
published by Greenalia S.A. for the period from 1 January to 31 December 2023

202-1 202-1 Ratios of standard entry level wage by gender compared to local
minimum wage

201-4 201-4 Financial assistance received from government

Pag. 72 Principle 6

202-2 202-2 Proportion of senior management hired from the local community Pag. 30 Principle 6

DEVELOPMENT, SUSTAINABLE INVESTMENT AND LOCAL IMPACT

3-3 Management of material topics Pag. 18-19; Pag. 21 Pag. 93-97
203-1 203-1 Infrastructure investments and services supported Pag. 14-15; Pag. 88-90 Principle 1
203-2 203-2 Significant indirect economic impacts Pag. 91 Principle 1 >

SUPPLY CHAIN

3-3 3-3 Management of material topics Pag. 38; Pag. 40

204-1 204-1 Proportion of spending on local suppliers Pag. 90

308-1 308-1 New suppliers that were screened using environmental criteria Pag. 40 Principle 8

308-2 Negative environmental impacts in the supply chain and actions

308-2 taken

Pag. 45 Principle 8

4141 414-1 New suppliers that were screened using social criteria Pag. 40

414-2 414-2 Negative social impacts in the supply chain and actions taken Pag. 40
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GRI Standard GRI Disclosure Location (Page, Url and/or comments) Omission Principles of World Compact

LOCAL COMMUNITIES

GRI 3 - Material Topics (2021)
3-3 3-3 Management of material topics Pag. 38; Pag. 41

GRI 413 - Local Communities (2016)

. 413-1 Operations with local community engagement, impact e ) -
413-1 assessments, and development programs Pag. 53-54; Pag. 93-97 Principles 7 and 8
4132 413-2 Operations with significant actual and potential negative impacts In Greenalia, during 2023, through the available channels, we have had no Princinles 7 and 8
on local communities knowledge of situations of discrimination involving human rights violations. P

GOOD GOVERNANCE AND ETHICS. COMPLIANCE AND TRANSPARENCY

GRI 3 - Material Topics (2021)
3-3 3-3 Management of material topics Pag. 33; Pag. 35-37

GRI 205 - Anti-corruption (2016)

205-1 205-1 Operations assessed for risks related to corruption Pag. 36-37 Principles 1 and 10
205-2 205-2 Communication and training about anti-corruption policies and Pag. 33; Pag. 35; Pag. 39 Principles 1and 10
procedures
205-3 205-3 Confirmed incidents of corruption and actions taken Pag. 36-37 Principles 1 and 10
GRI 206 - Anti-competitive Behavior (2016)
. 206-1 Legal actions for anti-competitive behavior, anti-trust, and . .
206-1 monopoly practices Pag. 36-37 Principles 1 and 10

GRI 415 - Public Policy (2016)

- I The Greenalia Anti-Corruption Standard and the Greenalia Code of Conduct set out -
415-1 415-1 Political contributions the measures to be followed regarding contributions to political parties. P

CIRCULAR ECONOMY
GRI 3 - Material Topics (2021)

3-3 3-3 Management of material topics Pag. 55-58
GRI 301 - Materials (2016)

301-1 301-1 Materials used by weight or volume Pag. 56 Principle 7
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GRI Standard GRI Disclosure Location (Page, Url and/or comments) Omission Principles of World Compact

We do not use inputs for the production of our products due to the nature of our

301-2 301-2 Recycled input materials used Not applicable

business.
301-3 301-3 Reclaimed products and their packaging materials We do not use packaging materials due to the nature of our business. Not applicable
ORI -Waeradefluens @018
303-1 303-1 Interactions with water as a shared resource Pag. 58
303-2 303-2 Management of water discharge-related impacts Pag. 58
303-3 303-3 Water withdrawal Pag. 58 Principles 7 and 8
303-4 303-4 Water discharge Pag. 58 Principle 8
303-5 303-5 Water consumption Pag. 58 Principle 8
CORE-We@)
306-1 306-1 Waste generation and significant waste-related impacts Pag. 57
306-2 306-2 Management of significant waste-related impacts Pag. 57
306-3 306-3 Waste generated Pag. 57 >
306-4 306-4 Waste diverted from disposal Pag. 57
306-5 306-5 Waste directed to disposal Pag. 57

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENERGY TRANSITION

3-3 Management of material topics Pag. 45; Pag. 61-66
302-1 302-1 Energy consumption within the organization Pag. 59 Principles 7 8 and 9
302-2 302-2 Energy consumption outside of the organization Pag. 59 Principle 8
302-3 302-3 Energy intensity Pag. 59 Principle 8
302-4 302-4 Reduction of energy consumption Pag. 59 Principles 8 and 9
302-5 302-5 Reductions in energy requirements of products and services Pag. 59 Principles 8 and 9
305-1 305-1 Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions Pag. 62 Principles 7 and 8
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GRI Standard GRI Disclosure Location (Page, Url and/or comments) Omission Principles of World Compact

305-2 305-2 Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions Pag. 62 Principles 7 8 and 9
305-3 305-3 Other indirect (Scope 3) GHG emissions Pag. 62-63 Principles 7 and 8
305-4 305-4 GHG emissions intensity Pag. 62 Principle 8

305-5 305-5 Reduction of GHG emissions Pag. 62-64 Principles 8 and 9
305-6 305-6 Emissions of 0zone-depleting substances (ODS) 'IFﬁrgdusgghout 2023, there are no emissions of ozone depleting agents. Principles 7 and 8
305-7 221?;;;\lrigogen oxides (NOx), sulfur oxides (SOx), and other significant air Pag. 60 Principles 7 and 8
GRI 3 — Material Topics (2021)

3-3 3-3 Management of material topics Pag. 50-54

GRI 304 - Biodiversity (2016)

304-1 Operational sites owned, leased, managed in, or adjacent to,

304-1 protected areas and areas of high biodiversity value outside protected Pag. 52-54 Principles 7 and 8
areas
. 304-2 Significant impacts of activities, products and services on . o
304-2 biodiversity Pag. 52; Pag. 96 Principles 7 and 8
304-3 304-3 Habitats protected or restored Pag. 53-54 Principles 7 and 8
304-4 304-4 IUCN Red List species and national conservation list species with Pag. 52 St e e

habitats in areas affected by operations

GRI 3 — Material Topics (2021)

3-3 3-3 Management of material topics Pag. 70 -78

GRI 401 - Employment (2016)

401-1 401-1 New employee hires and employee turnover Pag. 75-76 Principle 6
401-2 401-2 Benefits provided to full-time employees that are not provided to Pag. 72 Principle 6

temporary or part-time employees
401-3 401-3 Parental leave Pag. 83 Principle 6
GRI 402 - Labor/Management Relations (2016)

402-1 402-1 Minimum notice periods regarding operational changes Pag. 83 Principle 3
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GRI Standard GRI Disclosure Location (Page, Url and/or comments) Omission Principles of World Compact

GRI 404 - Training and Education (2016)

404-1 404-1 Average hours of training per year per employee Pag. 77 Principle 6
404-2 404-2 Programs for upgrading employee skills and transition assistance Pag. 77-79 G
programs
} .. Pag. 8; Pag. 79
404-3 32\1% P{?\fﬁ{‘::\%:xz employees receiving regular performance and career 100% of Greenalia's employees receive regular performance and professional Principle 6
P development appraisals.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

GRI 3 - Material Topics (2021)

3-3 3-3 Management of material topics Pag. 84-85
GRI 403 - Occupational Health and Safety (2018)

Pag. 84
403-1 403-1 Occupational health and safety management system In Greenalia we are governed by strict compliance with Spanish legislation in this Principle 1
area.

Pag. 84-85

The External Prevention Service carries out the assessment of the risks
associated with each job position in accordance with the requirements of current
legislation. Based on the risk assessment, the nature of the activities carried out

403-2 403-2 Hazard identification, risk assessment, and incident investigation by Greenalia do not involve high risk processes. Annually, and in collaboration Principle 1
with the External Prevention Service, we carry out the planning of the preventive
activity, establishing the measures and guidelines for action in all those issues
that are considered relevant.

403-3 403-3 Occupational health services Pag. 82-83 Principle 1
. 403-4 Worker participation, consultation, and communication on ’ PR - P -
403-4 occupational health and safety At Greenalia we guarantee staff participation in relation to current legislation. Principle 1
403-5 403-5 Worker training on occupational health and safety Pag. 77-78; Pag. 85 Principle 1
403-6 403-6 Promotion of worker health To ensure the health of staff, medical examinations are carried out on a regular Principle 1

basis.
] — : The External Prevention Service carries out the risk assessment associated with each
403-7 ﬁi&ﬁﬁgﬂoﬂ r?l?:dngltllgjgiﬂre] sosf ;Tacﬁgﬁgﬁinil health and safety work post in accordance with current legislation and revises them in the event of Principle 1
P Y Y P changes in circumstances. The figures for 2023 reflect a low accident rate.
In Greenalia, and in compliance with current legislation, 100% of our staff
. . is covered by the company's health and safety service carried out by the
403-8 :Os?;eflinWorkers covered by an occupational health and safety management External Prevention Service.In the case of personnel corresponding to external Principle 1
Y companies, the coordination of business activities is carried out following the
guidelines established by current Spanish legislation.
403-9 403-9 Work-related injuries Pag. 85 Principle 1
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GRI Standard GRI Disclosure

403-10 403-10 Work-related ill health

EQUALITY, DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION

GRI 3 — Material Topics (2021)

3-3 3-3 Management of material topics

GRI 405 - Diversity and Equal Opportunity (2016)

405-1 405-1 Diversity of governance bodies and employees

405-2 405-2 Ratio of basic salary and remuneration of women to men

GRI 406 - Non-discrimination (2016)

406-1 406-1 Incidents of discrimination and corrective actions taken
HUMAN RIGHTS

GRI 3 — Material Topics (2021)

3-3 3-3 Management of material topics

GRI 407 - Freedom of Association and Collective Bargaining (2016)

407-1 Operations and suppliers in which the right to freedom of

407-1 association and collective bargaining may be at risk

GRI 408 - Child labor (2016)

408-1 Operations and suppliers at significant risk for incidents of child

408-1 labor

GRI 409 - Forced or Compulsory Labor (2016)

409-1 Operations and suppliers at significant risk for incidents of forced

409-1 or compulsory labor

GRI 410 - Security Practices (2016)

410-1 410-1 Security personnel trained in human rights policies or procedures

Location (Page, Url and/or comments)

In 2023, there were no work-related sick leaves in connection with occupational

diseases.In addition, we have not identified any workers in Greenalia carrying out
occupational activities with a risk of serious illness associated with the work performed.

Pag. 69-73; Pag. 80-81

Pag. 30; Pag. 80-81
Pag. 72; Pag. 81

In Greenalia, during 2023, through the available channels, we have had no
knowledge of situations of discrimination involving human rights violations.

Pag. 31-41

Pag. 33-37

Within the Code of Conduct and Good Corporate Practices we include the right to
freedom of association and collective bargaining, which we use as a framework to
guide our relations with our Stakeholders.

Pag. 33-37
At Greenalia we comply with current legislation, which has a regulatory framework
that protects and ensures respect for Human Rights.

Pag. 33-37
Since Greenalia is governed at all times by the legislation in force, there are no
situations of forced or compulsory labour.

Greenalia does not have its own security personnel. In case of need, this service
is carried out by contracting external companies under the highest standards of
quality and security.

Omission

Principles of World Compact

Principle 1

Principles 1 and 6

Principles 1 and 6

Principles 1 and 6

Principle 1

Principle 3

Principle 5

Principle 4

Principle 1
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GRI Standard GRI Disclosure Location (Page, Url and/or comments) Omission Principles of World Compact

GRI 411 - Rights of Indigenous Peoples (2016)

This indicator does not apply to our company and activity as this group is not

411-1 411-1 Incidents of violations involving rights of indigenous peoples present in our geographical area of activity.

Principle 1
CIBERSECURITY

GRI 3 — Material Topics (2021)

3-3 3-3 Management of material topics Pag. 16 Principles 7 and 8
ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

GRI 3 - Material Topics (2021)

3-3 3-3 Management of material topics Pag. 48-49 Principles 7 and 8
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ANNEX 2
Requirements of Law 11/2018

A brief description of the group's business model, including its business environment, its organization
and structure, the markets in which it operates, its objectives and strategies, and the main factors and
tendencies that may affect its future evolution.

2-1 Organizational details

2-6 Activities, value chain and other business relationships

2-22 Statement on sustainable development strategy

2-23 Policy commitments

Greenalia S.A. Greenalia is
headquartered in A Coruia (Spain)
and operates in Europe (lberian
Peninsula and Canary Islands) and
the United States. Greenalia, S.A.,
is a commercial company with

the legal form of a public limited
company

Pag. 9-19;
Description of the policies applied by the group with respect to these questions, including the due Egg' fgég
diligence procedures applied to the identification, evaluation, prevention and mitigation of significant 3-3 Management of material topics Pag.72—78'
risks and impacts and for verification and control, including the measures adopted. Pag' 80; Pag. 84-85
Pag. 89-97
Pag. 9-19;
R o i : o Pag. 31-42;
esults of these policies, including relevant non-financial key performance indicators to enable Paq.48-66:
monitoring and evaluation of progress and to facilitate comparability across societies and sectors, in 3-3 Management of material topics Pag'72-78'
accordance with national, European or international reference frameworks used for each subject area. P 9. .
ag. 80; Pag. 84-85
Pag. 89-97

Main risks related to these questions, associated with the group's activities, including, when relevant
and proportional, its commercial relations, products and services that may produce negative effects

in these areas, and how the group manages said risks, explaining the procedures used to detect and
evaluate them according to the national, European or international reference settings used for each
topic. Information should be included regarding impacts that have been detected, offering a breakdown
of them, particularly regarding the main short-, medium- and long-term risks

2-12 Role of the highest governance body in overseeing the management of impacts

2-23 Policy commitments

201-2 Financial implications and other risks and opportunities due to climate change

Pag. 22-23; Pag. 30-31

Pag. 27; Pag. 29; Pag. 35-37,
Pag. 47; Pag. 68; Pag. 86
Pag. 66

Key indicators of relevant non-financial results with respect to the specific business activity that
comply with criteria of comparability, materiality, relevance and reliability. In order to facilitate

the comparison of the information, both over time and between entities, standard non-financial

key indicators that can be applied generally and that comply with the directives of the European
Commission and with the standards of the Global Reporting Initiative shall be used especially, and
the report should mention the national, European or international framework used in each case. The
key non-financial results indicators should be applied to each of the sections of the nonfinancial
information statement. These indicators should be useful, taking into account the specific
circumstances, and should be coherent with the parameters used in the internal management and
risk';evaluation procedures. In any case, the information presented should be precise, comparable and
verifiable

3-1 Process to determine material topics

3-2 List of material topics

2-3 Reporting period, frequency and contact point

2-4 Restatements of information

2-5 External assurance

Pag. 3
Pag. 23
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GENERAL DETAILED INFORMATION

Detailed information on the current and predictable effects of the company's activities on the 2-12 Role of the highest governance body in overseeing the management of impacts Pag. 22-23; Pag. 30-31
environment and, when applicable, on health and safety, the environmental evaluation or certification 2-93 Policy commitments Pag. 27; Pag. 29; Pag. 35-37;
procedures, the resources dedicated to the prevention of environmental risks, the application of the ¥ Pag. 47; Pag. 68; Pag. 86
principle of precaution, the amount of provisions and guarantees for environmental risks 2-27 Compliance with laws and regulations Pag. 33; Pag. 35
CONTAMINATION

302-4 Reduction of energy consumption

302-5 Reductions in energy requirements of products and services

Measures to prevent, reduce or compensate emissions that cause serious environmental harm, 3-3 Management of material topics
considering all forms of specific atmospheric contamination derived from an activity, including noise - o Pag. 59-64
and light pollution 305-5 Reduction of GHG emissions

305-6 Emissions of ozone-depleting substances (ODS)

305-7 Nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulfur oxides (SOx), and other significant air emissions

CIRCULAR ECONOMY AND WASTE MANAGEMENT

301-1 Materials used by weight or volume

301-2 Recycled input materials used

301-3 Reclaimed products and their packaging materials

Pag. 56
303-3 Recycled and reused water We do not use inputs for the
. . . A i production of our products due to
Measures for preventlfl)n, recycling, reuse, other forms of recuperation and elimination of waste; actions 306-1 Waste generation and significant waste-related impacts the nature of our business.
to combat food waste'
306-2 Management of significant waste-related impacts We do not use packaging materials

due to the nature of our business.

306-3 Waste generated

306-4 Waste diverted from disposal

306-5 Waste directed to disposal

SUSTAINABLE USE OF RESOURCES




303-1 Interactions with water as a shared resource

303-2 Management of water discharge-related impacts

Water consumption and water supply in accordance with local limitations 303-3 Water withdraw Pag. 58
303-4 Water discharge
303-5 Water consumption
103-2 Management approach Pag. 56-57

Consumption of raw materials and measures adopted to improve the efficiency of their use

301-1 Materials used by weight or volume

301-2 Recycled input materials used

301-3 Reclaimed products and their packaging materials

We do not use inputs for the
production of our products due to
the nature of our business.

We do not use packaging materials
due to the nature of our business.

3-3 Management of material topics

302-1 Energy consumption within the organization

302-2 Energy consumption outside of the organization

Direct and indirect energy consumption Pag. 59
302-3 Energy intensity
302-4 Reduction of energy consumption
302-5 Reductions in energy requirements of products and services
302-4 Reduction of energy consumption
Measures taken to improve energy efficiency Pag. 59
302-5 Reductions in energy requirements of products and services
Usage of renewable energies 302-1 Energy consumption within the organization Pag. 59
CLIMATE CHANGE
305-1 Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions
Important elements in emissions of greenhouse gases generated as a result of the company's 305-2 Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions Pag. 62
activities, including the use of the goods and services it produces 305-3 Other indirect (Scope 3) GHG emissions 9.
305-4 GHG emissions intensity
Measures adopted to adapt to the consequences of climate change 201-2 Financial implications and other risks and opportunities due to climate change Pag. 62
Medium- and long-term reduction targets established voluntarily to reduce the emissions of . L . . .
greenhouse gases and the measures implanted to this end 302-5 Reductions in energy requirements of products and services Pag. 62-63 112




PROTECTION OF BIODIVERSITY

Measures to conserve or restore biodiversity 304-3 Habitats protected or restored Pag. 53-54
304-1 Operational sites owned, leased, managed in, or adjacent to, protected areas and areas of high biodiversity value
outside protected areas

Impacts caused by activities or operations in protected areas Pag. 52-54

EMPLOYMENT

304-2 Significant impacts of activities, products and services on biodiversity

304-4 IUCN Red List species and national conservation list species with habitats in areas affected by operations

Total number and distribution of employees, taking into account criteria Pags 84 and 92 that represent
diversity (gender, age, nationality, etc.)

2-7 Employees

Pag. 70-71

405-1 Diversity of governance bodies and employees

Pag. 30; Pag. 80-81

2-7 Employees

Total number and distribution of contract types, annual average of indefinite, temporary and part-time . - . . . Pag. 70-71;

contracts by gender, age and professional classification 202-2 Proportion of senior management hired from the local community Pag. 30
401-2 Benefits provided to full-time employees that are not provided to temporary or part-time employees

Number of dismissals by gender, age and professional classification 401-1 New employee hires and employee turnover Pag. 75-76

Average remunerations and their evolution, broken down by gender, age and professional classification 201-1 Direct economic value generated and distributed Pag. 72

or similar

Salary gap, remuneration of equal work positions or company average

405-2 Ratio of basic salary and remuneration of women to men

Pag. 72; Pag. 81

The average remuneration of directors, including variable retribution, expense allowances indemnities

N/A

Payments into long-term savings plans and any other benefits, broken down by gender

201-3 Defined benefit plan obligations and other retirement plans

Information on subsidies can be
found in the Consolidated Financial
Statements published by Greenalia
S.A. for the period from 1 January
to 31 December 2023.

Implantation of labour disconnection policies

3-3 Management of material topics

Pag. 82

Employees with disabilities

405-1 Diversity of governance bodies and employees

At the end of 2023, our workforce

had no employees with disabilities.

ORGANIZATION OF TASKS
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Hours of absenteeism

403-2 Hazard identification, risk assessment, and incident investigation

Pag 84-85

The External Prevention Service
carries out the evaluation of the
risks associated with each job
according to the requirements of
current legislation. Based on the
risk assessment, the nature of the
activities carried out by Greenalia
do not involve high risk processes.
Annually, and in collaboration with
the External Prevention Service,
we carry out the planning of
preventive activity, establishing
the measures and guidelines for
action in all those issues that are
considered relevant.

Measures intended to facilitate enjoyment of conciliation and to promote responsible use of these

measures by both parents 401-3 Parental leave Pag. 83
HEALTH AND SAFETY
Occupational health and safety conditions 403-3 Occupational health services Pag. 82-83

Work-related accidents, particularly their frequency and severity, and occupational illnesses, broken
down by gender

403-2 Hazard identification, risk assessment, and incident investigation

Pag 84-85 The External Prevention
Service carries out the evaluation
of the risks associated with each
job according to the requirements
of current legislation. Based on the
risk assessment, the nature of the
activities carried out by Greenalia
do not involve high risk processes.
Annually, and in collaboration with
the External Prevention Service,
we carry out the planning of
preventive activity, establishing
the measures and guidelines for
action in all those issues that are
considered relevant.

SOCIAL RELATIONSHIPS

Social relationships

402-1 Minimum notice periods regarding operational changes

403-1 Occupational health and safety management system

Pag 82

Pag 84

In Greenalia we are governed by
strict compliance with Spanish
legislation in this area.
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Percentage of employees covered by collective agreement per country

403-1 Occupational health and safety management system

Pag 84

In Greenalia we are governed by
strict compliance with Spanish
legislation in this area.

The balance of collective agreements, particularly in the field of occupational health and safety

402-1 Minimum notice periods regarding operational changes

Pag. 83

TRAINING

Training policies implanted

403-5 Worker training on occupational health and safety

404-2 Programs for upgrading employee skills and transition assistance programs

Pag. 77-78; Pag. 85

Total hours training per professional category 404-1 Average hours of training per year per employee Pag. 77
UNIVERSAL ACCESSIBILITY FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES

Universal accessibility for people with disabilities 3-3 Management of material topics Pag. 71
EQUALITY

Measures adopted to promote equal treatment and opportunities for women and men 401-3 Parental leave Pag. 83

Equality plans (Chapter IIl of Statutory Law 3/2007 of March 22, on the effective equality of women
and men), measures adopted to promote employment, protocols against sexual or gender-based
harassment, integration and universal accessibility for disabled persons

405-1 Diversity of governance bodies and employees

Pag. 30; Pag. 80-81

The policy against all types of discrimination and, when appropriate, of diversity management

406-1 Incidents of discrimination and corrective actions taken

In Greenalia, during 2023, through
the available channels, we have
had no knowledge of situations of
discrimination involving human
rights violations.

Application of due diligence procedures to human rights, prevention of risks of violations of human
rights and, when appropriate, measures to mitigate, manage and compensate any abuses committed

2-23 Commitments and Policies

2-26 Mechanisms for seeking advice and raising concerns

410-1 Security personnel trained on human rights policies or procedures

411 - 1 Cases of violations of the rights of indigenous peoples.

Pag. 27; Pag. 29; Pag. 35-37,;
Pag. 47; Pag. 68; Pag. 86

Greenalia does not have its own
security personnell. In case of need, this
service is carried out by contracting
external companies under the highest
standards of quality and security.

This indicator does not apply to our
company and activity as this group
is not present in our geographical
area of activity.
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Claims for cases of violation of human rights 2-27 Compliance with laws and regulations

Pag. 33; Pag. 35

406-1 Incidents of discrimination and corrective actions taken

407-1 Operations and suppliers in which the right to freedom of association and collective bargaining may be at risk
Promotion of and compliance with the provisions of the fundamental conventions of the International
Labour Organization related to respect for freedom of association and the right to collective bargaining;
the elimination of discrimination in employment and work; the elimination of forced or compulsory

labour; the abolition of child labour.

408-1 Operations and suppliers at significant risk for incidents of child labor

409-1 Operations and suppliers at significant risk for incidents of forced or compulsory labor

Pag. 31-37

In Greenalia, during 2023, through
the available channels, we have
had no knowledge of situations of
discrimination that have involved
Human Rights violations.

Within the Code of Conduct and
Good Corporate Practices, we
include the right to freedom

of association and collective
bargaining, which we use as a
framework to guide our relations
with our Stakeholders.

At Greenalia we comply with
current legislation, which has a
regulatory framework that protects
and ensures respect for Human
Rights.

As Greenalia is governed at all
times by the legislation in force,
there are no situations of forced or
compulsory labour.

2-23 Policy commitments

2-26 Mechanisms for seeking advice and raising concerns

205-1 Operations assessed for risks related to corruption

Measures adopted to prevent corruption and bribery o o ) ) o
205-2 Communication and training about anti-corruption policies and procedures

205-3 Confirmed incidents of corruption and actions taken

415-1 Political contributions

Pag. 27; Pag. 29; Pag. 35-37;
Pag. 47; Pag. 68; Pag. 86

Pag. 33; Pag. 39; Pag. 41

2-23 Policy commitments

Measures to fight against money laundering 2-26 Mechanisms for seeking advice and raising concerns

205-2 Communication and training about anti-corruption policies and procedures

Pag. 27; Pag. 29; Pag. 33;
Pag. 35-37; Pag. 39; Pag. 41
Pag. 47; Pag. 68; Pag. 86

201-1 Direct economic value generated and distributed

Contributions to foundations and non-profit organizations
413-1 Operations with local community engagement, impact assessments, and development programs

Pag. 17-18,;
Consolidated Financial Statements
Pag. 121-207; Pag. 94
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COMPANY COMMITMENTS TO SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

The impact of the company's activity on local employment and development

203-1 Infrastructure investments and services supported

203-2 Significant indirect economic impacts

204-1 Proportion of spending on local suppliers

413-1 Operations with local community engagement, impact assessments, and development programs

Pag. 14-15; Pag. 88-91
Pag. 53-54; Pag. 93-97

The impact of the company's activity on local towns and in the region

204-1 Proportion of spending on local suppliers

411-1 Incidents of violations involving rights of indigenous peoples

413-1 Operations with local community engagement, impact assessments, and development programs

413-2 Operations with significant actual and potential negative impacts on local communities

Pag 90

This indicator does not apply

to our company and activity as
this group is not present in our
geographical scope of action.
Pag. 53-54; Pag. 93-97

In Greenalia, during 2023, through
the available channels, we have
had no knowledge of situations of
discrimination that have involved
Human Rights violations.

Relations maintained with actors in the local communities and methods of dialogue with them

2-29 Approach to stakeholder engagement

Pag. 22-23; Pag. 38-41

Sponsorship or patronage activities

413-1 Operations with local community engagement, impact assessments, and development programs

Pag. 54-55; Pag. 93-97

SUB-CONTRACTING AND SUPPLIERS

Inclusion in purchasing policy of social, gender equality and environmental questions

308-1 New suppliers that were screened using environmental criteria

414-1 New suppliers that were screened using social criteria

Pag. 40

Consideration in relationships with suppliers and sub-contractors of their social and environmental
responsibility

308-1 New suppliers that were screened using environmental criteria

414-1 New suppliers that were screened using social criteria

308-2 Negative environmental impacts in the supply chain and actions taken

2-6 Activities, value chain and other business relationships

Pag 9-14; Pags 37-41;.

Markets served: Energy sales

are made to the system (OMIEE
through a market representative).

Supervision and auditing systems and their results

414-2 Negative social impacts in the supply chain and actions taken

Pag. 40

CONSUMERS
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Measures for the health and safety of consumers

416-1 Assessment of health and safety impacts of product or service categories

416-2 Cases of non-compliance concerning health and safety impacts of product and service categories

417-1 Requirements for information and labelling of products and services

417-2 Cases of non-compliance related to information and labelling of products and services

417-3 Cases of non-compliance related to marketing communications

Not applicable due to the nature of
the products and services we offer
from Greenalia.

Greenalia.

In Greenalia, during the year 2023,
there have been no incidents

of non-compliance with legal
regulations or voluntary health and
safety codes.

Claims system, complaints received and their resolution

2-29 Approach to stakeholder engagement

418-1 Substantiated complaints regarding breaches of customer privacy and loss of customer data

Pag. 22-23; Pag. 38-41

FISCAL INFORMATION

Profits obtained by country

2-2 Entities included in the organization's sustainability reporting

201-1 Direct economic value generated and distributed

Pag. 17-18;
Consolidated Annual Accounts
Pags 121-207

Tax paid on profits

201-1 Direct economic value generated and distributed

Consolidated Annual Accounts

Public subventions received

201-4 Financial assistance received from government

Information on subsidies can be
found in the Consolidated Financial
Statements published by Greenalia
S.A. for the period from 1 January
to 31 December 2023
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[ KPMG Asesores, 5.L.
M‘ J P." de la Castellana, 250 C

28046 Madrid

Independent Limited Assurance Report on the Annual Report
of Greenalia, S.A. and subsidiaries for 2023

{Translation from the ovginal in Spanish, i the even! of discrepancy. the Spanush-fanguage version pravads, )
To tha managameant of Greenalia, 5.4

In accordance with our engagement letter datad 1 March 2024, we have performed an independent
limited assurance review of the accompanying Annual Report of Greenalia, 5.A. (herainafter
Graenalia or the Parant) and subsidiaries (hereinatter the Groupl for the year ended 31 Decembier
2023,

Greenalia's 2023 Annual Report includes additional information to that required by the Sustamability
Reporting Standards of the Global Reporting Initiative (hereinafier GRI standards), which has not
been the subject of our limited assurance work, In this respect, our work was limited exclusively to
reviewing the information relating 10 2023 contained in the “GRI Content Incex” 1able of the
accampanying Annual Report

Responsibilities of Greenalia, S.A.

Management of the Parent is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the 2023 Annual
Report in accordance with the GRI standards.

This responsibility also encompasses the design, implemeantation and maintenance of intarmal
control relevant to ensuring that the 2023 Annual Report is free from mataral misstatement,
whether dus to fraud or seree,

The Directors of the Parant are also responsible for defining, implemeanting, adapting and maintaining
the managemant =yztems fram which the infermation required to prepare tha 2023 Annual Report
was obiained,

QOur Responsibilities

QOur responsibility conaists of axamining the 2023 Annusl Report prepared by Greenalia and reporting
therean in the form of an incepandent limited azsurence concluzion bazed on the evidence cbtained
and relating solaly to the information for 2023, We conducted our engagement in accordance with
the Revised Internaticnal Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000, "Assurance Engageaments
athar than Audits or Heviews of Historical Financial Information™ (ISAE 3000 (Revized)), izsued by
the International Auditing and Azzurance Standardz Board (IAASE). Thiz standard requires that we
plan and executs our procedures to abtain limitad assurance on whether the 2023 Annual Report
has been preparad, in all material respects, in accordance with the GRI standards.
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(Transkation frovm the ongnal in Spanisf in the event of discrepancy, the Spansh-linguage wasion pravaeds, )

Our firm applhas International Standard on Cuality Management 1 (ISOM 1), which requires us 1o
daesign, implemaent and maintain a system of quality management, including policies and procedures
regarding compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and
regulatony requirements,

We have comphied with the indapendence and other ethical requiremeants of the International Code of
Ethies for Professional Accountants (ncluding international standards on independence] issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants, which is founded on fundamental principles of
integrity, ohjectivity, professional competence and due care, confidentiality and professional behaviour.

Procedures Performed

The procedures selected depend on our knowledge of the 2023 Annual Report and other
circumstances of the engagement, and our consideration of areas where it is probable that material
misstaternents will arise.

Our work consisted of making inquiries of management and of the different units and areas of the
Group that participated in the preparation of the 2023 Annual Repor, reviewing the processes for
compiling and validating the information presented in the 2023 Annual Report and applying certain
analytical procedures and sample review tests, which are described below;

= Ewaluation of the Group's processes for determining the material issues, and the participation of
stakeholders therain.

= Interviews with management and relevant staff at Group level and at selected business unit level
concarning sustainability strategy and policies and corporate responsibility for material issues, and
tha implementation of these across the Group’s business.

= Evaluation of the consistancy of the description of the application of the Group’s strategy and
palicies on sustainability, governance, ethics and integrity.

- Risk analysis, including searching the madia 1o identify material issues during the year covered by
the 2023 Annual Report,

= Review of the consistency of infermation comparing the GRI standards with internal systems and
documentation.

= Analysis of the processes of compiling and internal control over quantitative data reflected in the
2023 Annual Report, regarding the reliability of the information, by using analyticsl procedures and
review testing based on sampling.

= Review of the application of the requirements of the GRI standards,

— Peiusal of the information presented in the 2023 Annual Report to determine whather it is in line
with our ovarall knowledge of, and experience with, the sustainability parformance of Greeanalia.

= Comparing the financial information reflected in the 2023 Annual Report with that included in
Greenalia’s consolidated annual accounts, audited by independant third parties.

= Procurement of a representation letter from management.

3
(Transiation from the orginal n Spamsh. In the event of discrapancy, the Spansh-Bnguags version prevails. |

The procedures performad in a imited assurance engagement vary in nature and timing from, and
are less in extent than for, a reasenable assuranca engagement, Consequantly, the level of
assurance obtained in a limited assurance engagement is substantially lowwer than the assurance that
would have been obtained had a reasonable assurance engagement been performad.

The engagement team was comprised of professionals specialised in reviews of non-financial
information and, specifically, in information on economic, social and environmantal perfermance.

Conclusion

Qur conclusion has been formed on the basis of, and i subjact to, the matters outfined in this
report.

Wea believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provida a basis for
our conclusion.

Based on the procedures performed and the evidence obrained, nothing has come to our attention
that causes us to belisve that the information contained in the “GRI Content Index” table of the
accompanying 2023 Annual Report of Greenalia, 5.A. and subsidiaries, which forms part of the
Integrated Report for the year ended 31 Dacember 2023, has not been prepared, in all material
respects, in accordance with the Sustainability Reporting Standards of the Global Reporting Initiative
|GRI standards),

Restrictions on the Use and Distribution of Our Report

In accordance with the tarms of our engagement, this independent limited assurance report has
been prepared exclusively for Greenala in connaction with its 2023 Annual Report and for no other

purpose.

KPMG Asesores, S.L.

{Signed on original in Spanishi

Silvana Alfaya Bas
24 May 2024
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Ourol Wind farm (22.5 MW)

. MAIN
—INANCIAL
N

We leave behind the best financial results achieved to date.
Once again, since we began to publicly disclose the group’s
results, we present a new period where the expected f igures
have been exceeded. The most significant increase was in
consolidated equity, which now stands at €70.8 million.

Revenue growth of 1%, EBITDA growth of 4.4% and net profit
growth of 127% are results that speak for themselves. These
results highlight the resilience of our business model, where
despite the global economic complexities (rising interest
rates, inflation, post-pandemic consequences,...), we have
managed to consolidate business growth during this period.

We continue to make progress on the roadmap, improving the
operating and activity levels of our assets. This first half of
the year has been a record in the economic figures presented,
but above the revenues and profits, it is worth highlighting
the progress in the processing of projects, especially in
Statements), Authorizations) Spain, where, during this
year, 22 EIA 's 16 PAA's and 14 (Environmental (Prior
Impact Administrative AAC’'s (Administrative Construction
Authorizations) have been obtained.

In addition, a divestment operation of non-strategic assets
has been carried out this year, with the sale of 132MW of wind
power and 50MW of photovoltaic power, called Magosto.

This has led to a creation of visible value in accounting
terms in this period, but which consolidates the portfolio
development strategy carried out in recent years. The figures
of this operation highlight the value of Greenalia’s portfolio,
with projects of great resource and capacity. In the same way,
this transaction also demonstrates the underlying value of
Greenalia's pipeline, which cannot be appreciated in the annual
accounts by applying the accounting principle of acquisition
cost, instead of market value, which is undoubtedly much
higher.

At a corporate level, it is also worth noting the Group’s exit
from the forestry and logistics activities (both considered
as “assets held for sale” at the end of the 2022 period).
This transformed Greenalia into a 100% energy group, with
all revenues and profits in 2023 coming exclusively from
renewable activities.
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A KEYMILESTONE IS THE DIVESTMENT OF
NONSTRATEGIC ASSETS, WITH THE SALE OF 132
MW OF WIND POWERAND 50 MW OF PHOTOVOLTAIC
CAPACITY, WHICH HAS LED TO THE CREATION
OF VISIBLE VALUE IN THIS REGION, BUT WHICH
ALSO CONSOLIDATES A STRATEGY IMPLEMENTED
IN RECENT YEARS. THIS TRANSACTION ALSO
DEMONSTRATES THE UNDERLYING VALUE OF
GREENALIA'S PIPELINE, WHICH IS NOT REFLECTED
IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BECAUSE OF
THE APPLICATION OF THE HISTORICAL COST
CONVENTION RATHER THAN THE MARKET VALUE,
WHICH IS UNDOUBTEDLY MUCH HIGHER.

In the ESG (Environmental, Social and
Governance) field, in 2023 Greenalia finalized
its ESG Strategic Plan 2019-2023, which has
achieved the established objectives. At the same
time, in parallel with the presentation of this
integrated report, the fifth Sustainability Report
for the financial year 2023 will be published,
which is be verified by a third party. In it, we
communicate and formalize our commitment
to the implementation of six robust governance
policies,  highlighting  the  Anti-Corruption
Standard and the advancement of our Corporate
Risk Management System. Additionally, in social
matters, we have continued in our line of social
investment, collaborating with different sports
and institutional entities in thecommunitiesin
which weoperate. On the environmental side, we

count with an ISO 14001 and SURE certification.
All of this has been validated by the MorningStar
Sustainability Rating, which confirms our ability
to manage ESG risks. This rating has placed us
in the top 10 in our sub-industry: Independent
Energy Producers, highlighting our robust
management of all material issues assessed and
achieving a low-risk score for ESG issues (score:
18.3 Low Risk).

Results by business
segment

INGENERAL, THEREHAS BEEN ANIMPROVEMENT
ON THE PREVIOUS YEAR, WHICH WAS THE
HIGHEST PROFIT IN THE GROUP’S HISTORY

The wind energy business continues its
production activity, with the five EOLO MOC
projects operating at full capacity throughout
the year (Mifidén, Ourol, Alto da Croa, Alto da
Croa Il and Monte Tourado wind farms). It is
important to highlight the market exploitation
(merchant) of these projects, which is making
it possible to obtain market prices higher than
those included in the plan. The biomass plant
(Curtis-Teixeiro) continued to export energy,
improving its production levels. The maintenance
and improvement of the activity is reflected in
the consolidated EBITDA result for the financial

year 2023, which amounts to 67,746,220 euros.
The net profit after tax amounts to 37,352,975
euros. This improvement is based on increased
performance and continuous improvement of
operational projects.

Alto da Croa Il Wind Farm (10.4 MW)
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Ourol Wind farm (22.5 MW)

Fvolution of our
activity

Estimates were far exceeded. In this context,
themaintenance and improvement of our
activities is clearly reflected in the consolidated
EBITDA for 2023, which reached 67,746,220
euros. The reconciliation  between the
consolidated income statement and EBITDA,
which management has included in this report,
is asdepictedbelow:

CONSOLIDATED EBITDA

Operating results 51,204,559
(-) Other results 1,744,417
(+) Depreciation of fixed assets 10,778,095
(JT) Impairment and gains/losses on 4,019,149
disposal of fixed assets

TOTAL 67,746,220

Main operations that explain the evolution of the
balance:

Significant increase in assets (+13.1%
compared to the end of 2022), mainly due to
investments in thedevelopment of newprojects.

+ The value of the investment in the Curtis Teixeiro
biomass project in 2023 is €122.38 million, with
a non-recourse assigned debt of €113.5million,
excluding the effect of amortized cost.

+ The value of the investments in the MOC Eolo
wind farms in 2023 was €79.6million, with a
non recourse allocated debt of €92.4million,
excluding the effect of amortized cost.

« It should be noted that 69.7% of the Group’s debt
is project related and non-recourse, guaranteed
only by the projects financed.

Consolidated equity has a positive balance of
€70,779 thousand and the cash position at the
end of 2023 exceeds €62.5 million.

FinancialOperations

The following financial operations have been
formalized:

+ Increase of €34 million in bank loans and other
financial liabilities as a result of the refinancing
of the Curtis and Eolo project finance loans,
as described in Note 18 of the accompanying
Annual Report.

- The balance of miscellaneous loans and leases
has been reduced by 800 thousand euros.

+ There has been no increase in debt in lines of
credit.

+ In relation to corporate bonds, the bond
issued on 15 December 2020 for an amount
of €55,000,000 listed on the Alternative Fixed
Income Market (MARF) remains in force. This
bond matures in 2025 and accrues a fixed annual
interest rate of 4.95%.

+ The outstanding balance at the end of the 2023
financial year for the Green Promissory Note
Programme amounted to €67.2 million (at the
end of 2022 it was €49.3 million).

124






Greenalia, S.A. and dependent companies
Consolidated balance on December 31, 2023

(Expressed in Euros)

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 236,541,682 381,308,599
Property, plant and equipment 206,191,760 350,152,652
Rights-of-use assets 13,738,431 13,945,379
Other intangible assets 624,135 715612
Equity instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss 1,865,228 1,357,884
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost 8,612,084 3,435,758
Loans to group companies = 355,718
Derivative financial instruments 1,037,527 9,530,065
Deferred tax assets 4,472,517 1,815,531
CURRENT ASSETS 297,860,505 91,186,201
Inventories 203,911,583 2,777,856
Income tax and deferred tax assets 25131 25131
Trade and other receivables 12,350,537 8,727,899
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost 573,725 540,414
Loans to group companies 14,731,208 4,443,986
Derivative financial instruments = 2,166,879
Equity instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss = 427374
Other current assets 1,761,775 978,003
Cash and other equivalent cash assets 62,582,714 50,783,250
Non-current assets held for sale 1,923,832 20,315,409

EQUITY 70,778,589 44,645,639
Capital 433,182 433182
Issue premium 18,361,239 18,361,239
Other reserves 17,430,992 (214,013)
Retained earings (2,694,480) -

Other contributions from shareholders 131916 131916
Profit or loss for the year attributable to the parent company 37,356,914 16,424,925
Other equity items (243,985) 9,501,640
Non-controlling interests 2,811 6,750

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 291,430,475 195,887,339

Financial liabilities from issuance of bonds and other marketable securities 54,497,634 54,291,492
Financial liabilities to credit institutions 536,921 82,652,556
Derivative financial instruments 1,439,724 -
Lease liabilities 8,506,248 9,318,340
Other financial liabilities 208,978,348 36,930,099
Official grants 136,166 324,996
Long-term debt with group and associated companies 15,270,121 8,426,422
Deferred tax liabilities 2,065,313 4,043,434
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CURRENT LIABILITIES 172,193,123 231,961,823
Financial liabilities from issuance of bonds and other marketable securities 67,222,114 49,409,134
Financial liabilities to credit institutions 47,313,746 83,193,051
Trade creditors and other accounts payable 25,634,461 22,259,519
Lease liabilities 2,064,112 2,124,589
Other financial liabilities 24,855,000 43,483,498
Short-term debts to group and associated companies 5,103,690 5,708,401
Liabilities directly related to non-current assets held for sale . 25,783,631

< Greenalia, S.A. and dependent companies

Consolidated profit and loss account for the financial year
ending December 31, 2023 (Expressed in Euros)

Ordinary taxes 56,081,443 95,072,076
Other income 77,695 393,382
In-house work on assets 2,001,787 1,439,014
Procurements (10,798,331) (17,764,147)
Total employee remuneration expenses (4,732,416) (4,211,110)
Other expenses (14,701,055) (10,034,447)
Other profit/loss (1,744,417) (840,988)
Impairment of business parks under development (3,309,320) -
Impairment of business parks under development 39,817,098 -
Amortisation expenses (10,778,095) (10,843,503)
Impairment and gains on the disposal of fixed assets (709,830) (20,302,973)
Operating profit 51,204,559 32,907,310
Financial income 13,351,435 4,893,013
Financial expenses (28,260,312) (17,501,943)
Exchange differences = 37,030
Financial earnings (14,908,877) (12,571,900)
Profit/(Loss) before tax from continuing operations 36,295,682 20,335,410
Income tax expense / (revenue) 1,057,293 (4,712,619)
Profit/(Loss) of the year from continuing operations 37,352,975 15,622,791
Profit or loss for the year from discontinued operations net of taxes - 802,134
Profit (Loss) for the financial year 37,352,975 16,424,925
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent company 37,356,914 16,424,925
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to non-controlling interests (8,939) -
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Structure of the consolidated group

The dependent companies included in the consolidation perimeter as

of December 31, 2023 are the following:

Registered Activity Cost interest Company Headline Group
office percentage
GREEN@;'AA&%Y\LES A Corufia Acquisition rig‘fg:ﬁ;’ﬁg'rggggiz 22&?;“‘”““”3 18,545,158 GREENALIA SA. 100.00%
GREE (’;‘V’?/LE'Q \éV'LNL? A Corufia Acquisition rae?fr’ eﬂ:ﬁ;’sg' r‘;gfgg[:g 22&&?“‘0@8“0”3 12,787,966 GREENALIA POWER SPAIN, S L U. 100.00%
POWEI;SF({)EICE:G;'S \év:_N& A Corufia Produccion de energia 3,000 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.L.U. 100.00%
GREEF')\‘ g\vblg;gﬁ? A Corufia Acquisition rae'g?eds'zﬁﬁﬁgl ng.sQiﬁEZ 22&{’;”‘”5‘“0”3 429,001 GREENALIA POWER SPAIN, S.L.U. 100.00%
GREENALIABIOMASS |\ 07a Acquisition and disposal of shares and participations 9,079,691 GREENALIA POWER SPAIN, S.L.U. 100.00%
POWER, S.L.U. representing registered capital
RN emy ety | Acorufa Foreztntdhmgi%jg%pri“g purchase and sale, elaboration 3321672 GREENALIA BIOMASS POWER SL. U. 100.00%
POWER CURTIS TR b, | ACorufia Energy production 5,000,001 GREENALIA BIOMASS POWER SLU, 100.00%
POWER CURTIG TEMEIRG T LU, | ACoruia Energy production 85513 GREENALIA BIOMASS POWER SLU, 100.00%
POWER LAZALA SL L | Acorufa Energy production 0 GREENALIA BIOMASS POWER, S.L.U, 100.00%
POWER ELTRANCO,SLU | ACoruna Energy production 3000 O CEVELOPMENT SLU. 100.00%
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Registered Activity Cost interest Company Headline Group

office percentage
POWER gSEE'XﬁALéA”ngII‘_AS A Corufa Energy production 3,000 GREE\,\/IQ%TDEAOE#\JATRSPEYJVER 100.00%
POWER gLFjEIIED,,\A‘/I;\/ILElAI\/S gLLAS A Coruna Energy production 3,000 GREE\’\/IQL_CBAPE/IOE#\JATRSPE\L/JVER 100.00%
POWER%FEJI?AES\] :,\;:EAVS g'l‘_ALT A Corufia Energy production 1,500 GREE\\I/él&loAPf/IOELI\/?WS g CL)'\(JV‘ER 100.00%
POWERMOSEN.SLU | ACoufs Energy production 650971 " DEVELOPENT SLU. 10000%
POWERGA%EEE\/I\IIEADEAlﬁ \éV:_NUD A Corufia Energy production 17,018 G%%?'ﬁgé,\%“? EOLVCJ/ER 100.00%
POWER ALTOCISDFZEEF\QISEIAI, \éV:_NUD A Corufia Energy production 81,390 ESEE'\‘S’IAE%AO\QUB g %VX%R 100.00%
POWERATODACROA SLU, | A CorU®B Energy production w07 E0LO SENIORMOC, SLU. 100.00%
GREENAégRng%K%Y{E& A Corufia Energy production 3,000 GF;%EV'V\‘?SQ\(VLND 100.00%
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Registered Activity Cost interest Company Headline Group

office percentage
POV&SRE Egﬁgﬁ \éV:_NUD A Corufa Energy production 3,000 GF;%%/’\\/IEAF%@%ND 100.00%
POS\/RE%EgQgﬁ \éV:_NLIJD A Coruna Energy production 0 GEEoE/,\/\‘EAFlglé\[VbND 100.00%
TEDMAMOIONER | pconts : TEANNOEOUER | o
POWER é; /EREBE L\ﬁLAlf \éV:_NUD A Corunfa Energy production 19614 GRDEEE\L\‘E’?_%IQ,\%HQ E(EVSER 100.00%
POV\?ERREEESHS \éV:_NLIJJ A Coruna Energy production 0 GEEOQV\‘EAF%%\(VL'JND 100.00%
G(?OE'%AD%Q \é\ﬂi%g%\/\llzﬁ A Coruna Energy production 8,500 GRDEEE\L\‘E?_E)IQI\\//I\I/E'H? SOLVSER 100.00%
GREENC%.:%\,/\V/H%S%Y\E& A Coruna Energy production 3,000 GRDEEE\L\‘E?_SQI\\//I\I/E'H? EOLVL\jER 100.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER A Corufia Energy production 20,371,522 GREENALIA WIND POWER 100.00%

EOLO SENIOR MOC, S.L.U.

EOLOMOC, SAU.
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Registered Activity Cost interest Company Headline Group
office percentage

GREENAégAl_g/mg CPOSV\(ELT A Corufia Energy production 24,364,595 GE,EOEV’V\]EA% léKVbND 100.00%
FOLO SENIOR CAMPELOS. 1 U | A Corura Energy production 179000 “E0LD CAPELOS, SLU. R
A AL | ACorufa Energy production 21,135 POWER DEVELOPMENT. SLU. 10000%
SREENAUAWINDPOWER | - o1 Eneray production 0 POWER DEVELOPMENT SLU. 100.00%
GREEN?HQGVE/)@EDLSOSY\ES A Corufa Energy production 0 G%Eg\j\‘ﬁgé,\\ﬁgm? SOLV[\J/ER 100.00%
GREENALIA W;EPOEOSV\(ELT A Corufia Energy production 4,800 POWECF;JTDEEE\L\IJEAIBQ\\?I/E'H? SLU. 100.00%
GREENALLSAAVXE’;%:%Y\(T A Corufia Energy production 0 GTD%EV’\\/‘@F%%KVBND 100.00%
O SLL, |  AConua Energy production 26,342 POWER DEVELOPMENT SLU. 1on.oo%

132



Registered Activity Cost interest Company Headline Group
office percentage

GREENALIA W”\(‘;%E%WSEE A Corufia Energy production 2,550 GF;%E/'\\/‘EASQYVLND 85.00%
GREENAL&%X\/’\%‘(&S%\(\ES A Corufia Energy production 14,831 G%%%?_'a'é&gﬁ? g?\ﬁER 100.00%
OREENALIA mmg%\f\fﬁ A Corufia Energy production 12,000 G%EEEL\‘E/IAESI\\QI/EIH% SLu 1on.ooz
GREENAL'ﬁEV\\//lA’\,‘\‘DTEOSY\(T A Corufia Energy production 3,000 GE%E\/DIEAF%IQ\[VGND 100.00%
GREENALIA m:HBNPC)SV\IiELT A Corufia Energy production 310,391 GREE%@N@Q'&BCPOSVXEJR EOLO 100.00%
RN e TRAL SL Ly | Acorua Energy production 3,000 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.L.U. 100.00%
SSEIET,\EI%%ACV(;/LQNDat%V\(ES A Corufia Energy production 9,700 POWE%RDEEE\/,\IE?SQI\\//I\QHQ SLU. 100.00%
GIS/IEOEI\,TI'I'AIEL'll'AO\(JVFL’X% S(JSV\(ELT A Corufia Energy production 107,577 ESE(E)I\‘SAEkllﬁJVF\{”l\IjB(? OSV\Z%R 100.00%
R ONTE ToURA, BLLy | Acorufa Energy production 200668 0L SENIOR CAMPELOS, 81 U 100007
GREENALIAWIND POWER A Corufia Energy production 15,136 CREENALIA WIND POWER 100.00%

MONTEIRO, S.L.U.

DEVELOPMENT, S.L.U.
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Registered Activity Cost interest Company Headline Group
office percentage

GREENAL'Q(‘SV,L%E%Y\(T A Corufia Energy production 0 GREENALIA WIND POWER, SL.U. 100.00%
RN ORDES L U | Acoruia Energy production 23,000 GREENALIA WIND POWER, SL.U. 100.00%
GRE%NC?E';A()\(JV&TR%E%V{ES A Corufia Energy production 3,000 G%%yﬁg@%m% SOLVMER 100.00%
GREENALIA \g’g\gg%\f\f& A Corufia Energy production 3,000 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.LU. 100.00%
GREENALAWNDPOWER | .1 Energy producton 468504 £0L0 SENIOR MOG, 5L, 100007
GREEHQ%AAVC\)/X\E]BDRAP%V\I{ELT A Corufia Energy production 20,000 GRDEéE\L\‘Eﬁgé,\%HQ SOLVMER 100.00%
GREEgéAl\\lL,lAADV(\DIEI%S%Y\ISELT A Corufia Energy production 24,042 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.L.U. 100.00%
GREIlzD,\E‘ﬁJgAOVI\\A/g\IRaE%V\IiELT A Corufia Energy production 0 GRDEg\L\IE'?_gé,\%H% g(iVL\jER 100.00%
GREENPAEL,LAA\Q/'B%ag%V\(ES A Corufia Energy production 21,371 GRDEIE\L\‘EAL%)IQI\\Z\I/E'H? gOLVL\jER 100.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER A Corufia Energy production 18,820 CREENALIAWIND POWER 100.00%

RESTELO, S.L.U.

DEVELOPMENT, S.L.U.
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Registered Activity Cost interest Company Headline Group

office percentage
GREENALlARV(\)/g\llgl S%V\(ES A Coruna Energy production 10,000 GFIQDEEE\L\‘EALSQI\\?/ENQ E?VSER 100.00%
GREENALIA g’}’é’é%g%‘f& A Corufia Energy production 0 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.L.U. 100.00%
GREENAL'T%\F’QV&'XDDS%Y\(F& A Corufia Energy production 3,000 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.L.U. 100.00%
GREE’E’Z&%&’#’;‘%E’%\(\E A Corufia Energy production 0 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.L.U. 100.00%
GREENAL\LAA(\J/\(J'EDRK%Y\(T A Corufia Energy production 29,000 G%EEE\L\‘E'%'Q,\%H? SOLVSER 100.00%
GREENAL\'/AE m%%;’%\f\f& A Corufia Energy production 3,000 GREENALIA WIND POWER, SLU. 100.00%
DSVREEL%’\‘PA&'EAN ?OSV\(ES A Corufia Energy production 531,397 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.L.U. 100.00%
GREEE\A/E@&VKANE?&%V\(ES A Corufia Energy production 5,941,397 DGES/EESS:I/'I@I\'T? \éVEFEJ 100.00%
POWER DESEE(EEI\/;E@TS (S)LLALT A Corufia Energy production 1,903,000 D%S/EEQ/PAI%)IQI\T'? \éVEFEJ 100.00%
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Registered Activity Cost interest Company Headline Group
office percentage

GREENAUAZS(,\DALAAJ%T’%Y\E& A Corufia Energy production 500 GREE\'\/IQ"&,E/%NATRSPE \L/JYER 100.00%
GREENALIQUS’\%IZﬁg lIDIOSV\IiELT A Corufia Energy production 500 GREES?&'&APEA(%\‘ATRSPE \LGYER 100.00%
GREENATL&\A/AVE\ILDTK%Y\(.E& A Corufia Energy production 1,000 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.L.U. 100.00%
GREENALLAU\F’QVI'A’;‘:DANP%Y\ﬁ A Corufia Energy production 15000 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.LU. 100.00%
cREsL )\’;’QLL\‘EETLFE(XY\’SES A Corufia Energy production 0 GREENALIA WIND POWER SL.U. 90.00%
GREENAL'AASV\(TGDOF/;%\’NST A Corufia Energy production 0 GREENALIA WIND POWER, SL.U. 90.00%
GREENALIA VC\:"E'\‘DDH%%\”\&FE A Corufia Energy production 0 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.L.U. 90.00%
GREENALIA W'QEDRF\’/%Y\QFE A Corufia Energy production 0 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.L.U. 90.00%
GREENAE%/; [%EELPA%\,NST A Corufia Energy production 0 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.L.U. 90.00%
GREENALIA V\ég}DEli%Y\éFE A Corufia Energy production 0 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.L.U. 90.00%
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Register . . . r
egistered Activity Cost interest Company Headline Group
office percentage
GREENALIA WIND POWER ~ .
MONTOXO, SL. A Coruna Energy production 0 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.L.U. 90.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER - . 0
OBARRAL, SL. A Coruna Energy production 0 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.L.U. 90.00%
GREENALIAWIND POWER | 4 0 Energy production 0 GREENALIA WIND POWER, SL.U. 90.00%
PINEIRO, S.L.
GREENALIA WIND POWER - . 9
PUNTA CANDIEIRA, S.L. A Coruna Energy production 0 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.L.U. 90.00%
GREENALIAWIND POWER |5 0 Energy production 0 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.L.U. 90.00%
REGOA, S.L.
GREENALIA WIND POWER - . N
SAN ISIDRO, S.L. A Corufa Energy production 0 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.L.U. 90.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER = . 0
SAN ROMAN, SL. A Corufa Energy production 0 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.L.U. 90.00%
GREENALIAWIND POWER | 051 Energy production 0 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.L.U. 90.00%
TEIXIDO, S.L.
GREENALIAWIND PVER | Acorufia Energy production 0 GREENALIA WIND POWER, SL.U. 90.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER = . 0
CARDON, SL. A Corufa Energy production 0 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.L.U. 85.00%
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Registered Activity Cost interest Company Headline Group
office percentage

GREENALIA WB\JUDN'Z\OSY\’S?E A Corufia Energy production 0 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.LU. 85.00%
GREENAL'AGVCJ"/L\‘NDCPH%\”VST A Corufia Energy production 0 GREENALIA WIND POWER SL.U. 85,00%
GREENALIA W'N,\ag%’,\/ 'SEFE A Corufia Energy production 2,550 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER, S.L.U. 85.00%
GREENAL'/tmNAg ﬁOSV\IiELT A Corufia Energy production 5,500 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.L.U. 100.00%
GREEN%&%X\QEE Azogvfﬁ A Corufia Energy production 16,500 GFIQDEEE\L\‘EALSQI\\ZVE'HQ E?VSER 100.00%
GREENASLAANSJ%LL‘I\ARNP%YEB A Corufia Energy production 150,000 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER, SLU. 100.00%
CREENALE fgtmf%’fs A Corufia Energy production 150,000 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER, SLU. 100.00%
GREENS&:\"%&OAEA,\TAPFSV{ES A Corufia Energy production 1,000 GREES@&)@’EA?E%\IA'\FRSPE \L/JYER 100.00%
GREENAELL'AN igkﬁﬁg%\f\ﬁ A Corufia Energy production 3,000 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER, S.L.U. 100.00%
GREENALIA 3&3%;’%{{?& A Corufia Energy production 3,000 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER, S.L.U. 100.00%
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Registered

Group

office Activity Cost interest Company Headline percentage
CREENALIA SOLOALFfV%Og’YLE_E A Corufia Energy production 0 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER, S.LU. 100.00%
e e A Corufia Energy production 8,500 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.L_U. 100.00%
CREFRALAWED S A Corufia Energy production 0 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.LU. 100.00%
RSNG| scope | Meowsmommommonisot | oo | cemwsounroerLy | oo
CREENALIA POWERE@E,%SSXEES? Oporto Energy production 6,000 GREENALIA SA 100.00%
GREENALIA SOLAR POWER, DA Oporto Energy production 3,001 GREENAL'SNF;S\ENSES%EEFETD%GAL S6PS 100.00%
GREENALIA POWER US, INC. Wilmington Energy production 849 GREENALIAS.A 100.00%
GREENALIA SOLAR POWER, INC Wilmington Energy production 920 GREENALIA POWER US, INC 100.00%
EXCEL ADVANTAGE SERVICE, LLC Dallas Energy production 20,247,561 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER, INC 100.00%
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Registered Activity Cost interest Company Headline Group

office percentage
GREENALQ\S’éNHDlLPLgY\(EE Dallas Energy production 7363335 GREENALIA WIND POWER, INC 100.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER, INC Wilmington Energy production 920 GREENALIA POWER US, INC 100.00%
GREENALIA SOLAR POWER REIS, LLC Dallas Energy production 0 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER, INC 100.00%
GREENAVV?NSS%L\/@FT(P:?\(EE Dallas Energy production 0 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER, INC 100.00%
CREENALIA S&ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁg Dallas Energy production 0 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER, INC 100.00%
CREENALIA SD%LQEEPL?Y\(EE Dallas Energy production 0 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER, INC 100.00%
HE-COTTONWOOD SOLAR, LLC Dallas Energy production 2,443,033 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER, INC 100.00%
LEITSOL, LLC Dallas Energy production 1001478 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER, INC 100.00%
ROSCSOL, LLC Dallas Energy production 1,088,717 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER, INC 100.00%
GREENALIA ENERGY STORAGE, LLC Dallas Energy production 0 GREENALIA POWER US, INC 100.00%
CREENALIA ENERGY Dallas Energy production 0 GREENALIA ENERGY STORAGE, LLC 100.00%

STORAGE MISAEII, LLC
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Register L . . r
egistered Activity Cost interest Company Headline Group
office percentage
GREENALIA SOLAR POWER . .
WITTIG, LLC Dallas Energy production 0 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER, INC 100.00%
GREENALIA SOLAR POWER . o
BLUE HILLS, LLC Dallas Energy production 0 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER, INC 100.00%
CREENALIASOLAR POVIER Dallas Energy production 0 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER, INC 100.00%
MISAE I, LLC

GREENALIA BIOMASS POWER Acquisition and disposal of shares and participations 5
LUXEMBURGO, SARL. Luxembourg representing registered capital 0 GREENALIA BIOMASS POWER, S.L.U 100.00%
GREENALIA BIOMASS POWER Luxembourg Acquisition and disposal of shares and participations 0 GREENALIA BIOMASS POWER 100.00%

LUXEMBURGO I, SAR.L.

representing registered capital

LUXEMBURGO, SAR.L.
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Audit Report on Consolidated Financial Statements AUDIT REPORT OF CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS ISSUED BY AN INDEPENDENT
issued by an Independent Auditor AUDITOR

GREENALIA, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Annual Accounts and Consolidated Directors’ Report

for the year ended on 31 December 2023 To the shareholders of Greenalia, S.A.:
Drawn up in accordance with international Financial Reporting

Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Opinien

‘We have audited the consolidated annual accounts of Greenalia, 5.A. (the “Parent Company”™}
together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which comprise lhe balance sheet as of 31 December
2023, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consalidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated slatement of cash flows and the report,
all comesponding to the financial year ended on that date.

I cur cpinion, the accompanying consalidated annual accounts express, in all matenal respects, a
lrue and fair view of the consofidated equily and the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2023, as do the consolidated income statements and the comesponding
consolidated cash flows for the financial year ended on said date, in accordance with Infernafional
Financial Reporting Standards adogted by the European Union (IFRS-EU) and other provisions of
the: financial reporting reguiatery framework that are applicable in Spain

Basis of our opinion

We conducled ouwr audit in accordance with the awdit regulations in force in Spain. Qur responsailities
under those standards are further described in the seclion Responsibilities of the Auditor for the awdit
of the consalidated annuwal accounis of our report

Wa are an independeant third party outside of the Group in accordance with the stafutory requirements
conceming ethics, including those relating to independence, which are applicable to any audit of
consolidated annual accounts in Spain as required by the regulations which govern account auditing
aclivities. Accordingly, we have not provided any services olher than those necessary Lo conduc! the
audit of the accounts nor have any conditions or circumslances occurned that, in accordance with the
prowisions of the aforementioned regulatory regulations, would have ofherwise compromised the
independence required to conduct the audit

We bebeve thal the audi evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
QLr Cinacn

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were considered to be the most
significant risks of matenal misstatement in cur audit of the consolidated annual accounts for the current
penod. These risks have been addressed within the context of our audit of the consalidated annual
accounts as a whole, and in forming

caur opinien thereon, and we do nol express a separate opinion regarding those nsks.
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Reventie recognition

Description The activities carmed oul by the Group consist mainly of the generation of energy through
the operation of renewable encrgy faciliies, as detailled in note 24 1 of the attached
consolidated report

As indicated in note 418 of the attached consolidated report, the Group recognises
revenue when the transfer of contral of goods and services to customers occurs

‘We have considered this matter to be the most relevant in our audit given the
significance of the amounts recorded, as well as the accounting estimates that the
Management of the Parent Company must make in order to determine the
appropriate recording of any of them at the end of the financial year.

response  Our audit procedures have included, among others, the following:

Understanding the processes applied by the Management of the Parent Company
for recording revenue, as well as the regulatory framework for the energy
generation activity. Assessment of the design and implemeniation of the relevant
controls of said processes.

Obtaining settiemants from the Spanish Mational Commission for Markets and
Competition (CNMC) and third parties for 8 sample of balances and
transactions for the financial year,

Verificatian, for a sample of the iransactions from the financial year, of the
appropriate time and amount of the accounting record thereof

Review of the breakdowns included in the consolidated report for the financial
Year in accordance with the apphicable financial reparing regulatory framework.

Emphasis of matter paragraph

W draw attention to note 2.2 of the attached consoldated annual accounts report, which indicates that
as of 31 December 2023, the working capital is positive (considering the stock of disposal assets),
describes that the Group has short-term debt maturities, and breaks down the mitigating factors of these

circumstances indicative of unceriainty regarding the geoing concern principle, This question does net
change our opinion,

Other information: Consolidated management repart

The other informatien exclusively comprises the consolidated management report for the 2023 financial
year, the preparation of which is the responsibility of the Directors of the Parent Company and s not an
integral part of the consolidated annual accounts.

EY
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Cur awdit opinion regarding the consalidated annual accounts does not in any way include an opinion
regarding the consolidated management report. Our responsibility regarding the consolidated
managemeant report. in accordance with the requirements of the regulations governing the auditing of
accounts, consists of evaluating and reporting on the consistency of the consolidated managament
repart with the consolidated annual accounts, based on our knoviedge of the Group obtained during
the audit of the aforementioned annual accounts, as well as evalualing and reporting on whether the
content and presentation of the consolidated management répon are in accordance with the applicable
regulations. If, based on the work perormed by us, we conclude that there areé matenal misstatements,
wir are obliged to report them.

Based on the work performed, as described in the precading paragraph, the information contained in the
consolidated management report is consistent with that of the consalidated annual accounts for the
2023 tinancal year and its content and presentation are in accordance with the applcable regulations

Responsibilities of the Directors of the Parent Company in relation to the conscolidated annual
accounts

The Directors of the Parent Company are responsible for the preparation of the accompanying
consolidated annual accounts, so that they present a true and fair view of the equity, the consolidated
financial position and the consolidated income of the Group, in accordance with the IFRS-EU and other
pravisions of the financial reporting regulatory framework apphicable to the Group in Spain, and the
internal oversight deemed necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated annual accounts that
are free from matenal misstatement, whether due o frawd or error

In preparing the consoldated annual accounts, the Directors of the Parent Company are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, where appropriate, matiers
related to gong concern and using the going concem basts of accounting unless the Drectors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease its business operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do 50,

ities of the Auditor for the audit of the consolidated annual accounts

Responsi

Our objectives are to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated annual accounts as
a whote are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errer, and fo issue an auditor's
report thal includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the audit regulations in force in Spain will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatemenis can arise from fraud or error and are considered material f, individually
of in the aggregate, lhey could reasonably be expecled Lo influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated annual accounts.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the audit regulations in force in Spain, we apply our professional
judgement and maintain an attitude of professional scepticism throughout the audil. We also:

Identify and assess the risk of maleral missiatement in the consolidated annual accounts,
whether due to fraud or error, we design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
nsks, and we obtain surficient audit evidence 1o provide a basis far our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatemeant resulting fram fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, deliberate omissions, intentional misrepresentabons, or
the override of internal aversight.

Obtain an understanding of the internal oversight relevant o the audit in order 1o design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, bul not for the purpose of expressing an
apinion regarding the effectivenass of the Group's infernal oversight mechanisms,

Evaluate whether the accounting policies applied are adequate and the reasonablencss of ihe
accounting estimates and the corresponding information disclosed by the Directors of the Parent
Company,

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Direclors of the Parent Company’s use of the going
concarn basis of accounting and, based on the audil evidence oblained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. i we conclude that a material uncertainly exists, we are
required to draw attention thereto in our auditor's report regarding the corresponding infarmation
disclosed in the consolidated annual accounts or, If such disclosures are inadequate, lo moddy
aur gpinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence oblained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated annual
accounts. including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated annual accounts
reprasent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that manages to express
the true ard fair view.

Obtain suffictent and appropnate evidence in refation to the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion regarding the consolidaled annual
accounts. We are respansible for managing, supervising and preparing the audit of the Group
We are solely responsible for our audit opinion

We have communicated with the Diwectors of the Parent Company regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal oversight that we identify during our audil_

EY
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Fram the significant risks communicated to the Directors of the Parent Company, we determing those
rieks that were of most significance in the awdif of the consalidated annual accounts of the current
period and are therefore the most significant assessed risks.

We will describe these risks in our auditor's report, unless the legal or regulatary provisions prohibit
the public disclosure thereof.

ERNST & YOUNG, 5L
IRegiatered o the Orfficial Register of

AUDITORS

EPANSH INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED
Accounts

ERNST & YOUNG

2024 No. 2400411
CORPORATE SEAL SE.00 Eue

anuel Pestana Da Silva Gomez-Aller
{Registansd &1 the OIcial Register of

an ; ACCOUNL ASLorE under famier 22768)
AUdiors repon 4N Socounts subject

e Spantsh of infemational audit
reguiasions

17 April 2024
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GREENALIA, 5.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
&, ERASED PAYMENTS Consofidated Statement of Financial Position for the year ended on
26, TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES 31 December 2023
27, INFORMATION ON EMPLOYEES {Exprassad in euros)
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greenalia

GREEMALLA, 5.4, AND SUBSIARIES
Corsolidated Inceme Statements for the financal year ended on

31 Deceamber 2023

greenalia

GREENALIA, S.A. AND SUBSIMARIES

Statement of Changes in Consalidated Met Equity for the financial year ended on

31 Decamber 2023
(Exprassad in euros]

A} Comolidated Incame Statement for the year ended 31 December 2023:

(Exprassad in euras)
Motes NN WAz

Ohvediniory Mietes. B SELET M SSO0T2OTE
e e TT.685 FLEE
Inshoves work o assts i 2 (e TET LEETGE
Frocusmes E (0TI {07, TE4,141)
Tl T PR ATTIR BT R 24 [ATIZAE)  @211,110)
Orbrer saperses E ] (14,701,088)  {B0,C34.847)
Crer profeioss. T [1,7M 417 (BADBREY
Impairmem of BLsness paiks LN deveiopaent 13 [3.300 20

Irmpusirrimen! of B rerss ks wrced develofarent L FEIT, 0868 3
Amoristion expersos [10.TPA 085 {00,B43.500)
Irmpars A gaes on i cieposal of fomo aseets 4 | T BN 420,502 6T
Ohpevating proflit 51304 550 JL0OTM1E
Firen sl income L 13350 435 4503073
Firarcial experses 4 (3260 3937 (07 500 BARY
[Exthargo dfpieroes AT
[Flranclal cambngs. [14,008,87T) (1L.5T1.800)
PeeUTLoss] o 6795, 651 20335498
|rscaperees L wpr-se | [rermmnsa} 2 1 05T 283 L TI2 B18)
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Frofyllassior the year adnb.tabie 0 eouty holders of the pasent company IT IS8 E14 TEA24 8%
ProfL s for tha vaar trbitabio 1 ror-comillieg e 308

Notes  3M22003 M A2
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- -
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Statement of cash flows frem hodging T8 (2GR4T 18,805,480
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GREENALIA, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Statement of Changes in Consolidated Net Equity for the financial year ended on
31 December 2023

(Expressed in euros)

B) Statement of changes in total consolidated net equity for the financial year ended on 31 December 2023:

Result for
Other the year
reserves and attributable Non-
Issue Treasury retained Other equity tothe parent  controlling
Share capital premium shares earnings items company Interests Total
Balance at 31/12/2021 443 419 18,361,239 (1,045,434) {3,539,263) (3,768,515) 12,066,189 B,750 22,523,305
Total recognised income and axpoanses - - - - 13,271,175 16,424 825 - 28, 656,100
Transactions with shareholders or owners (10,237) - 1,045,454 (8,849,494) - - - (7.682321)

Capital reduction (Mate 15) (10.237) - (8,847 558) - (8,857 795)

Transactions with treasury shares (Mot 15) 1,045 484 98,084 1,143,558

Issuance of share-hased payments . - - 131,018 % 131,016
Other changes in equity . . = 12,174,744 = (12,066,183) = 108,333

Transfer of results (Note 15) 12,066,189 {12.066,188)

Other transactions (Note 15} 108 555 - 108,565
Balance at 31/12/2022 433,182 18,361,239 - (214,013} 9,633,556 16,424,925 6,730 44,645,630
Total recognised income and expenses - - - - (2,745,625) 17,356,014 (3,939) 27,607,350
Other changes in cquity - - - 14,950,525 - [16,424,825) - {1,474,400)

Transfer of results (Note 15) 16,424,925 {16,424 825)

Other transactions (Note 15} . . (14744009 ; e {1,474 A00)
Balance at 31/12/2023 433,182 18,361,239 - 14,736,312 (112,068) 37,356,914 2,811 70,778,589

Pza. de Maria Pita, 10, 12 | CP 15001 | A Corufia, Spain

+24 900 815 081 | info@greenalia.es | www.greenalia.es
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GREENALIA, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Cash flow statements for the financial year ended on

31 December 2023
(Exprassad in euras)

Hotes 223 EIGFTFE]
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Prefifloss for the year belors tax + continuing eperations B 205 65T 20.333410
Preditfinss for the year befors tax - discontinued oporations = 4,271,000
Picfilioes sdjustimmts 20150 2A71,503
Doprociation of flod assos. 5-0-10 1077085 10843503
Walud SUETIOMS 197 Impalmant 2.390.581 FF ]
Pooitfoss on ed asset dsposals and wite-als. T8, B0 002873
Einargal ircome: 4 113,357 434 (4,84 013
FIra S SpTAns o 226012 17 500,543
Exchange sforonoes |37 0
In-houss work an assir's - {1,438 ,014)
Other income ard expenses (B80T 2303 134,816
Charges In working esplial (38,844,237 [ B25.018)
il 180558040 [A2ZeTM)
Dititars and otfher recewmlies 14,514 551 (3382 143
Dehor cumert asses [11E07 &0 268 438)
Trade Bhd domuns paysle 1384075 14,745,767
Othor cument lakilbos 14.338,456) 4483
D nor-cunrer asseis ard inbities 24380 (10773, 1341
Omhor cash Bows from openating aclivitios 193,527 520) (G075
WTes pEyTeTS [12.438.783) (& 788918
¥ AR SLA I25) 1067, 7371 (7386 53%)
‘et cach Nows from operating actitizs. 144,045,535 45 250,884
CASH FLOWE FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
Investmant paymaris. (8074210 (10028847
Iiar gible nssets. 4014215 1408 (58]
Property, plant ang squipmeent (8, 08 Bad
Dthor firarclal assets " (4,652 828
Proceds fiom divposah RLE ] 335,000
Proprty, plant ara souipment 2285000
Othar assats 10681 205 -
Cash flows from investing activitizs 18.280,574 (57,013,478
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTMVITIES
and Tor oquity 143,257
Acruisiion of TR SULY insLmEn. {00,287
Disposals of awn Uy insEUINES. 1CAE AR
Charges snd payments relating bo financial liaily instruments T 36,351,504
Debts wit oreck insfitions: T20.TAT .
Debis wit Group and assocees comeanies 6,288,357
suarce of cihar celn A4S0 140 255,200
Ropaymen, of debis o cregil insiugons [127.207.421) (10,030 834
Rapamymert of siter Sbvs [275.536674)  (100552,308)
Payments for dividends and remenertions from other squity instruments [5,547,558)
Romuraradon of usher ooully inumens (& 04T 554
Cash flows from financing scihities Tk 03
[EFFECT OF CHANDES IN EXCHANGE RATES 1563, TER LTEA,00E
WET INCREASE /| [DECREASE] OF CASH DR CASH EQUIVALENTS TITI0ABE (213084TH
‘Cash and cash equivalenis al begiening of year 14 50,793,250 TZI76,829
Cosh gnd caph equivalents ot and of yaks 14 $2.582,114 50,783,250
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1. PARENT COMPANY

Greanala, S, (harenafler, “the Parent Company” or “the Company”) was incorporated on 13
Decamber 2013 as a prvate limitad kability company uncer the name of Grupo Garcia Forastal,
5.L. On 2 Seplember 2016, it changed its comparry name ko Greenala, 5. and on 7 July 2017,
1 became a publc limited labilty company.

Thea Company’s regrstaced office & Awda. Zumalacarmegui, n° 35, piso baje. Cedeira (A Corufia).
On 2 September 2016, the Company moved 25 registered office to Plaza de Marfa Pita, Numbar
10k, Fioar 1, in A Corufia,

Its company aim consists of the preducion of electricity wsing renewable energy sources and all
the complementary activilies, development, managemeri, operation, maintsnence, and
merketing of power plants, n addiion 1o the acquisition and disposal of shares and inlarests
represanling the share capital of any type of company, fnancing of nvestees, and provision of
managemant suppor services required by investees to adequately manage and administer their
own business, whathar through the Company's staff or third parties.

In 2014, the shareholiders of Gresnalia, S.L. resobved 1o recrganise the Group in order ko adopt
an organsat slrucure, s ing the differenl aclivities by company. Therefore, on 13
August 2014, the Group was incorporated in accordancs with aicke 42 of the Coda of Commarce
and is subjact 1o the tax regime astablshed in Chaptar VIl of Trtke V1 1 of Royal Legrsiative Decrea
472004, of 5 March, approving the Consclidated Text of the Corporate Income Tax Act Thesa
rescbitions waene passed al the General Shareholdars’ Maaling and deposited with the Companies
Regestry of A Consfa,

The aim of the ather Group companies is the produclion of electricity using renewable enengy
sowrces and all complamentary activiies, development, managament, operation, maintenance
and markating of pawer plants, in addiion to the purchase and sale, impor, export, processing,
and handiing of all typas of weed n gensral and transpod tharsof,

On 1 December 2017, the Group was lisled on BME Growth In May 2022, the majority
shaveholders launched a delisting lender offer 1o take control of 100% of the Company's shares,
‘which was accepted by the shareholders owning the shares, and on 3 Augusl 2022, the Company
was dalisted from BME Growth,

On 28 Oclober 2022, the Parent Company approved a share capital redudlion for the purpose of
returning the value of the contributions 1o the shareholdars cther than the bidders in the takeower
buct; Follewing thes reduction, Smarttia, S.1-U, now holds 94%.of the shares; this situation continues
a5 at 31 December 2023,

Uinil the 2022 financal year, the business modal of the group headed by Dominante Greenalia,
S.A. had bean prmanly engaged in devalaping and constructing power plants from renswabie
enangy sources with a view fo producing and sefing elactncity. From 2023 omwards, with tha
progress of the project pipelne, tha company slarted rotating assets as part of 45 strategic plan.
In this regard, at e twimn of the 2023 financial year, the first agreement was reached to sell a
number of non-strategic projects a1 an advanced stape of cevelopment (MNote 6.2,

Therafora, as al 31 December 2023, under “Inventones” i the balanta sheel the Group
maintainad devaiopmants that can ba sold in1he normal course of businass (Note 131

The Group is controlled by Smarttia, S.LU. (formady Moroeste Invarsidn y Desarrolio S.LU. and
also Smarttia Spain, S.L.AL), with registered office at Plaza de Maria Pita, n® 10 planta 1* in A
Consa, The consolidaled annual accounts of the Smarttia Group and the consolidated
menagemeant repod for the 2022 financial year were drawn up on 31 March 2023 and filed with
the Conenercal Registy of A Conufla, together with the coresponding auditor report. The
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consoldated annual accounts and the consclidated drediors' report for the financial year 2023
will be drafted in a timely manner and filed, togather with the cormesponding audit repor, with the
Mercantle Riegistry within the lagally established deadlines.

Natwithstanding the foragoing. the campany, as the parenl company of the Greanalia Group
haraby voluntarily draws up and files the consolidated anrnual accounts of the Group i heads with
the Commercial Riegistry of A Corufia, The consobdated annual accounts of Greenaia Group and
1he consolidaied directors’ repon for the 2022 firancal year wre gram uUp on 27 Apnl 2023 and
we fileg with the Mescantlie Registry together with B comesponding audit report.

. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
21 Basis of Presentation

The directors of the Parent Company have prepared thess consolidated annual accounts based
on the accounting recerds of Groenalia S. A, and its subsidianes for the year ended 37 Decembar
2023, in pccordance with Intematonal Finonclal Reporting Standards as adopled by the
Evropean Union (hereirafter, "ELHFRS") and other applicable provisions of the regulstory
financial reporting framevork, in order lo present faity the cof aquily
financial posiion, consolicated results and consolidated cash flows of the Gmmaiﬂm date.

Thesa ennsolidated financial stalemants have been praparad by the dirediors of the Parent
Company at their meating held on 20 March 2024 in accordance with the applicable financial
reporing framework sat out below:

The Intesnational Financial Reporing Standards adopted by the Evropean Union by means:
of Commurity Regulations, in accordanca with Ragulation 160672002 of the Europaan
Fariament and of the Councl of 19 July 2002 ard is subsequent amendmeants (EU-IFRS).

= The IFRE Interprotatons Commitioa (IFRIC),

- The Spanish Commercial Code and all cther Spanish Comperale Law,

The direclors beleve thal these financial statemants will be approved by the shaseholders al Lhe
Annual General Mesating without any modifications.

For compansan purposes, the consolidmed fnancal statements present, for each iem in the:
consoldated statemunt of financial positon, the consoldate incume statement, the consolidaled
staternent of comprehensive income, he covsolidated statement of changes in aequily, the
consoldated cash flow statement and the consobdated notes to the consclidated financial
slatements, in addition to the consolidated ﬁgumhmwﬁuumfmm previous year,
'which hene bean obtained using the aforementioned criteria

Toduly compare, it should be taken into account a5 siated in note 1 that, until 2022, the business
medel of thi group heated by the Parent Campany Greonalia, 3.4 had boen pamaly
n developing and construcling power plants from renewable energy sources with a view 1o
poducing and sellng alecticly. From 2023 enwards. wilh the progress of the project papenaoik,
the company sladed rotaling assels as part of its stralegic plan, therefore, the projects in
davaiopmant have been reclassified 1o tha inveriary heading.
New IFRIC stancands and imerpretations

i Adoplion of new amd interpratations issued
The following amendments to accounting standards are effective for the year 2023 and have
therefora been taken into accourt in the prepanation of these consolicated financial statemeants;
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The foregoing amendments have been applied without sigrificant impadt either on the reported
figuras or on the presentatcn and breakdown of infermation, either because they do not ertail
relevant changes or as they rafer to economes events that do not affect the Group.

i Standands effectve from 1 January 2024 onwards:

Standards, amendments and interpretations sseed but not curently effective for the Group
[whose effective date of application has not yet taken place or, despite their effective dales of
application, heve not yet been approved by the EU) are as follows:
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The Gaoup's diredlors do not expedt significant impacts from apolying tha amandments and
improvemants summarised in the lable above that have bean published but are not yet effective
becausa they are prospectse applications, amendments in presantation and discioswne and’or
bacause they address aspects that are not applicable or matesial 1o the Group.

22 Going concern

Asal 31 Decamber 2023, the group has a positie werlong capital of €125,667 (negative €140,776
as at 31 Decamber 2002), hawng ts strategy during the currerd financial year by puting
N pLICE 30 B8 ralation under devilopment policy,

Notwithstanding the faregoing, the group has short-term debl meturities mainly due o green notes
as a maans of inestment in renawablea projacts amounting 1o €672 milkan, debts with financial
nstilutions associated with projects undar developmant amounting o £58.5 million, as wel as
datls wilh supphers of fixed assals mainly relatad io projects that tha group is developing n the
Unitad States amounting to €104 millior.

Given that the disposable wind fanms beld by the Group are assets that fvele an implict process
for the comeersion thereal inta cash in the short term, the foregoing croumstances giwe nse o
uncartainty with regard to the application of the gaing concam principle, although the following
mitigating factors have baen taken inta account by the directors of the Parent Company:

Long-term financing has been obtained through the subsidiary Greenalia Power US for the
projects under dewveicpment in the United States, ensuring the availabilily of funds for the
development of thesa assels over the next 3 years,

Tha primary shor-lerm financial debt of €40 million i guaranieed by projects undar
development i Spain (see Nole 18) without thare being any coparats QUArANIEES, 0 A
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potential execulion thereof would not affect the continuiy of the rest of tha group's
businesses.

- With regand 1o the green promissory nole programme subscribed by the Group, it should be
noted that, afthough they mature in the short temm, they are baing ranewed on & fecuming
basis. which already occurmed in 2024 (sae Mote 32 on subsaquent events] and is expecled
to confinue in the financial year,

- The latest valuations of the assets under development owned by the subsidiaries carmed out
in Janugry 2024 show thal thess assets have a fair value much higher than ther bock value,
tharefore, the sale of these assets would ganarate funds that would improve the group's
financal position,

The shareholders of the Group's parent company (Smaritia, S.L.UL) have expressly staled
that they will provde the financial supportl requred 1o enable the Group to mesl its
commitments and payment obigations and ensure the continuity of its operations.

I this regand, and in view of the curment business plan for the remaining assats and businasses
of the Group which generate positive cparating cash flows and that tha refirancing of tha debts
faling due in the short term is expecied o be satisfactory, the drectors of the parent company
have prepared the consolidated annual acoounts on a going conoern basis,

. SIGNIFICANT REGULATORY FRAMEWORK

The aclivily of some subsidianes consists of power generation, so their viabilly is significanthy
affected by the regulatory frameawork.

The key regulaticns affecting the Group's cperations in Spain are outined below:

The renewable energy saclor is a regulated sector that has experienced major changes in recent
years, having been gven a new regulatory framework in 2013, Within this framewark, the new
reference reguiation is Law 242013, of 26 Decembser, on the Electricity Secles, which repeals the
prenaoLs: Lawy 541997, of 27 November, on the Elecncity Sector.

Cn 26 December 2013, the new Secter Law wes published, which mifies the provisions of Royal
Decres-Law 92013; eliminating the special ragime and proposing 8 néw IBMUNEration schame
for thesa ranewable, cogeneration and waste facilties. The new ion (known as specilic
rarmuneration and to be grarted for new instalations on an exceptional basis) i supplementary
40 the remuneration for the sala of enargy on the marked and is made up of a term per unit of
nstalied capacty that includes, whera appicable, investment costs that cannat be recovernad by
the marked, and an operating term that covers. where appicable, the diference between oparating
comts and the market price.

This new specific remuneration is calculstad on the basis of & standand instalation, over s
regulgtory ietime and with referenca 1o the activity carried out by an efficient and well-managed
company on the basis of
The standand revanue from the sake of enargy valued 2t the markel prog;
Standard cperating costs; and
- The standard value of tha inlial irvastmant.

This remuneration Systed i basad on & reasonable reurm on mvestmant, which s cefined on the
bases of the interest rate of the ten-year gavernment bond pliss a spread, intiady set al 300 bass
points. Sbryear reguiaiony panods and thiea-year sub-penods ane defined. The remunaration
parameters related ko the markaet price forecasts could be amended every three years,
nooiporating any devialions thal may have oocurred in the sub-penod. Every six years the
standard parameters of the installations may be modified; except for the intial investment value
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and the regulatory (fetime, which will remain unchanged thrcughoul the Metime of the
nsialiations. Similarly. the interest rate of remuneration may be modified cnoe every six years,
but only for future remuneration.

The valua of the standard mvestment for new inslallations is determined through a competitive
procedure. This new remuneration will apply from July 2013, as from the date of entry into forca
of Foyal Decree-Law 92013, On 6 June 2014, ROL 4132014 was pubiished, reguiating the
activity of electricity production from renowatie enefgy SOUICES, CORENOraton and waste. In
additien, on 16 June 2014, Order IET 10452014 of the Ministry of Industry, Energy and Toursm
was published, approving the remuneralion parameters of the standard cortributions epplicable
w0 ceitan eleciniclly production faclties using renewable energy sources, cogenadation and
waste. According o this new regulation, facilites wil receive, during their regulatory usaful life, in
addition 10 the remunerglion for the sale of enemgy vaied at the marke! price, a specfic
remuneration consisting of a term per unit of nstalled capacity that covers, whare appicabls, the
nwvesiment costs for each standard installation that cannol b recowered through the sala of
NG O 116 MATKEL, KNown &5 | remi and an BT COMBIING, WieTe:
applicable, the diference between operating costs and income from particapaben in the production
maked for that standand InsWRItcn, kNOWN 35 OPETEting fefmaneraton.

On 23 March, Royal Decres-Law 672022 was pubished, which mcluded measures related to the
specific remunenation regime apphcable 1o renewable plants sat out in Royal Decree 4132014,
considering tha curram context of the dactricity markst darivad from the consaquances of the war
n Ukraine and guaranteeing that thase faciities achieva tha establishad reasonabla profiabiiy.

Thesa maasures mainly consisted of a review of the applicable remuneration parametars, as well
as amendmenis 1o the method for calculating the adjustment for deviations from marked price
[WAIDM),

On 12 May 2022, a Proposed Onder was publishad which updaned the remunaranon parsmelers
for the year 2022, wihoud prejudice to the revisions foreseen in each regulatony haif-pened and
e revisions of the remuneraton for operation.

Consequantly, tha approval of the Ministarial Order updaling the parameters for tha calculation
of the new remuneraton for mvestment and oparation for 2022 was ordered, which was finally
published on 11 December 2022,

The main impad of ks measwe has been the educhon of imvestment and operating
rarmuneration inaknost all reguiabed national faciles, as a resull of the high pool prices obtained.

There is atso an extenson of the temporary suspenson of the tax on the value of slctnicty
production (IVPEE] urtil 31 Decamber 2023, as well as the application of the reduced VAT rate
of 10%, subsequently extended and reduced, in the case of VAT, with tha publcaticn of RDL
102022,

Cn 20 June 2023, Royal Decree-Law 52023 of 28 June was published, adepting a number of
measures applicabie 1o power plants included in the spaciic ramuneration ragime govemed by
RO 413/2014, specfically the regulatory pool for the 2023-2025 half-period al € 108.31MWh for
2023, €108 85MWh for 2024 and €89.37IMWh for 2025, it is established that 1o calculate the
Vajdm in the market proe for 2023 that will be appbed in the updating of the remuneratcn
parameters for the reguiplony haif-penicd starting on 1 January 2026, the weighted average value:
of e ehectricity markat price baskel for the year 2023 will be e minimum value between (he
aforementioned value, as sel fodh n aticle 22 of RD 4132014, and the average annual price of
ihe daily and intraday merket n 2023.

Order TED 74172023 vas publshed on 30 June 2023, updating the remunaration parameters of
the standard power plants included in the scope of appication, for the regulatory half-pesicd
between 1 Janvary 2023 and 31 December 2025, pursuant 1o the provisons of aricie 20.2 of
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Royal Decrea 413/2014, of 6 June, which regulates the activilty of elecincity production from
renevable energy sources, cogenemibion and waste. Furthermore, the values of the operating
remuneration for the first calendas half of the year 2023 for standard plants whese cperating costs
peimarily depend on the price of fuel are set.

Worth highlighting from this order 15 he updating of blamass costs 1o 1% and detals the KAV as
of January 2023 and the future remuncration of plants,
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4. RECORDING AND VALUATION STANDARDS

The main vakmalion standards used in the preparation of the Group's consolidated financial
slatements, i accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as sdopled by (he
Eurapean Union (EU-IFRS ), were as Tollows:

4.1 Subsidiarfes

Subsidiaries are dafinad as entities over which the Company has the ability to exercise effactive
conlrol; this ability & genemlly evidenced by the existence of thres elements thal mas! be
satisfied: power ovar e investea, exposure o ghts o variable retums from the imesiment and
e aibility to use that power 1o affect the amount of those relums.

The annual accounts of the afiarias ara flly cor with those of the Company.
Consequently, all significant balunoss and effects of b i batwean idated
companias kave basn aliminated on consalidation,

In the consolidation process, fransactions and balances between Greenala's subsidiaries are
ramoved, as well a5 unreaksed profits with thind partees external to Greanalia.

The resulls of the companies aoguined in a given year are consalidated Laking into secount only
e relating to the pensod batween the date of acquisition and the end of thal year. A2 the samea
time, Ihe results generated by companias disposed of during the year are consolidated 1aking into
account only those relating to the period between the beginning of e year and the date of
disposal

In addition, the interest of minority shareholdersiparmers at the acquisition date is established in
proportion o the fair valses of the minorty's recognised assels and Labilies.

4.2 Non-controifing interests

Non-controling inlerests in subsidianes ied priod to tha ¥ date (no non-

intarasts ware acquired a%ter the fransiion date] are recognised i the percentage of equity
Eenesl in the subsidiares at the date of Gisl consoldation. Non-conlroliing nberesis ang
recognised in equity in the consolidaled sialement of financal position separalely from equity
affributable ko the Parent Company, The mm-ulmg interests” share of prafit or loss for 1he
o i also 5 Y in the ncome statement.

The Group's and the non-controlling interests’ shara of consolidated pofit or kss for the year
{mial consolidated comprehensive incoma for the year) and of changas in equity of subsidianas,
after consolidation adjustments and eliminations, ks detarmined on the basis of the ownarship
Interests at year-end, disregarding tha possible exercise or conversion of potential votng rights,

Profit and loss and incoms and expanses recognised in eguity of subsidianes are alfocated o
equity attributable to the Parent and fo non-controfing interests in proportion fo their ownarship
intarast, sven if this rasuls in a dabit halanca for non-controling intevests. Agreamants entared
info betwean the Group and non-controlling i ane recognised a5 B transaciion.

Third-party interests in the equity of investess are presented under “Mon-controling interests” in
the consolidated statemeant of financial position within equity. Siméarly, its share in the resulis for
the year s recognised in the consolidated ncome statamant wder “Hon-controling interess”.

4.3 Business combinations

Business combinations in which the Group acquires control of one o several businesses through
ihe merger of spin-off of multiple companies or threugh the acquisition of all the assets and
Eabililies of & compary or 8 part of & company comprising one o more businesses ane reconded

the: acquisition method, which involves accounting for the idenlifiible assets acquired and
e kabilities assumed at their far value a1 the acguesilion date, prowvided that te fair value can
ba measured raliably.

18
3 Fca, 10, 1% || OF 15000 | A Conufia, Spain
i | mip@preenaily e | e greenalls es

greenalia

In this regard, a business is considered o ba “an integrated sel of activities and &ssals capabla
of being directed and managed for the purposa of providing a profit by way of dividends, lower
costs or afher econommic banefits directly 1o investors or other cwners, memibers of particpants™;
and therefore, te aequisition of an asset or Group of assets that does not mesat this definition s
mcognisad on an ndividual basis sccording 1o its natune.

This i eommaon in the Group's scquisitions of SPV (Special Purpose Vehicle) companies, sinca
hese sequisitons ane not cassilied & business acquisitions, bul rather as scquisitions of assats
that do nat conslitute a business, and are recoided in accondance with he cilena described in
Hole 4.4,

The difference batween the cost of the business combination and the walue of the idanlifiabla
assals soquined less the liabilibes assamed s recognised as goodwill, il posithee, or as income in
1hee income statement, B negative,

Busingss combanations for which the vahsation process requinsd for application of the atqusition
method has not been completed at the repoding date sne accounted for usang provisional values.,
Thase values mast ba adjusted no later than one year afer the acquisition date, Adjustmants
recognised (o complele the iniinl accounting are made on a retospective basis, so that the
resaling vahses are those that would have been derved had such information been avaiabla
mitially, theaby adqusting the comparative figures.

44  Acgusition of non-business met asseis

The Group has acquired certain companies, which do not qualify as businesses and therefore, as
IFRS 3 does not apply, must be recorded Bs an esset aoquisition. In such ransactions, the Group
aliocates the cost of acquisition between tha assets acquired and the liabiites assumed in
proportion to their retative fir values at the date of purchase.

This ks common in the Group's acquisidons of SPY (Spedal Purpose Vehicle) companies
angaged in the development of renewable energy projects. In vew of the low levels of
daveiopment of thess propcts, (hase acguisitions are not classified as business acqusitions, but
as asset acquisitions. and are recordad in accordance with the criterda described in section 5.5
(i) Other fixed assets in spadal situations.
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45  Intangible assers

Assats includaed in intangible assets ame stated a1 acquistiion cost. Intangible assets are stated in

ihe consolidaled stalement of finmncial position ol cos! less accumulaled amodisation and

acsumulled impairment losses.

The costs incurmed in camyiing oul activities that support the value of the Group's business as a

Mlnl&suﬁasmmllygmrmhmndsaldslmlwaimlmaswdassm up costs, are
d in the o & t as incured

M Computerappcsiions

Acquired computer software s stated al cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment

lossas.

Computer soffwans maintenance cOsis are recorced in the conscldated income statement in the
yenr in which they ara inciemed.

Cosls intunmad subsaquently in Wwwumummnm&muw unbass
ey e futwre fits from the assels.

() Lisefd He and amorlisatons

The Group for sach assat i whether the usaful ifa ks finle or
ndafinite. For thase purposes, an il!al'lglb\\u assal is considared o have an indafinile usaful iifa
wihan there is no foresesable Emi (o the period over which it will generate net cash inflows,

An intangible asset with an indefinite useful e and intangible asseis in progress ara nol
amartised, but are tested for impaiment on an annual basis or aarer if there is an indication of &
patantial impaimment loss.

Intangibs assets with finie useful lives are amortised by alocating the amodisable amouent
systematically ovar their useful lives using the following criteria:

A tisat Yoears of
mathed usatul e
Computer applications Straight-line 4

For these purposes depreciable amounl i undersiood tn be acquisifion cost less residual valee.

The Group reviess the resicual valus, the usefidl ie and the amortization method of nanginle
assels ol the cose of each finmncial year. Chnges in the criteda initially established are
recoqgnised as a change in estimate.

8
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) Imogirmen of asaets

The Group assesses and delamines impaiment eses and reversals of impasment losses on
muangible assets in accordance with \he crileria mentoned in sachion 5.8 Impairment of non-
firncial assals.

468 Property, plant and equipment
e 2

Property. plant and equipment are repored in the consolidated statemant of financial positon at
cost less accumwiated depreciation and, where applicable. accumulated Empaiment losses.
Procesads from the sake and costs of lems that arise during the period in which the property, plant
and aquipment i brought into use ane recognised in the consolidated ncome statemant.

The cost of assets sequired or produced thal requise mose than one year o ba meady for usa
{qualifying assats) includes borrowing costs acoued bafore the assels ane ready for use and
which meet tha requirements for capitaksation, To the extant that financing has been obtained
specifically for the qualifying asset, the amount of interest o be capitalised is detenminad on tha
basis of tha actual costs incumad during the year lass the returns on tamporarny investimenis mada
with those funds. Financing obtained specifically for a qualifying asset s conshierad %o be generic
financing when substantially ad (ha activities nacessary 10 prepara tha assat for its imanded wsa
of sale are complated.

Proceads. oblained before tha property, plant and equ nt assat 5 llatde for its in d
u=a shall be recognised in profit or loss, and the deduction of such proceads Trom the cos? of the
assel is prohibited.

The value of progey, plant snd equipmeant tso includes the inlial ssimats of the present valua
of assumed Kabdites ansing from the dismanting or removal and olher obgations connected
with Bssats, such 85 restoraion costs, when these obligations give rise 1o the recognibon of

Repairs thal do not extend he wselul life of the assets and mai Cosls e tothe
consclidated income statement in the year in which they are incumed. Renovaticn. expansion o

cosls that result in an increase in production capadty o a lengthening of the useful
Ea of assels are capitalized and tha camying amount of e reptaced ibems is witen off, whera
appropriate.

Costs related o major repairs of properly, plan? and eguipment ane capitalised a8 incurmed and
dapracialed over the panod until the néxd magor répdair,
M Lsefl o prg amortisations

Depraciation of property, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimatad usafil lives from tha time they are available for commissioning, which occurs whan tha
dafinitive cartificale ks oblained. For these purposes depreciable amount is
undarstood to be acquisition cost less residual value,

Costs related to major repairs are amortised over the perod until the next major repair.
The years of estimated usaful life for the various items of property, plant and equipment are &8
follows:

Amortisati Yoars of
rrthid estimated
useful life
Buildings Strmight-line 33
Machinery Straight-line 10-14
Technical instalations Straight-line 25-30
Toos Stralght-line 25-8
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Fumniune Straight-line 25-10
Dialia- processing equipment Straighl-line 410
Othar itams of proparty, plant and equipment Straight-line 4
Trinres podt elarments Straighl-line 8

Thea Group reviews the residual valua, useul ifa and depraciation mathod applied o property,
plant and equipmeant at te end of each reporting period. Changes in the criteria initially
wslablshed ane recognised as a changa in eslimate.

ko additional wind farms were commissioned in 2023 and 2022

m&mmmmﬂmmmmmpm lossas and reversals of impainment osses on
propary, plant and aquipmeant in accontance with the criterds mantioned n Nota 4.8,

4.7  Right-ofirse assets and lease Nabilities

) dantiication of a iwass

The Group assesses al the outset of a contract whether it contains a lease. A coniract is or
conlains a lease if it grants the right to control the use of the identified asset for a period of fime
in axchanga for consideration. The pariod of tima during which the Group uses an asse? includes
conseculive and non-consacutive perods of time. The Group re-evaluates the terms only when
thene is 8 modification of the coniract.

() Ciagsification of isgegs

For contracis compriaing one of mare lease and non-lease companents, the Group allocates the
contract consideration to each lease componant according to the stand-aloms selling price of the
leasa component and (he aggregate individual price of the non-lease components.

Payments made by e Growp that do nol imolve the transfer of goots or sardces 1o it by the
Bbe=s0f do nol fodm a separale companent of the lease, but are par of the 1013l laase consideration,

The Group recognises the commencemant of the kem of leases of lind on which production
Tncilities are lncaled onoe constnuction of the facilies has commenced, Ay prior disbursemiend
for tha resesvation of the land is recorded in propedy, plant and equipment,

The Growge has decided not to apply the accounting policies sat out balow for shor-lem leases
and leases whens the underlying assat has a fair value of less than €5.000. For such confracts,
thr Group recognises the lease expansa in the income staterment on a straight-line basis cver the
bease term,

The Group racognisas a right-of-use asset and a lease lability at the commencemant of the lease.
Ther right-of-use assat consists of the amount of the lease liabilty, any base paymants madae on
or bafore the commencameant data, lass incantives raceived. initial direct costs incimed and an
wstimate of decormarissioning or reslomtion costs bo be incumed, as stated in the accounting policy
O PIOVESIONS,

The incremental intarest rate is detenmined as (he country risk-free rate for a pariod simdar to the
lease term (in this case, 30 years) plus an adjestment for the lessee’s cradit fisk (spread), plus
an adjustment for the axchange rate in the event that tha contract currency is diffarent from the
raference cumency (this is not the case of Greenalia), and finally, the possibility of making an
adjustment for the risk associated with the type of assat being leased is analysed. In the case of
the Group, an incremental intzrest rate of 6.10% has been considered, based on the Group's
financang cost and tha estimated term of the contracs.
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The Growp measures Base kabiltes af the present value of the lesse payments outstanding al
1he commancameant date. The Group discounts lease payments at the appeoprate incramental
Interest rate, unless it can detemmine with reliability the essor's Emplics? interest rate

Leass payments oulstanding consis! of fined payments, less any incenlive receivable, vakable
payments thal depend on an index or rale, initially measuned at the index or rate apphcable al the
commencemant dale, amounts expacted 1o be paid for residual valie gUARANIeEs, 1he execias
price af the purchase option thal s reasonably certain 1o be exercisad and lease termanation
mdemnity payments, provided that the lease term reflecls the exercisa of the lamination option,

Thee Growp measures righl-of-use assels af cost less accumulated depreciation and impainmend
bossies, adestod for any reestimation of kase kabilibes.

Where the contract translers cwnership of the asse! 1o the Group a4 the end of the lease lerm o
1 right-af-use assel indudes the purchase option poce, the deprecation critena set oul in he
propery, plant and equipment section ae apphed from the commencenment &% of the laxse until
e end of the ussful life of the assel. Oherwise, the Group depreciates the righl-of-use assel
from the commancament date to the eadier of the usetul life of the dght or the end of the lease
nm,

Their Group apples the impairmaent citeda for non-curment assats set out in Note 4.8 10 the right-
of-use assel.

The Group valees the lease liabiity by increasing @ by the accrued finance expense, decreasing
Ty the payments made and re-estimating tha carrying amount for lsase modifications or to raflact
updates of fed payments in substance.

The Group records re-estimates of tha liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use assat until itis
reduced o zero and subsequently in profit or loss.

The Group reestimates the beasa kability by discounting the lxase payments a1 a dscounted rate
if there s 8 change in the lease tarm or & subseguent change in the expeciation of exercising tha
purchasa opion on 1he undedlying assat.

The Group remeasures the lease liabiity should there be a change in the expected amounts
payable from a residusl value guaranies of a change in the index or rate used 1o determine he
payments, including a change 1o reflect changes in markel rents upon & reat review.

The: Group recognises a lease modifichtion as & separale kease il the modification increases the
Soope of th leass by adding one of mone fights of use and the amount of the lease consideration
norasas by an amount consislant with the individual poce for the ncreased soope and any
adjustmants o the indiidual price 1o reflect the particular croumstances of tha confract.

Whese the modification dois nol resull in & separate lese, ol e modification date, the Group
alincates the consieration io the modified conlract as above, re-datermines the ease term and
re-astimates the valee of tha Eability by discounting the revised paymants at the revised interes!
rate. Thé Group décreases the camying amoun! of the Aght-of-use asset to reflect the partiad o
full terrnination of the lerse for those modifications that decrease the scope of the lease and
riconds the Gain of loss in profit o loas, For all other modiclions, the Group adjusts the carrying
amount of the righl-of-usa assal.

48 impairment of non-financial assets subject fo amorfization or deprocltion

Thee Group assesses whether there ane any Indications of potential impamment of the non-financial
assels subject to amortisation or depreciation, in order to defermine whedher or not their
racowveraltia amount is kower than their camying amount.

In addition, respactive of whether thene (s any indication of impairment, the Group tests intangibla
as5ets that are not yet availabla for use for imperment at leas! once a year,

The recoverable amount of #sses is the higher of their Tair value less costs of disposal and their
walee in use When the camying amount is greater than the recoverable value, an impairment loss
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s incurred,

The calculation of T assel’s vabue in use i the present value of the expected fulure cash fiows
o b dhetived from the wse of the assed, expeciatons aboul possible vanasons in tha amount of
fimiing of U Nows, the tirie viskie of mansy, the price o be paid for bearing the uncerainty
associaled with e assel and other facions St marke! participanis would consider in measuring
h fuitire eash flows Rssociated with the asse

Imparment losses are recognised in the comolidated income slatement,

Recoverable amount shall be defermined for an individual assel unless the assal doas nol
ganarate cash inflows thal ane largely independent of thase from other assets or Groups of assels.
Shaulkd this b this cas, the recoverabike amount i determingd for the cash-genarating unit (CGU)
o which it belongs (such cash-generaling unils being undersiood s the minimum Group of ibéms
il genarate cash fows o a significan? exten!. independent of thase dexived from other assets
of Groups of assels). The Group has defined each SPV (Special Purpose Vehicle) as a CGLL

Impairment of rights of wse arsing from leass contracts under IFRS 16 are assessed al the cash-
ganarating unit laval. The rights of use and comaspanding liabilities are incuded in the value of
ihe 5PV as it is consicdened thal an acguirer would assurme such Eabilities. As regards the flow
projections used 10 calcutate the value in use, thay include the lease fiows not included in the
calculation of the accounting Bability. Onca the flows have baen discounted, the camying amount
of the debt calculated undar IFRS 16 is sublmcted,

Al each reporting date, the Group assessas wheter thare is any indication that an impairment
loss recognitsed In prior penods for an assel may no longer exist or may have decreased. An
impairmeant koss recognised for other assets will ondy ba reversad if there has been a change in
the estimaies used (o datermine the assel’s recoverabla amount.
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The reversal of the impasment will be recognsed with a credit to the consolidated incoma
statement. However, he reversal of the loss cannot increase the camying ameunt of an assel
ahove the camying amaunt that would have been determined (net of amoisation or depraciation}
had no kmpairment loas been recognised.

Afler & valualion adustment is made for an impainment ks or the revensal of an impainment loss,
1he amorisation of depreciation for subsaquent yean ia adjusted f@aking into AoooUR the new

CATY g amount,

Notwithstanding the foregaing, if e specific circumsiances of the assats show an ireversible
boss, this is recognised directly in losses from the fixed assels of the consolidated profit and loss
oo,

489 Transfers tafrom non-current assets held for sale or discontinued activities
) Mon-currant assats hald for sale

The Group classifies non-curren! assels or disposal Groups whose camying amount will ba
recoverad principaly ihrough & sale transaction rather than through continuing use as non-
cwment assets held for sale. In order for non-current assets or dispesal Groups o be classified
as held for sale, they must be &vallabla for sale in their present condition sulject only to beams
that ara usual and customary for sales transactions, and the transaction must ba considered
highly probabia.

The Group does not depreciate non-cument assals or disposal Groups dassified as held for sale,
hut massures them at tha lewer of carying amount and fair vaiue less costs of disposal.

Thee Group Mmeasures non-curment assets thal are no longer clessified as held for sals of that
caase |0 forn part of 8 disposal Group al e kwer of their Camying amount prior o dassification,
leas Ay amartsation, deprecation or revalieaton 1hsl would have been recognised had tey nol
bean so classifed and the recoverable amount at the date of reclassdicaton. Valuaton
adjustments arsing from such reciessification are recognised In profit or loss from continuing
operationg of in e slaement of comprehensive ncome. For these pulposes, the Group
considers a plan changa tha! imalvas saling rather than distibuting 1o shareholders or vica versa
0 be & continuation of the onginal plan, with the impact of the valuasion changs recogneed in
consolidated profit of oss,

i Di i )

A discontinued opemtion is & companent of (he Group that has eiher been disposed of or i
classifd a5 hald for sake and is classified a5 3 deconlinued aperation:

It rapresants a line of business or o geographical area of oparaBion that is matedal and

cann ba considered separata fom the rest,

It is par of an individeal and m—m‘.irln!ud plan ko dispose of a hedhﬂmma
area of the that is sig 1t of can ba saparals from

the rest ar

i @ subsidiany acquired exclusively for the purpose of being sokl

A component of the Group comprisas activities and cash flows that can be separated from the
ramainder from both an operational and a financial reporing perspective.

Thet Growp reports profil of loss afler b from discontinued operations and the profit or lss after
Lo Trom lhe maeasuremant al faic vahee less oosts of disposal or distrbotion or froen S disposal
of assels or dispasal Groups in Ihe consalidaled income sialement (consobdated slatement of
comprehensive income) under profit of loss afler Lax from discontinued operations,
Smmdm&wpumadmﬂvammasa&smmuwmudm the rasults
praviously presanted as discontinued i q ions for all
years prasenied,
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Tha Group classifies financial instrumants at the time of thair initial mcognition as a financial
assel, o financial abilty or an equity instrument, based on the economic substance of the
conirpciual agreement and the definitions of financial asset, firancial liablity and equity
insinament.

Financial instruments ane recognised when the Group becomes a party bound undes the lerms of
the contract or kagal business in accondance with the provisions theraf.

For valuation purposes, the Group classifies financial instruments 8s financial assets and
Eabilifies ot fr value through profit o less, financial assets and liabilites measured at amorised
cost and financial assets measured al fair value through profit or loss. The Group dassifies
financial Fabilties as maasursd at amorised cost, axcapt for those designated i fair valua
through income statemant and those hedd for trading.

hnGmﬂmﬂﬂ&Bn financial assel measured a1 amorised cost, whethar or nol i i admitied
0 rading on an organesed markat, if the following conditions are met;

= ifit is held under a businass miodel whose objective 8 1o hold e invesiment i order 1o
rscive e cash flowes from the perdormants of the contract,

Thet manageman] of a portfolio of financial assals to obiain their onimciunl fows doss ot
mply that all instuments mus! necessaily be held o malurily; financial assets may be
considared to ba managed for that purpose even € sales have oocurred or are expaciad o
ooz in the Auture. For such purpose, the Group considers the frequency, amoun? and timing
of sales in prior years, the reasons for such sakes and expecations reganding fulure sales
ackivity.

= and the conmclual lerms of the fnancal assel resull, at specified dates, in cash fiows thal
are sobely paymients of principal and inleres? on the prncipal ameunt cutstanding (UPPI).

Such a condition ks assumed to be mat in the case of a bond or a simple Ioan with a specified
maturity date and for which the Group charges s variable market interes! rata and may ba
subject to a limit, n condrast, this condition is deemed not 1o be met in the case of instnaments
comvertibla into squity instrumants of tha isswer, loans with invarsa floating inlerest rates (ie.
a rate that has an inverss relationship to market ntenas? ratas) or those whene the isswer may
dafer interest payments, if such payment would affect its creditworthiness. without tha
dafarred interest aocruing addiional intarest

In genaral, tes category includes trade recelvables ("rade recefvables®) and non-trade
racaivables ["other debiors”).

Tlnsnl’marlﬂalnamudmﬁndhlmmmmmumhmﬁfakmg

which comesponds, unless thare 8 evidence i the contrary, it 1s asssmed to the price of the
transaction, whach is equbvalent bo the fér value of the valuable consideration paid plus the directly
attributable ransaction costs. That &, the inherent ransaction cosls ane capialisad.
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Notwithstanding, leans for commerncial ransactions with a maburity not exceeding one year and
which do not have an exphiclt contrectual interest rate, as well B3 recelvables from parsonned,
dividends recetvable and payments due on equity instruments, the amaount of which is expectad
0 e recaived in the short term, are measured at nominal valee when the affect of not discounting
cash flows i insignificant.

Thee arnartised cost method s used for subsequent valuation. Accrued intenest is recognised in
he inledim consolidated profit and joss account (financial income) using the effeclive interes! rala
mathiod,

Recenvables matuing in less than one year which, as described above, are indially measuned of
narminal vise shall continue bo be measured al nomanal value, unless they are imgsined,

In general, when the contraciunl cish fows of a financial asse! a1 amaortised cost change due 1
the ssuers fnancal dificullies, the Group assesses whetdte an impaimmant 10ss should be
recognised,

Hmhwﬂmndiammduﬂhdmuh]rmmwmarhu

I any case, financal assets held for rading are included in this category. The Group considers
a financial asset to ba hald for trading when at kast one of the following three circumsBnces &
met:

) Itis oiginated or acquired for the pupase of seling & in the short lerm.

b At the time of initial recognition, it farms part of a portfalia of intly identified and managed
financial instruments for which there iz evidence of recent actions to make profils in the
shoat bedim,

) Itis adervatva fmancial nsinement, proveded Iat it s not a financsl Guaranies conlrac
and has not been designated as a hedging instrument,

Furthesrmore, (he Group has the possibility, at initial recognition, to identify a financial asset on an
revacable basis as being measured at fair value through peofit or loss fhat would othensese have
been included in another category (ofien referred 1o as a “fair value opdon”). This option may be
adopted if it removes o significantly reduces a valuation uncertainty of accounting mismatch that
weonkd othensdze artsa from e valuation of assets or liabfities on different bages.

The firincinl assets classified in this calegory are inisially recorded acconding at their faic value

which corresponds, unliss there is avidancs o the conlrary, @S assumed 10 be the ransnclion

price, which is equivalen! o the fair walue of Ihe consdecabon paid. Dweclly altribulable
1 COSIS e e i in the intenm consolidated noome slatement for (he year (e,

1hey are not capitalised),

Subsaquent to inflial recognition, the Group measurnes fnancial assats in this category at & valua

with changes in the interim consolidated incoma statemant (financial result).

Fa ial il E

The Group classifies all financial liabilities in this category except when they are io be measured

at fair valusa through tha interim consolidated incomea statament.

In general, this calegay includes trade payables (suppbens”) and nonirade payables ("other
payablesT).
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Financial ligbsties included in this categoey ana inflally massuned at far vales, which, unless hera
s evidence 0 the contrary, is deemed o be the ransaction price, which s the fair valua of the
consideration recefved adusied for directly atinbutable iransaction costs. That s, the inhanent
transaction costs are capitalised.

Notwithslandang, trade payables coming due in less than one year and nol bearing & contraciual
inenes? rate, as wall a3 dishurssments required by third parias on panticipations, the amoun of
witich is expected 10 be paid in the shorl tenm, are messured 8l their nomingl vales, when the
effect of nol discounting the cash fiows (s nol significan.

Thet arnortised cost method i used for subsequent valuation. Accrsed inberes is recognised in
the intenm consolidated profit and loss account {financal expensa) using the effective interas!
rabe method,

Howennar, dabits madheang willin oné year which, in aocordance with he abaove. are inilally valued
a nominal value shall continue 1o be vahwed at nominal walue,

e il fa

Ir|mbmvmu&mndtdusmmhbkﬂHMImm&whhmMMEhﬂmm
conditions:

Liabiithes that are held for trading. A financial lability is considered to be heid for trading
when it meats one of the following conditions:

= |t is manly issued or essumed for the punposa of short-teem repurchase (a.g. bonds
and other ksted marketable securities sswed that the company can buy back in the
short term basad on changes invalua),

« A shorl sellecs abligalion to delver financaal assels thal hirva been borresesd ("shon
saka’).

= At the tme of inital recognition, it forms pan of a portioo of jeindy identified and
managed financial instaments for which (here i evidencs of rmeosn! actions 1o redalise
paans in the shon tamm,

= It ks & denvative financial instrument, provided that it i not a fnancial guarantes
contract and has not been designated as 8 kedging (nstrumant.

From inisiyd recogmson, & has been irevocibly designaled for fair vales scoounling with

changes in (he Interim consclidated profit and loss account (fair value option”), because:

= An inconsistency or “accounting mismatch™ with other instruments at fair value
through profit o koss & removed or signaficantly reduced; or

= A Group of financial liabilities or financial assats and financial liatdities managed and
its parformancs measuned on a fair vales basis in acoondanos with a documean ted risk
managament or invesimant siralegy and information on the Group is also providad
on 3 fair value basis io key managemen! parsonned,
The full amount of hybrid financial liabdites with & separable embedded darbative may
be optionaly and imevocably included in this category.
Financinl kabilises included in this ealagory are insialy measured at @i value, which, uniass
evittancs on the conirany i provided, is assumed 10 be the ransaction pics, which is equivalkent
o the fair vahe of the consadieration received. Transaclion cosls directly atinbatalie 1o them ane
magnhmmmmulmnmmmmmammfnrmm

Afler initial r o, financial kabsdilties in this category al fair valua
mangannlha mbndmonrranlﬂa!ud income statamant.
) ot o
2
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A fnancial assat and & financial liabddity are offsat only when the Group has a corrently enforoeabla
legal right 1o sat off the recognisad amounts and Intends alther to sattie the difference or to realise
the amset and sattie tha labikty simultaneously. In order for the Group o have a cumenty
enforceabla legal right, it must not be contingent on a future event and must ba legally enforceabla
i the ordinary coursa of business, in the event of insolvency or judicially declared liguidation and
in the avent of default.

%) [mpaimen of financial assets

The Group recognises an impairmant loss based on the Expacted Cradit Loss (ECL) madal, prior
o oibjective evidence of a lss from past events, This model provides te basis for the recognition
of impairman loases on financial assets held that are measured &t amod sed cost or at fair value
thmugh comprehensive income (which includes cash and cish equivalents, trade receivables,
mnwnddobtmrimt-

T i y applied an whelher thera hiss bieen a signilicant inareass
i credit rigk. Where the credit risk of a financial assel has not increased significanty snoe initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowanca for that financial asset at an amount squal
to the 12.month expected loss. Where the credit risk increases significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowancs for thal financal asset al an amoun? equal
10 the Eelime expecied loss,

Naotwithstanding 1he foregoing, a significant increass in credit sk is presumed o exis? if tene is
ofjecive avidence that the financial assat is impained, incleding, i¥ available, obeenvalda data that
comes io the attention of the asset holder about the following loss avents, among ofwrs:
significant financial difficulty of the issuer or cetlor restructuring of an amount owed 10 the
Company on lerms it would nol olhensise consider; breach of contract, such as a default or
dafinquency in inbenes! or princgal payments; or il i becormes proballe tal the bosrower will enter
Bankuptcy or atber financial recnganisation.

With respect to lans and ecsivables, the Group applies the simplified approach and records
expacted lossas over the B of irade meceivables, including those with a significant finandal
componant. Estimated expecied cedit losses e calculaled basad on aclusl oedil loss
axparience over a pariod that, by business and customar type, is considered statistically relevant
and mprmrmmuflhs spacifc chamctedstics of the underlying cradit risk.

(T} Wiite-offs, modifications 3 avErsals 1gncial
humwpdaramgmsuafhnndalmmmhmmmwm
The contraciueal fights 1o the assel's cash fows expire. In this regard, a8 financial asset is

derecognised when it has malured and the correspanding amount has been recetved by the
Growp.
The contractual rights 1o the cash fiows from the financial sssat have been ranslermed. In this

regard, @ financial assat it dersoognised when the isks and rewards of cwnership have been
substanlially transferred.
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Follywing the analysis of neks and rewards, he Group reconds the derecognition of finandal
assals In accordanca with the following siteations:

a) The reks and rewards of ownenship of the asse! have been subsiantally transfemed. The
Iransherred assel s derecognised and the Group recognises the profil or loss on (he
iransaction: e difference between the consideralion recenved net of atibutable
rRREACHON COSS (COnsidering any new asse ablained less any Eability assurned) and
the camying amount of the financial assel, plus any cumulative smounl recognisad
directly in infarim consolidated equity.

b} This risks and rewards of ownership of te xssel hive been substntinlly reiained by the
Group. The financial assat B not derecognised and a financial abilily s recognised for
the amount of Bhe consideration paid.

@) The risks and rewards of ownership of the assel kave not besn substantally ranstedred
of relained. [n this Gase, thare are beo possilie Scanaios:

Conbrol is temsfermed (the has he ical ability to r tha
assal 1o a third paryk the asse! is derecognised from the intarim consolidated
financial situation,

Control ks not transfarmad (the transfarea has no practical ability to ratransfer the
assat toa third party): the Group continues to recognise te assat for the amount
at which it is exposed to variations in the value of the transfered assat, Le. forits
ounmulng Irrvulwrmnl. and humremgnlsean associated Eability.

The Gruup L a previously recognised financial Rability from the financial situation
mmwalmafammgcmmsmsmm
The obiigation & setlled either bacauss payment has been made 1o he aeditor 1o dischare
the debt (hrough paymants in cish o other goods or senioss), or because the deblor is
legally released from any obligation lo pay the Bability,
O Birsancial liatbilites are scquired, even if with the intenlion af replacing them in (he fulure,
Thara is an axchange of debt instruments batween a landar and a bormower, provided that
thay have matedally diferent terms, and the new financial Ebility that ardses is o

recognised;
samlaty, @ mateial change in the current temmes of a financial Eability is recorded. a5 indicated
fior debt restruciurings,

Bestruciuring of debls

In certain cases, the Group restruchmes s debi commitments with its creditors. For exaenple:
exianding the principal repayment term in exchange for a higher interest rate, nol paying and
agg n‘evest in a singhe bullet payment of principal and interast a1 the end of the life of the
dabt, atc. There are several options for such changes in e terms of a debt:

Immadiate paymaent of the nominal amount (before maturity) followed by refinancing of some
ar all of the nominal ameunt throsgh o rew debt (dabt swap”).
Amandment of tha lams of the debl contract prior 1o s maturty (“debl amendmant™).
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In such cases where a “debl swap™ o “debl modification * lakes place with the sama creditor, tha
Group analyses whather there has been a material changa in the terms of the onhginal debt,
Should there have bean a material change, the accounting treatment (s as follows:

tha carrying amount of the original financial liability (or part thereof) is derecognised from tha
interim consolidated finencial sieion;

the mew financial liabiity i mitkally recognised at (e value,

tha transaction costs are recognisad agains! the consolidated profit and loss account;

the diffesence betwean the camying amount of (he ongnal financial liably (or part of it that
|s derecognised) and the fair value of the new lability ks also recognised in profis or oss,

However, if the Group concludés afler analysis that the two debls do not have substontially
different teems (they are essentially the same debt). the accounting (reatment is a5 follows:

the onginal financial kability is not derecognised from the consclidated balance sheat (Le. it
is ratainad in the consolidased statemant of financial postion) = adusted for the dfferance
batwean the carmying amount and the present valse of the new flows discounted at the orginal
affective interest rate;

e COMMISSONS paid in e resIruciuring operation ane Camied &S an adjustment 10 1he ook
wvalus of the debt;

subsaquentily the financial expenses ara calcdated on the basis of the onginal effactiva
inberest rats

Thee sons of the ahal be r y different, amaong other cases, whan
e prasent value of the cash flows of the new contract, nduding any fees paid, net of any fees
raceivad. diffars by at least ten par cent from tha presant value of the remaining cash flows of tha
odginal contract, discountad at the effective interest rate of the orginal contract.

Cenzin modfications in the cash flow determination may not exceed this quantitative analysis,
but may also result in & matenial changa in the Eabllity, such as: & chenge from a fiwed to & varabla
ineras! rate in the kability's remuneration, e restalamant of te Eabilty 10 8 different currency, a
fixed rale loan that bacokmes & particpating kan, and o on,

uf) Bonds and deposits

its Or guaraniees provided or received as security for certain cbiigations am measured al
Thie amaisnt aciuiatly pakd, which does nat differ significantly rom theic fair vahe.

(vil) Eair value

Faér vakm i tha prica that would be received for the sale of an asset or be paid to transfar or
satthe @ Eability in an ordarly ransaction batwesn markat participants at the measurement date.
Fair value shall ba datermined without any deduction for transaction costs that might be incumed
by reason of disposal by othar means, Under no ciroumstances doas fair valua result from a
forced ar urgent transaction or as a result of an involuntary liquidation situation.

The falr value is estimated for a gven date and, as market condikions may change ower time, that
walse may be Inappropriale for another date. In addition, when estimating fair value, the Group
considers the terms and conditions of the asset or lisbiity that market participants would have
considerad in priceng the asset or lability at the measuremant date.
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In general, (e valee & calculated by reference to a relable markat value. For those elements
with respact to which there is an active market, the fair valee is obtained, where appropriate, by
applying valuation models and techniques. Valuation models and technigues may include the e
of references to recent amm's length transactions between wiling and informed parties, if available,
as well a5 rafarences o the fair value of other assets that ae substantally similas. discountad
methods of estimating future cash Bows and modals generally used 1o value options,

In any cage, he valuation lechnigises used ae consislent with accepled methodologies used by
Ihves market for pricing, using, wheare availabie, the one hat has been shown 10 produca e most
realistic astimales of prces, Inaddilion, they also consider the use of obserdable market data and
other faciors that their partcipants would conskdar in setting tha prce, Emitng &s much as possidle
the usa of subjective considerations and unobsarvabla or urverifiable data.

The Group assesses the effecliveness of the valualion techniques applied on a regular basis,
using as a reference the obserable pricas of recent iransachions in tha same assat being valuad
o7 using prices based on observable marke! data or intices that are available and applicable.

Therefore, a hisrarchy is estabished for the inputs used in the datermination of fair value and a
fair warlue hisrarchy is established that allows (he estimates (o be classified indo tree leeks:

Leval 1: astimates using unadjusted guolad pices in active markats for identical assecs o
liabiities that are available (o e comgany 8 the valustion dala.

Leval 2: estimates using quoted prices in active markats for similar instrurmants or othar
waluation methodologies whare all significant inputs ame based on dwectly or indiractly
obsarvable market dala.

Lavel 3: estimates in which certain significant variables are not based on obsermable markel
data.

A Tair value estimate is dassified in the sama kevel of the Rir valuve hierarchy as the lowast leval
input that is signficant 1o the maasuramant oulcoms, Fnﬂfl't Purpose, amm variable is a
varabla which has a decisive influance on tha est result. When he significance
of a particular varinbs for esSmation purposes, ihespouli:wﬁﬁmtwhemu ofiwhrymg
vanlued are laken inlo accounl.

411 lssuance and acquisition of oquity instrumends and financial Instruments and
recognition of dividends
The Growp classifies a fnancial instrument Issued, incarred or assumed as a financial Bability in
whioda or in past, ¥, based on ils economic substance, It creates a direct or indirect contractual
oiligation for the Group to delver cash or another financial assat or to exchange financial assats
o financial liabdities with third partias on potantially unfavowable tenms.
A confract requiting the Group to soguine s own equily instrumenis, including non-controlling
ieests, for cash or by delverng a financial asse! & recopnised as a financial Kabdity at the
presant value of the amount payable against reserves. Transaction cosis ane also recognised as
a reduction of resarves. Subsequently, tha financial kability i measured at amornised cost. Should
ihe coniract ultimately not be exarcised by the Group, the carmying amount of the financial liability
s reclassified to resarves of, where appropriate, the transaction o sell the intarest 1o the minority
shareholiers is recognised.
The Group 1 capital A i equity when they have been issued
and subacribed.

The Group recognises (he iransaction costs of the equily component as a reduction in reserves
n the case of share ssues and as a reducion in the value of the equity instrument in all ather
cines.

The Group's acquisition of equily instruments of the Paren! is shown separdely at acquisition
oost a5 a reduction in eguity in the of 34l position, imes pacte of the

o
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mason for the acquismion. For vansactions in own equity mstruments, no profit or loss s
recognised,

The subsequent amarisation of e parent COMmpany's cwn equity Nsinaments resulls n & capital
reduction i the amount of the pominal valee of these shares and (he positive Of negative

mhmuwmmammwmummmscwm
CIBRR 10 (B3RS BLCOUNIS

Transacton costs related (o own equity instruments, incleding issue costs related to o business
cambanation, are rcordad as a reduction in sguity, after taking into account any tax affect.

4.12 Medge accounting

From an accounting perspective, tha Group divides financial denvatives into two main Groups:
Derivatives that ¢o not mese! the criteria for hedge sccounting: ane recorded at fair value and
changas in fair value are recognised in profit or loss
Derivatives that meet hedge accounting criteria are also cambed at fair valee plus, whers
applicabla, transaction cosls that ame directly atiributable o the contracting of the dedvativa
of less, where applcable, irarsaction costs that ame directly atiibutable to the Bsue of tha
derivative. However, special sccounting rules called hedge secounting apply. Depending on
the hedge accounting modal, the counterpart of the change in valua of the dervative may
changa or an adjustment may be made o the accounting for the hedged item

The pumpase of hedge accounting is 1o elminate o reduce so-called "actounting asy mmelrias”,
Such "sccounting mismalches”™ commonly anse in clrcumstances where the Group enters inlo
derivatives {or sometimes anather financial instrument) to hedge (or offsel changes in the fair
valise of cash flowe] of another item, and (hat Bem i either no! recopnised at far value through
penfi of boss (8.0, & loan & amonsed cost of inveriony at cost) of does not appear on the financial
balance shest at &8 (5. 8 plannad purchase of COMMOotes or 8 planned bond ssus).

The asymmetry resulls in volati®y in the consolidatied ncome statement over the e of the
hadging transaction, with 1he Group being sconamically hedged in relation to.one or more specific
risks,

In ordar to avoid the volatility arsing from this different approach o recognising the two
transactions (hedging instrurmant and hedged iterm) in prefit or loss, special hedge accounting
rules hinee arsen, which are applied through hedge acoounting models, These madels entad the
application of spacial accounting ruks bo break the "accounting asymmelry”,

To be eligibie o apply the special hedge accounting rules, the Group meats the folowing threa
raquiremeants:

That the hedging components [hedging instrument and hedged ilem) comaly with tha
accounting nukas, e, ana "aligible®,

That initial documentation and formal appontment of hedging be prepared.
That the coverage effectiveness requiraments e met.

There are three hedge accounting models: fair value hedges, cash flow hedges and et
investment hedges. Each sels out a solution lo avoid "socounting asymmatry” and andh applies
to i specific type of hedge. The Group currently onky has cash flow hedges,

Cash fow hedges

A cash flow hedga covers the exposure o a change in cash flows that is aftributable to a panticular
risk refnted fo ither the entisaty or a component of a recognised assat or liabity (such as enbering
inio a swap io hadge the risk of fioating rate financing), or to a highly probabie forecast tansaction

{"\l'mﬂula.hldglngfumwumhﬂwmkmhudmmLWMindsahsufm“
property, plant and equipment, goods and senvices), and that may affect the

#
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consoldated income result. A foreign currency hedge of a firm commitment may be recondad o
a gash flow hedge or 8s a fair value hadge,

The apphcablia accounting rules are s follows:
Thae hadged ilem does nol change ils method of sccounting,

The profit or logs on the hedging instrument, to the mdaent that it is an effective hedge. shal
ba recognisad in the statermant of comprehansive income. Therafore, the eguity component
arising as a resull of the hedge shall be adusted o be equal, in absoluls termes, 10 the lessar
of tha following two valmes:

= The cwmulaive profit or kss on the hedging insinument since te beginning of the hedge,
* Tha cumulativa change in the fair valua of the em being hedged (Le. the presant value
of the cumulative change in the expected fulure cash Mows being hedgad) since the
beginning of the hedge,
Any reraining gain or koss on the hedging instrument or any gain or loss required to offse? the
change in (he cash low hedge adjusiment calculated in sccordance with the preceding paragraph
raprasants hedge nefectvensss requinng those amounts 1o be recognised n proft or ss

The “recycling™ of the amount defemad in equily to profit or les depands on he Iype of hedged
IrEnEaCion:

The adjustment recognised in equity i iansfered o the mnsolidated income stalement o
she exdent tha? the expecied fulure cash Sows coversd affect profit or loss (for example, in
pariods when intares! expense is recognised or a forecast sale ocans),

However, if the adjusiment recognised in equity s a loss and the Group expects that all or
part of the loss will nol ba recovered in one or mone fulure periods, that amount that is nol
epacied to be moovered is reclassified immediataly o profit or loss.

Disruption of hadge socounting

Where a hedging relationship no longer meets the effactiveness requrements relating o the
hadging ratlo, but the risk managament objeclive remains the sama for the hedging relationship,
the Group adjusis tha hedging ratio so that the criteria for hedging relatonships continua to ba
met (rebalancing).

The Group d jag e [ oy wihven all or part of te hadging
relationship no longer mests the quallfying requrements. This includes siuations in which the
hedging instrument expires of & sold, teminated or ewercised., For these purposes, the
raplacamant or renawal of 8 hedging Instrument i not an expiry or lermination, provided that the
transaction i consslant with the Group's documentad risk Managament objective.

HOWavEr, xpiry of Weminalion of the hedging INSINATeN! J0es M) OCCur if, &5 8 resull of |&ws of
regulations of the intreduction of laws of regulations, the Group Sgreas with the countemany that
a charing house will B0t &% counterpanty 1o each pary o the instument and changas 1o the
mstnanent are Emited 1o those 0 effiect the i of the counterpty, The Group
recognises the effects of substitution on the valuation of the nsrument and thersfors on the
calculation and massurement of affectivensess,

Fow cash flow hedges, the cumulative amoun! in the datement of comprehensive income is nol
recognised in profit of loss untd the forecast ransaction takes place. Notwithstanding the
doreqoing, amounts accrued in the staterment of comprehansive income ane recassified 1o finance
ncome or finenoe costs of te time when thee Group does not expect the forecas? nsaction o
(e ==L
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4.13 Inventories

Inventories are valued a7 acquisilion price of production cost, The sogusilion prce indudes the
amount imvoicad by the seller, aler deducting any discounts, rebales or similar ilems, and all
additonal costs incurmed unbl the goods are located for sale, such as ansport, Gusioms duties,
Ensurance and other costs directly allributable 10 the acquisiion of the inventones, The production
ens! i setermined by adding to the purchase price of rw malenals and other consumablas, the
cosls dinectly altribulabie 1o the peodec!. It also inchades a reasonable share of e costs indirectly
atribiutable ko the prodects, Lo e axtent that such costs ane incurmed in the penod of manufaciune,
procassing of constructian, an incumed in brnging the products to the point of Sale and ane based
on the level of utilisation of the normal working capacity of the mesns of production.
The: Group uses e weighled average cost to alocale the value of nveniones.
Wi the et reaksable walee of nventonies & lower tan ther aoquisition price o production
cosl, the approprate impaimment adjestrments are made and mw:&u twsumlht
o Inoome 1, For raw and o the production
process, no valuation m*mmmmmmrmm products mommwwibc
incoeporated are expected (o be sold above oos!.
Furthermone, the Group impains assels comesponding 10 propecis under devalopment that have
not mat the devalopment deadlines set forth in the regulations. currendy in force or are not Bkely
o b e,
4.14 Cash and other equivalent cash assets

Ths heading includes cash on hand, bank current accounts and deposits and reverse repurchasa
agreements that comply with all of the following reguiremants:

They are convertible bo cash,

At the time of acquisition, their maturity was no moee than three months.

They are nol subject to a sagnificant risk of change in valua.

They are part of tha Group’s normal cash management palicy.
This itern also includes shor-term, highly Bguid irvestimants that are readly conmvertible into given
amounls of cash and are subject t an insignificant risk of changes in value, For these purposes,
cash and Gish squs 1 il i muarturing in less than three manths from the dile
of acquisition.
4.15 Grants
Governmaent granis are moognised when thers is ressonable assumnce thal the condiions
attached to the grant will be me! and that the grant will be colleched,
i} Caoital grants
Govemnment grants related 1o property, plant and equipment and asgats ane
daferred income, are classfled under “Othar non-cument liabiizes™ Inlmmmlmnw
of financial position and are taken to profit or oss over the axpecied useul Bves of the related
assels under "Ciher income® in the consolidated income statement.
1) Coeraling aranti
Operating grants are recognised a5 a credit (o other income,
416 Employee berofits

Short-tarm employes banefits are paymants o employees, other than termination benafits, which
are axpached o be paid in full within 12 months after the and of the pariod in which ihe emplopess
have rendared the services for which tha banefits are paid,

Shaort-term empioyes bensfits are reclassifiad to long-term i the natura of the benafits changes
o if these ks an other-than-temporary changa in settement axpectations.

3
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417 Provisions

Liabilities thal are uncerain &s to their amaunl of the date on which they will be satied are
recognised in the consolidated statement of fnanckal position &s provisions whean the Group has
a present obligation (wislher by operalion of Lw, conlrsc!, constuctive obigalion of lac
agresment), anising from pas! events, that it s probable will require an oulSow of resources 1o
=althe and that is quantifiable.

The provisions are valsed according o the curent value of the best possible estimate of the
amaunt nacassary 1o cancel or fransher the obligation to a third pasty, and the adustmants that
arise due bo e updating of sald provision as a financial expense as it is acensed are moorded,
When it comes io provisions with 8 maturity of kess than or equal to one yeas, and the finandal
effact is nof significant, no type of deducton is made, Provisions ane reviewsd al the closing date:
of each consolidaied statemnen! of financial position and adjusted lo reflect the bes! current
astimate of the corespanding Eability at each reparting date.

Compensation 1o be receved from a third party on setilement of provisions is recognised as an
assel, without reducing the amount of the provision, provided that there is no doubt that such
reimburserment will be recefved, andmlom the mmound of the obligation recocded,
When 1here is a legal or 1] i of the risk, whereby the Group
s nol Inbhh.hulhhlhumwndmmmm&wm-sdmlod from the amount of (he
provisicn.

Fanrthwrmrcne, wpent are those G that arise from past avents and
whose exislence s conditional on the occcumenca of fulure events that ane not entirely within the
control of the Group and those presant obligations that anse fom past events and for which itis
nat probable thal an oulflow of resources will be requined 1o Seltle them o they Ginnol be
measured with sufficient mkabdity, Ihese mﬁtﬁ are not recorded in he dooounls and an
disciosed in the naoles 1o the excapl when the oulflow of
TASOUTCAS i5 remola,

4.18 Rovonue recognition

O an socrusd basls, the Group records revenua in the ordinary course of business when contmol
of tha goods or services promised o customarns or users is transfamed, imespective of the date of
collection or paymeant.

Income and expanses are recopnised on an accnsl basis, e, when e aclual flow of the related
goods and Sanices HECUTE, T of when the g monetany of financial liow arises,
Such |nnumtswlmmnldlnu1ohhwvaluuo\fh valuable consideration received,
discownts and tawes deducted. As regards revenues from sendces rendered, thess are
racognised in the peod inowhich they ara provided.

In order to recogniss revenue from contracts with customens, the Group follows e S-stap madel
sat owt in the slandands: (1) identify the contract with B customer, (i) identify the contractual
obligations: (§) dewerming the vansaction price; (iv) allocate the tansaction price to the
conrachal obligalions; and (v) recognise revenue when (of as) the enlity satisfies a contractual
obligatian,

Revenuas eamed by Swe Group mainky retate o the sale of enengy and the disposal of wind farms
under development ciissified as inveniores

i il | A ision

‘With regard to services, m&wpmlnﬂ'nmﬂdumemls'mmThmm
are provided on o dale and matedal basis and are recopnived ot mles agreed between
mdependant parties al the time control i anslerred. The logstios and forestry aclivities are
recoided as discontinued operations as of 31 December 2022, since thay will ba disposed of
during the first days of the 2023 financial year,
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In ellectricaty production, mnannieiufmmumm wiven enargy is generated and ingected into
the trar

In the case of conlracts formaa.sleul’alsdnﬂtj'. there ks only & performance oliigation that
Deconmas effecive when the elecincily is made availabie 1o the customer,

Cuudis- Tatno b i

Revanues arising from tha sala of enangy from the biomass plant located in tha town of Curtis

Teineio (A Comnfia) result from the Resolution of 18 Januwary 2018, of the Directorate Generad for
wmmMmmmmmfm1mm¢hmmcM|m

scheme for new biomass-based n the mai wlaciricity m‘lum
and for wind powar technology facilities, m:u tha provisions of Royal Decres 947/2015, of 16
October, Remuneration consisling of two berms is r thee rerr 1 far (Ra}

n BNV regulated by the aforementioned reguiaions and the OMIE Market Prios (Designated
Eleciricily Market Opesator).
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Eudo | ddoe Wingd Fanns

Revenues ansing from the sale of energy from the Mifidn wind farm lacated in e town of
Virdanzo (A Corufia) rasull from (he Resolution of 27 July 2017, of S Direclorale General for
Energy Palicy and Mines, which resclves the auction procedure for the alloction of the specific
remuneralion reginme under T provisions of Royal Decres 65002017, of 16 June, and Order
ETUGIS2017, of 27 June.

Revenues derived from e sale of energy from the rest of the wind famms are derived from OMIE
markat prices,

Ther main judgmen? applied by the Group in revenue recognil T o the on
of the valie of the adustmaents for deviations in the market prca (Vajdm), once it has bean
confinmed a! the end of the half year that the ne! valse of the assets is zevo, the Group has nol
recognized linbilities for deviaBons in the marke! price, Theea are no ather relkevisnt judgenments in
relation 1o the identification of pertormance abligalions, Sming of recognition or related costs o
oblain & conlract,

418 Income tax

The income tax axpansa for the year s calculated &s the sum of the current tax, which results
from Bpplying the comesponding tax rase o the taxabla profit for the year less any exdsting
credits and daductions, and the changes during the year in the defered tax assats and iabiities
racognised. It is recognized in the consclidated incoma statement, sxcept when @ relates 1o
transactions that are recorded directly in consoiidated equity. in which case the related tax is also
recorded in consolideted equity, and in tha inklal accounting for business combinations in which
it & reconded as the other equity elemeants of the acquired business.

Defered laxes afe recorded for tempomry differances existing at the date of the statement of
financial position betwean the tax basks of assets and Rablliies and their carmying amounts. The
1am basa of an asset or liability & the amount attibuted 1o it for 8y purposes.

Thee tax effect of lemporany differences is included in the comesponding captions of Defamed tax
assals™ and “Defermed ta Babilities” in the consolidated statemant of financis position,

The Group records & defered lax Bability for all taxable temporary differences, excegt, wisere
applicable, for the excaptions provided for in current reguiations.

Thet Group records deferred L assets forall deductible lemporany dilferencss, wnused lax cedits
and lax oss carry fonwands to the eabent that it i probable Mat fulure Saxable profits will be
avalabla to the Group 1o alow the use of hese assets, excepl. whers apphcable, for (he
wexcaptions provided for in curment regulations.

Al the end of sach reporting period the Group measures recognised and previously unrecognised
daferred tax assels. Based on this measuramant. the Group derecognises a pravioushy
recognised asset If its recovery is na longer prabable, of recognises any praviously whnecognised
deferred tax asset if it is probable that future taable profit will be avaliable o the Group to allow
e sl lax assat (o be applied,

Defemed tax assats and liabdtes are measured al tha ax rates expecied al the time of revarsal,
in accordanca with current enactad bagiskation, and in acoordance with the manner in which the
dafarred tax assel or Eability is mtionaly expected io ba recovered o paid,
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Defemed tax assats and labilikes are not discounted and ane cassified as non-current assals and
Rabiliies. The Group recognises the conversion of a defermed tax asset o a tax recabvable when
it Is mandaiony purswant to the tax kegisiation in force. For these pposes, the defered ta assel
i written off with a chamge to the defermed Income tax expense and 1o the tax recelvable with a
credit to the cumant income tax axpansa

Offset and classification

The Group only offsets curent income lax assels and Gabililies i it has a legal claim against the
tan authorties and intends aither to seitle the resulting liabilites on a nat basis or to realize the
asserls and settle the Eabilites simultaneoushy.

Tax uncedtainties

Wheve the Group detenmines that i is not probable tha? the tax authonity will acoept an uncertain
tan fraatmant of a Group of uncanain tax reatments. it considers such uncartainty in the
datermination of taxable income, tax basas, tax loss carmyorwands, tax credits, deductions or tax
rates. Cumantly, the Growp has not taken any uncesiain iax positions.

4.20 Share-based payment for services and goods

The Group recognizes goods of sendces received of acquired n 8 share-based payment
transacion when the goods are obtained o the servicas are received. In the cass where goods
of services are received in B share-based peyment ransaction that ame seted in equity
Instnamants, an increass in equity is recognized,

Equity instruments grantad become imevecable when the employess complels a carain penod
of sevica, the senices recered ane recognized during e vesting penod with a credit 1o equity
BCCOEVE.

The Group determines the Lair value of the humgmh&d 0 employess on the grant date.

Market and ather i ining wvasting are considered in the
measurement of the fair vakie of 1 MMI‘UM Ths résraining vesting condiions are consadensd
by adjusling S namber of equily instnaments included in tha dabermination of the amound of the
transaclion, so that ulsmalaly. the amount recogized for thi services reteived & based on the
number of equily instruments that will eventually be consolidated. Therefore, the Group
racognises the amount for services mceived during the vesting pedod based on the best estimate
of the number of instnanénts that will vest and this estimate is revised bised on the nghts that
ane apacis o ves!,

Upon recognition of e servicas received and the comesponding incraasa in agquity, no further
adjusiments are made lo equily after the vesting dale, subject to appropriale reclssifications 1o
equity.

Should tha Group ratain equity instrumants to sattla the amployes incoma tax liabilty with the ta
awthorities, the plan s treated in its entirety a5 equity-settied, except for the portion of the retaéned
instnamants that exceeds the fair valus of the tax Eability.
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4.2 Classifications of linancial assols and labilifies as eurrent or non-current items

The Group classifes assets and Eabiliies as cumenl and pon-current in the consoldated
statement of inancial position. For these puposas, curmen! asaels and kabilites are Mose 1hal
it U Tollowing condilions:

= An entity wil classify an asset as current when il expects o realise the assed, or intends to
sall or consume it. within its normal operating cycle; it holds the asset primarily for the purpose
of trading: It expacts to realise the assat within twebse months after the repodting date; or the
asset 5 cash or 8 cash equivalent unless the asseat s resticled from being exchanged or
used bo safthe a Eability for at laast beebes manths after the reporting date.

= Liabdities ame cdasasfied as comment whean they are expecied 1o be settled in the Group's normal
apesrating cycl, they are held primarily for the pupose of fading, tey are due to be seibed
within twethve manths after the reporting date o the Group does nol have an unconditional
right af the reporiing date 10 defer settlement of the liablities for twelve months after the
reperting date,

+ Financial abiites are classfied as oumant when they ame dus 1o be settled within Swahe
months after the reporting date, even i the original term is for a pariod longer than fwelve
months and thare & an agresmant o mefinance or restrectune long-tenm payments thal was
concluded after the reporting dale but befors the annual e
authonsed for issue.

‘Whese the Group expects ard has the right at the reporting date o renew an oblgation for at
feast twelve months from the reporting date under an existing financing facility, the Group
classifias the obligation as non-cument, aven # It would othenwiss have a shomer maturty. Whaee
the Group does not hawve such a right, it does nof conskier the potential to refinance the lability
and classifies tha lability a5 cument.

‘Whede the Group braachas a lang-term lnan covenant before the reparting date that makes tha
Eability due on demand, it classifies the liabilty as curment, even # the lender has agreed, afler the
maporting date but bafore the consclidated financial slatements are authorsed for issue, not to
damand seftlemant.

However, e Group classifies a kabidity &8 non-curment if e lender hes agreed al year-and 10
grant a grace peniad ending at least tealve months after year-end dunng whach the Group can
rectify the breach and during which the lender cannat demand immeadiate repayment,

4.22 Relaled party fransactions

Related party ransactions ane reconded in accordance wilh the vakstion rules detailed above,
wxcapt for the following transactions:

Mon-monetary contributions of a business o a Group company
In manger and demerger operations of & business.

The pricas of ransacions with related paries ane properly suppored and thesefora the Group's
direcions conskder that there are no nsks that could give rise to signifcant tax Kabilites.

4.23 Enviy eguily

An environmental activity is considersd o be any aciivity whose main prpose is 1o prevant,
reduce of repair environmantal damage amsing from the Group's sctivilies.

Expansas arising from envirmnmantal activities are recognised as proparty, plant and aquipment
i the year in which they are incurred

4.24 Environmant

An emvvironmental sctivity Is conskdered %o be any aciivity whose main purposa s to prevent,
raduca of repair environmentsl damage arsing from the Group's activites.
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Expenses aising from envirmomental activiies ane recognised as other operating expenses in thea
wear in which they are incumed,

4.25 Sovorance pay

In cemedance ui|hqmnn|hbour|og’slnllon.ﬂlcﬂmuﬂ s abliged %o pay severance payments o
those employess with whom, under cestain conditions, it lerminales heir
relatonships. Severance payments thal are reasonably quantifiable are recognised as an
expenye for the year in which here is & valid expectation created by the Group with regand o the
afacied third parties.

4.26 Functional currency and presentation currency

The consolidated annual accounts are presanted in euros, which is the Group's prasentation and
functional currency.

Transacions in fomeign cumency are exchanged into the functional cumancy using the a:whmga
rates in force at tha transaction date. Foreign cumency gains and kosses
satthemant of ansactions and translaton at the year- andmmmufmmaﬁm

and Babiliies denominated in foreipn currency, are recognised in the consolidated incoma
Stabemant,

The results and financial position of those entities that have a fnctional cumency different from
the presentation cumency (currently SPVs with a US dollar functional currency) are comverted into
the reporting currency as follows:

- The assets and liabiliies on each balance sheel presented are corvared al the cloging
exchange rate a1 the balance sheat date.

- The income and expenses in each profic and loss account are converied a1 the monthly
average exchange rales (unkess this average B not a reasonable approsimation of the
cumaulative effect of the rates existing at the fransaction dates, in which case income and
expenses me converied at the rates on the iransaction dabes).

Al i oifs e T iy e Co Sl of
I::ompmr-m; Income and the cumulalive amoend is reconded in “exdhange differences” in
Consolidated Equity.

mmﬂﬂwmdfIMUsdﬂr@irﬁlIhawwualﬁimmfmmdmmm

Dt S0 wxchange rate Chasing rate
MRl 10873 11080
R0z 1.0589 1.0666
202t 1.1827 11326

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS AND
JUDGEMENTS IN THE APPLICATION OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of consoidated financial stalements in accordance with IFRS-EU requires the
application of significant sccowning estimales and the making of judgements, estimates and
assumplions in the pocess of applying the Group's accountng polickes. In this connection,
follwang i5 @ surmimdry of i Bems rquining a gredter degree of pdgemenl ar which # mare
complex, of whane the assumptions and estimales made are signifizant ' the preparation of tha
consolidated annual Bcoounts.
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51 Impairmont of non-current assets

For non-curmen! assets and projects under development, e Parent Company's Direcions analyse
wihelver there ts any indicalion of impanment tal may affect the recoverability ihereod.

In particular, for those eleciricity production and sales projects thad ane in operation, the resulis
obtainad during the year and the existence of external faciors that may affect their profitability,
such a5 legslative changes of changes in the price of fulure enargy, are analysed. The
Management's analysis of this type of assel curently considers that there are no indicasions of
i t.

In addition, for those eleciricity generation and sales projects that are in Se development phase

Compliance with the legal and confraciual deadlines established for their development is
anahysad,
The capadity of thase fecilitias lo obtain the financing required i develop projects is analysed.
in aodition, assessments of the Group's progacts obiained from both internal and extemal
sourcas ane anatysed,
In its analysis of the recoverabiity of assets under development, Managemen! has identified a
number of wind energy projects thal have not mel the milestones et oul in Royal Decea-Law
23-2020 and has there‘ore written off tha davelopmant costs therec! for the amount of €3,303
(Nae 13 and 24.2) (E15.481 recorded in the 2022 financial year).

Whese indications of Empairment mre detected, the valuation of assels would require estimates o
ba made in order to daterine their recoverable ameunt for the puposes of assessing possible
Empairment. In order 1o delermina this fair vale, the Directors of tha Parent Comgany estimats
1he fuiure cash flows expecied from the assets or frem the cash-genarating units to which they
belong and tey usa an appropriale discount rate 0 calculate the present value of these cash
flows. Fubune cash flows depand on the achissemen! of the budgels Tor the projecied periods.

52 Deforred tax assels

Defemed tax assets ame racordad for all deductible temporary differences, negative tax bases
panding compensation and deductions pending applicaton. for which it is probabbs that the Group
will hava fulure taxable profits that allow the application of these assats, Tha Direclors ara
raquired to maka significant estimates io dewerming the amount of defered tax assets that can
b recognised, taking into accound tha amounts and timing of future taxable pofits and the
revarsal peniod of taxable tempodarny differences.

Although tha estimates made by tha Group Directors have boen calculated based on the bast
nfoernation available at 31 December 2023, it is possible that events that may take place in the
future require their modification, The effect on the consoldated annual accounts of any changes
arnising from future adiustmant, if any, would be recorded on A prospective basis.

SUBSIDIARIES
6.9 Group companies

Subsidiaries are defined as companies over which the Parent Company direclly or indirectly
exgrciies conlrol (See Nole 4.1},

The Iist of subskdianes is inchuded in Annex |

All subsidianes are fully consolidated and their functional cumency & the eurn, axcept for those
companeas with registered offices n e United Siates, whose functional cumency is tha US dollar.

5.2 Changes in the scope of consolidation
Inn the finpnciad year 2023, the following changes in the scope of consolidation took place:
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Incorporations of the following companias due ' acquisitions and nconporations:

o

Direct parent col

Grpenalia Wind Power o Campo, SLU.

He-Cottorwood Seéar, LLC

Lesitasd, LLC,

Rosesol LLE.
Greanala Solar Power Willig, LLC,
Greenalia Solar Power Blae Hils, LLG
Greanaia Solnr Powes M 1], LLC
Greenaiia Enegy Steeage, LLC.

Greenalia Enegy Sloeage Msaa I, LG
Groenalia

Greanalia YWind Power, S.LLL
Greenalia Solar Power, inc.
Greanalia Solar Power, I
Greanalla Solar Fower, inc.
Greanaiin Solar Fowes, g,
Graanalta Solar Fowr, ing.
Groanalla Solar Fowar, 9
GREENALIA POWER LS, INC.
Greenalla Energy Storage, LLC.

Biomass Power Lusemburgo 3.4l Greanalia Bomass Powar, 31U

ISarl Greanalia Bomass Powar Luvemburgo Shr.

All of the above companies have baen incoporated except He-Coltonwood Solar, LLC. . Leitsol,

LLE. and Roscsol. LLE.. which were acquired during the 2022 financial yaar,

The companias listad balow ane excluded from tha scope of consolidation:

Lompany
Gresnalia Sclar Fower Quinles, SLA. (2}

it
Greenalia Solar Power Developmand, 5 LLL

Greenadia Wind Power As Penizas, L. (2] Greenalia Solar Power Devalopment, S LU

Cermanalia Wind Power Sume, S LU (2)
Greenalia Solar Powers Bl Palio, LU, (2}
Groonalia Solar Power Cerngo, SLU. (1)
Greenalia Solar Power Romero, SLU. {1)
Greanalia Solar Power indaka, SILU. (1)
Greanalin Solar Power Alsazaba, S LU [1)

Graannlia Solar Power Devalopmant. SLUL
Greenala Sotar Power, LU
Groenalia Solar Power, S1L.U
Greenalia Solar Power, 51U
Greenalia Sola Power. SILUL
Graanalia Sotar Pawer, S LU

41
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Greenalin Solar Power Aloaloin, S LU (1) Greenalin Solar Power, S LU
Greenalia Solar Power La Trinidad, LU (1) Greenalia Solar Power, 5 1L.U
Greanalia Solar Power B] Tableno, 3.LU. (1) Greenala Solar Power, 31LU.
Greenalia Solar Power Ashaes, S.LU (1] Greenalia Solar Power, SILUL
Greenala Solar Power La Golondrina, 5.LU. (1) Greenalia Solar Power, S.LLU.
Greenalia Wind Power Touriflan, SLU. () Greenalia Wind Power, 511U
Greenalin Wind Power Ao do Rodico I, SLU. (2} Greenalla Wind Power Dovelopmend, 5L 1L
Groanalia Wind Power Xesberon, SLU. (2] Greenala Wind Fower, 5.LU
Greenalia Forest, SIL (2] Greenalia, SA
Greenala Logistics, 5 LU, (2) Greenals, 54
Greenalia Industry, S.L U {1} Greenalia, §A
{1} Liguidatad comeany
{2) Sold company
Company sale sgreemen

On 2 January 2023, Greenalia, SA sold the totality of its shares in Greenalia Forest S.L and
Greanalia Logistcs, S.LU. 1o the Parent Company of Grupo Smarttia, 5.L.U.

On 6 Apnl 2023, tha! Greenalia Wind Power, 5.L.U. Group companes, Gresnaka YWind Power
Development, 5.LU., Greanaka Solar Power Developmant, S LU, and Greenalia Wind Power
Eolo Senior Campalos, S.L.U.. holders of 100% of the shares of Greansla Wind Power As
Penizas, 5 L., Greenalla Wind Power Suime, S L., Greenalia Wind Power Xestairdn, SL LU,
and Gresnalin Solar Power Quintos, SLU., Greenaln Wind Power Towifidn, SLLU., and
Greenala Wind Power  Allo do Rodicia 1, S.LU., which hitherlo were developing projects
conststing of constructing wind farms, reached a sale agreement for the disposal thereol. The
rasul of this transaction amounted to €4, 1817048 and is recordad under the haading *Disposals
of wind Eanms under development” in the consoli ncome . This rasult comprises:
the saks price minus the asset value and minus the costs necessary for the sale to be carmied out,

w | pain
IA_D_L{_L-L':::'-’ gl | swwea greenalises

greenalia

O thee other hand, in tha 2022 financial year, the following changes in the scope of consolidation

ook placa:
Incodrporations of the following companies due o soquisions and Noorporations:

Lompary Directparend company

Greanalia Engrearing And Construction. SLU Groenala 54,

Greenalia Wind Power Biue Hills, LLC Greenalia Wind Power, inc

Greanala Wind Power, InG Greenala Power Us, Ing

Germanaiia Soiar Power Reis, LLG Greanalia Soiar Powar, Ino

Greenalia Solor Power Wensowilch, LLC Graenaiin Solar Power, Inc

Groanaiia Solar Powsr Rasciff, LLG Greanalta Solar Power, Inc

Cermanalia Solar Fower Drskedl, LG Greanalia Solar Power, Inc

All companias have baen incorporated with the axception of Greanalia Wind Fower Blus Hills,
LLC which was acquired, Said operation has baan treated as an asset acquisition with tha
antie price paid being allocated to the project under developemant,

The companies listed below are excluded from the scope of consolidaion:

Company Direct parent P
Grbandlen Shipong, SLU Geoanats Logiscs, SILU.
Greenalia Woodchips, 5 LU Greenaia ndustry, SLU

Greenaka Shipping, S.LU, a3 & resull of the merper by absption with Grouwla Logistics,
5L, and Greenalia Woodchips a8 & resull of il sale in December 2022

63 Companies excluded from the scope of consolidation
As at 31 December 2023 thara are no companies excluded from the scope of consoldation.

A M Decamber 2022, the subsidiaries that ware sxcluded from the scops of consolidation dus
o theedr immatariality, both individually and as a whaobe, in the consolidated finandial statements

werg a5 follows:
Registerasd Group control
Company offics Acthvity Gwning Company parcentags
Subsidiaries
He-Cottonwood Sofar, LLE Dullas Emmw Greenalia Solar Power, Inc. 100
Laitsgl, LT Dallss  EMH  Graenalia Soiar Power, inc 100%
Resesal LLG Cuallas ';':W Graenalia el Power, Ine 100%

These compankss hawve been acquired dunng the 2022 financial year, As 81 31 Decamber 2022,
the individual net assets of these 3 companies amounted to €268,060.
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7. WON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
7.1 Discontinued sctivities

Tha Group has classified the assets and liablties of the companiss Greanalia Fores:, SL. and
Greennlia Logistics, SLU. as held for sale as at 31 Decernber 2022, based on the resolutions
adoplad in the minutes of the Board of Directors and the minutes of the Extraordinary Genaral
Shareholders' Meeting of that date. The agresmants relaling Lo the sale of these companias o
Sraattia, S1L.U. will be finalised on 2 January 2023,

In addition, these wara considered o be discontinued operations as they were components
classified as held for sale that d @ signd e of i separale from the
rermainder, and the incoma and expanses relating % this business for 2022 ara presented under
“Prafil for the year from discontinued operalions after tax”

As at 31 Decambar 2023, a loss of E707,000 is recognised undar “Impairmant and gains or losses
on disposal of fized assets”, comasponding to the result of the sale of both companies.

As at 31 Decambar 2022, the disposal group consisted of assats with a et book value of
€18.391 578 and liabites of €25 783,631,

The beeakdown of assats and liabilites held for sale and comprehensive income related 1o
Greanalia Forest. 5.1 and Greenalia Logistics, 5.L.U. as 81 31 December 202 was as folows:

iz
Azsers Nard for sale
Proparty, piant and aquipmeant 1072, 704
Nan-current Investmants in Grous companies and assocaies. 42,018
Long-lanmy Bnancial imesiments. 43,138
Invonicrias. AT78.821
Track B OlNET rCEvRDios 6,531,373
Bhed-leem invesiments. (0 group and assocaled companies 5,176,834
Short-lzem financeal iInvestments. €93.304
Oither current assets 10,580
Cash and cihor equivalenl cish a55ils 37 684
Total ssasts 18,391,577
Linbdiias directiy related fo non-cumend asseds heid lor sale
Long-larm debes 2.648,048
Long-term dabl with groun and assocaled companies 1913
Dedernes) tan, Bl e 67,618
Shori-leem labilibes 13,856, 262
Trada cradions and ol SCCHUIS Pavabie and other Eacities 9,178,768
Total Liabilities 25763631
Difwer comprehansive profitioss
Firancial year profi 802134
Giar comprelinsie proms LIFAETH

The breakdawn of the Profit / {Loss | aler tax from dsscontineed operatons, which is presented
n the consolidated income stasement (Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income), as
wedl &8 the cash fiows (Consolicated Statament of Cash Flows) related o the discontinued
oparation is as follows:
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Eura) Nz

Dedinany lxaes 2T SATATY
Experses (2871, 001)
ProfitifLoss) befora tax Trom conlinuing operstions. 1271112
Income tax (465, 038)
Profti{Loss ) bafone tax from continuing opsrations. 02134
Cash Rovws Trom oparaling acivites 12,261 ,690)
Cash fiows from investing activities (2.073,405)
Cavsn fows Trom financing actvities 2147 57
Total Cash flow {2.187.573)

7.2 Non-current assets held for sale
The breakdown of this haading as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

{Eura) 2MH22023 M2
Froperty, plank and equinmeant 1,923,832 1,923,632
Total assets 1,923 832 1,523 532

Ins the 2023 and 2022 fnancial years, €1,923 832 is classifisd under this hesding, cormesponding
‘o the dassificasion as available for sale of several baling machines balonging to the company
Greenalia Biomass Supply.
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B PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Ther brsaikidawn of the movement coresponding to 2023 and 2022 in both cost and accurnulated
dapraciation is as fobows:

e seanE be- Transfers and
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Movements corresponding to e 2023 fimancial yoar

Additions to "Plant, property and squipment” primarily relate t imgrovemants o the bicmass plant
owned by Greanalia Biomass Power Curtis Teixeiro, S.LU and the final payment of the last
cariification for a combined amownt of €8 2 million,

Additions to the scope of consolidation correspond 1o the fixed assals in prograss of the
COMpanas entaning the scope of consolidaton for the first time in 2023 described (n Mote 6.2,

Additions to “Flxed assets in progress” pror bo the transfer primarlly comespond o the acquisition
of solar panals for the Misaa Solar Park 1l progect in the United Stales and the acguisition of a
high-voltage cable for & wind power project in Cosistanca and Santa Comba.

Dispasals in 1he financial year relate 10 e sale of several Rolding Coem panias of renewabile enengy
development projects. These wind farms are oened by the eompanies of the Greenaka Solar
Powear Quintos, 5.L U Group, Greenalia Wind Power As Penizas, 3.LU., Greenalia Wind Power
Huirme, S.LU., Greenalia Wend Power Towditan, 5.LU., Greanalia Viind Power Ao do Rodicio
Il S.LU., Greanalia Wind Power Xasteiron, S.LU. The result of this transaction amounsed 1o
€39.817,10 and is recorded under the headng “Disposals of wind feema under cevelopment in
1he consciidated income statement. This result comprisas te sake price minus the azset valua
and mines e costs necassany for he bl 10 be canied oul.

a7
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The tranafars comespond o updating the group's business madeal. Unid the 2022 financal year,
the group's business modal had focused on developing and constructing power plants from
renewable energy souncas with 8 view to producng and selling electricity. From 2023 cnwards,
as the projects progress. the group shall stat rotating assets 8s part of its strategic plan.
Therefore, thesa projects under davelopment afe cumently recorded under “Inventones” in the

- fnancial &g they are oonsidered 10 be disposad ol in tha normal course

of business.

The aiclitions io "Land and bulltinga cormespond almas! entirely to the acquisition of a plol of
Land located in e town of Curlis-Teixeiro, owned by Gieanalia Bomass Power Curtis Teixain 11,
SLU. for which a mongage kean was arranged (ses Nole 183 (1) e).

On the ciher hand, Ihe adddions to "Technical installaions and ollvs Lngille foed dsals”™ relate
wrmnly 1o the latesl cenlifications of the wind farms already in oparation amd impravements to he
Biormass plant located in Curtis Teoero.

Finally, tha additions to "Property, plant and equipment under consiruction® elale mainly 1o the
oost ncurred in the development of the wind farm projects under construction in Spain and the
United States,

Disposals primarily relate to the assats assigned to the subsidiary Greenalia Woodchips, S.LL.,
which was sold during this financial year, and o the derecognition of the projects undar
davalopment that have not been able o meet the development deadlines to be awarded the
endmonmantal impact statement wnder cument lagisiation which wene recorded &5 impainment in
tha Incoma statemant for the year

‘With regarnds bo transfers, thesa mainly Include the transfer to non-cument assets held for zake of
1,898 comasponding to biemass balars which the Geoup |5 in the process of divasting.

As at 31 December 2022, €1,430,014 were included Bs additions to fied assats, mainly raleting
0 expenges ncured by the Group with ils own resowces i connaction with projects under

nl. Financial expensas capilalised during he year smouned 1o €2, 524,328, mainly
related to wind and sclar projects,

&1 Fully depreciated itoms
Al 31 December 2023 and 2022 the Group hias no fully deprecialed ficed asses.
8.2 Other information

Al 31 December 2023 and 2022, the items of propedty. plant and equipment are subject o the
follwing guarantees:

The Group has granted 8 pledge on the assats of the Curtis biomass oject to the projact’s
financing entities. The net book valua of thess assets in the holding company as at 31 Decambear
2023 amounts to €£125,136 (E125,056 as at 31 December 2022).

In addition, the Graup has granted a pledge on the assels of the Bolo Mo project (five wind fanms
with & 1otal capacily of 7422 MW} 1o the progect’s financing entibes. The net book value of these
assels in the holding companies thereof as at 31 Decembaer 20E3 amounts to €80.652 (€32,107
as a1 31 Decamber 2022),

There ane no firm purchase commitments in relation 1o these assels.
A 31 December 2023 and 2022 the Group has no non-operating assals,
23 Official grants recolved

Al 31 Decamber 3023 and 2022 the Group has a capital grant of €136,166 and €324,808,
raspaciively, recognised under "Govemment granis® in non-cuosrent liabilites.

Mlarla Pea, 10, 1% | CP 25000 | & \a, Spain
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Thee subsidies granted pmarily comespond to grants relating to the purchase of bating machines,
wihich ara non-refindable.

. RIGHTS.OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

9.1 Rights-ofuso assots

The breakdown of the movemant cormespending to 2023 and 2022 in both cost and accumaulated
dapreciation is s fobows:

_{Euras) Cost Total
Balanca at 31.12.2021 16,416,105 (2,287, 04 14,120,081
Addilons | Allocations 22T 366 (1481712 1,165,684
Der s {2,007 547 B5B.181  41.349.356)
Balance at 31122002
17035944 (3.000,565) 1

Addtions | Allocatons 1.721.340 {1.241,780) 478,551
De-recognitions 11,002, 776) 3ETT (G5, 458)
Balance at 31.12.2023

ITLTIS08  (I6OTT) 13738431

Thee rreain) beases in which the Group acts 85 lessae and which are recordad under this hasding
ralate to leases of nd on which power generation faclses are located. The land covered by tha
beases is all incated in Spain and the coniracts heve an average erm of 30 years.

Additions in 2023 and 2022 maindy anse from scquisiions of balers under finance leases and the
updated payments of the a‘cremenioned lease.

T sight of ke ik been estimated consdenng an average duraSon of the conlracts of 30 years,

Thes incramantal discount rade used for the caleulation of the recognised right-of-use assats and
bease Babilitias was 5.10% lor the 2023 and 2022 fnancial yers,

In the 2023 and 2022 financial years, no impairments have been recognised in the Group's
consolidabed income stalemant in respect of ight-of-use assats.

9.2 Lease liabilities
The balance of lease Rabilites at 31 December 2023 and 2022 ks detaliad below:

{Euras)
Balance at 31 January 2021 10,837,401
Addtions 2,552, 58
Rietirements and transters and payments [2,330,410)
Financial expenses P ADD
Balancs ot 31 January 2022 11,442,920
b ions -
vis and transiors and paye (1,165.070)
Financial expenses . 501
Balanca at 31 January 2023 10,570, 360

The Group has no lease CONTACIS COMAINIng resideal value guarantess.
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The raakdown of the maturity of the Group's discounted lease kabilities at 31 Decambar 2023

and 2022 is as follows:

{Euras) 11272023 AT
Less an one year 2,700,338 2,454,851
Betwesnone and five years [ 8 D0 35T
Mora ihan five years 1,225,631 2947721
Total 10,570, 380 11,442,920
10. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
The breakdawn of the movement cormesponding o 2023 and 2022, in both cost and accumulated
dapreciation is as folows:
L)
and D Chalng

Initial balance  allocations.

Initargitie a5s815 N

Transfers  balance

B5 870 B ETO
£nar intangibis assets 3,163,719 401,421 3,565,130
3.249.589 401421 651,000
Sccuraialed amodisation
Crner intangibie assels (2,533,977} (4ET2 508} - [3.006.575)
(2,533,977 ) {482 B5E) = (3,028,875
Mot garrying amount 715612 AT = - B35
Reglstrations
and Da- Clasing
_{Euras) Initial balance  alk recognitions T balance
2022 Flnancial Year
Eﬂﬁw
In hie assels n
E5.8T0 85,870
Cnes indangetle ARSOLS 2,754,860 409,050 163,718
2,840,830 A0, 058 2249 558
Cner Intangible assels (1,688, 488} {EA5.485) - (25308771
1,5, {555, 485) - [&8303.977)
Net carrying amount BTZ 042 {156.430) - = Ti5612

Oshar inangible assels inclede computer software.
Additions to other intangible assets in the 2023 and 2022 financial years primarily relate 1o the

acquisition of compuler software.

Ielarla Pia, 10, 1% | CP 250070
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0.1 Other information
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, there wera no Tully amonisel intangibée assats siill in use.
As at 31 Decamnbar 2023 and 2022, there ware no assats seciring obligations in the Group.

As ot 31 December 2023 and 2022, no impaiment losses have been recognised, there ae no
intangible assets not assigned 1 oparations and thans ar no intangikée assats located abmad

Finally, thera ana nao firm purchase or sale commitments in relation o these assats.

FINANCIAL ASSETS BY CLASS AND CATEGORY
Ther breakdown of financial assats by typs is as folows:

51
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AEuros)

Ligied  “wowihed ot Towl

2023 Flnancial Year
Leng-tenn financial asssts
Financial Bssets measuned at
BTtSed Coal
Financial assats maasuned al tair
walye fwough peodl or loss
For firancial assets af tair value
with changis in Sl Compenenshe
neome

BE12084 AE12084

1684 000 181288 = 1,665,228

0ITsIT 0977

1,684,000 AT GEEETT 11,514,838
Shoaderm financial assets
Financial assets measuned a
ik oMt 27508878 27,508,676
- 3 #750887T8 7508876
Total 1,684,000 181,228 A7158,48T 38,023,715
_Equity instrumants .."m“""
JEuros) Listed Non-listed _ andofier _ Total

2122 Financial Year
Leng-tarm financial assets

Flrae s i ot 1791476 3761476
Financial assets measured al fair
[Py peodlt or oss 1,153.084 204,800 B.530.065 10.887.048
1,153,084 204800 13,321.541 14879425
Shoat-term financlal assots
Financial Bssets maasaned o
Py 13,513,635 13613635
Financial assats measured al fair
value B i profl o 055 = 427374 2,186 878 2584253
. AXT T4 15780514 16,207 ARH
Total 1,153,084 832174 20102055 30.BET, 313

greenatia

{Euros) MH2023 M0

Lorg barn loans b Ihind parbes BE.187 95,087
Onher longterm frandial assals 8 526 RoT 3 20 8T
Lon-Ber g 1o GRaud Comparies - 355,718
Long-term total 5612084 1TN4T6
Trinche recedvinbias Tor Salet and servces (Mobes 13 11,796,586 BL@M 235
Customarns, group companiss and scsociales (Mole 26) 407347 -
Onheer shon. tanm finaincial assets ETATXS G40,414
Sho-16im AN 1 GRoup Gompanies. 14,731,208 4,443,088
Total ghart-tamm 27,508,876 13.613.635
Fin, ausits at cost 36,120,960 17,405,111

1.9 Financial assots measured af amortised cost
Thee breakelown of financial assats cassified in this category i as follows:

Melarla P, 10, 1% | CF 250070 | A Coruhia, Spain
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Their fair vaiue of hese financial assats, calculated on the bass of the discounied cash flow
mthod, did nat differ significantly from theic carrying amaunt

i Other shot iangial assels
As at 31 December 2023, this long-tarm heading includes an amount of €6 487, 233 derived from
racognising WAJDM in the group's renewable anengy plants in operaton.

This heading records the amounts paid throughout 2023 necessary to oblain debt, pending
formalisation at the closing date, amounting to €1,581,253,

Al 31 December 2023 and 3022, this hesding inclutes certan provisions of funds delivened o the
Charisar of Commernce for the arbitration of Greenalia Biomass Power Curlis Teixaino, SL1).

Al 31 Decembar 2022, a long-lerm deposit of €2,0972 84T was meconded with regard bo the
Inerconnecion improvements of e Misae Il project, maturing al t fime the projed isell came
N operation, estimated o be o 2025, and which was ullimately chinoelied duing the 2023
firncaal yéar,

The heading “Shart-tenm bans o Group companies™ at 31 December 2023 recondad current
accounts as a mesult of cash ransfes to variows Group companiss amounting to €2887. Tha
ramaining amoun! comesponds 1o e balance recervable from Smarttia, S.LLU. with regand 1o
comparate income tax for the tax group (sae Note 23). At 21 Decamber 2022, the balance
receivible from Smartlia, S.LU. with regard o comormle income bax for (he o group is recorded,
Thee headang “Long-term loans 1o Group companies” ai 31 December 2022 comesponded in full
o the balanca of VAT receivable from Smarttia, S.LU. with ragard to the tax Group headed by
this company.

s

frod-farr g fiarra i [0 Grop GO

2, 10, 1% | CF 250071 | A Corulia, Span

1| mig@preenally o5 | www greenalises

172



greenalia

11.2  Financial assets at fair valiee through profif oF foss - Equily nstrument
The breakdown of financial assats classified in this categony is as folloas:

I 22023 A2
Acquisition Acquisition

AEurce) Sost Gl L e
Long-ferm equity [nsirument

Investment funds 1,684 000 1,684,000 1,126,000 1,153 084
Cther 181,238 181,228 #4800 204,800
Showt-term equity insirument

Biomasa Forestal, 5§ L - - 852037 AT 374

1865228 1805228 2183737 1795358

In the category “Investment fund”, the Group holds a fiued income fund contracted with Banco
Santander whose fair value s maasured in accordanca with lavel 1 (guoted market price).

On the other hand, on 24 July 2015 the Group scquired 14.42% of the company Biomasa
Forestal, 5.L. for an amount of €700,000 recognised under “Equity instruments®. Subsequently,
on 8 Fabraary 2019 and 31 March 2021, 2 capital increases ook place in which the subsidiany
Greennlia Logistics, 5.L. contributed €152,000 thowsand and €300,000, respectively, maintaining
its percantage of ownership intarest.

During the 2022 financial year, an agresment was enterad imo for the sale thereal, until which
time the fair value of this imestment has been megsuned in sccordance with level 3, given thal
his company i not ksted on the stock axchanga. On 2nd Janusry 2023, the Company Greenalia
Intfusiry, 50U formalised the sale of Biomasa Forestal, S.L. to Smarttia, S.L.U., and therafors
this interest was classified as shori-tern as ab 31 Decambar 2022, This sale amounted 1o
€427 374 and therafore produced nelther & profit nor a loss in the consolidated incomse statement.

The most relevant data for the financial years: 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

Toulwguiy  Dparailng
Granis of the

Hov=asa 4
Fosmunl S.L 1iaEFn TANUM AT LTI 100 3,860 234 18

Thee Company’s Board of Dreciors considered that the 13.68% sharsholding i Biomasa Forestal,
S did not entail a significant control over the company and, conseguently, could not be
considarad as an assocated company at 31 December 2022

Finaily, the heading “Cihers™ at 31 December 2023 and 2022 includes the investmant mads in
oanan joint ventwras during the year,

Mlarla Pea, 10, 1% | CP 25000 | &
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11.3 Financial assels af fafr value through profit er loss — Hedging dedivatives

On this occasion of the Senior Dabt Financing Agrasmant anterad into by Graanalia Biomass
Power Curlis Teixsir, S.L.U in 2018 (Note 18,1 (i)), in order to hedge against possible interest
rate fluctuations under the EIB Fmancing Agreement, the ECA Financing Agreemant and the
Commerdal Financing Agreament, Greenaks Bomass Power Curlis Teixein, 5.1.U, has enbered
info an interest rate hedging conlracts with Banco Santander (Hedging Contract) on the same
date as tha financing contracts described abowve, under which the Company shall pay the
finmncing entiy a fixed interest rale and shall receive from the provider enlity Se varable interes]
rate entered inlo in the long-tesm loans indicated . This contract is used o hedge interas! rale risks
on long-term koans.

Furthesmions, on the ocasion of the Senior Debl inancing conlract entered inla by Greenalia
Wind Pover Eolo Senior Moc. 5.LU. in 2018 (Note 18, 1r;]-. in orér 1o hetdge agans! possible
nferes! rate Muctuations under the Financing Agreerment, the Company has entered inlo an
injorest rale hedging contract with Banco Sabadell (Hedging Contract), whereby the Company
will pay the hedging enlity a fixed interes! mbe and will recaive Trom the provider the viriable
mnieras! rabe on the long-hem loans indicated. This contract is used 10 hedge nleres! rata risks on
bong-term kans.

In 2023, both subsidiaries cancalled the Senior Debl described in the previous point and,
consequantly, the hedging derivatives assoclated Sarewith have bean cancalked.

This canceliation resulled in the recognition of financial income in the amount of €5,613,036 and
£3,811,890 for Greanalia Biomass Powsr Curlis Teixeim, S.L.U. and Greenalia Wind Power Eolo
Sanior Moo, 5L, respectivaly,

The fixed rale on dervasives as at 31 December 2022 was babween 1.2% and 0.5%. Tha financial
axpansa acereed i the 2022 finandal year comasponding to hedging dervatives amounted o
£1.111. 515

On the other hand, on tha 2nd of Oclober 2023 the Company of the Excel Advaniage Senices
Group, LLG. sgned a PPA (Power Purchase Agreemant). This PPA s considered a fnancal
asset a5 a hedging derivative as it ks @ Swap at a fleed price of S42/MWn from 31032025 10
31032040 Tha lotal expected capacity of the project |s 2B0MW, whara the counterparty has a
buyer quata (Buyer Fraction) of 1428 MW, The valee as at 31 December 2023 amounted 1o
€1.037 527

The iawr values of fi ial instruments, on the hasis of the discounted cash fow
method using interas! rate curves for dervatives oulstanding al year-end 2023 and energy price
cirves and forwand exchanga rales for desivalives oulstanding at year-end 2023, ae reflected in
financial assets and labdites a1 31 December 2023 and 2022 g5 2

ros) NAZEI  RNzRnE
Log-term Brnancinl invesimants - Derfnalies 1)037.527 8,530,085
Shoetl-barm lnancaal rvesimants - Decivatives . 2,166,878
Long-tenm payabies - Dermvalives 1,430,724 -
Shoei-lerm payablas - Darvalves - -
Total TATTES1 17,696,544

Thea fair vale of hedging derivatives comesponds to Lavel 2 (significant observable inputs ).

11.4 Net losses and gains by category of financial assets
Thé ameount of nel losses and gains by category of financial asset was as lollows,
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{Euroa) AT IR0
Impaimment losses on lrading Fansacions. . il
Het losses In results = 24

11.5 Ciassification by maturity

The classification by maturity of the financial assels in the Group's consolidated annual acoounts
of tha amounts falling dus in aach of tha following years at yaear-and and untl thair final maturdty
i detniled in the following lable:

raks and esovican 11,756,566 . 1,756,500
Long-tunm ko o

e pariion .6 10,680 Mord w0068 - - 5,007
e Tnancial asssts ETATIS  BEIRANT 4 = + - BaoRE2
a3 proup

COMPANES 14,731,208 E “ = = = T4,T,208
Equiy naiument " | a5 270 . 1,865,220
Growp and

e sl Com ity

i EL - . - . - AT 24T
Darewy ploee:

- lanET)

822 Financial Year

Trads eocanablks ko

sakes A soAiCes 2820255 - ) a P - BET235
Loans o thind pades 8,800 5953 =t ] 200 30,165 - 55087
Dithin Irancal addits 540,414 30871 2 G 2 - 3EEnnas
Lo 18 [

oGS assT18 4.443885 . s " . &Te9T04
Equity instnament 427474 1,387 882 . 1,785,258
Davwabers [mancal

malrumenty

2006 875 1330887 SR THY  MMSORS  TOI051 6608175 41 09604

it

1.6 Write-off of financial assets and labllities
Na financial assels hinee béen offset for disclosure purpases with other liabilites of the Group.

12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS

The breakdown of tha balance at 31 Decambar 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

{Euras) 3112023 A
Trada receivabias for sakes and servces 11,756,585 8620235
Trade recelvabias, group companies and associales 407,347 P
Onher losing with Gavemnmeant Agencies (Note 23) 146 554 98584
58
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Total 12,350,537 Brarsem
These financial assets are valued at amonised cost Trade receivables for sales and services

The amount mecorded unter “Trisde receivables lor sales and Senices” as al 31 Decamber 2023
relates mamly to €2.7 milion outslanding from the sale of companses with wind farms under
developrment and energy setiements pror o year-end of €2.8 milon.

Also recorded wndar this hoadhg arm paymants of outstanding invoices amounting to €1.5 milion
ralated to the development of wind farms in Spain and €1.2 milion derived from the natification
of the decision cormespanding 1o the termination of te contract and execution of guaantess on
grounds of tha deliry in the consiruction of the bomass plant oparated by the Company,

13 INVENTORIES

The breakdown of inventones is as follows:

{Euras) I3 3n a0z
Trachs 123,778 2ABT 103
R matenals and otfvr Supplied 2,592 087 #5735
Products undandry 200, B52, 767 .
Finished goods 250,448 2EE1TE
Adhvarnicas 10 SuSolens U202 =
Taotal 203,911,583 2TTT.A5T

As at 31 December 2023, inventories mainly consisted of renewable enargy plants under
consiruction. devalopment or for sale. These plants rafer 1o projects under development in Spain
and the United Siates for €81, 384,961 and €119 467 806, respactively.
During the Snancial year, due to the change in strategy sat out in nate 1, the costs assocated
with progects. in progress amounting to €204, 156 were translered, dwing the financal year the
Invastmant made in these projects amounted to €705 million and an impaioment loss of €33
mmwﬂm%awﬂmumdhmmllmmwmlm As al
31 December 2023, €201 787 were included as investments in inventories, mainky
comesponding to expenses incumead by the Group with K5 ovwn resources in connaction with
undar development and financial expenses capitaised during the year amounted o
£3.845 195 mainty ralating to wind and solar projects,

The remainder relates (o commencal invemories of biomess bales for the Greenalia Heomass
Power Cunls Tebeirn, SLU. business.

Ab 31 Decembar 2023 and 2022 pre-agresmiants have been signied with {onest biomass suppliers
that ey mot give rise to any oblgaton for the Group,

Al 31 Decembar 2023 there ane no commitments 1o purchase (Sell) rv matesialks for 2024,

The Group companies have taken oul several insuance policies o cover the risks to which
inventodes are aubject. The coverage of these policies is considered to be sufficient.

Al 31 Decesrbar 2023 and 2022, inwentory ibems are subjact to (he follewang guaraniesas:

The tand comesponding (o welve plots located in the town of Curlis. Tenern, owned by
Greenalia Biomass Power Curlis Tetosiro 11, S.L.U., which & included in propesty, plam and
equipment at & cost of £5,012,000 and is subject o 8 morpage guarantes on the loan
granted by Sapes Public Business Land Enity {Sepes) to tha same comparny, maturing in
2031, of which €3,113,852 and €3,418,569 are panding payment al 31 Decambar 2023 and
2022, respaciivaly (Mote 18.3 (i) 8).
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The projects under developmen? located in Spain ara pledged agains! the loan from
Santander bank entared info by the Company Greenalia Power Davelopmant, 5.L.U (Nate
18).

14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
The breakdiown of cash and cash equivalents ks as follows:
J1M2023 MHH02
Cumert acoounts 31 sight G252 T4 35,716, 341
Cher cash equivalents - i 0, 606
Total 62582714 50,783,250

Cumant accounts sccms nberest af the markel rabe for this type of account.

Al 31 December 2022 the heading "Other cash equivalen's” included a US dollar deposit
equivalenl o €14.083 setlled on 18 August 2023 This deposit has generaled a negatve

raa diference of €258 000 in 2023 until the cancallation thereal, which & incledad
under “Exchange rate differences” in the consolidaied income statement (positive difference of
€829,000 in 2022),

As il 31 December 2023, mammammmm [ g T ——
Cumenl SCCounls in Cerlamn power g 10 E13.7 mulkon (MNole 18.3)

and €25 milion by way of guaranise rormms

15 EQUITY

The braskdown of “Shareholders” Equity” and of the changes tharein i peesented in the
consoldated statement of changes in aquity.

151 Capital

Al 31 Decermber 2023 and 2022 the share capilal of the Parent Company is represented by

21,659,096 shares respectively, with & par value of €0.02 each, fully paid up.
Until 3 August 2022, the Parent Company had all its shares admittad to trading on BME Growth,

In May 2022, the majority sharehoiders of the Parent Company launched a delisting tender offer
o take control of 100% of the Comparry's shares, which wirs accepted by the nnwﬂl'ro!m&

sharghokders owning the shires, and as of 3 Ausgus! 2022 the Company ceased irading.

On 268 Oclober 2022 the Parent Company apgroved & share capital reduction in the amounl of
€10.237 in order 1o refumn the value of the contribulions to the shareholdens al o mie of €17 50

per shiare by redeeming 511,874 shares,
All the shares composing the shase capital camy the same rights and thera ara no resirictions as
o tharir ransferabiity,

The composition of te sharsholding is as follows:

A0 Iz

Smailia Spain, LU 94.00% B4 00%
azady Esaatia, 5 | 00% & 00%
100% 100%
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The Group's capital management objectives are 1o ensure the Group's abiity o continue & a
going concem so that it can continue to provide returns o sharsholders and benefi other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capsal structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Ir orcher to maintain and sdpust the capital structure, the Groug may adjust S amount of dividends
payable 1o shareholders, may rélum capital. may ssue shares or may sell assels o meduce
indebtednass.

I lirves with other Groups in the industry, Greenalia monitors the capal struciure on the basis of
i lenmrage ratio, This ratio s calautaed o ne! debl diidéd by (otal capital, Nel ndebledness
s datermined by the sum of finendal debés plus trade and other payables, less cash and cash
equivalents

The level of leverage obtmned at 31 December 2023 and 2022 is shown below.
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{Euras) 3H22023 02
Net financial dabi 341.600.510 ITT A5
Longeterm Brancial [labililies (o credi instiltions (Noke 18) 538,921 82,552,556
Financial liabiities from Ssuance of bonds and cier marketabla

secirties (Nowe 18) 670 54261 483
Dby longrianm Bnancial liabities (Nole 18) 208,978,348 36,930,099
Short-lerm financssl labities ko credi instibutions (Nole 18) A7 313,748 83,183,051
Short-lprm financial lahilities from issuance of bonds and other

Hotabie securtes (Note 18) 67222114 45,408,134

Trada credibors and ol har accounls payabie (Note 18) 258344981 2225 510
Short-ieem imvestmanss {Note 4], Cash and oiher squivalert

rlarsanri GR5ERT 50.7E3,250
Equiny T0,778,589 44,645,639
Total capital 412,373,089 322,458,239
Lavivagh Bi% B

152  Issue presmium
Thet Ghaare preamivem amounts la:

(Euros) NI A0

EE T 16361230 18.361.239

19361239 1836123

Al 31 December 2323 and 2022, te Parent Company has a share premium of €18,361,.239 for
bath yaars.

Cument legisiaton expressly penmits the use of the share premium balance 1o ncrease capital
and does not establish any specific restricsons as 10 ks avalability,

15.3 Cther reserves

The breakdown in resarves and profit o less shown in the statemant of Wy in
equity is as follows:

ta, 10, 1% | CF 250070 | A Conula, Spain
1 | mlp@preenally ey | www greenalises

greenalia

Prranl Lom piiy
oG
Legnl seasres LLL - - L £ EEAaE
Wolaniary msacves  (11.790,980) = + - E10.6DA [11.2714T4)
CAERA o
36850 - . . . 365,584
Pt o fully
cormadaied 11,451,509 19,115,488 - - [1.889988) 28577188
@101y RERLERS B . W A0
Fatmingd oamings - [ B00EST) - - (3030 (T804 480
[214.013) ALECCRTS) : = (3939 MTIESN
2622 Financil Yeas
Pangnl company
BTy
Liogal resarv B 2 a4a3 . LN
Wohatary iparecs  (3,147.605) TR R4T.552) 98,054 TE0GS5) (11.790:980)
Capiainalon
] 30554 < ' £ 508
Rmotvea o tdy
eomnidated BEETIA 10,318,385 % - 134,500 11451880
Lmpate
[EL-IoEIE T TOS0ROFE  (A.54T.568) 06 555 2na.013)
Rtsnod oamengs. {145,150 1454, 160 - - - .
43,539,263} 12,066,188  (3,947,558) 08,054 108,555  (384,013)
fi) Legslresarve

The legal reserve was recognised in accordance with Article 274 of the Consolidated Text of
Spanish Limiied Lsbility Companies Law, whach estabishes that, in all cases, 10% of the prof
for aach year must be transferred to the legal reserve until the balanca of this reserve reaches at
teast 20% of the share capital,

The legal reserve s restricted and, i il were used o offsel losses, and provided thal suficient
odver reserves ane not availabibe for this pupose, it mus! be resioned with fulure profits.
) Capitafsaion rmsant
In acoordance with Ly 2772014 of 2T Movember on Corporade Income Tax, @ i staled thal the
Paran] Company shall be eligitle for a redection in the tax base of 10% of the amount of the
ncnease in il equity, provided that the following requiements are maed:

The increase in the entity’s own funds must be maintained for § years from the end of the

1o pariod (o which this reduction cormesponds, except for the axistence of accounting
kozses in tha enlity,

A reserva shall be allocated for the amownd of the reduction, which shall be shown in tha
financial situation with total separaion and apgroprate heading and shall not be avadabla
for the pariod provided for in the precading paragraph.

&1

2, 10, 1% | CF 250071 | A Corulia, Span
1| mig@preenally &5 | wwwgreenalis es

176



greenalia

(%) Mol rasorves
The volunlary resenes are frealy available.
15.4 Other aquity ftems

Thits hearding includes the amounts recognised in equity as a result of changes in the fair value of
darivative financial instrumants classified as hedging Nsinements batwean the trade date and

year-and. It also includes exchangs diffarences. The breakdown is as follows:

Tax affact of
Enitial Additiand | Additaon | Tranatars 1o TaxaMeciof  Chlding
loss

2033 Finaicial Yaa
Cash fow hodges 8,772,708 (402,197} B4.457 111,555, 854 ) 2,824 236 37,736
st TFERE. N : + - a5
BSoteke (1.esratE) D461 (11896544} 28243230 (43505

1822 Finansil Year
Canh Sow hecges 3,831 38Ty 15,600 544 (382388) Bi11.898 ATTATS) B.YTETH
Extharce s1a52 67,080 - 7 - Tl

Blgnios '

TR0 16006 (823380 LA @ETTeTE 6501640

The changa n cash Sow hadges in 2023 reflacts the cancellation of the dervatives indicabed in
Mota 11,

16. ALLOCATION OF RESULTS
The proposed distribation of the Parent Group's profit for the year 2023, which has been drwn

ug by the dirgctors and is expecled o be approved by the shareholders al the Annual Geneml
Bheetng, is s follows:

3122023
Basis of distribution
Balmnce of the profil and loss sooount {ioss) (3,334, 584)
Appiication
T nogalive eamings [F0m pros ous yoars. 13,334,804}
Total [3,334,564)
82
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The Parant Company is obliged 1o transfer 10% of profit for the year io the legal reserve il the
balance of this reserve reaches a1 laast 20% of share capital. This reserve is o0l distibutable 10
i sharelvldars unll il excaeds 20% of the share captal (Nabe 15.3 (i),

Onoe the provisions of the law or ihe arides of assocation have been mat, diidends may only
b disiributed out of the profit for the year, or out of unresticled reserves, if the walue of the nel
a-ssnhnmo-:u as @ resull of the distribution, is not less than the share capital. For these

rposes, profits charged directly to sharsholdess’ aquity may nat be distibuted, sither dinectly or
-'\d-mclh' ¥ there are retained losses that cause the walue of e Group's equity o be less than
its shase captal, the profit will be used o offsat hese losses

17. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The balanca includaed undar this haading in tha accompanying consolidated statemant of financial
pasition reflects the value of minarity interests in consolidated companies.

The breakdown of nan-controlling interests and movement tharaein is as foliows:

Changes In
Indtial  Allocationto  the scaps of Closlng
Subsidiarios
GREEMALIAFOREST, 5L .
OTHERS 750 3,935 = = 281
6,750 3239 = - 2
2022 Finsncll Yase
Sus chaies
GREENALIA FOREST, S.L - -
OTHERS 8,750 - = - 6,750
6,750 = - = &80
The breakdown of non-controlling interests is shown in Annesx |
63
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18. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CLASS AND CATEGORY
The braikodawn of financial Ealdlites by category is as follows:

{Euras) Barrowings saciirities and other

2023 Financial Year
Long-tanm financinl Eabllities
Financial labiites al emontised

Dbt
ohligations and
athar
Bank marketabde D rivatives

greenatia

16.9 liabititios at cost - Dobi with erodif instifutions
The breakdown of ail debts with credit inslitutions s &s folloss:
{Euros) I 22023 3132022
Long #arm
Lioars and credits from enedil instilulions. 538921 B2.552, 556
S36a B2,552,556
Sheorttarm
Loars and credits from cnedil Instiliions. AT 33748 E3.183,061
AT ILT46 B3, 153,051
Total A7 850,667 165,745,607

Thee breakdown of all keans and credits with cred; instilutions is as follows;

gy 538,821 S4A9TEM 23DTHATIT  2BT.TES.2TZ
For franciol mssets ol fir value
with changes in other 14397 143,724
compnehersive ncoms
536,221 449763 23, 784401 205,228,096
Short derm financial llabilites
oA TR O TR 47313748 B7EE2 STITABAS  1TIBI5T0S
47,313,746 67,222,114 57279845 171815705
Total 47,850,667 121,719,740 201474206 461,044,701
Dbt
obligatians and
other
Bank mnriostabla Darbenthves
_{Euras) barrowings securities and other Total

212 Financial Year
Long-tanm financial Babilities
Finameial ladbilties al amonised
ool
Financial liahiities measured al
tair value fhraugh proil o loss

Shoat-term financial |iabilites
Financial lanites ot amonised
el
Financil lahiibies measuned at
tair valum threugh prolil o loss

62,552 556 Sea91aE 53134883 189473031
H2,552.55% SINANE 531MBEG  1HAETAEI
63,143 081 49400134 T4EIIZ08 207295704
£3.193.051 49400134 74633200 07235 304

Total

163, 745607 103,700,626 127.768.002  397.214.325

64
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EIE ETIF 7T —

41,323,583
21.THE. B
15,838,565

A07Ta.M3

(S50TT)
408 285)

71,628
112,844
55401
57,081

EIB tranches:
Commumaal irarches. - . ®
ECA franches
VAT creed - - -
Foamaksation
I efrsiims w F - {3,351 558)
it B0007 DED0LIGNER0Yed WorT Poeaf BD Sa0chr M
SLA
Sanor ranchos - LT, 320
VAT cread ® s ®
Formadadion
[ere— ~ = (1,540,855
Lopans [Greanalia Powar Development, $.LU.}
Santander . 40,000.000  £0,000,000
Farmalamion
ts— & 33338 (388585
Mo pasd acomaed
BI02243 2429 442
Loane - Othee
Bankia 5,760 5,802
Bankiser 122 0k PiB4ATd F15 GRS
Bankirncry BT ATH T 448
LaCawa - HOET 34,052
Libarbank a1 065 21,166 B,
Szl - % 5
Santancr WEATR 100208 94287
M-l decsmaind
kvt - 302 -
Concit Inciilien * T3 T y
Cesownl Lits ]
Confieming | Factoring a2
Bani eards - & &4 L

- IS - |+ S S
SIGET1 aT13 746 Bressnoh 83193051 Finseason

Wlarla Fca, 10, 1% | CF 25001 | A Co

Spain
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Amaunt
grantad

0, 00,000
0.000.000
3,550,580

2,000,000

61,200,760
1, DR 0

40,000,000

A50.000
BARII
350,000
261,000
125,400

TEATH
0,000

5879588

i
L R R s L R L B L] A

275%

4.80%

158%
2.25%

2.05%
229%
400%
285%
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1 Senior Dabl - Grevnals Bivmass Power Curlis Teioeiro, S.LU

On 25 July 2018 Gresnalia, SA,, through its subsidiary Gresnalia Biomass Power Curtis Taisirn,
SLLU., aranged a kan of €125 milion b finance the production of eleclricty using biomass in
the municipatity of Curtis-Teixeiro (A Consfia, Galicia). A loan amounting to €102 million (Project
Finance) and a Mezzanine Trnche amounting o €23 million were amanged bo finance the starl-
up of a biomass power plant with a capacity of aggeoximately 50 MW,

The transaction, in which Banco Santandar acts a5 an agent and coondinator, is participated by
hae BEI, IC0 and Banco Santander in the Senor Tranche of the Delrt Project, and the Maegueriie
Il Fund in the Mazzanine Trancha. In addition, the project is guaranieed by the Finnish ECA,
Finmvoeraa Pic, for 85% af the ECA Tranche,

In the 2023 Snancial year the Company Gresnalia Biomass Power Curis Taiveiro, S LU,
cancellad the full urnscm.lnto"mesmrwcnr:luth‘.h:.I obiaining & new dabt with Incus Capital on 15
MNovember 2023, as well as the Mezzanine deid recorded as “Other financial Rabilities”™ (Nole
18.3}

The financial expanse pocrued in the 2023 financial year comesponding to Senior dabt amountad
0 4,492,125, Furthenmore, tha Company has written off the amortisad cost of this debt for an
amaunt of €3, 257 817 (£2 477,638 of financial axpanses in 2022).

Al 31 December 2022 the Senior debt was dassified &s short-term in [ts entinety due to the change
of oparator of tha biomass pland, the prior approval of which, socoding to the finanding contract,
s reduired by the financal nstitutions and = an early maturnity classe. This approval was not
oitained al 31 December 2022 and therefore the entire debt was classified as shori-term. This
situation was maintained during the 3022 financial year; therefore, at year-and the senior debt
ralated 1o the financng of the Greenalia Blomass Power Gurtis Telxeiro, 5.L.U. plant remains at
short term.

(1) Senicr Deb! - Greanalia Wind Power Eolo Seniar Moc, SLU

On 30 July 2018, Greenalia, S.A., through its subsidiaries Greenalia Wind Power Eclo 5 LU and
Greanalia Wind Power Eolo Senior 5.L.U.. obtained loans of €84 million to finance five wind farms
wilh & generalion capacity of T4.22 MW, The wind fanms ane included in the Eolo | projsct that the
Group is develeging in Galicia,

The oparation has been stuctured through the project finance modality with a Senior Tranche
and anodes Junior Tranche (Mezmning). Banco Sabadell acts as agent and coordinator in the
Sanior Tranche, which renched a value of €81 million, Tha Subordinated | Meczaning Tranche
wars sagnad for an amound of millicn,

In addition, as part of the financing structure, Greenalia has entered inio a bilateral koan with

EPCista (Elecnor S.A), which will be invohed in the Eolo project beyond the actual execution of
e works, This loan bears interes? at a ficed rate of 2.75%.

In 2073, the senor debt and the subordinated mezzanine tranche ware rapaid in full by obiaming
a naw dabtwith Incus Cagital on 12 December 2023 (Note 18.3). Furthermone, the amaortised cost
associated wilh this debl has been writhen off for an amount of €1 225 960

The financial expanse atoued in 2023 financal year cormesponding 10 the Senior dabl except
VAT credil amounbed o €2,427,164 (€1,455 214 financial axpanse in the 2022 financial year).

(i) Loan - Gresnats Power Devalsoment, 5.0 0

On 6 Oclober 2021, the subsidiary Greenalia Power Developmaent, S LI enlered inlo a koan
agreement with Banco Santander, $.A, amounting to €40 million, which was granted exclusively
10 riefinande e previos debl granted and 1o conbinus Bnancing e project's devalopment costs,

68
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Thes loan bears meres! at a fixed rale of 4.80%. The matwity date of the loan was 6 October
2023 with the possibility of renewal subject 10 centain conditions. In 2023, the maturity has besn
extended 06 Ociober 2024. The financial expansa acensed in the 2023 financial year amaounted
0 €3, 644 584, fully capitalised a5 an increase in the cost of inveniosas.

[fu) Other ioans

In 2021 the Group contracted 2 loan with Bankinter for a sum of €350,000 with the guarantes of
ihe Official Crecit Institute (HCO) maturing in 2026, a2 a fixed rale of 2.30%,

The breakdowm of annual maluriies of long-term loans and credits with credit instiutions
{excheding debl armangement costs) is as follows;

JH20z3 Iz

e 202 47,313,748 Veor 202 3,193,081
Year 2025 IS0 Year 2024 ———
ear 205 WA Yowr 205 -

anr 2007 T Yo 2008 el

Year 2028 and | Yaor 3037 and

ol fallwing 31,500,620

47,850,658 165,745,807

The Managemen! conskiers thal e Group will be capable of fulfiiling all he contractual
onligations arising from the leans in a timaly manner in the futene,

With regand to credst and discount policies, tha Group has the fobossng:

{Euros) Drmwm dowm Limit Avpilable

2023 Financlal Year

Gt taciites 713716 T25,000 11,784

Ditscount faclites f Gonfiming 404 887 3,650,000 3,455 418
1,208,298 &,675,000 3,466,702

2022 Financial Year

Crodi inciltes ABGASA ATE,000 14,546

Discount Taclibaes | Confiming

ok aiseon 14548

Credit and discount facilities earm inferest ol a floating rate tied to Euribor plus a marke! spread,
18.2  Fimancial Nabitities at amortised cost - Bonds and ofther marketable securities

This heading includes the bonds that the Parent Company has ssued as debt and which are
Esied on the slock exchange:

Financlal
JEuros} Loagtsrn __ Shorasrn ___ sypanss
2023 Flnancisl Year
Bond IV SE.000,000 - (22500
Green Struclred Noles - ET200000 (28699365
Boral IV formaisaion costs (502, 388) - [238,188)
Gewen Woles formalisation costs . {100,770} [214.645)
67
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- o mcerued inerost 122 BB .
Total mp 67222,114___ (5873250}
: Flranclsl
Euros) Loagterm _ Shochdsrn _ sxpense
Bond (11 - ¥ (11000
Bond IV 55,000,000 - (RFZRs)
Green Stuctured Nols: - 45,300,000 [S12.047)
Bon [V formalisation coats (70d8,508) : [223835)
Green Motes formalismion costs - (13,7500 (172580
Hon-pad socrued inderest - 1ZE8 -
Total 54,201,402 40,400,134 [3,641,765)

On 10 December 2021, tha company reconded in the MARF (Spanish Atemative Fixed Income
Masket) 8 Green MNote Programeme for 8 masimum nominal ouvtsianding batance of €100 million,
matuning in Decamber 2024, A total of €223 million was. drawn down in the 2023 financial year, of
witich €672 mallion remains o be rapad, The inlerest rata is fwed for each Bsue, with an average
indevest rabe of 5.17% {1.97% in the 2022 financial year).

The ssue does vol have any collateral or personal guarantees from third paties. Accordingly, (he
principal and inferest on the securities will be secured by e |ssuer's total squity.
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The breakdown of 1he drawdowns mada during the financal year 2023 is shown balow,

Parvaloe __Interest rate _ Issue date  Maturity date
* Issue 5,900,000 34% Io2R: ORI
5,000,000 4.3% ez ISR
12,200,000 EXTH L E T T T ]
4 sy 14,500,000 4 8% DI FROEAI
4,000,000 50% ITONDI  PANIOZI
5,100,000 1% NG FI
Y e 4,800,000 48% FOWHSI  FROTIAR
T, 200,000 5.0% 0023 SRR
5,200,000 155 TAONIZS  RMG2093
Foy 7,300,000 E0% IROADBII  FRATI02Y
400,000 5 B JROAHRY TN
1,000,000 455 302023 2AMS2023
——— 4,000,000 4T IVOSI023  FRATI0ZE
1,600,000 1% INOER0EG frli L s ]
2,200,000 5T MASH2I  PAN1E023
16,200,000 B1% FT - T ]
" Issua 10,200,000 555 TROER0Z3 281172023
1,000,000 5.1% OIOTINEI  PADGPMII
5,000,000 460 JOTIHED O 0y
™ iss08 12,200,000 5% HOTEE 270023
5,500,000 5% WOTIHRI  EINTEZI
3,100,000 S5 TROTIHRE 26N
3,000,000 .0 FETTE TR0
i 16,000,000 54% IB0NI2I P03
300,000 B.0% JAONIDI 2024
1,000,000 5% DAIV2R3 gl ]
3,100,000 50 FTTADEES  PBN irEa
B ishe 16, 00,000 5.5% 2TN0P0EE FEOVAM
200,000 B0 FT0REE IR
7,000,000 Eah FANUMES 2Nz
107 bt 500,000 55 AR AR
B,400,000 B.1% Fi- b hlrivk] PAMER024
7,500,000 ﬁ DUEs | 2emEnEd
14,400,000 TR 224
11" kssue 3,200,000 5% el 2amazid
2,700,000 B0 ZAWHII  PEOEI024
BO0.000 56% ITNVHDII MO
223,100,000

On 15 December 2020 the Pasent Company issued a senior bond in the amount of €58 million
whitch was fully subscribed and paid up on the Spanish Altemative Fied Incoma Marke! (MARF).
This bond matwes in 2025 and bears a fixed annual interest rata of 4.95%.

Thiis bond hed the following pasticular conditions, among others:
i Issuer's obligations:
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a)  Hall-yearly raporting o oS i of ha p of the limited reviaw of
the Group's half-yearly financial statemants and the unaudited Adjusted Debt Rato for
that half-year.
b}  Annual reporting isfing of the L of the audited consolidated

annual sccounts and the auedited Adjusted Debl Rato for that year,

) Pari passu ranking, which means thal the nghis of the Bondholders {owards the lssuer
shall have at keas! the same pan passu ranking, preferences or privileges as the rights
of the other unsubordinated craditars not guaranissd by the kssuer,

d}  Indebiedness mt the |ssweer undertakes not 0 increase is indebledness when al
Group evel the Ne! Financial Debit with recourse/adjusied EBITDA ratio excesds the
fellorwang limils:

Hr2 fird] 2024 Hs
Ratio 5 S 45¢ o 359

In addition, the Issuer undertakes not to increase its indebledness whaen RCS0 is balow
1.5 tintes during the S-pear term of the bond.

a)  Limfatons on siruciunal modifications: The Issuer undedakes not to sell assets andior
subsidinnies, provided that the proceads are not used to repay debt or reinvest in new
mmjacts.

fi  Lirstation on dividend dstribution: Maximam pay-out of 25% provided that the Adjusted
Recowrse DFNEBITCH Ratio is below 4 times and provided that 100% of the coumpon
has baen coverad In the Guamntes Account for the current financal year.

q)  Early issus maturity in the event of a changs of conrol of the company and'or saks of
the business.

ii. Guarantess:
The lssus shall have e following guarantees (o be granted by Smarltia, S.LU. (ihe “lssus
Guarantees):
@) Pledge over 20% of the shares of Gresnakia, 54
b} Pledge on the Guaranies Account toguarantes the anmueal coupan, in which the flows
penarated by the company’s activity ame deposited up to the amount of 100% of the
annual coupon, to cover at kast the coupon coverage ratio fSor one financial year.
Fusrthesrmone. In the 2021 financial year 8 bond for an amount of €2 400 (Bond (Il) is recondad
under this hesding. This bond was inlially ssued on 31 January 2010 for €6.000, matunes in 2022

and accrsed nerest at a fised annual rate of 5.50%. This bond was partially cancelled in the
financial year 2020 with the remaining amount cancealled during the 2022 financial year.
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18.3 Financial Nabilities af amortised cost - Others

The: ywn of i in this category is as follows:
{Euros) 3122023 N0z
Lonig-temm
Amounts payatil i Group ComMpaNes and B8s0ciates 15,270,121 BA2G422
Caner financial labiites 208,678,348 36,630,069
Lerarsen fiatitiess {Mokbe 10} B.506 248 8,318,340
Derheatives 1,439,724 .
234,194,841 54,674,861
Shomterm
Amounts payazle o Group CompavEs ANd B850ciates 5.103.690 5,708,401
Canar financial Fabilbes 24,855,000 ADAEIAGE
Trade credilors tnd other sc0ounits pyatie (Mote 21) 25,044,848 21,963,058
Learse liah|Mies {Nobe 10} 20684112 2.124,589

57.067.451 73,280,448
201,261,892 127,955,307

) Long-erm and short-temm payables to GroLp and 8s30CTaled COMPAMES

As at Decembar 2023 the heading “Long-term deb? with Group companies” includes tha
outstanding balance of a loan granted by Greenaka Forest. 5.LU. and Gresnalia Logistics, S.L.UL
for an amount of €11.934 TAD and £€3,335,341 respectively, thesa contracls were both entered
nto on 1 January 2021 amd mature on 31 December 2025, bearing interest at 7.7% and 4.4% par
annum, respecively. Al 31 December 2022, the outstanding balance of a lom-yanhud by tha
sharahokders, Smarttia, 5 LLL and Mazady Espafia, SL., io Greenalia 54, on 18 Novernbar
2022 were recerded, Such loan was granted fer an amount ef €631,000 by Smarttia and £537,000
by Alazady o partially cancel the repayment 1o be made o the sharehokders who accepted the
inkeover bid (Mote 1). These dabis ware cancalled durdng the 2023 financial year.

Al 31 Decimber 2023 and 2022 the haading *Shan-lemm debt with Group companies” consisted
of the baknce resulling from VAT payable (o Smartss, SLU. a8 a resull of the b group headed
by this comgrany.

(i) Ohhar bong and short-teem financial Sabadiliog
The breakcdown of "Osher long and shoet-ierm financial labilites" 15 as follows:

71
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33023 Azeeed
Adngenl Mt lelaredt

[Eusoa) Losgtanm Seoridean  Lecgeem  Shorlserm  gmntsd urity e
¥azzanine Debl (Gragesiia Blomass Poesr Curlle
Tainsirg BLULY

Mezzaning cebt Z1AS65TS  Z2000.000 2035 0%
Funsitalaaion
i 185254 2035

It seat cadilnEaed . 13,781 472 2035
Dbt ¢Gresnatia Wind Power Enlo Moo,
ELM]
Acali 0000000 = 31000000 e A0k
Formaisaiion
eapensas (241 BED) (&0.302)

Mon-paid accned
i
Dalst (Qrenptin

Impact Bedga A HO0LD00 3,000 000 4 060,000 2008 G00%
Dabit Gresnaiin
Power Spain LU

e Cvcman < BA3SAIT B < 120000 M4 12E0%
Dobt iGreenalia Biomays Powsr Curlis.
Toizoim SL ALY

Ine s Cagan: Ma 154051 B45,040 E: - V15000000 i R
Fnirftabbinl iy
= HE0TA)  (114.251)

Non.paed accnsed
Mo, . B15.234
Dbt Mikon x Qurol IGrega iy Wend Poeyr E3i
EtssorMen SLUL

Incus Capeat A5912430 sa7.8m ¢ S0500,000 ;e ATs
Formnlasion
il (ROTEN) (202110

Kon-paed neenmd
Neacrast - 34088
Dubit € roas (Gregnalia Wind Powar Bolo Sonige Mo,
ELul

Incus Cagial 44,101,830 258,170 = 44800000 2z AR
Formalsation
iy T11902) (a7
INWM!WM 1At

Bupplars of faed
i 1885178 . 28,157
Sdpas iaggn 2700578 323aM4 3113852 B4TIT ASTED0 T EO0%
fip=s
appicaton e
LI Project =

— 10,407,240 MOSET  EA54E3S

IOASTHMA 24855000 JEA090  4IARIASE  TTIHTE000
&l Dewda Merzanime - Greanalia Biomass Power Curts Talxairo, 5L LU
vz

3 Fca, 10, 1% || OF 15000 | A Conufia, Spain
i | mip@preenaily e | e greenalls es

greenalia

On 25 July 2098, within the framework of te financing of the Curlis Teixeiro (A Consia) bomass
plant fonmalksed by the subsidiary Greenalla Biomass Power Curtis Telxeiro, 5.LU., a loan of €23
million was taken cut, which bears a fixed Interest rate of 11.00%. The financial expense accrued
in the financial year 2023 to the Mezzanine debl amounted to €388 737
{E3, 683,058 in the 20Z2 financial year).

In 2023, tha Company Creenalia Biomass Power Curtis Teixedo, 51U cancalied the full amaum
comesponding o the Mezzanine debt, as well a3 the comesponding amoun af amortizad eost for
an amount of €160,711.

b) Merzaning Debl - Greenale Wind Power Enls Senior Moc, S.LUL
On 30 July 2021, a loan agreemaent was. sighed with a fund managed by Accfi Gestidn, SA, for
an amount of €21 million, This kan baars interes! &l a foed mle of 60006, The malurity dale of
Ahas bosiy wans. 30 Juty 2026, The linancial sxpanss dociued in the 2023 financial year amaunied
2,351,753 , inchiding sarty Werminabion penaltes (61,307,754 in the 2022 financial year,
In 2023, the Company cancalled the full smount comresponding o the Acofi dabl, as well as the
comasponding amount of amorlsed cost for an amount of £352,012

¢} Debi - Greenalta Wind Power, S.L.LL

Ong 2021, thia 5 iikry Giresnalio Wind Powes, S.LU. sgned a loan agréesment
wilh a fund (1B ImpactDed? Fund) for a maxamem armount of 4,000,000, granted exclusively fo
partally refinance the deb! granted by Ben Oldman (Mezzaning). This loan bears interest a1 a
fixed rate of 9.00%. The maturity date of this Ioan is 9 Seplember 2024, The financial axpensea
acersed in the 2022 financial year amounted (o €360,250 (E263,182 in the 2022 finandal year),
all of which has been fully d wnder “lnver ¥ in “Property, plant and
equipmant - Assats under Construcion and advances” d1mmnwn}ﬂnnmnsﬂummlum
aheat in the 2022 financial year.

mfnamiq-pmmdmmmmwmmnb&dhaﬁﬂm(ﬁ%mmhu
2022 financial year), all of which has been fully under “Inver
“Property, plant and equipment - Assats under constrection and advancas™ n!ll:ammﬂmanymg
consolidated balanca sheet in the 2032 finencs) yaar.

o) Do Greanaln Povwar Spain, S.L.U
On 28 Aprl 2023, a debl was formalisad with Ben Oldman for an amount of €12 milion. On 5
June 2023 Greenalia Power Spain repaid €6 million of the principal loan amount,
Thés loan has a bulat maturity of 1 year and bears in‘erest at a rate of 12.5% par annum.

&) Debt - Greenalia Biomass Power Cuitis Teiveino, S.LLU.

On 15 Nowembar 2023, the debt with Incus Capital was formalised for a tolal amount of €133
mallion and maturing on 30 Decamber 2032 This loan has been chiained with & view to repaying
tha Senior Debt (Note 18.1) and the Mazzanine Debt associated o Greenaka Biomass Power
Curtis Teixeiro, S.LAU.

This loan is divided into thiee tranches:

- Refinancing facility 1: For an amount of €115 million. fully drewn down and beasing
interest al a rate of 9.9% per annum (an additional 0.5% wouid be acded should the
Company fail to mee! a number of ESG matrics).

- Contingent Faclity 1: For an amoun? of €8 million, undrawn. This tranche would bear
interest af a rabe of 9.9% per annurmn

= Conlingent Facility 2: For an amoun? of €10 million. undrnwn. Ths tranche would bear
interest at & rate of 13.45% per annum.
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The conirac! provides as collateral all of e pledged shares hekd by Greanaks Biomass Powar
Lumemiburgo 5.4 rl, being the owner of tha entire sharehokding of Greenalia Biomass Power
Curtts Tetoiro, 5.LU. and the pledged shares of Greenalia Blomass Power Luxemburgo 1 5.8
rll. baing the owner of the entire sharehoiding of Greenalia Biomass Power Luxemburgo S rl.

Furlhermore, the debl takes inlo account situations of early meatuiy, including complisnce wilh
etvarants by e Company, amoang which
- Debt ratio not excesding 1.70x
- Interest coverage mato not exceeding 1.20x
= Minimum curment account batance of €1 milion
- Leweraga ratio nol excesding B0%.
Since the disposal thereof, the debt has accrued interest of £615,234,
1 Debe Midon y Ouwral Greenalis Wind Power Eofo Senior Moc, S.L LU
O 12 December 2023, the Company Greanalia \Wind Power Eolo Sanior Moc, 5.L.U. formalisad
a koan with Incus Capital for an amount of €50,500,000 and maturing on 30 December 2018, The

dabt bears nterast at @ fixed rale of 8.70% par annum and has bean Laken out with a viaw o
paying off the Sendor Debt set out in Note 181,

Thee boar i guearantead by all the shares in tha folowing Greanaka Wind Power Eolo Senor Mo,
SL.U. subsidiaries, spacificaly;
- Greanalia Wind Power Mifidn, SLU.
- Greanalia Wind Power Curol, SILU.
Funtherrmone, the deb! takes inlo account situations of sarly mabuity, including compliance with
covenants by the Company, among which;
- Ralio de deuda no superior a 1.10x
- Inlerest coverage i nol excesding 1,20
Minimum curment seoount batance of €760,000,
= Leverage ratic nol exceeding 80%.
Since the disposal thereof, the debl has accrued inferes! of £32,741,
g} Debt Croas — Greenalis Wind Power Eslo Senior Moc, 500
O 12 December 2023, the Company Greemalka Wind Power Eolo Senior Mo, 5.L.U. formalisad
a koan with Incus Capital for an amount of €44,500,000 and maturing on 30 December 2018, The

dabt bears blannua inerest at 8 fived rate of 5.30% and has been taken out with 8 view 1o paying
off the Senior Debl 28! out in Now 18.1.

The boan is guaranteed by all the shares in the following Greenalia Wind Power Eolo Senior Mo,
SLU. subsidiaries, specifically;
- Gresnalis Wind Power Allo Da Croa, S.L.U.
- Gmeanalia Wind Power Allo Da Croa ll, S.LU
- Greanalia Wind Power Monte Towado, S.L.U.
Furthesmione. the debl tekes into account siuations of early mabuity, including compliance with
covanants by the Company, among which:
- Ratio de deuds no supanor 8 1,10
- Interest coverage matko not exscesding 1. 20«
= Minimum current account batance of 760,000,
74
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= Leverage ratia nol exoeeding 80%.,
Since the disposal thereol, the debd has accrued inlerest of €34,956,
h) Othar payaties
The main debis incleded under this heading ame as follows:

On 24 May 2021, the subsidiary Greanala Bliomass Power Curtis Telxelro 1, S L. arranged a
movigage kan with Sepes Public Business Land Entity (Sepes) amounting 1o €3 878,000 for the

of aleven plots of Bnd located in the town of Curlis- Tedreino (A Consfa). This loan
baars interes! at a fixed rate of 6.00%. The matuily da%e of this loan will ba in 2031. The financial
expanss acoreed in financal year 2023 amounted to €210,671 (€167 558 in the 2022 financial
year).

On 15 Sepember 2022 the subsikary Greenalia Blomass Power Cuntis Tedeio 1, SLLUL

amanged 8 mongage kean of €799.500 with Sepes Publkc Business Land Emity (Sepes) for the
acquisition of a plot of land located in the town of Curtis-Teixedo (4 Consfia). This koan bears
Interast at a fived rate of 3 .40%. The maturity data of this loan will ba in 2032

In 2022, the Company entered inte an agreemant 1o acguire 100% of the shares of Greenalia
Wind Power Blue Hills, LLC located in the USA. This acquisition, which was recorded as a
purchasa of assels (see Mole B), induded cenain deferad payments of €49 million

Furthesmore, this heading includes the contingent payments wding to the isition of
100% af the shares of Excel Advantage Sendce, LLC for an amown? of €5.4 milion,

The breakdown of the anmual maturities of long-tenm "Other financial Eabilities” (excluding debt
arrangemend lees) is as follows:
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31122023 N2z
“rear 2024 24,55,000 ear 2023 43483490
Year 2035 2,075,787 Year 2024 346,159
Year 2076 3,347,745 Year 2025 380,081
Year 2027 3,167,108 Year 2026 0354, 201
Yeswe 202 and folowing 200,387,710 Year 2027 and fodlowing 15,879,678
233 833,348 80,413 586

18.4 Classification by maturity

The dassification by maturity of the financial liabilities in $we Group's consolidated annual
accownts of the amounts falling dua in each of the following years at year-end and until their final
maturnity is dataibed in the following tabla:

ot and
e N Ty
izl Nancisl Year
Lo il rodits e
o sk ety T3 T8 M8 WOM STTE a7 an8en
Dot chiigaim st
e bt AR AT A 12T
.
D ETITRAMS  JRARLIME  1MTTAS  RIOT.MG G0 TI0 TR S
Detie s irvancial ¢
it ADNEET  JSMANE  1S2ITT HENE) A0S 1A% T34
Tolad TTLAIATES  RABGREIT TAS TS ATTIZ  IGRSANAST  (TASIATN) 480DELTEY
T ang
dfess) e a4 a0qd o6 007 folewkng  Tetsl
LS, B PO IO =
adl sl BLNEADST  ARIDSAID  ISU0RE  ROOGAM  T9GSAEE  ZREMASD  1857ARSOT
Dot ol @l
et Pl A8 400 33 i i S8 A0 To0 A
et
Obor TIIMAME  TIARLII DAY B0 AM MRS RATVASE 1ZTAMSI0T
Vot J0SLE1 SRIFREIL  STOMIEN  2LMT.TIT 3.6m8 334 I.MAHY  WrADLMO

18.5 Write-off of financial lFabilities
Na financdial labilities have been offsed for disclosure purposes with other assebs of the Grow

15, TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Ther breakdown of rade and othes pavables and other Babilities is as Tollows:
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{Euros) IH22023 20z
Bupphans BG4, T 313,246
Group company suppliers 2,249,001 24,200
Sundry creditons 21,660,767 21,626,510
Sial 1.600 11,540
Other debts with Government Agencies (Nole 23] AN 4,021
CUstme? Sk Gis 210,784 -
Totsl 25,634 461 2,259 519
Sundry creditors

Al 31 December 2023, the heading “Sundry credtons” is mainly composed of the amount payatie
by Greensiia Blomass Power Curtts Teixewro, S.LU. derived from awarding the construchon
coMract with e LITE Imasa inganleria y Proyectos y Acciona industial 5.4, for an amount of €8
million.

Furthedmone. there are oulstandng imoices from the Group's Paren! Company for independent
pofessionsd services emounting to €27 million, &5 well Bs expenses spent on consultants
nvolved in selling & companies with wind fanms undar development (Mote 6.2) amownting to €3
mllian.

Laslly, €2.3 milion were invoiced for supplies rom the Biomass business.

20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE

The camying amount, far valus, fair value hisrarchy and valuation lechniques applied 1o
datarrning the fair value of financial assets and llabiities ars as follows:

Carrying Hearaseh
_{Euros) AEnount Falr valis hval
Financlal assets measured at falr value through profit or loss.
Ivestmant fund 1,684 000 1,584,000 Leswel 1
Ctner 161,228 181223 Level 3
Do rvtivar frdnciad inslrisments 1037527 1087 527 Livred 3
Financlal assots measured at amostised cost
Loans to thind parties 85187 BE1ET Lovel 3
Caner Enancial assats 8556 897 B.S26.857 Lovel 3
Trade recenvabies lor saies and sardcas 11.786,595 11,796.556 Leved 3
Stan A07 347 S0T 347 Lével 3
e francinl psets ST3 725 arTE Level 3
Lo 10 group companies 14,731,208 14,731,208 Level 3
a339ts measured st fair valus through changes in profit
or loss
Deerivarlive firdnciad inslruments 1439724 1,439,724 Level 3
Financial liabikties 3t amortised cost
Bank borrowings AT BE0667 AT BSDGET Lenvel 3
Dbt plgations and offer marketable securities 121,719,748 12,710,748 Level 3
Amcunls e o G aniees and
& paybl TERIp: O 20,373 811 20,373 811 Levei 3
Oiner Erancial Fabiiges 233,833 348 #33.833.343 Lavel 3
Lesasa liabifties {MNobs 10§ 10,570,360 10,570,360 Level 3
m;’m creiilirs and oler Bccounts payatie (Mole 28,287 043 25387 043 Lovet 3
T
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i Carnyfing {lerarch
Euros) Fplr vahiy Joogise
2022 Financial Year
Financial assets maasured at falr value through profit or loss
Investment furd 1,153,084 1_15!.08! Lowed 1
Biomeansa Forestal, 5.1 - Level 3
Ciner 204 H00 0, Em Loved 3
Derhative firancial instruments 11,606, 844 11698044  Lewsi 3
Financial assats measured at amostised cost
Loars 1 third patiss 5067 85,087 Laveld
Oner fnancial asssts 06T 3,340,671 Loved 3
Lo 1 groug companies 356,718 WETIE Level 3
Trande receivabies for sales and seraces BE20.235 8628235 Level3
Sl . - Leve3
Cner fimancial assats 540,414 B40,414  Lews 3
Loans 1o group companies 4,443 505 443085 Level 3
Financinl liabiSties 8 amoniasd cost
Bk Dormowings 165,745,607 1ES 45607  Leveld
Duebit ctiligations and oiher mearketable Securiliss 103,700,626 100TD0E2E  Leveld
AR poyEtie T Gros Companied and MAMEZ  WMIMEE Leveld
Cnner Bnancial labiiges B0.413.507 BOA1350T  Lewe 3
it laiklies {Wote 10) 11,442,879 TMA42E28  Livel 3
m’""‘*’ credices and olher accounts payatle (Nole o 065088 21063058 Leved

greenalia

The maximaurm exposura bo credil rsk is as Tollows:

{Euras) N0 HH22022
Long-erm (oans bo Graug comparies - 355.718
Bquity instruments measured af far value Theowegh profll or loss 1885728 1357884
Laans 10 Ihind pamies 85,187 B5.067
DOiher francial sssls 8,526,697 3,340,871
Desrivalived Enancial |rainamerts. 1,007,527 9,530,065
Trade and olhes receivablas. 12,350,837 Ay2TAsE
Equity irstrumenis measured af fair vatue hoough proff o loss - 427,374
O financial assels 573,725 540414
Deivative Franciad insbnaments. 2,166,879
Oiher cument assots 1,781,775 GTE003
Short-lerm loans 1 Group companies. T 08 4490008
Cash and cash equivaients E25E2. 714 S0.TEI250

103,514,788 82,747,230

21. RISK POLICY AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's acivites are axposed to varous financial risks: cradit risk, maket rsk and liguidity
risk. The Group's global risk management programma focusas on the uncertainty of the fnancial
maskets and aims o minimise the potential adverse effects on its financial ratums.

Risk management & conwolled by the Group's Central Treasury Department in accordance with
policies approved by nant. This Cx Identifies, and hedges financial
rizks in close cooparation wih the Group's operating uniss. The management proviies witten
polickas for overal risk management as wall as for specific matsers such as foreign exchangs risk,
n‘erest rate nsk. liquidity risk, usa of dedvatives and imvestment of surplus liquidty.

211 Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the polential loss ceused by the failure of Group companies’ counterparsies
4o misnt thedir contractual obligations, e, the possibility of nat recovering the financial assats for
The amound recognised and within the time Bmit set,

Group companies rgutardy analyse the lavel of risk lo which they am exposed by rviewing all
cutstanding receivables from cuslomens, debilars and all ather non-trade recevables, Based on
s iformiation, il considers that il does nat represent this ype of sk, as hers e 0o cises of
catault and no cases of delsull have been dalecled,
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In ganeval. Groug companies hold their cash and cash eguival with xal i ions with
high credit ratings.

The main sales and cusiomer focus is with tha Spanish electricity sysiam regulator (OMIE).

21.2  Market Risk

Market risk arises from the potentisl boss cawsed by changes (n the fair value or fusue cash flows
of financial instruments due 1o changes in maket prices. Marke! rigk incluges ineres! mie, foreign
exchange and regulatony sk,

i} bodecast rate rish

Interast rate risk arises from the polential loss caused by changes in the fair value or fulure cash
Tiowes of financial instnaments due 1o chisngés in markal ineres) res. The expodsune to inberes]
rabe risk is madnly dus (o loans and credils eoeived al variabls inleres! rales,

The Group manages interest rata risk by distributing the financing recaived at fised and variabla
rates, In addition, the Group has contracted darivatives associated with senior dabt to hadge as
far a5 possible agains! interes! rate fluchutions,

A significant part of the financing recatved by the Group, inciuding listed bonds and other debts
with third parties, is referenced io fcsd interest rates, Variabbe interest rmbe financing is referenced
o Euwribor phus & spread, although this is mainty imited (o debts with cradit institutions.

In ordiar 1o analyss the effect of 8 possile change in interest mates on the Group's accounts, &
simulation has been chrried cul Assuming an increase and decrease In imerest raes at 3
December 2023 of 50 basis painls on variatde rate debi.

This sensitivity analysis to upward or downward variations of 0L50% in the levels of varlable rates
Beads fo a sensitivity in the consolidated income siatement of the Greenalia Group derived from
i incresse or decreasa in the financial result from interes! payments of €1,422 as al 31
December 2023,

1) Exchanoe rate nigk
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Forengn exchange risk arses fom the potential les caused by changas in the (e vahee o fulune
cash fiows of financial instnemants dus to Suctuations in exchange rates.

The Group's f i thal thers are o significant exchangs rabe fEks &
e Group conducts mast of B5 operations in euros, Durng the past year the Group has slaned
10 operale in e United Stales, bul balances in this curmency ¢0 no! represent & signiScan! pan
of the Group's assets and kabiltes at this date,

(i) BHegulslony gid mavked risk

Daspita the fect that the anergy business is in its aarly stages, the electricity sector is extansively
regulated, The Group in ils snergy segment must comply with varous regulations under naticonal
Law, The Group and its elecincity production facilities are subject 1o stict rules on the constnsction
and oparation of the Gcilites (incuding rukes retating to the poquisition, use of land and obianing
aulhorisations), based on Law 242013 of 28 Decamber on (he Elecincily Secion, he Minisiry of
Inechssiry ey madify all the parametens of remuneration for renewabies (exoep! the value ol the
initind investment and the use'ul e in sccordance with "the cyclical situation of the economy,
alaciricity demand and the appropriate profitability for these activities™, as has been the case in
1he current fimpncial year 2023

mﬁmmﬂm-mmmmmorm &.ﬂnrhmuﬂngunil'l

hourly basis. This saba to the market has a lower regul it is not subject
o o specific andar or paramaeter, dMUlﬂnlhurmuymﬁnrﬂummhmlnhmmm
Therafore, there is @ risk of variation in the p of the plants based on

variadons In the interest rate of the ten-year gowemment bond, &5 well as the reguimory
parametars thamsebves, which may be adusied by the Ministry of Industry, Energy and Tourism.

21.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk anses from the possibility that the Group may not have acoess 1o oF avalabidity of

Bquid funds in sufficlant quantity and at the appropriata rabe to mest s payment obligetions at all
times. The Group's objective is 10 mantain the necessany [guidity,

The Group exercises prudent management of liquidity risk based on the maintenance of suficient
cash and marketable securilies, the availability of fnancing theough a sullicient level of comaritied
credit facililies and sulficient capacity bo satihe marke! positions,

As at 21 December 2023 and 2022, the lquidity available & as follows:

Avallability  Availabliity
2022

2023
Availatle credit nes (Nole 19.1) 11,284 14,548
Cash and oiher squivalent cish assets (Mote 15) 82582714 50738250
Totsl 62593998 50752796

The breakdown of matuities of esisting financial liabiities as a1 31 Decamber 2023 and 2022 is
shivwm in note 186,

Thee liquadity risk factors and their mitkigating factors are set out in Nobe 2.3,
22 OFFICIAL GRANTS
The breakdown of granls in e financal years 2023 and 2022 is a5 follows:

greenalia

{Euras)
Balance ot 31 December 2021 258,601
Giranls mrameded duning the year 12 B8

| pan
| ggnggnllgﬁ|*wwprfu:ue'.

Grnis recognisad n navene (155,653]
Exchange differences 29359
Galance as at 31 Decembar 2022 324,09
Granls recogiieed 0 feverus (188,6301
Balance an at 34 Dy 2023 136,166
The braakdown of grants for the financial years 2023 and 2022 is as follows:
Concessionary Diarte of
entity NMzEN IR0z Purpose sard
Precuramant of bwo fanestry
Hinie dn el 136,166 192,888 torwardars 0
IGAPE . 461 Lowshos mansgement system 2019
GAPE 26,198 oustry 40 2019
Xunia da Galicsa Y 27.mpp Pequistion of packaging machine 2018
Xunda da Galleia = e Mwslmnfmgrg machine: 2018
- Mllslhncfsumwgmhrrh
Xuni da Galicia i 5,455 grappies . 2016
Hunia da Galcia ) ™ Apieiiion of Pl supply 2018
gl 136,168 324,008
&1
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23 INCOME TAX

The breakdown of Tax Receivables and Payables™ is as folows:

Dedermed tan assets 44728517 1815531

Cumant 1ax assets 2514 25131

Cher credts with Puslic Administraticns 145,504 0,664
VAT 110,257 80,577
Socal Security 2132 2032
Tat withholdings and pre-paymaents . 4245
Gk dwairded] 25,184 2,685
Othar recelvables from tax aulherities 9,021 8,021

e T T a30,33

Dedemed tax Eabiities 2,085,313 4,043,434

Cnner dates to Public Authontes. arTate 576,531
var 178 784,021
BT 219,880 .
Skl Secuily 157,353 185,402

As from 1 mmlammmmp«mmmalmmmwmwcm SA-
il was agreed o approve the Company's TEGEME £
Chapter Vil of the Consolidated Text of Law 273044, MZ?Nauamlmr mt.‘-u'puntalmm'lsx

In this regand, it was resolved that Smantia, S.LU., which holds a direct stake of more than 70%
in Ine share capital of Greenalia, SA, shoudd constibute, as e Parent Company, the
afprementioned tax consolidation Group, Therefore, Greenalia, SA Is megrated in the tax
Group, and Smala, SLLUL is e bead of the lax Group formed by the Company and 1he
remaining companies of he Group as subsidianes.

Furthirmone, with eflect from 1 Janwery 2019 and with the prior spproval of the Board of Direcions
of Greenalia, S.A,, & was agreed lo approve the Company's application of the corsolidated tax
Group regime for Value Added T, requinted in articles 163 and following of Law 37/1932, of 28
December, on Value Added Tax, in this regod, il was agresd thal the comgary Smartia, S.LLU,
will b the head of the ki Group formead by Greenalia, 54 and its subsidiaries

Tax contingencies and other

Accarding to cument begiskation, tax rlums cannot ba considered Snal untll they havae bean
inzpectad by the tax authorities or the limitation period has passed. which is currantly set at four
yoars, In the opinion of the Group's diecions and its tax advisors, thare are no significant tax
confingencies that could arise, in the event of wn, from ible diffiarent i

of the tax legi o the ions camied out by the Group,

231 Reconcilfation of tha accounting reswit with the fax resuit

The Parent Company is subject o comporate income tax on 8 consolidated basis with ks cartain
westeas and, as the Parent Company of the lax Group, is responsible for the settliement and
filiregy of conporate income tax,

The reconcikation batween e accounting profit belone lax and he noome tax expense a3 al 31
Decamber 2023 and 2022 is shown balow:
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i the 2023 financial year, e main positive permanent differences ralale 1o the Bmitation of
offsating tax lossas within the (3 group. The main negative permanent differencas mainly ralata
0 tha exemption for the sake of growp companies.

In the 2032 fnancial year, Swy comesponded 10 impairments which were not considered
deductile, and the mamn temporary differences relate o the limiation of the dedectibility of
financial expenses.

The mconciiation babween income L expense tmoml and the resuli of muliplying the
applicable ax rales o okl ised incorme and as follows:
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The calculation of the corporate income tax payabls s as lollows:

_{Euros) 2023 022
Curmant 1A BATOTY 4,001 485
Withhoidings = [543 T48)
Corporate Incame tax payable to parent company of tax
Group 687,071 1,087,737

] wa
Incsma snd axpanse Incoma and expansa
incoma racopnised direstly ks incoma racognised ircly in
Sipbosnery, L L Sixiseneni. Soulty
Aatsren o i el
i pie bafan s 30.295,082 (12.754,322) 21808410 18,814,708
Thessetical ha Burdan
{1 weT. 6 {3, 1888810 5401 802
g 35%)
Niorv-dochochible grgonses
I Honw-slgibl ircones (5,858,500 . 541,854 433877
L —— < . (39,487 :
Cagilpfisalion  mapnes
[ — [2T2.714) AR (722.504) a1
TR M B 13,0685 5,181,485 & 701,365
_fincoma =

The consalidated income lax expense | (noome) is broken down as foliows:

232 Deforred tax assots and Nabilitles

The breakdawn and movemants of the vanous items included in defemad taxes are as follows:

Changes raflected In

Transfor of

- w7
= 1,184,089

2.063.279

208 20
Iescome and
EAPENEE Income and orpense
Ao reLegnisad Incoma RO E D deolly
SABS i 1L ] ALB T 11 i

[om—r—. ear.ar & - .
Coonlinang Spdrtam Ba7,071 - 2,562,619 i

Diaconi nued epensn L o 455868

Changa in dalimad L {0,788 354 - P
Cadhacteinis, pOnCng applcation . . 1,150,000 .
ot B hosigan . (2008 &7y : 4301005
For canh e hodgas .
wimitaten of fisancal s e - - - 5

Chien dedertod - - 5
10,057,783 (3,000087) 3,191,483 4291365
a4
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panding 17,727 ~ - «
BppECaton
Leases 1,149,758 34411 .
Activaled tax
cradits and BE0M6 2353068 - (X2 E3S)
aiher

1815531 2387478 302342 (32835
Defered  tax
.Casﬁ [

2,524,237 - {2.708,358) -
Loasas 1,106, 267 (7. 04) -
Ceher 12,005 E50.218 - 85130

= 4 AT2517

217 881

- 1.088,188
- TAE3M

40434734 B43115 (2.706.356) 85,170

2,065,313
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2023 Flnancial Year

Qatamed tax gs5at
Cash Now hedgas 1277128 - (1277.028) - . .
Deductions pendng applcaton 13, G0 - - 4135 - 17,727
Leases B48,346 01417 - - - 1,746,758
Activaled aw credts and oter 648 048 - . B4, 048
ZEETE2 EOTA1F 12TT2E 425 = 1 BB EN
Cash fiow hedges - - 2Em2I7 . < a4y
Leases 63,253 472039 = = = 1,108,282
CHher 1,088 . [563) (BT.6NH) 12,905
715,330_a72.029 - (BA3) (ETA08) 4083434

24. INCOME AND EXPENSES

241 Ovdinary taxes

The diswribuion of the Group's ne! Wwinover fom conlinuing operations by aclvity and
gaographical markat i as follows:

{Euros) IMN22023 FIFFFH
Segraentalion by Stlhily Chlegodes

Holding 21,883 35,550

Biomass enargy ATREA 74D B ET1 138

Wind enengy 18,200,802 20072778
Ciher 3018 292 813
Total BE081 443

22023 NNTNTZ

GaograniiG Mt seqmsntatian

Maticnal SE.098.568 965, 365

Iniire-Comiminity 31874 106,710
Total 56,001 443 SRATLOTE

The main balances of confracls with customers relate lo customer balances for sales and
serdces, cusliomar advances and other non-cumrent liabilities in the comnsolidated statemant of
financial position,

Given that the regulatory pool does nol cover aparating costs, in e 2023 finsncial year the group
has recognised income from the VAJDM adjustment amaounting Yo €6.467,233.

242  Procurements

At 31 Decembear 2023 and 2022 the heading “Procurements” is as follows:

{Euros) 3112023 IH2R0EZ
Consumglion of goods 2449,768 811,511
Consumption of mvw maternis and oiher consumabie malerils &, 104,054 16581 418
Work performed by oiher companies. 3.244,500 840811
Tatal 10,798,331 ATTES 141
Consumption of raw and ather cor bia materals

88
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This heading includes mainly expenses relating o the soquesition of biomass supplies for tha
operation of the Momass plant located in Curtis-Texeino.

Almaat all purchases of goads have taken place on natonal o,

24.3 Tolal employee remuneralion cXpenses
As 8t 31 December 2023 and 2022 the haading "Employes remunsrmtion expense” 5 as follows:

{Euras) 32023 30
VWBEE, SRM%E BN SIET COMDENEaTON

Wages and salanes 3E2044 A0s2EM

Terminabion bemefits BAZT B8, 000

Share-based paymnts B 131,896
Total wages, salaries and similar comp 3640471 3,290,210
{Euras) N0 A0
Social securily eonlrtaitors

Social Security 1,068,089 1152

Cither eninhsyee benefiis 22 848 9,379
Total employee wellare 1,081,845 820,900
Total empiloy P 4732418 4211110

244 Other expenses
As at 31 Decembar 2023 and 2022 the hesding "Other expences” consists of the following:

{Euras) 2R3 MN0E2
Reseanch and develcpment 2265 2265
Laases 421.8M 75T
Repair and upkesp supansses S5.T24.724 SAT2602
Indapendent professional serdces 188,601 285200
Traruport I BEE S 28B41T
Insurance premiums TeEIES 1.027.938
Banking services £a,838 78,005
Advertising, promotion and publc relations 1,800 .
Supplies ari.8a2 BB TRE
Diheer services 1576878 1,137,850
Temas. 1053538 435040
Losses an, imgainment of and changa in alicwsnces: for inde 1281 234
ORI il

Total 14,701,055 10.084.247

The rige in rENspon costs comesponds o the alfect of the deconsolidation of Greanaka Forest,
S.L.U and Greenalia Loglstics, S.L.U, the companies that provided this senice for other group

ar
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24.5 Other profitioss

In the 2021 fnancal year, the subsidiary Greenalia Biomass Power Curlis Tekeeiro, S.LAL
tenminated the contract with tha UTE Biomasa Curtis, execuling all (he guarantees (§ kad i onder
10 make up for the loss of income from the sale of energy brought about by deliys in deliverables
wilh respect bo the Sales set outin e Bgreement, AS a resull of the terrmination of this agreement,
1he UTE Biomasa Curtis filed for arbitration bafore the Chamber of Commance and Industry of
Badrid 40 befminate 1he plant cons rUCHon agreamenl.

On 13 Octobar 2023, 1he Greanalia Biomass Power Cunis Tebeiro, S L. Group comparry rcahed
natificaition of the resolrion of the award visdevis the arbitralion arising from the termination of
e agreameant and en‘orcemant of guaaniees due o the delay in building tha biomass pland
oparated by (he company. The msult thereo! led to increased expendites for an amoend of
€2.030,607.

In the 2022 financial year, sspansas were included ralating to the arbitration peocess in the
company Graenalia Biomass Power Curtis Talxairo 5. LU, and the payment of a panalty of tha
halding company Greanalia S.A, refated o the Tax Agancy.

245 Impaiment and gains on the disposal of fixed assets

A 31 Decarmnber 20033 and 2022 the heading “Wmpsimment and gains of lsses on disposals of
fined Basels” i broken down s follows:

A0 3z0a

greenatia

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022 the Group includes undar the heading “Incorporation of
financial expenses into assets” the financial expenses artsing from the financing used o fund tha
development of projects until they are in a usabla condition.

Mareaver, financial income alsn comesponds primarnily 1o the efect of he canceliabon of the
hedging dedvatives inked 1o he senior debls of Greenalia Biomass Power Curlis Teisino S.LLU,
and Greenaka Wind Power Eola Senior Moc, S.L.U. cancalled during the 2023 financial year by
refinancing through incus Capital,

24.7 Foreign currency
As at 31 December 2023 the principal balances in foreign cumencies rela‘e 1o assets from

dapaosits and gu and liabiides from the ac ition of LS subgroup companies:

2023 Financlal Year

Assefs

Deposis and guaraniess 1,882
ANBNCaES 10 SUDEEETS 67435
Liphitias

Shad-laim lablibes 11, 500000

ipaiTen and loases (TOT.424) (184681973}
38iNG OF ICRsEs 0N EDoRAIE a0 olhers (2,906 | i1,621.000}
(T009,830)  [20,302.973)

Gains and losyes on disposaks and impairmient of fixed assels in 2022 are recorded from the final
loss of thar cost of certain wind and solar projacts under davedopmant by the Group.

Financial expensaes and incoma
The breakdown of finance costs and mcome at 31 Decambaer 2023 and 2022 &5 as follows:

{Euros) 22023 nzRaz2
Financlal axpanses

Dhuse 13 debits with group and assacined comparias 1,085,548 .

Pmyabies 1o third parties 2,380,171 13,750,388

INCOpOrton of nancinl expenses into aesats 3,845,195 4, T2 555
Total 260,312 17501843
(Euros) N0 M0
Financial Income

Fram thind parties - Loans 1o third partes 9,506,240 150,458

Fram Biird perties - neomporation of financial expenses info assets 3,545,195 4,742,555
Total 13,351,435 483,013

a8
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Foreign currencies and outside the national territory as at 31 Decémber 2022 conststed primarily
of an assat relating to a depoasit in US dollars of 515,000 squivalent fo €14,063 (£14,063 n 2022),
relating to projcts being corred out in the USA, that he Group is camying out.

25 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

parant wn‘pan-s maating of shareholders approved a stock option plan for certain
atmlmmoﬂ

Thee Flan ivolves mwnwwmﬂo«mﬂas&rmdmmmmmmw
shares which will be exercisable subject 1o the fulfilment of & number of condisons, The masimum
numier of options o be granted ks 584,896 options. As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, all options
hawe bean fully aliocatad.

Eadlupbmgranmmoﬂﬂuemmmmmmmlnmomemmtw
1he benefciary of the approved axercese pice, which has been sel 8l €11.60

The share options granted will vest on 1 January 2026, which date will be 1aken as the referenca
date for delermining the fulfilment of the conditions. In addition, there are cerain Geumstances
1hat could lead to aardy teamination of tha plan.

The conditions established 1o acguie the nghl to exercise the allocaled oplions are vesling
oondifions, a5 well as wanous performances conditions, both markel and non-market, all of which
wrnes! b fulfdled,

Sinca this Plan will be setled in equity instruments, the Company has recorded in tha
consolidated inoome stalemant for 2023 and 2022 & perscanal expensea a5 an increase in equity
undar "Cthar contributions from shareholders”™ based on the fair vales of the options a1 the gran
date amounting o €131,000.
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26. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES
26.1  Group related party transactions

Ther relaterd partims with which the Group has enlered into transaciions during 2023 and 2022 and
the nature of such related party transactions ane as follows:

Campany Natura of the

Smaritia, SLU. Diresd parent comeany
Mazachy Espadia, 8 L Related pary
Biomasa Forestal, 5.1 Redated party
Smarita Ra Offce Amangura 15, SLU. Felsted parly
Greenalia Forest, SLL Relsted pacty
Gwenalia Logistics, S.LU. Risksted party
Smarita, SL L Direct parenl company
siazacy Expata, S L Riisted party
Baomasa Forestal, 5.1 Rekstad party
Smanta Re OMce Amangura 15, SLU Rilated party

The balancas hakd with the related companies listed above ane as follows:

Direct parent  Group

Euros) Relted party  company  company

2023 Flnancial Yesr

Shot-lerm loans 2,97 0BS 11,834,123

Cusiamean 407 347 -

Long-term debts (15270,121) o

Shadt-leim des - {5, 103,680}

Suppers {2.248,081) - -

Total (18.214,780) 6,730,433 5
o]
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Direct parent Group

JEuros) Related party  company _ company
02 Financlsl Year

Shod-letn oand. . ass A -
Longtenm loand 3 4,443,088 E
Long-farm dabts - (8426422} -
Shoet-laim debls d 15,708,401}

SUpDETE | 240,2001 ¥ =
Total (28200)  [9.335119) =

The credit and debt balances with Smarttia, S.L.U. comespond to the cument accounts of the
Gmoup companies with this enlity, primarily deriving from the selemend of compormle inoome L
and value added tax payable with regard o the Tax Group headed by this company,
Furthermore, as af 31 December 2022, the Growp recorded €8 BBE as “Long-term deb!” with
Magady Espafia, 5L and Smaoritia, 3L, wilh o view o partially financing the repayment of
coniributions bo minority sharsholders in connaction with tha takecver bid,

The breakdown of fransacions with related parties s as follows:

Direct parent Group

{Euros)

2023 Financial Year

Sales and provision of sandces 21983

Purchases of goods {B.1T2,883) .

Services received (20,705 {251,8000

Financal expanses {1,085 5:46) - -
Total (7,438,353) (251,500) -

Direct parent Group

JEuras)

2022 Flnancial Year

Sales and provision of Services HT4E.869

Purcnaes of goods H 2

Services reoaived (208,837) {240,0000

Financial i _[5.118) (G470} &
Total 3536814 {300,270) -

Transactions with Gaoup related companies were performad within the ordinary course of the
Company's business and an an arm's-Engih basis,

In addition, 81 31 December 2023 and 2022, Smaritia, 5 L1, holds €5,000,000 of the bond issued
by the Parent Carmpany which wiss subscribed and paid on the Altermative Fised Tneome Markel
{MARF) (Note 18.2),

gl
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26.2 Information relating fo Parent Company Directors and Senior Managomanmt
Personnel

During the financial yaars 2023 and 2022 no remuneation has been paid 1o the Board of Divecions
S ther wiork % decions.

The Group considers as Sanior Management staff those persons whao parform functions relaling
o the general objsctives of the Group, such as planning, directing and controling activities,
canying oul their duties wilh autonomy and full responsibility, miled only by the crileria and

represanting such cwners. The Goup considers onby one person it be senior ma
diafimed above. The comibined remuneraton of the Group companies to Suum'marmnlhr

all ifems in financial year 2023 rose o €63,000 (€60,000 in the 2022 fnancial year).
Furitvisrrriong, S Board of Direciors hics two execulive directons, who are also amgloyees of the
Group, whisk gross mmunedlion in mancial year 2023 rose to €239,452 (€220,908 in the 2022
financial year),

In addition, an enlity related to an independen| director has invoicad various sarvices o Group
anlities in 2023 amounting to €30.979.34 (E20.768,58 in 2022].

Al 31 December 2023 and 2022 the Group compankes had no pension and Iife insurance
otdigations to former or cumrent membens of their managamant bodies.,

At 31 Decembar 3023 thare ks a loan granted 1o an executive directon who s also an employes
of the Group amounting to €85, 187 (E100.000 in 2022).

During the financial year 2023, Direciors” llabiity inswance premiums were paid for damages
incanad in the course of offica totalling €17.910 (€17 130 in 2022 financial yeary

In 2023 and 2022 the members of the Board of Directors of the Parent Company have not entered
o any ransactions with the Parent Company or with Group companies outsida the ordinary
oo of busingss or on ofher than arm's length terms.

In relation 1o adices 229 and 230 of the Capital Companies Act, e directors of e parent
company hires communicabed that Ty hive no conicls ofinleres! wilh consolidaled companias,

INFORMATION ON EMPLOYEES
The average number of employess of the Group dunng the yaar, broken down by category, is &8
follows:

i) WHZR0Z  Bnzea:

Exaculives ] 14
Admminiskative st a6 3
Marketing. safes and semilar stafl ] 50
Total 143 a8
The year-end gender distriution of the Group's emgloyess is as follows:

-3
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{Humiber) MHAHTI ez
‘Women Men ‘Women Men
Executives ] 3 3 "
Administatve st 26 Fal = Fal
Marketing, sales and simitar alafl B - 57
Total 120 3 25 B3

Al 31 December 2022, both the year-end and the average number of empioyess cwing the year
ke ino scocount the swfl of the companies that have been reclassified 1o discontinued
Oparations.

The Company doas no! have any employees with disabilities for the financial years 2023 and
022,

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Board of Directors of the Parent Company consisted of
six peaple, five men and one woman,

28 AUDIT FEES

The fees sccrued duning the year for sendoes renderad by the auditor were as fpllows:

AL s 161,572 T3 E30
Oother atlasl Sandices: 3540 ATE

The other audit services for tha financial years 2023 and 2022 relate 1o the limited review repon
on the hall-yeary financisl information and cerain agreed procedures required by te financing
COMAGS,

29, GUARANTEES, SURETIES, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

29,1 Guaraniees

The subsidiary Greenalia Wind Power, 5.1 has depasited guarntees for a total amaunt of €7,068
in relation o the registration in the Speciic Rermuneration Regime Register in pre-assignment
status of exght wind farms in a stale of promation, conslruction o operation (as the case may ba}
in Galicia. The compieny has made several extension requests for deadines and appeals due lo
1he non-compli with certain deadiines thal could lead 1o the execusion of thesa
gquaranteas_ In this regard, the Group’s legal advisors consider probable that such actions will
prevent the execution of the guaranbeas

In mefation to the guarantees that the parent company has granted for the financing that tha
subsiary Greenals Biomass Power Curlis Teixeiro, SLU. has obisined from fnancal
mstitutions for the ion af thi b plant kocated in the munispality of Curis (A
Conufia), the following is estabisbed:

s Taiveiro

The Inan sats forth the lnﬂmwngmmu&

First-priority pledge on shares representing 100 per cent of the share capital of Greenalia
Biomass Power Luxemburgo Il Sarl

a3
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Fimat-priority pladge on shares representing 100 per cent of the share capital of Greenalia
Biomass Power Luemburgo Sarl
First-priority pledge on shares representing 100 per cent of the Company’s share capial.
First-priarity pledge on the recaivables arsing from the Company™ bank acoounts.
First-priarity pledge on the eosivables anising from any company or shareholder mada
availabie o the Company.
First-priority pledge on the receivables arsing from the Project Documents, the
Insurances and the Deveboper's Undertaking Agreement, Including, but net limited to:

D&M Agresment

Biomass Supply Agreamant

Biomass Supply Assignment Agresmant

EPC Agreemant

Supply agreamants

Amy technical acoess agreamants

Mnl pm\wpuﬂmmd sale contract or representation contract

Deed nﬂnemcahle mwersnlmnme-n\dlh regand to the aforementioned
documants,
Mairtenance of the following current accounts:

o anaccount called the Operating Account, with a minimum balance of €1 millien.
an account called the Debt Service Reserve Account, which at all times must
have a manimumn balance equal ta at least six manths of debt service,
an account called the Biomass Reserve Account, which shall hoid at least the
amaunts to pay for biomass expenditere for a period of at least sk months.

Thee e sats forth tha rolmhg QUETBNTBEs:
First-priarity pledge on shares representing 100% cent of the guaraniors’ share capital,

Greenalia Wind Power Eolo Sensor Moz, SLU.
Greanalia Wind Power Mifidn, SL.U.
Greanalia Wind Power Ourol, SILLL
Greanalia Wind Powear Alte Da Croa, S LU,
Greanalia Wind Power Alto Da Croa 11, SLU
Greanalia Wind Power Monta Tourado, 511,
Flest-priarity pledge on the receivables arising from the guarantars” bank accounts,
First-priority pledge on the receivables asising from any company of shareholder,
First-priarity pledge on the receivables arising from the Project Documents, the
Insurances taken out by the Company, Incluging, but not limited to:
D&M Aprecment
Ag
Anvy technical Bccess agreaments
Any power purchase and sale contract or representation contract
o Land agreamants
Deed of irrevocable powers of sttormey with regard 1o the aforementioned documents,
Greenalia Wind Power Eolo Senior Moz, 5.LLU. must hold, at least, the following bank
accartsg
o anaccount called Principal Account, with a minimum balance of €760,000.

a e, 10, 1% | CF 25001 | A Corufia, Spain
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The other guarantor companies Fsted [n the first bullet polnt must hold at least the
following bank scoounts:
an acoount called Operating Acoount

W) Other pavables

The Elecnor loan entered ino by the subsidiary Greenalia Wind Power, S.L.U., seis forh ithe
Toliowing quaranteas:

Greenalia SA is! Mwmordmmmnmuudmwnwm severally Bable
10 Elacnor for 8l the
Bank guarantes amounting to€1,000,000.

Pledge guaranies on 911,616 shares of Greenala, S A

Thet koain Trom Banco Emhmdoranluad inbo by tha subsidiary Greenalia Power Development,
SLU., i W gt

ﬂwbomvh%hﬂr&mﬂimﬂhmw:ubhummdngﬁwmm
conlract,

Notwithstanding the personal and unlimited Eability of tha previous bomower, the
guarantors guarantes in an unconditional and imevocable manner in favour of the
financing entities, the obigations guaranteed,

The Borrowar grants: the following first-ranking pledges in favour of the securad craditors:

First-ranking pledge on 100% of the obigors' shares,

First-ranking pledge on recedvablias that arise or may amse in the futue in its
beneft from the financing account and the intagroup receivabis.

Should the obigoms recetve ault b subscribe i datd in o the
financing and Lo gran! guarantess in relation therelo, the obligors undertake o grant the
same real guaraniess in fBvour of the financing entities and with tha same rank as those
grantad in guarantes of the new financial debt.

28.2 Guaranfeos

The Group has guarantess with the Spanish Tax Agency amounting to €411,000 for the
suspension of the execulion of the tax assessments appeaked i economic-administrative
proceedings comespanding to Value Added Tax and Corporale Income Tax assessments for the
yemrs 2015, 2016 and 2017 (£530,000 as a1 31 December 2022)

Ab the date of drawing up the consolidated financial statements, the Group has guaraniees
granted by surily insurance companies for the mamrd and sccess tothe remuneration of eleciricty
production amaunting to €148.1 million (E174.1 million in the 2022 financal year],

The Group has also provided swwely inswance guaraniess o cover decommissioning
raquirements. works and environmental impact statements in the amount of €ET68,000 (E768,000
in the 2022 financial year)

The Board of Cwaclors conssders that said guarandess will not give rise 1o incdants, sinca the rsk
s assessed and Amited. Therafore, they consider that saéd guaranteas should not entall sy
econamic loss for the Group.

The Group also has bank guarantess Esued within the framework of the Asolus Project Finance
{issued by the agant bank itself), amounting to €757 000 for the Bolo project (E75T médlion in the
2022 financial year).

In addEtion, guaranies lines have been 28! up belween the Guaranlor and the Obligors wider
which guaranteas will be Baued for 1he banefit of:

a Fita, 10, 14 | CF 25001 | & Corufla, Spain
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The Directorate General of Energy and Mines of the Department of Economy,
Employment and Industry of the Reglonal Govemmen! of Galicla or, where appropriate,
thie comespending body of the Regonal Govemment of Gakcia that replaces it amounting
to €2, 200,000 in onder to request the guarantees required to ensura compliance by the
accradited party and the companies with their obligations o dismantle the Project in
accordanca with the applicable legslation,

29.3 Commilments

In 2022, the Group antersd into two long-term powar purchase agresmants (“financial PPAs™) for
twn projects in the early stages of development, which are subject 1o the achisverment of certain
milestones and may be cancellad at no cost i the measiones ame not met. The value of thesa
PPAs i s @ derivatn il msirument.

In xcielition. & long-lerm energy sales contrac! with physical delivery (Physical PPA] has also bien
sighed. This contract enlails the sale of energy produced by several wind fams curenlly under
devalopment, from the lime these wind farms come into operation until 31 December 2033, This
contract has bean classified as an “Executory contract™ and, tharefore, is not reflected in the
consclidated financial stalements until af the oo

3. ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION

3.

The equipmant and installations Incoporated into tangible fixed assets whose purpose s o
minamisa e envimomental impact and to profect and impeove tha environment, which are
racorded untder the haading “Techncal mstallations and ofher tangible fued assels”, ae a8
foliows:

{Euras) Tz Iz

Coesd 15,783,178 14 B35652
Aeourrubaied amadisation (4,582.061) {3,348,253)
Total 10,700,217 1219299

The directors of the Parent company belkave that there are no significant contingencias relating
o the ervironmental protection and improvement and, therafore, do not consider appropriate in
racord any provision in this regard.

INFORMATION REGARDING DEFERRALS OF PAYMENTS MADE TO SUPPLIERS. THIRD
ADDITIONS PROVISION “DUTY TO REFORT™ OF LAW 152040 OF 5 JULY

The information on payment deferals made fo supplars by Spanish consolidated companies is
s follows:

122y Ikl

(Days)
verage payment penod 1o supplers. 38 i}
Paid ransactions ralla k] L]
Custanding transadions ratio 52 a1
{Euras)
Total perymaents mada 123842078 75,787,138
Tota!l calslarung Dayments 7.320,885 5727370
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The information on mvosces paid i a perod shorer than the maximum period established in tha
Eate payment regulatons ks as follows:

IIHRR023  3H220Z2

Monatany wolme paid in eurn [Enousands of gur) TI6ETI 20 75787438
Porcantags snare of lolad monetary paymenils 10 SURR RS % %
Number of pad Invoces 11453 10.289
Parcantags dved i LS ieamber Of Irnieces paed 10 suppliers. 8% %

32 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 26 January 2024 and 28 February 2024, the Green Notes Programme, subsoibed by the
Parent Company look place for a maximum nominal sutstanding balance of €100 million, with a
denm of one year from the date of pubication. The amoun! of these drewdowns was 22,000,000
and €22,300,000, respactiveby,

Al the date of ssue of these consolkdaled fnancial staterments, the curen! issued balenos of the
programme amounted o €67.200 000,

Woreover, Greenalia Biomass Power Curtis Teixgiro, S.LU. has drawn down €8 million from
contingent trancha 1 of the dabt with Incus Capital

On 15 February 2024, the Group company Greenalia Power Us Advanced 1L LLC entered into a
diabt split inlo tree tranches for a total of 5200 million, of which $80 milion had been drawn down
as at the data on which this report has baen drawn up. €25 million of the tolal amount has bean
used to finance the group's corporate debt and the remaining amount has been eamarked 1o
davelop ongoang projects in the LIS,

a7
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Groonalia, 5.4
Consolidated Management Report o the 2023 financial year

Sinca we started publishing the group’s results, yet again the expected figures have been
axcendad, First and foremost, it i worth highighting the significant increass in Consolidated
Shareholdars’ Equity, which now stands at €70.8 million.

Revenus growth of 1%, EBITDA growth of 44% and net profit growth of 127% speak for
themsahwes. These rasults attest o tha resilience of our business model. in which, despie tha
giobal economic chalenges being faced (rsing interest rates, inflation, post-pandemic
consequancas, . ), we have managed |o consobdate business growth during this period.

Wa ara continuing to make progress on the madmap, improving the operating levels and Bssel
activity. This first half of the year broke records in tlems of the economic figures presented,
hawever, above and beyond revenues and profits, it i worth highlighting the progress maide in
ihe processing of projects, in particular in Spain, where 22 EIS (Emvironmantal Impact
Statemants), 16 PAAs (Prior Administrative Authorisations) and 14 AAC {Administrative
Construction Authodisasions) ware obiained.

Moreover, 8 divestmant of non-strategic assels was camied out this year, by selling T320MW of
wind and SOMW of photovoltalc assets. called Magosto. This has led to visible value creation in
accoumting tarms in this pariod, while consolidating the portfolio development strategy carmed out
in recant years. The figures from this tansaction underline the valee of Greenalias porifoko of
highly resourced and capable projects. Samiary, this wansaction aleo demonsirales the
undartying value of Greenalia's pipeline. which cannot be seen in the accounts by applying the
acquisition cost principle, rather than the, undoubtedly, much highar maded value.

Alst worth highlighting is the esit from the group of the forestry and logistics divisions (bomh of
which are considared to be “Azsefs avalabie for sale” at the end of 2022), making Greenalia 8
100% enengy group. where il revenses and profils in 2023 came exclusively from renewable
aclivities,

Last bat na? leas), with regard 1o ESG (Environmental, Social and Govemance), in 2023 Greenalia
finalsed its ESG Strategic Plan 2018-2023, having met the objectives set. Al the same lime o3
presenting this repod, the fith Sustainabilty Report for the 2023 financial year will also be
published and verified by a third party, Thersin we communicabe and outling our commitment 1o
i six robust g e policies, hi g the Anti-Corruption Standard and the
progress of our Enterprise Risk Management Systemn. Furthermore, in social matters, we have
conlinad o invest in socialy, working with different sports and institutionad enlies in the
communities we oparata in. In the environmental fiekd, the 130 14001 and SURE cerlifications
are worth mentoning. All of this has been validated Dy the Momingstar S [Ranking
wihich hacks cur ability to manage ESG risks. This ranking has placed us in the top 10 in our sub-
industry: independant power prociesra, highlighting the robust managerment of all maesial
malters asses=ed and being awarded a low ESG risk acore: (Score: 18, 3 Low Risk).

a) Evolution of the activity

s The wind energy business coninues ils production activity, with the five EOLO MOC
projects oparating at full capacity all year long (Mifidn, Cuwol, Allo da Croa, Alto da Croa

a8
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Il and Monte Touwrado wind fammsl 17 i worth highbghting Swe merchanting of thesa
projacts. making il possible to oblain marked prices highar than those sed out in the plan,
# The biomass plant (Curtis-Teixeim) has continued axporting energy, amging up s
preduction levels,
= Maintainéng and improving the activity is reflectad in the consolidated EBITDA result for
tha financial year 2023, which amounts to €67, 746,221, The net result after tax amounted

o E37,352 975,
The reconciliation betwean the vying incomae it and
EBITOA included by Managament harein ks as follows:
CONSOLIDATED
EBITDA
Operating profi £1,204 560
{+) Qther prafitioss 1,744,417
{+) Depresiation of fixed assets 10,775,095
() Irngrairment of rventones and fined assets 4,018,148
TOTAL 7,746,221

Iadn items and transactions that explain the changes in the balance shaat ware:

= Significant increase of the assat (up 13.1% on 2022 year-end), due mainly to the
investmen: mada in developing new projects.

#  In refafion to corporate bonds, the bond issused on 15 December 2020 for an amound of
£55.000.000 listed on the Altematve Fixed-Income Marke! (MARF} remains in forcs, Thas
bmd maures in 2025 and bairs a fived anmual interest e of 4 05%.

. I at d 2023 for the Grean Structured Note Programmea
amn.mlsm €57.2 millon (at ysﬂr-cnd 2022 it was €49.3 mdlion).

* Refinancing of the Curtis and Eolo Project Finance koans, detnils in Mote 18 of the
accompanying noles 1o the financial statemants,

= Alpan of €92 milkon {€6.4 million catstanding at year-and) has been taken out.

= Consolidaled nel equily shows & positive balance of £70,779,

b) Ressarch and development
Duing the 2023 financial year, no research and developmen? activites ware camied oul.

¢} Subsaquent avents

As at the daia on which the consolidated annual accounts have been drawn up, there have been
no events subsequent bo the dosing thereal thal had a material eflect on the Group's equity and
reveal situations that could affect the true and fair view of the consolidated annual accounts,
excap! 'or thoss tnvdcated in Mote 32 attached harato.

d] Emdmnmental management
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During the 2023 financial year, no envaonmental mansgement Sctivites wene canred oul.

&) LUsa of Snancial instrumiants

The Company doss nol use financial derivatives other than those described in the notes as
Enterast rate hadging instrurmants, The financial risk management objectives and policies, as wall
as the Company's exposwa 1o the variouws risks, are sat out in Note 20 to the accompanying
financial statements.

) Average payment period
The avarage paymaent pariod for the 2023 financial year was 36 days (21 days in the2022 financial
yedr)

g) Compliance with the business plan

The company is pleased with the degree of general compliance with the Business Plan for the.
2023 financial yeas and the coired axecuton tharnea!,

100
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In A Conufia, on the 3tth of Apel 2024, the members of the Board of Directors of the Paren
Company hereby prepare these consolidated annual accounts of Greenalia, 5.A. for the 2023
financial year, comprising the consolidated statement of financial position, the consofidated
Income siatemeant, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated cash Sow

and the consofidated annual repodt for the year ended 31 Decamber 2023, as well as

e consolidated management repert for e VR
D Jowd Maris Castallans Rios O Manusl Garcia Pardo

Chalrman af 1he Boand Director

0. Antonio Fermandes-Montells Rodrigues Narcarporate. 5.

Director Represented by D Anonio Coueno Ménder

= pram TR
Directar Dlirestos
1
Fra. de Marla Fica, 10, 1% | OF 25001 | A Corufia, Spain
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GREENALIA, 5.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Annex |
10f 10
Cost Company
2023 Financial Year Registered office Activity iitarast Headline Group percentage
idiari
GREEMNALIA POWER SPAIN, S.L.U. A Coruia (1) 18,545,158 GREEMALIA S.A. 100.00%
GREENAL A WIND POWER, 5.L.U, A Corufa {1} 12,787,066 GREENALIA POWER SPAIN, 5.LU. 100.00%
GREENAL |A WIND POWER O CAMPO, S LU A Corufa [EH] A,000 GREENALIAWIND POWER, SL.U. 100.00%
GREENALIA SOLAR POWER, S.L.U. A Coruba {1} 420,001 GREENALIA POWER SPAIN, S.LU. 100.00%
GREEMNAL A BIOMASS POWER, &.L.. A Coruba {1} 9,079,691 GREEMALIA POWER SPAIN, 5L, 100, 00%
GREENAL |A BIOMASS SUFPLY ., 5.LU. A Corufa {2) 3321672 GREEMALIA BIOMASS POWER SL. U. 100.00%
GREEMNAL|A BIOMASS POWER CURTIS TEIXEIRD, S.L.U. A Corufa (3} 5,000,001 GREEMALIA BIOMASS POWER LUXENBURGO S A RL. 100.00%
GREENAL A BIGMASS POWER CURTIS TEIXEIRO I, 5 L.U. A Corufia {3 #5513 GREENALIA BIOMASS POWER, SLL. 100.00%
GREENAL|A BIDMASS POWER LA ZALIA, 5.L.\J. A Corufa {3) [ GREEMALIA BIOMASS POWER. 5L, 100.00%
GREENALI|A SOLAR POWER EL TRANCO. 5.L.U. A Coruia 3 3.000 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER DEVELOPMENT. S.LU. 100.00%
GREENAL|A SOLAR POWER GUADANE I, E.LU. A Coruia {3) 8,000 GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER DEVELOPMENT. &.LU. 100.00%
GREENAL A SOLAR POWER GUADANE I, 5L, A Corufa i3 3,000 GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.LL. 100.00%
GREENAL A SOLAR POWER GUADANE I, SL.U. A Corufia {3 3,000 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER DEVELOPMENT. SLLU. 100.00%
GREENAL A SOLAR POWER GUADANE IV, §.L.\. A Coruta {3} 3,000 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER DEVELOPMENT. S.LLU. 100.00%
GREENAL|A SOLAR POWER GUADANE V. S.LU. A Corufa {3} 1.600 GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.L.U. 100.00%
GREEMNAL|A SOLAR POWER MOSEN, S5.L.U. A Coruha {3) 850,871 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.L.U. 100.00%
GREENAL |A WIND POWER ACEVEDAL A Corufia {3} 17,018 GREENALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.LU. 100.00%
GREENAL|A WIND POWER ALTO DA CROA I, S.LU. A Corufa {3} 81,390 GREEMALIA WIND POWER EOLO SENIOR MOC, 5.L.U. 100.00%
GREENAL |A WIND POWER ALTO DA CROA, SL U, A Coruba {3) 35,077 GREENALIA WIND POWER EOLO SENIOR MOC, SL.U, 100.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER AS LOUSEIRAS, S.L.U. A Coruba {3) 3.000 GREENALIAWIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.LU. 100, 00%
GREENAL A WIND POWER BORRASCA, SL.LU A Corufia {3 3,000 GREEWALIA WIND POWER, SL.U. 100, 00%
GREEMAL|A WIND POWER BOURA, S.L.U A Coruha {3) 3,000 GREEMALIA WIND FOWER, 5.L.4, 100.00%
GREENAL |A WIND POWER ERISA, SL.U A Coruba [ [} GREEMNALIA WIND POWER. S.L.4. 100.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER BUSTELD. S.L.U. A Coruia {3) 427,796 GREEMNALLA WIND POWER EOLC SENIOR CAMPELOS, S.LAU. 100.00%
GREENAL |A WIND POWER CAMPELG, S.L.U. A Coruha {3) rar.g26 GREEMALIA WIND POWER EOLO SENIOR CAMPELOS, S.LLU. 100.00%
GREEMNALIA WIND POWER CANMPOS VELLOE, 5.LU A Coruna {3) } GREEMALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.L.U. 100.00%
GREENAL A WIND POWER CARBALLAL, SLU., A Comufia {3) 16,614 GREENALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.L.U. 100, 00%
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GREENALIA, 5.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Annex |
2of10
Registerad Cost Company Group
2023 Financial Year office Activity o Headline percentage
GREEMNAL A WIND POWER CEFIRO, SLU A Corufa (3 U GREENALIA 'WIND POWER, S L. 100.00%
GREENAL |A WIND POWER COTO DOS CHAOS, S.LU. A Corufa (3 8,600 GREENALIAWIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, SLU, 100, 00%
GREEMNALIA WIND FOWER COTO MUIRO, SL.U. A Corufia (3) 3000 GREENALIAWIND FOWER DEVELOPWMENT. S.LU. 100.00%
GREEMNALIA WIND POWER ECLD SENICRMOC. 5.A M. A Corufia (3) 20,371,522 GREEMALIA 'WIND POWER EOLO MOC, SAU. 10.00%
GREEMNAL A WIND FOWER EOLD CANMPELDS, SLU. A Corufia (3) 179,000 GREENALIA WIND POWER S.LU. 100.00%
GREEMNALIA WIND POWER EGLO MOG | 5.ALL A Corufa (3) 24,364,505 GREENALIA WIND POWER, SLA. 104, 00%
GREEMNAL A WIND POWER EDLO SENIOR CANMPELOS, S.L.L. A Conuifa () 178,000 GREEMALIA WIND POWER EQLD CANMPELOS, 5L 100.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER FELGA, S.L.U. A Corufia (3} 21,135 GREENALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.L.U. 100.00%
GREEMNAL A WIND POWER FONSANTA, S.LY. A Coruna (3 U GREEMALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT. S.LU. 1043 00%
GREENAL A WIND POWER FORGOSELO, S.LU. A Coruna )] 0 GREENALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.LU. 10:0.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER FRIOL, SL.U. A Confia {3 4,800 GREENALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPNENT, S.LU, 100.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER GAIOSD, S.LU. A Cornufa (2 [} GREENALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, SLU. 100.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER GALERNA, 5.L.U A Conuna (3] 1 GREEMALIA WIND FOWER, S.L.A. 10H2.00%
GREEMNAL A WIND POWER GATO, S.LU. A Coruta (3) 26,42 GREENALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.LU. 1000.00%
GREENAL A WIND POWER GOFIO. 5.L. A Corunfa (3 2,560 GREENALIAWIND POWER, 5L, 851
GREEMALIA WIND POWER GRANXOM, 5L, A Conufa () 14,831 GREEMALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPNWENT, S.L.U, 100.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER LAMAS, S LU, A Corufia (3 12,000 GREENALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPWMENT. S.L.U. 100.00%
GREEMNAL A WIND POWER LEVANTE, S.LU A Coruna )] 3,000 GREENALIA'WIND POWER, SL.U. 10:0.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER MINON, 5.L.U, A Coruna &} 310,291 GREENALIA WIND POWER EGLO SENIOR MOC, SLU. 1040.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER MISTRAL, 5L A Confa {2) 3,000 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.L.L. 100.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER MONTE DO CORDAL, 5L, A Conufia (3} 9,700 GREENALIA WIND POWER CEVELOPMENT, S.L.U. 10:0.00%
GREEMAL A WIND FOWER MONTE TOURADC, S.LU. A Corunia (3} 107,51 F GREENALIA WIND POWER EQOLD SENIOR MOC_ S.L.U. 100 00%
GREEMNAL A WIND POWER MONTE TOURAL, S.LA. A Coruna (3} 200,668 GREEMALIA WIND POWER EOLD SENIOR CANMPELOS, S1LU. 100.00%
GREEMNAL A WIND POWER MONTEIRG, 5L A Conufa (3] 15,136 GREENALIA 'WIND POWER DEVELOPNENT, 5.L.U. 100.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER MONZON, LU A Comuia (2} 0 GREEMALIA 'WIND POWER, SL.L. 100 00%
GREENALIA WINDG POWER NORDES. SLU A Corufa {3y 23,000 GREENALIAWIND POWER, S.L.A. 10 .00%
GREEMNAL A WIND POWER O CERQUEIRAL, S.L.U. A Corufa )] 3,000 GREENALIA'WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, SLU. 100.00%
GREENAL [A WIND POWER ORZAR, 3L U A Coruna )] 3,000 GREENALIAWIND POWER, S L L. 1000 .00%
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GREENALIA, S.A. AND SUEBSIDIARIES

Annex |
3of10
2023 Financial Year Registered offica  Activity g e el Group percentage
interest Headline
GREEMALIA WIND POWER OURCL. S.L.U. A Corufia [5)3 458,604 GREEMALIA WIND POWER EOLO SENIOR MOC, SL.U. 100.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER PENA DA CABRA, S.LU. A Goruna (3} 20,000 GREEMALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.L.LL 100004
GREEMALIA WIND POWER PENA DO PICO. 5 L. A Conia (3} 24 0de  GREEMALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, SL.LL 100 O
GREEMALLA WIND POWER PENA OMBRAL. 3.L.U. A Corufia (3} 0 GREENALIA WIND FOWER DEVELOPMENT, 5.L.U. 100.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER FENAS BOAS, 3L, A Conuna {3} 21,371 GREEMALIA WIND FOWER DEVELOPMENT, S.L.LI. 1000
GREENALIA WIND POWER RESTELD, 5.L.U. A Comfia {3} 18,820 GREEMALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, 5.L.U. 100.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER RODICIK), 3L A Coruha {3} 10,000 GREEMALIA WIND FOWER DEVELOPMENT, S1L.U. 100
GREENALIA WIND POWER SIROCO, S.L.U A Confia {3 0 GREENALIA WIND POWER, 5L, 10:0.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER TORNADO, SL.U A Coruna {3} 3000 GREEMALIA WIND POWER, 8L A 000 O
GREEMALIA WIND POWER TRAMONTANA, S.LU A Coruna (3} 0 GREENALIA WIND FOWER, SLU. 100.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER VAQUEIRA, &L U. A Conufa {3} 20000 GREEMALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, SL.LL 10 O
GREEMALIA WIND POWER VENTISCA, 5L A Coruna (3} 3,000 GREEMALIA WIND POWER, LU, 100.00%
GREENALIA FPOWER DEVELOPMEMT, S.L.LL A Conufa {3} 531,307 GREEMNALIA POWER SPAIN, S.L.U. 100
GREEMNALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.L.U. A Conifa {3} 5,841,307 GREEMALIA POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.LU. 10000
GREEMNALIA SOLAR POWER DEVELOPMENT, SLU. A Conifa {3} 1,802,000 GREEMNALIA POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.L.U. 100
GREENALIA SOLAR POWER ZUMAID |, S.L.U. A Comnfa {3} 50 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER DEVELOPMENT, SL.U. 100.00%
GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER ZUMAJID |1, SLU. A Coruha {3} 500 GREEMALIA SOLAR POVWER DEVELOPMENT, SL.U. 100.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER TORMENTA, 5.L.U. A Conina {3 1004 GREENALIA WIND POWER, 5.LU. 100
GREEMALIA WIND POWER HURACAN, S.LA. A Conufia {3} 15,000 GREENALIA WIND POWER, LU, 100.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER A MARABILLA. SL. A Corufia (3} 0 GREEMNALIA WIND FOWER, SL.U. B0.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER AS LAGOAS, S.L. A Corunia {3} 1 GREENALIA WIND POWER, SLU. 90,00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER CEDEIRA, 5L, A Conina (3} 0 GREENALIA WIND FOWER, 5L\, 90.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER CERVO. 5.L. A Conita () 1 GREENALIA WIND POWER, 5L\, 80.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER CORDOBELAS, 5.L. A Gonuha (3} 0 GREEMNALIA WIND FOWER, 5L\, 90.00%
104
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GREENALIA, 5.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Annex |
4 of 10
2023 Financial Year Registered office  Activity Cosl Sompany Group percentaga
interast Headline
GREEMNALIA WIND POWER ESTEIRQ, S.L. A Conifa {3} I GREENALIA WIND POWER. 2.L.U. O0.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER MONTOXO, S.L. A Conifa {3} 0 GREEMALIA WIND POWER, S.L.L). Tl O
GREENALIA WIND POWER O BARRAL. SL. A Cornufa (3} 0 GREEMNALIA WIND POWER. S.LU. 90.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER PINEIRD, S.L. A Conifa {3} ) GREEMALIA WIND POWER., S.LLU. D000 %
GREEMALIA WIND POWER PUNTA CANDIEIRA, SL. A Cornufa (3} 0 GREEMALIA WIND POWER. S.L.U. O0.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER REGOA, L. A Gamifa {3 0 GREENALIA WIND POWER, SL.U. O0.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER SAN IZIDRO, S.L. A Conifa {3} I GREEMNALIA WIND POWER, S.L.U. 00.00%
GREEMALIA WIND FOWER SAN ROMANM, L. A Confia (3} 0 GREEMALIA WIND POWER., S.L.U. O0.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER TEIXIDD, S.L. A Conifia {3} I GREENALIA WIND POWER. S.L.U. 00.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER VILAS, S.L. A Corufa {3} 0 GREEMALIA WIND POWER, S.L.U, O0.00%
GREEMALIA WIND FOWER CARDON, S.L. A Caruna {3} I GREEMALIA WIND POWER, S.L.LL BHD0%
GREENALIA WIND POWER DUNAS. 5.L. A Comnifa {3} 0 GREENALIA WIND POWER. S.L.U. B85.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER GUANCHE, &.L. A Conifa {3} 0 GREENALIA WIND POWER., S.L.U. 85.00%
GREEMNALIA WIND POWER MOJO, SL. A Conna {3} 2550 GREEMALIA WIND POWER, S.L.U. B85.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER LAMAS 11, S.LA. A Garuna {3} 5,500 GREENALIA WIND POWER. S.LLU. 1 0. D0
GREEMALIA WIND POWER CABAMELAE, SLLU A Conufa {3} 16,500 GREEMALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.L.L. 100 D%
GREEMALIA S0OLAR POWER SAM JULIAN |, 5.L.U A Conufa {3} 150,000 GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER, LU 1 0. Do
GREEMNALIA SOLAR POWER SAN JULIAN 11 SLU A Conifa (3} 150,000 GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER. S.L.U. 100, 0%
GREENALIA SOLAR POWER SANTA ANMNA 1 S.LU. A Comnufia (3} 1,000 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER DEVELOPMENT, 5.LU. 100009
GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER EL NARAMN.IO A Coruria {3} 3,000 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER., SL.U. 100 0%
GREEMAL A SOLAR POWER EMCIMA A Conina {3} 3,000 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER, 2.L.U. 100.00%
GREENAL I SOLAR POWER OLIVO A Conufa (3} 0 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER, SLU. 100.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER TORDESILLAS & Comnifa {3} 8,500 GREEMALIA WIND POWER, SL.U. 100 00
GREEMAL & WIND POWER VILAS A Gonufia {3} 1 GREEMALIA WIND POWER. S.LLU. 1041 0l
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GREEMNALIA S0OLAR POWER SAUCE, S.LAUL A Corufa ] 3000 GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER S.L.AU. 100.00%
GREEMNALIA SOLAR POWER ACEBOD, LI A Corufia (B} 3,000 GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER, 5L 100.00%
GREEMNALIA POWER PORTUGAL SGPS UNIPESSOAL, LDA Pario {3} &000 GREEMALIA. 5.4, 100.00%
GREENALIA SOLAR POWER, LDA, Parta {3} 3,00 GREEMALIA POWER PORTUGAL SGPS UNIPESS0AL, LDA 100.00%
GREENALIA POWER US, ING Wilmington (3 849 GREENALIA S A. 1001004
GREENALIA SOLAR POWER. INC Wilmington (33 920 GREENALIA POWER US. INC 100.00%
EXCEL ADVANTAGE SERVICE, LLG Crallas {3 20,247 561 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER, INGC 100,004
GREENALIA ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION, 5.LU. A Corufa (1) 3000 GREEMALIA S.A. 100.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER BLUE HILLS, LLT Dallas {3) 7,363,335 GREEMALIA WIND POWER, INC 100.00%
GREEMNALIA WIND POWER, INC Wilmirglon (3 020 GREEMALIA POWER LE, INC 100,005
GREEMNALIA SOLAR POWER REIE, LLC Drallaz {3 0 GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER, INC 100,005
GREENALIA SOLAR POWER WENSOWITCH, LLC Dallas (3 1 GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER., INC 100.00%
GREENALIA SOLAR POWER RATCLIFF, LLC Callas {3} 0 GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER., INC 100.00%
GREEMNALIA SOLAR POWER DRISKELL, LLC Dallas [8)] } GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER. INC 10000
HE-COTTONWOOD SOLAR. LLC Callas {3} 2443033 GREEMNALIA SOLAR POWER. INC 100.00%
Leitsal, LLG Drallas {3 1,081 478 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER, INC 100,004
Roscsal, LLC Dallas {3y 1,088,717 GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER. INC 100,000
GREEMNALIA ENMERGY STORAGE, LLC Drallas {3 0 GREEMALIA POWER LE, INC 100 D05
GREEMNALIA EMERGY STORAGE MIEAE II, LLT Drallas {33 0 GREEMALIA ENERGY STORAGE, LLC 100,000
GREEMNALIA SOLAR POWER WITTIG, LLC Dallas {3} 0 GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER, INC 100.00%
GREEMNALIA SOLAR POWER BLUE HILLS, LLG Callas (3} 0 GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER. INC 100.00%
GREENALIA SOLAR POWER MISAE NI, LLC Crallas () 1 GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER., INC 1001, 00%
GREEMNALIA BIOMASS POWER LUXEMBURGOD, SARL. Luxembaurg {1}  GREEMALIA BIOMASS POWER, SLA 100L00%
GREENALIA BIOMASS POWER LUXEMBURGO Il SARL. Luxembaurg {1} i GREENALIA BIOMASS POWER LUXENBURGO, SARL, 100.00%
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GREEMNALIA POWER SPAIN, 5L & Corina {1} 18,545,158 GREEMALIA 5.4, 100.00%
GREEMALIA WIND FOWER, S.L.U. A Conia {1} 12,787 086 GREEMALIA POWER SPAIN, S L. 100004
GREENALIA SOLAR POWER, S.L.UL A Corufia {1} 3001 GREENALIA POWER SPAIN, S.LAL 100,004
GREENALIA BIOMASS POWER, SL.U. A Corufia {1} 9,078 891 GREEMALLA POWER SPAIN, SLAUL 100.00%
GREEMALIA BIOMASSE SUPFLY, S.L.U. A Corfa {2} 3,321,672 GREENALLA BIONMASS POWER S.L. L. 1O
GREEMALIA BIOMASE POWER CURTIS TEIXEIRD, 5L A Corufa {3} 5,000,001 GREEMALLA BIOMASS POWER, S.L.LU. AR
GREENALIA BIOMASS POWER CURTIS TEIXEIRO I, 5.L.U. A Corufia (3} 25513 GREEMALIA BIOMASS POWER, S.L.U. 100.00%
GREEMALIA BIOMASS POWER LA ZALIA, 5L, & Coruna {3} A04.140 GREEMALIA BIOMASS POWER, S.L.U. 10008
GREEMALIA S0OLAR POWER EL TRANCO, SLL. A Confa {3} 3.000 GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER DEVELOPMENT, 5L 100005
GREENALIA SOLAR POWER GUADAME | S.L . A Corufia {3} 3000 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER DEVELOPMENT. 5.L.U. 100004
GREENALIA SOLAR POWER GUADAME 11, SLU. A Corufa {3} 2000 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.L.U. 100,005
GREENALIA SOLAR POWER GUADAME 1L S.L.U. & Corufa {3} 3.000 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER DEVELOPMENMT. S.L.U. 100.00%
GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER GUADAME IV, 2L, A Confa {3} 3,000 GREEMALLA SOLAR POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.L.L. RS
GREENALIA SOLAR POWER GUADAME v, SL.U. & Corufia (3} 3.000 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER DEVELOPMENT, S5.L.U. 100.00%
GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER MOSEN, S.L.U. & Conina {3} 3500 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.L.A. 100005
GREENALIA S0OLAR POWER QUINTOS, 5L A Conufia {3} 3500 GREENALLIA SOLAR POWER DEVELOPMENT, 5.L.L. A00.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER ACEVEDAL. S.L.4. A Corufia {3} 17.018 GREEMALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.LA. 100,004
GREENALIA WIND POWER ALTO DA CROA I, SLLUL A Corufa {3} 21360 GREEMALIA'WIND POWER EOLO SENIOR MOC, SL.U. 100.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER ALTO D4 CROA, SLU. A Corura {3} 35,077 GREEMALIAWIND POWER EQLO SENIOR MOC, S.L.L. 100.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER AS LOUSEIRAS, 5L A Corufa {3} 3,000 GREEMALLA WIND POWER DEVELOFMENT, 5L RO
GREENALIA WIND POWER BORRASCA, 5L A Confia {3} 3,000 GREEMALLA WIND POWER. 3.L.\). 00005
GREEMALIA WIND POWER BOURA, 5L & Corufa {3} 3000 GREEMALIA WIND POWER, S.L.AL 100005
GREENALIA WIND POWER BRIZA, SL.U A& Conina {3} 3.000 GREEMALIAWIND POWER, S.L.U. 100005
GREENALIA WIND POWER BUSTELG, 3L, A Coruna {3y 427,796 GREENALIA 'WIND POWER EOLO SENIOR CAMPELOS, SLU. 100,005
GREENALIA WIND POWER CANPELO, S.LA. A Corufia {3} 87 B26 GREENALIA'WIND POWER EOLO SENIOR CAMPELOS, S LU 100.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER CANMPOS VELLOS. S.LU & Corufia (3} 3000 GREEMALIAWIND POWER DEVELOPMENMT, S.LAL 100.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER CARBALLAL, S.L1I. A Confa {3} 18,614 GREEMALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMEMT, S.L.AL kS

=5 | www.greenalia.es

107



green

alia

Sroam Compory

GREENALIA, 5.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Annax |
7 of 10
Registered Cost Company Group
2022 Financial Year offica Activity brsreat Hoaifiis SR
GREENAL LA WIND POWER CEFIRC, S LU A Comfia {2) 2000 GREENALIA WIND POWER, SLU. 100 00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER COTOD DOS CHADS, S.L.U. A Gorufia {3} 15,181 GREENALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT. S.L.U. 100.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER COTO MUIND, S.LU. A Corufia 13} 3,000 GREEMALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.L.U. 100.00%
GREENAL 1A WIND POWER EOLO SENIOR MO, S AU A Gomufia {3) 20471522 GREENALIA WIND POWER EOLD MOG, S.A U 100 00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER EOLD CAMPELOS, S.LU. A Gorufia {3} 179,000 GREENALIA WIND POWER S.L.U. 100.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER EOLO MOC |, S.A.L), A Corufia {3} 24,364,505 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.LU. 100.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER EOLD SENIOR CAMPELOS, S.LA. A Gonifa {2 179,000 GREENALIA WIND POWER EOLO GAMPELOS, S.LU, 100.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER FELGA, S.L.U. A Gorufia {3} 21,135 GREENALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.LAU. 100.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER FONSANTA, SL.U. A Comufia {3) 15,119 GREENALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, SLU. 100.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER FORGOSELD, 5.L.U. A Corufia {3} 266,952 GREEMALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.L.U. 100.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER FRIOL, S.L.AJ. A Confia {3} 7.800 GREENALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.L.U. 100.00%
GREENAL IA WIND POWER GAIDSO, S.LLUL A Corufia {3} 3000 GREENALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, S L. 1000 00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER GALERNA. S.L.\ A Gorufia {3} 3.000 GREEMALIA WIND POWER. S.L.A. 100.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER GATO, SLU. A Confa {3} 26,342 GREENALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.LLJ. 100.00%
GREEMNALIA WIND POWER GOFIC, S.L A Gonifa {3} 2580 GREENALIA WIND POWER, SLA. A5 .D0%
GREENALIA WIND POWER GRANXON, S.LA. A Corufia {3 14,831 GREENALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT. S.LAU. 100.00%
GREEMNALIA WIND POWER LAMAS, S.L.U. A Conufia 1) 44,000 GREENALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, SL.U. 100.00%
GREEMAL L& WIND POWER LEVANTE, S.L.U A Gorufia {3} 3.000 GREENALIA WIND POWER, SL.U. 100.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER MINON. S.L.U. A Goruia {3} 310,301 GREENALIA WIND POWER EQOLO SENIOR MOGC, S.LU. 100.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER MISTRAL, SL.U A Corufia (&) 3.000 GREENALIA WIND POWER. SLA). 100.00%
GREEMNAL LA WIND POWER MONTE DO CORDAL, 51U A Corufia {3 9700 GREENALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, SL.U. 100.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER MONTE TOURADD, SLU. A Coruita (3} 107.577 GREENALIA WIND POWER EOLC SEMIOR MODC, S.LAU. 100.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER MONTE TOURAL, S.LU. A Coruiia {3} 200.668 GREENALIA WIND POWER EOLD SENIOR CAMPELOS, SLAU. 100.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER MONTEIRD. 5.L.U. A Conufia {3 15136 GREENALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, SLU. 100.00%
GREENAL 1A WIND POWER MONZOM, S LU A Corufia {3} 3,000 GREENALIA WIND FOWER, S.LA. 100.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER MORDES, SLU A Corufia ) 3.000 GREENALIA WIND FOWER, SLU. 100.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER O CERQUEIRAL, S.L.U. A Coruita {3} 3.000 GREENALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT. S.L.A. 100.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER ORZAR, 5L A Conufia {3 3.000 GREENALIA WIND POWER. SLA. 100.00%
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GREEMALIA WIND POWER OUROL, SLU. A Corufta {3} 458 684 GREEMALIA'WIND POWER EOLO SENIOR MOC, SL.U. 00008
GREEMALIA WIND POWER PEMA D& CABRA, 5L A Corufia (2 15,5631 GREENMALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.L.A. 100009
GREEMALIA WIND FPOWER PEMA DO PICO, 3L A Corufia {3 24042 GREEMALIAWIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.L.UL 100 D05
GREEMALIA WIND POWER FENA ONBRAL, 3L A Corufia (3 16,820 GREEMALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT. S.L.A. 10000
GREENALIA WIND POWER PENAS BOAS, SLU. A Corufia (33 21.371 GREENALIA 'WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT. S5.L.A. 100.004%
GREENALIA WIND POWER AS PENIZAS, S LA A Corufia {3} 24 485 GREEMALIA'WIND POWER, SL1U. 100.004%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER RESTELC, S.L.U. A Corufia (3) 15,820 GREEMNALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT. 5.L.AU. 100004
GREENALIA WIND POWER RODICIO, SLA. A Corufia {3 6,508 GREENALIAWIND POWER DEVELOPNENT, SLA. 100 (%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER SIRQCOQ, S5.LU A Corufia (3} 3.000 GREEMNALIA WIND POWER, LU, 100.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER SUIME, 5.L.U. A Corufia {3} 22.024 GREEMALIA'WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.LA. 100,008
GREEMALIA WIND POWER TORMADD, SL.U A Coruna ] 3,000 GREENMALIAWIND FOWER, ELU. 10000
GREEMALLS WIND POWER TOURINAN. S LU A Corufia (3} 300,000 GREEMALIA WIND POWER EOLO SENIOR CAMPELOS, S.LU. 100 .00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER TRAMONTANA, S LU A Corufta (3) 3,000 GREEMALIAWIND POWVER, S L. 100005
GREENMALIA WIND POWER VAQUEIRA, 5L A Corufta (3) 8410 GREENALIAWIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.LA. 100.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER VENTISCA. 5.LU A Corufia {3 3.000 GREENALIAWIND POWER, 5L, 100.00%
GREEMNALIA POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.L.U. A Corufia (3} 344 307 GREENALIA POWER SPAIN, S.L.U. 10000
GREENALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.L.AL. A Coruna (3} 341,257 GREENALIA POWER DEVELOPMENT, SLAL 0000
GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.L.U. A Corufia (2} 3.000 GREEMALIA POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.LAL 100.00%
GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER ZUNAJO |, S.L.4. A Corufta 3} 500 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER DEVELOPNENT, S.L.A. 100,008
GREEMALIA S0OLAR FOWER ZUNMAJIOD I, 5L, A Coruna (3 500 GREEMALIA E0OLAR POWER DEVELOPNMENT, 5L, 100 D0
GREEMALIA WIND POWER ALTO DO RODICIO I, S.LU. A Corufta (3) 3.000 GREEMALIAWIND POWER, 8L, 100.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER TORMENTA, S.L.U. A Corufia {3 3,000 GREENALIAWIND FOWER, 2L, 100005
GREENALIA WIND POWER HURAGCAN. 5L, A Corulta (3} 3.000 GREENALIAWIND POWER, SLAU. 100004
GREENALIA WIND POWER A MARABILLA, S1L. A Corufia (3 2,700 GREENALIAWIND POWER, 8L, S, 005
GREEMALIA WIND POWER AS LAGOAS, 5L, A Corufia (3} 2,700 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.LA. B 00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER CEDEIRA, S.L. A Corunia (3) 2./00 GREEMALIAWIND POWER, 5L, 5. 00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER CERVO, S.L. A Corufia (3} 2,700 GREENALIAWIND POWER, S.LAU. o0, 00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER CORDOBELAS, S, A Corufa {3} 2./00 GREENALIA'WIND POWER, SLU, S0, 0096
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GREEMALIA WIND POWER ESTEIRO, S L. A Corufia 3 2.700 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.LA. G0.00%
GREEMALLA WIND POWER MOMTOXO, 5L, A Coruna {3} 2700 GREEMALIA WMD POWER, S.LLL o0 D0
GREEMALIA WIND FPOWER O BARRAL, 5L, A Corufia {3) Z 700 GREEMALIA WIND POWER, S.LLL G000
GREEMALIA WIND POWER PINEIRD, S.L A Corufa {3) 2700 GREENALIA WIND POWER., 5.L.U. Q0. 00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER PUNTA CANDIEIRA, SL. A Corufia 13} 2.700 GREENALIA 'WIND POWER, S.L.U. 90.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER REGOA, L. A Corufa {3 2.700 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.L L. S0.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER SAN ISIDRO. SL. A Conufia {3} 2. 700 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.LA. 50.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER SAN ROMAN, S.L. A Coruia {3) 2./00 GREENALIA 'WIND POWER, S.LA. S0.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER TEIXIDO, B.L. A Coruia {3} 2.700 GREEMALIA WIND POWER, S.LA. o0.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER VILAS, SL. A Corufia 13} 2.700 GREEMALIA WIND POWER, S.L.U. G0.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER CARDOM, S1L. A Conuna {3) 2550 GREEMALIA WIND POWER, 5.L.L. A85.00%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER DUNAS, SL. A Corufia 13) 24550 GREENALIA WIND POWER, 5L 85.00%
GREEMALIA WIND FPOWER GUAMCHE, SL. A Corufia {3) 2580 GREEMALIA WIND POWER, S.LLL BE.DD%
GREEMALIA WIND POWER MOJO. S.L. A Corufia 3} 2550 GREENALIAWIND POWER. S.L.U. 85.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER LAMAS 11, S.LU. A Corufia 13} 3000 GREENALIA WIND POWER, S.LU. 100 00
GREEMALIA WIND POWER XESTEIROM. S.LA. A Corufia {3} 62,662 GREEMNALIA WIND POWER. 5.L.U. 100.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER CABANELAS, SLU A Coruiia {3) 486,000 GREENALIA WIND POWER DEVELOPMENT. S.L.L. 1 0. 00
GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER SAN JULIAN |, .L.W A Coruia {3} 150,000 GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER, S.LU. 100.00%
GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER SAN JULIAN I, &.L.U A Corufia 13} 150,000 GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER, S.LU. 100, 00%
GREEMALIA S0OLAR FOWER SANTA ANMA |, 5L, A Coruia {3} 3,000 GREEMALIA S0OLAR POWER DEVELOPMENT, ELA, 100, 00%
GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER SANTA ANNA |1, 5.LA. A Corufia (3} 3.000 GREENMALIA SOLAR POWER DEVELOPMENT, S.LA. 100, 00%
GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER EL PATIO. 5L, A Coruia {3) 000 GREENMALIA SOLAR POWER, S.L1. 100 00
GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER SAUCE. 5.L.U. A Corufia [ 3.000 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER, S.LU. 1 00.00%
GREENALIA S0OLAR POWER ACERO, SLU. A Corufia {8) 000 GREENALIA SOLAR POWER, 3L 1. 100, 00%
GREEMALIA POWER PORTUGAL SGPS UNIPESS0AL, LDA Porio (3} 5,000 GREEMALIA, 5A. 1 0000
GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER, LDA, Parla {3} 3001 GREEMALIA POWER PORTUGAL SGPS UNIPESS0AL, LDA 1 00 0%
GREEMALIA POWER VS, INC Wilnvinglon {3} 840 GREENALIA S.A. 10000
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GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER., INC Wilmington (3] 0938 GREEMALIA POWER WS, INC 100.00%
EXCEL ADVANTAGE SERVICE. LLC Crallas ()] 21139348 GREEMALI|A SOLAR POWER. INC 1100.00%
GREEMALIA ENGIMEERING AND COMSTRUCTION, S.LAL A Corufia {1} 21138348 GREEMALIA S A. 100.00%
GREENALIA WIND POWER BLUE HILLS, LLG Crallas {2 21138348 GREENALIA WIND POWER, INC 100.00%
GREEMALLA WIND POWER, INC Wilminglon (3 21,130,348 GREEMALIA POWER UE, INC 100, D0%
GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER REIS, LLC Crallas ()] 21138348 GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER, ING 100, 00%
GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER WENSOWITCH, LLC Drallas () 21,135,348 GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER, INC 100, 0D0%.
GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER RATCLIFF, LLC Crallas () 21,139,348 GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER, INC 100.00%
GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER DRISKELL, LLC Crallas () 21139348 GREEMALIA SOLAR POWER. INC 100.00%
GREEMALIA FOREST, SLL. A Corufia {2} 21138348 GREEMALIA S A. 100.00%
GREEMNALIA LOGISTICS, S.L.U. A Corufa {63 21138348 GREEMALIA SA. 100.00%
GREEMALIA INDUSTRY, 5.L.LL A Corufia (1) 21139348 GREEMALIA SA. 100.00%
13 Acquisilion And disposal of shares and ownership inleresls represeniaiive of the Authorksed share capial
{2} Falling, chipping, bagying and salling, procassing &nd handing of fimbar and forest blomass
{3} Energy Produstion
) Production, sale and supply of woad ehips.
{3) Purchase/sale and processing of timber
{3) Provision of forestry and trnspor servicos,
{71 Tranaport of gonds by saa
{81 Works and sarvices for the production, transpord, transformation and disfdbution or commarcialisation of enengy
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